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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING

Village Hall Auditorium
53 South La Grange Road

La Grange, lL 60525

AGENDA

Monday, October 12,2015 - 7:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Arnett
Trustee Holder
Trustee Kotynek
Trustee Kuchler
Trustee Langan
Trustee McCarty
President Livingston

PRESIDENT'S REPORT
This is an opportunityfor the Village President to report on matters of interest or
concern to the Village.

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS
After the Village Clerk has announced the items included on the Omnibus

Agenda and under Current Business, members of the public will have the

opportunity to speak about any matter that is listed on this Agenda.

OMNIBUS AGENDA AND VOTE
Matters on the Omnibus Agenda will be considered by a single motion and vote

because they already have been considered fully by the Board at a previous

meeting, or have been determined to be of a routíne nature. Any member of the

Board of Trustees may request that an item be movedfrom the Omnibus Agenda

to Current Business for separate consideration,

A. Ordinance - Variation - Required Front Yard and Maximum Building
Coverage / Karen and Phil Otanicar,332 S. Ashland Avenue

B. Ordinance - Creating an Additional Class A-l Liquor License, Sushi

Ukai, lnc. dlbla Sushi House, 120 B West Calendar Avenue

C. Ordinance - Creating an Additional Class F-2 Liquor License, La
Grange Art League,l22 Calendar Avenue

D. Ordinance - Creating an Additional Class H Liquor License, The
Dinner Club LLC, 26 S.La Grange Road

E. Minutes of the Village of La Grange Board of Trustees Regular

Meeting, Monday, September 28, 2015

2.

3

4.

F. Consolidated Voucher 151012
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Village Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Agenda- October 12,2015 -Page2

CURRENT BUSINESS
This agenda item includes consideration of matters being presented to the Board
of Trusteesfor action.

A. FY 2014-15 Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports: Referred to

Trustee Kotynek

B. Ordinance -ZoningCode Text Amendments: Referred to Trustee

Langan

MANAGER'S REPORT
This is an opportunity for the Village Manager to report on behalf of the Village

Staffabout matters of interest to the Village.

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING MATTERS NOT ON AGENDA
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to speak about Village

related matters that are not listed on this Agenda.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board of Trustees may decide, by a roll call vote, to convene in executive

session if there are matters to discuss confidentially, in accordance with the

Open Meetings Act.

TRUSTEE COMMENTS
The Board of Trustees may wish to comment on any matters

IO. ADJOURNMENT

The Village of La Grange is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990. Inãividuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain

accommodations so that they can observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have

questions, regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the Village's facilities, should contact the

Village's ADA Coordinator at (708) 579-2315 promptly to allow the Village to make reasonable

accommodations for those persons.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Community Development Department

BOARD REPORT

TO: Village President, Village Clerk
Board of Trustees and Village Attorney

FROM: Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager

Patrick D. Benjamin, Community Development Director
Angela Mesaros, Assistant Community Development Director

DATE October 12,2015

RE: ORDINAIYCE . VARIATION - REOUIRED FRONT YARD AND MAXIMIIM
BUILDING COVERAGE/KAREN A¡ID PHIL OTA¡IICAR.332 S. ASHLAIID
AVENUE.

Karen and Phil Otanicar, owners of the property at 332 S. Ashland Avenue, have applied for

variations from front yard and maximum building coverage requirements to construct a front porch

on their house. The subject property is located on an interior lot in the R-4 Single Family Residential

District. The property in question is 50 ft. wide by 124.22 ft. deep - slightly less than the typical

depth of 125 feet for single family lots.

According to the applicants, they recently purchased the properfy and wish to enjoy a front porch,

which is common on their block and in their neighborhood. The house was originally built closer to

the street than is allowed by the current ZoningCode. They betieve that the proposed size - seven

feet in depth is the minimum necessary.

The adjusted required front yard for this property is 25 feet. As proposed at 16.53 feet, the front

porch would be equal to the average of the two adjacent properties. The Zoning Code allows

ieduction of the front yard based on this average; however the minimum allowed is 25 feet.

Therefore, the applicants seek avariation from Paragraph 3-110C1 (Front Yard Setback) of the

Zoning Code. Subparagraph 14-303E1 (a) (Authorized Variations) allows the reduction of any

required yard. The requested variation falls within the authorized limits of the Zoning Code.

In addition, the applicants seek a second variation from Paragraph 3-110E1 (Maximum Building

Coverage) of the ZoningCode in order to construct this project. Maximum Building Coverage for

this lot is 30o/o or 1,863square feet. The proposed porch would increase building coverage to an

excess of 115 square feet or 60/o. Subparagraph 14-303E1(c) (Authorized Variations) allows an

increase in maximum allowable building coverage by no more than 20%. The requested variation

falls within the authorized limits of the Zoning Code.

Y'/)



Board Report
Variations - Required Front Yard & Maximum Building Coverage

332 S. Ashland Avenue
Page2

On September 17,2015, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on this matter (see

Findings of Fact). At the hearing, the petitioners presented the application. A motion forthe Zonng
Board of Appeals to recommend approval of the application passed on a vote of all four
Commissioners present in favor of the application.

Pursuant to Subsection l3-I02D of the ZoningCode, at least four aye votes are required to decide in
favor of any application. Therefore, the motion to recommend that the variation be granted as

requested passed.

Commissioners cited the following reasons for voting in favor of the application: (1) denied

substantial rights - front porches are supported and promoted by the Village and is a right enjoyed by
many of the residents on their block and in their neighborhood; (2) the lot is unique with a depth

slightly less than the minimum 125 feet required; and (3) this proposal is consistent with the intent of
the Code and context of the neighborhood - it is equal in distance to the average front yard of the

adjacent properties.

Staff has prepared the attached ordinance authorizing the variation for your consideration. If you

concur with the recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, then a motion to approve the

attached ordinance would be appropriate.

y-'r4'l



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

ORDINANCE NO. O-1

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING ZONING VARIATIONS
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A FRONT PORCH

AND AT 332 SOUTH ASHLAND AVENUE

WHEREAS, Karen and Phil Otanicar, the owners of a single family detached house

on property commonly known as 332 S. Ashland Avenue, La Grange, Illinois, and legally
described as follows:

Lot 9 in Block ? in La Grange, being a Subdivision of the East Half of the
Southwest Quarter and part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 4, Township
38 North, Range 12, East of the Third Principal Meridian, Iying South of the
Chicago Burlington and Quincy Railroad, in Cook County, Illinois.

Have applied for variations from Paragraph 3- 110C 1 (Required Front YarÐ and Paragraph
3-110E1 (maximum building coverage) of the La Grange Zoning Code to authorize
construction ofa front porch; and

WHEREAS, the La Grange Zoníng Board of Appeals conducted a public hearing to
consider the application on September 17, 2015, pursuant to proper public noticei and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have reviewed the record of the
public hearing and the Findings and Recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals and
have determined that the application satisfies the standards set forth in the La Grange
Zoníng Code for the grant of a variationi

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of
the Viltage of La Grange, Cook County and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as

findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Grant of Variation. The Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority
granted to it by the laws of the State of Illinois and the La Grange Zoníng Code, hereby
grants to the Owner variations from the required front yard standard of Paragraph 3- 110C 1

and the maximum building coverage standard of Paragraph 3-11081 of the La Grange
Zoning Code to authorize construction of a front porch in accordance with Village approved
plans, subject to the following conditions:

A. The variation is granted only to authorize construction of the Proposed
Improvements in substantial conformity with the design drawings attached
to this Ordinance as ExhibitA (the "Approved Desigrl'). The permit drawings
to be prepared by the Owners must conform to the Approved Design and
must be approved by the Village's Director of Community Development.

B. The Owners must execute a covenant in a form satisfactory to the Village
declaring:

4* H,z



(t) That the front porch must never be enlarged, must always remain
open, and may never be enclosed with walls, windows, screening, or
any other structures or objects and

C. If any of the Proposed Improvements is constructed in violation of any term
or condition of this Ordinance, then the Village may order that construction
to be demolished and may rescind the approval granted by this Ordinance.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full force and effect after (a)

its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law, (b) execution by
the Owners and recording of the covenant required by Subsection 28 of this Ordinance, and
(c) approval by the Village's Director of Community Development of conforming plans for
the Proposed Improvements as required by Subsection 2A of this Ordinance.

PASSED this _ day of 20L5

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT

APPROVED this day of 2015

Thomas E. Livingston, Village President

ATTEST:

John Burns, Village Clerk

Y- ê'3



EXHIBIT A

APPROVED DESIGN
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FINDINGS OF FACT
DRAFT

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
OF THE

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
September 17,2015

President Livingston and
Board of Trustees

RE ZONING CASE #610 - VARIATION _ 332 S. ASHLAND AVENUE. MAXIMUM
BUILDING COVERAGE AND REOUIRED FRONT YARD FOR A COVERED
F'RONT PORCH IN THE R-4 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.
KAREN & PHIL OTANICAR.

The Zoning Board of Appeals transmits for your consideration its recommendations for a request

of zoning variation necessary to allow construction of a covered front porch at 332 S. Ashland
Avenue.

I. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:

The subject property in question is a single family home located in a single family
residential district.

II. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SURROUNDING AREA:

The subject property is located in the R-4 Single Family Residential District.

III. VARIATIONS SOUGHT:

The applicant seeks a variation from Paragraph 3-l10El (Maximum Building Coverage)
and Paragraph 3-110C1 (Required Front Yard) and a second variation from Paragraph 3-
11081 (Maximum Building Coverage) of t the Village of La Grange Zoning Code to
construct a covered front porch. Subparagraph l4-303E1 (a) (Authorized Variations)
allows the reduction of any required yard. The requested variation falls within the
authorized limits of the Zoning Code. The porch would increase maximum building
coverage by 6%. Subparagraph 14-30381(c) (Authorized Variations) allows an increase

in maximum allowable building coverage by no more than 20010.

IV. THE PUBLIC HEARING:

After due notice, as is required by law, (including legal publication, posting at the subject
property and courtesy notices to owners within 250 feet of the subject property) the Zoning
Board of Appeals held a public hearing on the proposed variation in the La Grange Village
Hall Auditorium on September 17,2015. Present were Commissioners Laura Blentlinger,
Ian Brenson, Michael Finder, with Chairman Pro Tem Jeff Hoffenberg presiding. Also
present was Assistant Community Development Director Angela Mesaros. Testimony was

l-n,8



FF --ZBA Case #610
RE: 332 S. Ashland Avenue

Variation -Maximum Building Coverage and Front Yard
September 17, 20t5 - Page 2

given under oath by the applicants. No objectors appeared at the hearing. No written
objections have been filed to the proposed variation.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg swore in Phil Otanicar, 332 S. Ashland, owner of the

property, and Tim Trompeter, architect, who presented the application and answered

questions from the Commissioners:

. The applicants recently purchased the subject property. Almost every home in their
neighborhood has a front porch. It is common in their neighborhood for people to sit
on front porches. They would like to be a part of that.

. They have engaged Tim Trompeter, architect, who is also a neighbor at 318 S. Ashland,

to design a front porch.

The proposed front porch is setback the average distance between the adjacent houses.

As designed the porch blends with the architectural style of the house - a classic old

brick farm house. They also propose to add a decorative rail to the second floor.

a The house was originally built closer to the street than the current Code allows.

The proposed porch is slightly deeper than seven feet and extends the full width of the

house. They believe this is the minimum variation necessary as generally porches are

eight to ten feet deep.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg solicited questions from the Commissioners:

Commissioner Brenson asked about the standard for uniqueness - any differences in
this property, such as that the house is closer to the street.

a

a

a

a

a

a

Commissioner Brenson asked about other porches on the block. Most of the other

porches are original to the houses with one other variation on the block about seven

years ago.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg asked if there had originally been a front porch.

Answer: No, only the existing concrete porch, which the applicants believe is original
to the house.

Commissioner Finder asked if the existing concrete porch is non-conforming. Answer:

Yes. The proposed porch will be only two steps further out into the yard than the

existing porch.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg asked if the distance of the proposed porch is consistent

with other porches on the block.
a
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FF --ZBA Case #610
RE: 332 S. Ashland Avenue

Variation -Maximum Building Coverage and Front Yard
September 17,2015 - Page 3

Commissioner Brenson asked if they could reasonably have a smaller porch. Answer:
they want the porch to be useful and they feel that this is the smallest reasonable size.

Commissioner Blentlinger asked about landscaping. Answer: there is no regulation
about how close to the street landscaping may be.

Commissioner Finder asked about contextual zoning. Ms. Mesaros clarified that the
Code allows adjustments to the average of the adjacent properties with a minimum 25

feet required yard (as-of-right) and a reduction to 20 feet with an administrative
adjustment.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg solicited questions and comments from the Audience:

a There were no comments from the Audience.

Under the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, no variation shall be granted unless the

applicant establishes that carrying out the strict leuer of the provisíons of this code would
create a particular hardship or practical dfficulty. Such a showing shall require proof that
the variation sought satisfies certaín conditions. Thefollowingfacts wereþund to be evident:

l. Unique Physical Condition:

This zoning lot is slightly less deep than is typical for the R-4 Single Family Residential Zoning
District. The lot measures 50 feet wide and 124.22 feet deep. Typical lots measure 125 feet

deep. This lot size is typical of single lots between 47th and Elm, and Ashland to Kensington.

2. Not SelÊCreated:

The applicants recently purchased this house. They believe that this proposed front porch is
similar to many houses in the neighborhood. Staff notes that the applicants' house is
architecturally different from the examples of other houses on their block that have been

included with their application.

3. Denied Substantial Rights:

According to the applicants, a front porch is a right enjoyed by many village residents. Front
porches are also common in the applicants' immediate area. Nine out of 12 homes on the

subject block have front porches, most of which extend into the required front yard.

a

a

Ç ^A,to



FF --ZBA Case #610
RE: 332 S. Ashland Avenue

Variation -Maximum Building Coverage and Front Yard
September 17, 2015 - Page 4

4. Not Merely Special Privilege:

The proposed front porch is consistent with front setbacks of several front porches in the

surrounding area. Average front yard on the applicants' block is less than the minimum
allowable of 25 feet. The average front setback is approximately 19 feet.

5. Code and Plan Purposes:

As proposed the front porch would meet the required side yards, but would encroach into the

required front yard and exceed building coverage requirements. One of the purposes of the

building coverage standard in the Zoning Code is to control "bulk." The petitioner believes

that the proposed open front porch would be consistent with the context of the area and not

affect the neighbors' properties with the appearance of bulk.

This property is located within the Historic District. The front porch would be consistent with
the goals of the Comprehensive Plan to maintain the unique character of the Village's
neighborhoods.

6. Essential Character of the Area:

The applicants do not believe that this front porch would adversely impact the character of the

area.

7. No Other Remedy:

The applicants believe that no other remedy would improve the house. Other options would

include construction of a smaller front porch.

V. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:

Commissioner Finder stated that the proposed porch would not negatively impact the

neighborhood. The only other remedy would be to not build the porch. The Village is in
support of porches in La Grange. This project would be an improvement.

Commissioner Blentlinger stated that the proposed porch is a good fit for the neighborhood.

a

a

a Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg stated from his perspective that the request meets the

following standards: (l) no other remedy - a five or six feet deep porch does not make

sense, and'onot building the porch" would not be another remedy; (2) The lot is unique -
the depth is less than 125 feet and the shorter depth restricts what the homeowner can do;

(3) substantial rights - the Village supports and promotes front porches; and (4) the porch

fits the character of the area. The house currently looks abnormal in the context of the

neighborhood with no front porch.

T-Ê'/l



FF --ZBA Case #610
RE: 332 S. Ashland Avenue

Variation -Maximum Building Coverage and Front Yard
September 17,20t5 - Page 5

Commissioner Blentlinger asked if most zoning lots are at least 125 feet deep. Answer:
t25 feetis the minimum required depth.

Commissioner Brenson stated that no other remedy is a question of size and magnitude;
uniqueness is attributed to the shape or pre-existing problems and not necessarily to size

of the lot. He likes the idea of porches and this application meets a lot of the standards.

Chairman Pro Tem Hoffenberg stated that this proposal meets the spirit and intent of the
Code by measuring the average front yard of the two adjacent properties.

There being no further questions or comments from the audience or the Commissioners, a motion
was made by Commissioner Brenson and seconded by Commissioner Finder that the ZoningBoard
ofAppeals recommend to the Village Board of Trustees approval ofthe application submitted with
ZBA Case #610.

Motion to recommend approval Passed by a roll call vote (41013).

AYE: Blentlinger, Brenson, Finder and Hoffenberg.
NAY: None.
ABSENT: O'Connor, Pappas and Brewin.

Be it therefore resolved that the Zoning Board of Appeals recommend to the Village Board of
Trustees approval of the variations from Paragraph 3-11081 (Maximum Building Coverage) and

Paragraph 3-110C1 (Required Front Yard) of the Village of La Grange Zoning Code to allow
construction of a covered front porch at332 S. Ashland Avenue.

Respectful ly submitted :

ZoningBoard of Appeals of the
Village of La Grange

BY:
Jeffrey Hoffenberg, Chairman Pro Tem

a

a

a
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STAFF REPORT

CASE: ZBA#610- Karen & Phil Otanicar, 332 S. Ashland Avenue - Required Front Yard &
Maximum Building Coverage

BACKGROUND

(Note: This Staff Report is solely based on information presented in the application and on aphysical

inspection of subject property and environs, and is not influenced by any other circumstance.)

The applicants, Karen and Phil Otanicar, wish to construct a7' I Yz" deep front porch on the subject

property at332 S. Ashland Avenue. The average front yard of the two adjacent properties is 15' 6
3/o". TheZoningCode allows reduction of the front yard based on the average of the two adjacent

properties; however, the minimum allowable front yard is 25 feet. Therefore, the required front yard

for this property is 25 feet. As proposed at 15' 6 %", the front porch would be consistent with the

adjacent properties but would encroach into the required front yard by 9.44 feet.

Maximum Building Coverage forthis lot is 30% or 1,863 square feet. Currentlythispropeftycovers

1,829 square feet with only 34 square feet remaining buildable area. With the proposed expansion of
the front porch (167 square feet), this property would exceed the building coverage requirements by

I 15 square feet. The maximum allowable modification of building coverage that Staff can grant

through the administrative adjustment process is 100 square feet. Therefore, an administrative

adjustment for the front porch could not be issued.

In order to construct the proposed front porch, the applicants two variations: ( I ) Paragraph 3- I 1 0C 1

(Front Yard Setback) of the ZoningCode. Construction of the front porch would encroach into the

adjusted front yard by 9.44 ft. Subparagraph l4-303E1 (a) (Authorized Variations) allows the

reduction of any required yard. The requested variation falls within the authorized limits of the

ZoningCode; and (2) a second variation from Paragraph 3-1 10E1 (Maximum Building Coverage) of
the Zoning Code. The porch would increase maximum building coverage by 6%. Subparagraph 14-

303E1(c) (Authorized Variations) allows an increase in maximum allowable building coverage by no

more than 20Yo. The requested variation falts within the authorized limits of the Zoning Code.

VARIATION STANDARDS

In considering a variation, be guided by the General Standard as outlined in our ZoningCode that

"No variation shall be granted pursuant to this Section unless the applícant shall establísh that

carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of this Code would creøte a particular hardship or a

practical dfficutty. Such a showing shall require proof that the varíation being sought satisfies each

of the standards set forth in this Subsection."

q'A, / 3



Staff Evaluation Criteria
ZB^#610 -332 South Ashland Avenue

Variation - Required Front Yard & Maximum Building Coverage
Page2

Unique Physical Condition - "The subject property is exceptional as compared to other loti subject

to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition, including presence of an existing
use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or nonconþrming; ircegnlar or stústandard shape or
size; exceptional topographicalfeatures; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and
inherent in the subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and
that relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of the

lot. "

This zoning lot is slightly less deep than is typical for the R-4 Single Family Residential Zoning
District. The lot measures 50 fèet wide and 12422 tbet deep. Typical lots measure 125 feet deep.

This lot size is typical of single lots between 47tt'ancl Elm, and Ashland to Kensington.

Not Self-Created - "The aforesaid unique physical condition ís not the result of any action or
inactíon of the owner or its predecessors in title and existed at the time of the enactment of the

provisions from which a variation is sought or vvas created by natural /'orces or was the result of
governmental action, other than the adoption of this Code, þr whích no compensatíon was paid."

The applicants recently purchased this house. They believe that this proposed front porch is similar
to many houses in the neighborhood. Staff notes that the applicants' house is architecturally
different from the examples of other houses on their block that have been included with their
application.

Denied Substantial Rights - "The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which a
variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of substantial rights commonly

enjoyed by owners of other lots subiect to the same provision."

According to the applicants, a front porch is a right enjoyed by many village residents. Front porches

are also common in the applicants' immediate area. Nine out of 12 homes on the subject block have

front porches, most of which extend into the required fiont yard.

Not Merely Special Privilege - "The allegedhardship or dfficulty is not merely the inabilíty of the

owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not available to owners or
occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor merely an ínability to make more money

from the use of the subject property; provided, however, that where the standards herein set out
exist, the existence of an economic hardshíp shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized
variation. "

The proposed front porch is consistent with fiont setbacks of several front porches inthe sunounding

area. Average front yard on the applicants' block is less than the minimum allowable of25 feet. The

average front setback is approximately 19 feet.

/-A,t v



Staff Evaluation Criteria
ZB.^#610 -332 South Ashland Avenue

Variation - Required Front Yard & Maximum Building Coverage
Page 3

Code and Plan Purposes - "The variation would not result in a use or development of the subiect

property that would be not in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Code

and the provisionfromwhich a varíation is sought were enacted or the general purpose and intent of
the Ofricial Comprehensive Plan."

As proposed the front porch would meet the required side yards, but would encroach into the

required front yard and exceed building coverage requirements. One of the purposes of the building
coverage standard in the ZoningCode is to control "bulk." The petitioner believes that the proposed

open front porch would be consistent with the context of the area and not affect the neighbors'

properties with the appearance of bulk.

This property is located within the Historic District. The front porch would be consistent with the

goals of the Comprehensive Plan to maintain the unique character of the Village's neighborhoods.

Essential Character of the Area - "The variation would not result in a use or development on the

subject property that:

a. Would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injuriotts to the

enjoyment, use, development, or vah,rc of property or improvements permitted in the vicinity;

or
b. Ll¡ould materially impair an adequate ntpply of light and air to the properties and

improvements in the vicinitY; or
c. llottld substantially increase congestion in the public streets due to trffic or parking; or
d. Would undr.ily increase the danger offlood or fire; or
e. Would unduly tax public utilities andfacilitates in the area; or

f Would endanger the public health or safety."

The applicants do not believe that this front porch would adversely impact the character of the area.

No Other Remedy - "There is no means other than the requested variation by which the alleged

hardship or dfficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree stfficient to permit areasonable use of
the subject property."

The applicants believe that no other remedy would improve the house. Other options would include

construction of a smaller front porch.

l-n, t5
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APPLIçATTON FOR ZONING VARIATTON

TO TTIE PRESIDENT A}{D BOARD OF TRUSTEES
VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

þlease type or prinÐ
Application is hereþ made by

Address : 332 S- shland Avenue Phone: (303) 619-7756

Owner of proper[y located at: Karen & Phil Otanicar

Permanent Real Estate Index No: 18-04-320-017

present ZonngClassification: R-4 Present Use: Single Family Residence

Ordinance Provision for Variation from Article # 3-110.8.1 & # -c.1 of Zoning Ordinance, to

wiil 1 (Maximum Building Coverage on an Interior Lot - 30%o)

2. (Front Yard Setback and Front Yard Reduction)

A. Minimum Variation of Zoning requirement necessary to permit the proposed use, construction, or development:

1. A 2 o/o increase in tlhe Lãt Coveraee to allow us to build a Covered Front Porch on the front of the house.

2. A reduction in the Front Yard Setback to be able to build a Covered Front Porch

B. The purpose therefor, to add on a Covered Front Porch

Z6*þ'
Application# a

Date Filed: 9 tf
UARCO #Q¿\

c.
(.ttUw<t-

feature(sf of the proposed use, construction, or development that require a variation:

1

requestine 115 sqgflre feet or 29lo increase.

Z. ion - the cr¡rrent house is set back 22'-8". We propoåe to bprld ?4 7':1-

the setback to 1 5 '-6-314" - the house just to the north 328 S. Ashland is

set back 15'-4"-and tlre house to the south 334 S. Ashland is set back 15'-9-112"

| ^H, tg



3. Not Self-Created. The aforesaid unique physical condition is not the result of any action or inaction of the owrrer or

its fredecessors in title and existed at the time of the enactuent of the provisions from which a variation is sought or

was created by natural forces or vras the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of this Code, for which

no compensation was paid
We jusi purchased tlhè home anLd feel that ttris addition will complete the desigr and give our house the wan4

approachabilitv similar to many homes in the neighborhood.

4. Denied Substantial Rights. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from which a variation is sought

*o.tt¿ ¿tptin" th" o*n"t ofthe subject property of substantial rights commonly enjoyed by o\ mers of other lots subject

to the same provision.
The denid oþthe increase inlotcoveraee would eliminate the potential of addingthe covered frontPorch feature (akeY

component in expanding outdoor living space and adding the character that would er¡hance tlre neighborhood)'

5. Not Merely Special Privileee. The alleged hardship or diffrculty is not merely inability of the owner or occupant to

rqioy **" rp""iul pti.toihge or additional right not available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same

provision, "* *rt"ty an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property; provided, however, that

where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an economic hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of
an authorized variation.
Our disadvantage is that the house was built too close to the front lot line and thusly we are reQuestinB a reduction in tlre

front yard setback to allow us to build a covered front porch.

6. Code and plaq purposes. The variation would not result in a use or development of the subject property that would

Ue not in narmony *ittt tL general and specific puq)oses for which this Code and the provision from which a variation

is sought were enacted or the general pu{pose and intent of the Official Comprehensive Plan.

IMe fbel that the variance process has been put in place f.or instances just such as this. OVr reQuest is sincere and we do

not feel that it is extraordinary in size or function.

q -Ê, r7



7. Essential Character of the Area. The variation would not result in a use or development on the subject propefy that:

(a) Would be materially dehimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the enjoyment, use,

development, or value of propely or improvements permitted inthe vicinity; or

(b) Woutd materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the properties and improvements in the

vicinity; or

(c) Would substantially increase congestion in the public steets due to trafñc or parking; or

(d) Would unduly increase the danger of flood or fire; or

(e) Would unduty tax public utilities and facilities in the area; or

(f) Would endanger the public health or safety.

We

believe.that our request would not adversely affect any of the aforementioned items

8. No Other Remed]¡. There is no means other than tlre requested variation by which the alleged hardship or difficulty

can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to permit a reasonable use of the subject property.

We respectlulb¡ request that an addition of a covered front porch (.149 square feet) for atotal of 115 sQuare feet oYer

theffium lot coverage be granted. The current müimum lot coveraee is 1.863 square feet and we are pJoposing

1g78¡quarì feet (a 2% increasè). The current Authorized Variation for maximum allowable bullding coverage is 20%

and weã asking fbi onb, 2%. In addition we are requesting a reduction in the front yard setback to I 5'6-314" relative to

the adiacent homes on either side.

*tr*

NOTICE: This application must be filed with the office of the Conrmunity Development Director, accompanied by

o"""trury ¿at¿ called for above and the required filing fee of Five Hrurdred Dollars ($500.00).

The above minimum fee shall be payable at the time of the filing of such request. It is also understood that the applicant

shall reimburse the Village *y ádditional costs over and above these minimums, which are incurred by the Village'

including but not limited to the following:

(a) Legal Publication (direct cost);

Ll - Êr 2 o



@) Recording Secretarial Services (direct cost);

(c) Court Reporter (direct cost);

(d) Administrative Review and Preparation (howly salary times a multiplier sufficient to

recover 100 percent ofthe direct and indirect cost ofsuch service);

(e) DocumentPreparation and Review (hourly salarytimes amultiplier sufficientto recover

100 percent ofthe direct and indirect cost ofsuch service);

(Ð Professional and Technical Consultant Services (direct cost);

(g) Legal Review, Consultation, and Advice (direct cost);

&) Copy Reproduction (direct cost); and

(Ð Document Recordation (direct cost); and

(t) Postage Costs (direct cost).

Such additional costs shall be paid by the applicant prior to the Board of Trustees making a decision regarding the

request.

I, the undersigned, do hereby certiff that I am the o\ryner, or contact purchaser @vidence of title or other interest you

have in the subject property' date of acquisition of such interest, and the specific nature of such interest must be

submitted with and do hereby certifr that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my

AaAIa*;,l.--_

of Owner or Contract Ptrchaser)

T¿-
(State)

s3Å. s &c,l
(Address)

cu4f tu

Subscribed and sworn to before me this h+a aay ot 4UA¿9* ,20 /-f .

.a-.<
(Notary Public) (Seal)

(ciry)
¿oSJf
(Zip Code)

OFFICIAL SEAL
BRIAN PAONE

Notary Publ¡c - State of lllinois
My Commission Expires Jul 7, 2018

? -4. s/



TJT TIMOTI{Y J. TROMPETER - T

318 S. Ashland Avenue, LaGrange, IL. (708) 352-7446

Email : ttromp4@Abc global.net

otanicar Residence - Front Elevation - 332 S. Ashland Avenue, LaGrange, IL.

q ^n,22
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Otanicar Residence - Front Elevation -332 S. Ashtand Avenue, LaGrange, IL'
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Bonnie & Bill Kintieb Residence - Front Elevation -328 S. Ashland Avenueo LaGrange,

IL.
çr. t

Bonnie & Bill Kintigh Residence - Front Elevation - 328 S. Ashland Avenue, LaGrange,

IL.

q -n, ,Y



Rosemary Suchor Residence - Front Elevation - 334 S. Ashland Avenue, LaGrange IL.

L/ - t4, 2l



IIELSON SUR\TEYORS, LLC
lllinois Professronal Land Surveyors

418 S. Cass Ave.
Westmont. lL ô0559
Phone 1815) 436-8520
Fax i815) ¿3$8528
nelsonsurvey @sbcglobal,net

August 7.2015

Timothy Trompeter, Architect

318 South Ashland Avenue

La Grange. lllinois 60525

Mr. Trompeter.

We have located the setback distance of the enclosed frame porch located at 334 South Ashland

Avenue, La Grange, lllinois. The setback distance of the enclosed frame porch to the west right of

way line of South Ashland Avenue is 15.80'. The distance was taken at the southeast corner of the

enclosed frame porch.

Certified By:
Michael J. Nelson Professional Land Surveyor No. O3$3O95

A -Ê, zç
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(ossumed)

KABAL SURVEYING COMPANY

Land, Surtteying Seraices

ffi X,æt .Erf ÞmrxrF4Jr
Lot 9 ¡ñ Slock 7 ¡n Locronge. beiñg o Subd¡vision of the Eost Holl ot the Southweslouorter ond port of th€ Northwest Ouorte.-of Sectigñ 4. fownship Jg North, Rong;12,Eosl of the lhird Pr¡ncipot Mer¡dion, tiñg Soutn ot i¡e öt,ièogã i{u,itngton oio OrÌncy-'Roilrood. iñ Cook County, liliôois.

Address: 332 South Ashtoñd Avenue. Locrono€

24ll Harthorne Àvenue
Vestchester, Illtnots 60154

(?08) õ62-206¿
Fax (?08) 5A2-?3t4

emo¡l: kobol-surveingOcoñcost.ôet
web3ito: KobolsurveingcoñÞoôy.com

Reg¡strot¡on No. 184-003061

125.55 rec

124.22 ^"o"

North lìîe ol Goodmoñ Street

lh¡s proless¡oôol serv¡ce conforms to the cutrent
lll¡no¡s ñln¡muñ stondo.ds lor o boundory survey

SIAIE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF COOK

l, SIEPHEN J. BALEK, oô ttt¡nois Prolessioñot Loñd Surveyor
hereby certify thot I hove Surveyed the plopgrty desctibgd
obove ond the plot hereon drowñ ¡s o co..ect .ôpresentot¡oô
oF sqld su¡vey.

Diñensions ore ¡ô foel. qnd dec¡mo¡ ports thereol qnd ore
co.rected to o temperoture of 62 degrees Fohrenheil.

,4I/4 \. a,LÁ
lll¡no¡s Proless¡onol UånO SJ<tre¡o'r No. O35-OOI7t2
My l¡c€nse expires oñ November 30, 201ô
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TO

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

BOARD REPORT

Village President, Village Clerk,
Village Board of Trustees and Village Attorney

FROM: Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager
Andrianna Peterson, Assistant Village Manager

DATE: October 12,2015

ORDINANCE - CREATING AN ADD ONAI, CI,ASS A-I I,IOIJOR LICENSE.RE
SUSHI UKAI.INC. d/b/a SUSHI HO I2O B WEST CALENDAR AVENUE

The Village recently received an application for a Class A-1 liquor license from Sushi Ukai, Inc. d/b/a
Sushi House, located at 120 B West Calendar Avenue. A Class A-l Restaurant License authorizes the
licensee to sell at retail, and serve beer and wine only for consumption on the premises where sold,
where food also is sold for consumption. As one control on the dispensing of alcohol, applicants and

licensees of a Class A-l must prove to the satisfaction of the Village that more than 60 percent of the
gross annual revenue of the dining establishment has resulted from the sale of food. This license also

authorizes the licensee to allow customers to carry in their own beer and wine to be consumed within
the licensed premises, but only in conjunction with the service of a meal.

An establishment that holds a Class A-l Restaurant License must secure, maintain, and provide
evidence to the Village that it has insurance coverage. A background check and proof of sellers and

servers training is also required.

On Monday, September 28,2015, the Liquor Commission met to review the application submitted by
Sushi Ukai, Inc. d/b/a Sushi House. Prior to that meeting, the Village had conducted a background
investigation which did not produce any information which would preclude the issuance of a liquor
license. It was the recommendation of the Liquor Commission that (a) the Village Board of Trustees

create a new Class A-1 Restaurant License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to
Sushi Ukai, Inc. dlbla Sushi House located at 120 B West Calendar Avenue. (A copy of the minutes
from that meeting is attached for your reference.)

Attached for your consideration is a proposed ordinance creating an additional Class A-1 restaurant

license. Also attached for your information is the list of current liquor license holders by classification.

If the ordinance is approved, the Liquor Commissioner will issue the Class A-l Restaurant License to
Sushi Ukai, Inc. dlbla Sushi House.

Vy'e recommend that the proposed ordinance be approved

H :\eelder\ellie\BrdRpt\LiquorClassA I SushiUkai.doc

Lr -ß



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

ORDTNANCE NO. O-15- _
AN ORDTNANCE CREATING AN ADDITIONAL

CLASS A-I RESTAURANT LICENSE

WHEREAS, Chapter 111 of the La Grange Code of Ordinances provides for a category of liquor
license known as A Class A-l Restaurant License; and

WHEREAS, A Class A-l Restaurant License authorizes the licensee to (a) sell at retail, and

serve, beer and wine only for consumption on the premises where sold, where food also is sold for
consumption, and to allow customers to carry their own beer and wine to be consumed within the
licensed premises, but only in conjunction with the service of a meal; and

WHEREAS, the Village received an application for a Class A-l restaurant license from Sushi

Ukai, Ínc. dlbla Sushi House at 120 B lWest Calendar Avenue; and

V/HEREAS, the La Grange Liquor Commission has recommended creation of a new Class A-l
Restaurant License, and the La Grange Liquor Commissioner has indicated his intention to grant a Class
A-l Restaurant License for Sushi Ukai, Inc. dlbla Sushi House restaurant if the Board of Trustees

creates that license; and

V/HEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees have determined that it is in the best
interests of the Village that a new Class A-l Restaurant License be created for Sushi Ukai, Inc. d/b/a
Sushi House;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village
of La Grange, Cook County and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section l. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as findings
of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Creation of a New Class A-l Restaurant License. The President and Board of
Trustees, pursuant to their authority under State law and Section 111.16 of the La Grange Code of
Ordinances, hereby increases the number of Class A-l Restaurant Licenses by one additional license.

That new license will be added to the record of issued and/or current licenses which is kept in the office
of the Village Clerk.

Section 3 Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full and force and effect from and after
its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law

PASSED this _ day of 2015.
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of

Thomas E. Livingston, Village President

2015

ATTEST:
John Bums, Village Clerk

4 -ß,t



LA GRANGE LIQUOR COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING

53 South La Grange Road

First Floor Conference Room

La Grange, lL 60525

Monday, September 28,2015 - 6:30 P.m.

MINUTES

l. Call to Ordef and Roll Call

A special meeting of the La Grange Liquor Commission was called to order at 6:31 p.m.by

Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston.

present and constituting a quorum were Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston,

commissioner Mark Langan and commissioner Mark Kuchler.

Absent: None

Also present: Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson, and Village Attomey Mark

Burkland

2. Approval of the Minutes

It was moved by Commissioner Kuchler and seconded by Commissioner Langan to approve the

minutes of July 13,2015,as submitted. The motion canied on a voice vote'

3. Liquor License Request Class H / The Dinner Club' LLC'

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicants, and to póvide an overview of the liquor license application. The applicants have

piåvided tire Village with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The Dinner Club has operated at their current location for ten years. Joyce and Fred Clarkson, two of

The Dinner Club business owners, are applying for a Class H Liquor License to allow customers to

uring in ueer and wine while preparing *ðuir. ih" Di*.r club will be relocating by February,20l6

to añout-of-town location ur And.tron Book Store will be expanding their operations.

Commissioners complimented The Dinner Club on their unique and successful business model, and

expressed regret that they will be relocating.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class H Liquor

1 - ß,t-



Minutes of La Grange Liquor Commission

Monday, September 28,2015 -Page2

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to The Dinner Club, LLC as the

owner of The Dinner Club at 26 S.LaGrange Road. Motion carried.

4. Liquor License Request Class F-2 / La Grange Art Leagup

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to ptoùd. an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

ttre Vittage with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The La Grange Art League has operated at their current location since 1984. Karen Magin,

Chairman ofthe Corporate Directori ofthe La Grange Art League, explainedthattheirnot-for-profit

volunteer organizatiãn hosts approximately six bring-your-own beer and wine events per year for

special .u.ni, or art openings. While the La Grange Art League has applied for and received the

ilurr E single event liquor license in the past, that license is restricted to four events per year.

Commissioner Langan inquired how alcohol is typically served. Ms. Magin responded that at their

artist receptions, u*iu..råry party and holiday show, light refreshments which may include punch,

beer or wine are made avaiiable to guests. Alcohol is provided by a server and is not self-serve.

Commissioner Kuchler inquired about the membership. Ms. Magin responded they have over 200

members and five employees that operate the gallery. Art classes are also provided as well as

scholarships.

Commissioner Livingston noted his appreciation for all they do for the community.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class F-2 Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to the La Grange Art League atl22

Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

5. Liquor License Request Class A-1 / Sushi Ukai. Inc. d/b/a Sushi House

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to p.oùd. an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

ttre Vittage with information required for liquor licensing consideration

The Sushi House has operated in the Village since 2002 and Sushi Ukai, lnc. dlbla Sushi House

plans to acquire the busìness from the cunent owner. Sushi Ukai,Inc. President Hong Wu Dong

àttended the meeting with the assistance of an interpreter'

Commissioner Langan confirmed that Hong Wu Dong, the President of Sushi Ukai,Inc., is cunently

the Manager of Sushi House and handles the day-to-day operations.

L/ - ß,'3



Minutes of La Grange Liquor Commission
Monday, September 28,2015 - Page 3

Commissioner Kuchler inquired asked about the number of Sushi House locations in the area. The

interpreter responded that there were six.

Commissioner Kuchler asked about Hong Wu Dong's investment in La Grange. The interpreter

responded that Hong Wu Dong likes La Grange as it reminds him of his hometown - small, peaceful

and with kind people.

Commissioner Langan reiterated that no one under 2l years of age can be served alcohol, which was

communicated to the applicant by the interpreter.

Village Attorney Burkland asked the interpreter to ask Hong Wu Dong if he had anything additional

that he would like to present to the Commission.

Hearing none, Commissioner Livingston thanked the applicant for his investment in La Grange.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class A-l Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to Sushi Ukai, Inc. as the new owner

of Sushi House at 120 B V/est Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

Commissioner Livingston stated that the recommendation for approval for all applicants would be

made to the Village Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting on October 12,2015.

6. Adioumment

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchlerthatthe meetingof

the Liquor Commission be adjourned. The motion carried on a voice vote and the meeting was

adjourned at 6:56 p.m.

Submitted by:
Andrianna Peterson

Assistant Village Manager

Date Approved:

? -6,y



Class A-1 ($500)

Class A-2 ($2,000)

Class A-3 ($1,250)

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
LIOUOR LICENSE HOLDERS . 20T5.16

Restaurant License serving beer and wine onl)¡ for consumption qn premise'

providing that more than 60% of the revenue is from the sale of food: allows

consumptioq of bring-your-own.
Antonino's 701 West Hillgrove Avenue
Armand's Pizzeria 26S.LaGrange Road

Back Alley Burger 1 S. La Grange Road

Fireside \Mood Fired Pizza l8 West Hanis Avenue

Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue
Noodles & Company I East Burlington Avenue

Q Barbeque 70 South La Grange Road

Smashburger I North La Grange Road, #A
Sushi House 120 B West Calendar

Wild Monk 88 South La Grange Road

Yau's Place 110 West Burlington

Restaurant License selling a full-line of alcoholic beverages for consumption

on premise. and includes a lounge or bar area. providing that more than 600lo of
the revenue is from the sale of food: allows consumption of bring-]¡our-own.

Adele's Front Room 13 South La Grange Road

Al's Char House 32 South La Grange Road

Aurelio's Pizza 11 West Calendar Avenue

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Casa Margarita 32 South La Grange Road

Francesca's 75 South La Grange Road

Kama Indian Bistro 9 South La Grange Road

Lucca's Pizzeúa 106 - 108 West Burlington Avenue

Magic Wok 23 West Hanis Avenue
La Buona Vita l5 West Calendar Avenue
Nicksons 30 South La Grange Road

Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Santiago's Mexican Cocina 22West Calendar Avenue
Steak & Vine 37 South La Grange Road (Pending)

Thipi Thai 25 West Calendar Avenue
Vy'oow Sushi 33 South La Grange Road

Restaurant License selling a full-line of alcoholic beverages for consumption

on premises. but includes onlv a service bar. providing that more than 600/o of
the revenue is from the sale of food: allows consumption of bring-)¡our-own.

Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc. 40 North La Grange Road

Prasino 93 South La Grange Road
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Class B ($500)

Class C-1 ($1,000)

Class C-2 ($1,000)

Class C-3 ($5OO¡

Class C-4 ($500)

Class D-l ($150)

Class D-2 ($150)

Liquor License Holders - 2015-16
Page2

Retail sale for consumption off pfemises gf beer and wine incidental to other

sales. Retail sale of alcoholic liquor allowed in grocer)¡ stores a'nd pharmaçies

under specific conditigns.
DeVries Super Market 806 Arlington
Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue
7-Eleven 6 East 47th Street
Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road
Walgreens 2 North La Grange Road

Food boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original package & sales of
wine by the glass and limited tastings: providing that more than 5.0% of the

revenue is from the sale of soods other than liquor.
None

V/ine boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original package. limited
tastinss & sales of wine by the glass. and off-premises events.

Vino e Birra,Inc. l8 West Burlington Avenue

Retail cabaret for a retail store that also has a cabaret: providing that more than

500/o of the revenue is from the sale of goods other than liquor.
None

Movie theater allows sales and service of alcoholic beverages at public or
private events: providing that more than 500/o of the revenue is from the sale of
goods other than liquor.
None

Tasting license grocer)¡ store or pharmacy (must hold a Class B eeneral retail

sales license).
Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road

Wine Club Event license (must hold a Class A-1. A-2. or A-3 Restaurant)

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Fraternal club allows sales and service of alcoholic beverages and bring-]¡our-

own beer and wine for consumption on oremises.

American Legion 900 South La Grange Road

Class F-l ($500)
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Class G-l ($500)

Class H (a) ($2SO¡ Bring )rour own beer and wine restaurants (without Class A Licensel.

None

Class H ft) ($lOO¡ Bring ]¡our ovyn beer and wine other in meal preparation services stores

None

Liquor License Holders - 2015-16
Page 3

Class F-2 ($100)

La Grange Field Club 1314 West 4 Street

General caterer license authorizes the service of alcohol as a part of a qatering

bus,iness off premises of the licensee that maintains a business within the

Village
Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Class H (c) ($100) Bring )¡our own beer and wine in craft making stores during the time customers

are engaged in crafts. during a private event or class or for a special event. no

more than 12 times per Year
Ceramic Art Café 26 South La Grange Road

Bottle & Bottega I West Harris Avenue

Licenses issued as needed bv the Liquor Commissioner - no charge

Class E Business Single Event License - one day event to non-liquor license holders for

service of liquor at special events up to four times per year.

Temporary Caterer - issued to restaurant, grocery stofe or similar business

within the Village once per 12 month period.
Class G-2
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

BOARD EPORT

TO: Village President, Village Clerk,
Village Board of Trustees and Village Attomey

FROM Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager
Andrianna Peterson, Assistant Village Manager

DATE: October 12,2015

ORDINANCE - CREATING AN ADDITIONAL CLASS F.2 LIOUOR
l,lcnNsr. La cnANCB lRr LnACUn. tzz clt ENnln lvBNun

RE:

The Village recently received an application for a Class F-2 liquor license from the La

Grange Art League located at 122 Calendar Avenue.

A Class F-2 Private Membership Organization License authorizes the sale, service, and

consumption of alcoholic liquor by the organization or a licensed caterer at four private

events in any calendar year. The four private events authorized by a Class F-2 license

must be sponsored by the organization and conducted for the organization's members and

guests only. The license also provides for Bring-Your-Own beer and wine which is

excluded from the four event requirement.

The Liquor Commission met on Monday, September 28,2015, to review the La Grange

Art League's application. It was the recommendation of the Liquor Commission that (a)

the Village Board of Trustees create a new Class F-2 license and (b) that the Liquor

Commissioner issue that license to the La Grange Art League located at 122 Calendar

Avenue. (A copy of the minutes from that meeting is attached.)

Attached for your consideration is a proposed ordinance creating an additional Class F-2

Liquor Licenie for the La Grange Art League. Also attached for your information is the

list of cunent liquor license holders by classification.

If the ordinance is approved, the Liquor Commissioner will issue the Class F-2 liquor

license to the La Grange Art League.

We recommend that the ordinance be approved.

l-e



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
ORDINANCENO. O.I5.

AN ORDINANCE CREATING AN ADDITIONAL
CLASS F.2 PRIVATE MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATION LIQUOR LICENSE

WHEREAS, Chapter 1l I of the La Grange Code of Ordinances, provides for a

category of liquor license known as a Class F-2 Private Membership Organization License;

and

WHEREAS, the Class F-2 Private Membership Organization License authorizes

the licensee to sell or serve alcoholic liquor only at four private events in any calendar year

which must be sponsored by the organization and conducted for the organization's
members and guests only. The four-event limitation does not apply to bring-your-own
beer and wine.

WHEREAS, the Village received an application for a Class F-2 license from the La
Grange Art League located at 122 Calendar Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the La Grange Liquor Commission has recommended creation of a

new Class F-2 license, and the La Grange Liquor Commissioner has indicated his intention
to grant a Class F-2 license for the La Grange Art League if the Board of Trustees creates

that license; and

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees have determined that it is in
the best interests of the Village that a new Class F-2 license be created for the La Grange
Art League;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of
the Village of La Grange, Cook County and State of Illinois, as follows:

Section l. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance
as findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Creation of New Class F-2 Liquor License. The President and

Board of Trustees, pursuant to their authority under State law and Section 111.16 of the
La Grange Code of Ordinances, hereby increases the number of Class F-2 Liquor Licenses
by one additional license. That new license will be added to the record of issued and/or
current licenses which is kept in the office of the Village Clerk.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full and force and effect
from and after its passage and approval. This Ordinance shall be published in pamphlet
form in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this _ day of _ 20t5.
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AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 

- 

daY of 2015.

Thomas E. Livingston, Village President

ATTEST:

John Burns, Village Clerk
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LA GRANGE LIQUOR COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING

53 South La Grange Road
First Floor Conference Room

La Grange, lL 60525

Monday, September 28,2015 - 6:30 P.m.

MINUTES

1. Call to Orde{ and Roll Call

A special meeting of the La Grange Liquor Commission was called to order at6,31 p.m. by

Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston.

Present and constituting a quorum were Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston,

Commissioner Mark Langan and Commissioner Mark Kuchler.

Absent: None

Also present: Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson, and Village Attorney Mark

Burkland

2. Approval of the Minutes

It was moved by Commissioner Kuchler and seconded by Commissioner Langan to approve the

minutes of July 13,2015, as submitted. The motion canied on a voice vote.

3. Liquor License Request Class H / The Dirurer Club. LLC.

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicants, and to provide an overview of the liquor license application. The applicants have

provided the Village with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The Dinner Club has operated at their current location for ten years. Joyce and Fred Clarkson, two of
The Dinner Club business owners, are applying for a Class H Liquor License to allow customers to

bring in beer and wine while preparing meals. The Dinner Club will be relocating by February,2016

to an out-of-town location as Anderson Book Store will be expanding their operations.

Commissioners complimented The Dinner Club on their unique and successful business model, and

expressed regret that they will be relocating.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recoÍrmend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class H Liquor
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Minutes of La Grange Liquor Commission

Monday, September 28,2015 -Page2

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to The Dinner Club, LLC as the

owner of The Dinner Club at 26 S.LaGrange Road. Motion carried.

4. Liquor License Request Class F-2 / La Grange Art L9ague

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andriarura Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to proùd. an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

ttrå Vi[age with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The La Grange Art League has operated at their current location since 1984. Karen Magin,

Chairman of the Corporatã Directors of the La Grange Art League, explained that their not-for-profit

volunteer organizatiãn hosts approximately six bring-your-own beer and wine events per year for

special 
"nenis 

or art openings. While the La Grange Art League has applied for and received the

ilu* E single event liquor license in the past, that license is restricted to four events per year.

Commissioner Langan inquired how alcohol is typically served. Ms. Magin responded that at their

artist receptions, utriiu"tråty party and hotiday show, light refreshments which may include punch,

beer or wine are made auaiiaùle to guests. Alcohol is provided by a server and is not self-serve.

Commissioner Kuchler inquired about the membership. Ms. Magin responded they have over 200

members and five employees that operate the gallery. Art classes are also provided as well as

scholarships.

Commissioner Livingston noted his appreciation for all they do for the community.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that thð Vitlage Board of Trustees create one new Class F-2 Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to the La Grange Art League atl22

Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

5. Liquor License Request Class A-1 / Sushi Ukai. Inc. d/b/a Sushi House

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Viltage Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to proùd. an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

tftå ViUage with information required for liquor licensing consideration

The Sushi House has operated in the Village since 2002 and Sushi Ukai, lnc- dlbla Sushi House

plans to acquire the busìness from the current owner. Sushi Ukai, Inc. President Hong Wu Dong

äUended the meeting with the assistance of an interpreter.

Commissioner Langan confirmed that Hong Wu Dong, the Presidentof Sushi Ukai,lnc., iscurrentþ

the Manager of Sushi House and handles the day-to-day operations.
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Minutes of La Grange Liquor Commission
Monday, September 28,2015 - Page 3

Commissioner Kuchler inquired asked about the number of Sushi House locations in the area. The

interpreter responded that there were six.

Commissioner Kuchler asked about Hong Wu Dong's investment in La Grange. The interpreter

responded that Hong Wu Dong likes La Grange as it reminds him ofhis hometown- small, peaceful

and with kind people.

Commissioner Langan reiterated that no one under 21 years of age can be served alcohol, which was

communicated to the applicant by the interpreter.

Village Attorney Burkland asked the interpreter to ask Hong V/u Dong if he had anything additional

that he would like to present to the Commission.

Hearing none, Commissioner Livingston thanked the applicant for his investment in La Grange.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class A-l Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to Sushi Ukai, Inc. as the new owner

of Sushi House at 120 B West Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

Commissioner Livingston stated that the recommendation for approval for all applicants would be

made to the Village Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting on October 12,2015-

6. Adjournment

Itwas moved by Commissioner Langan and secondedby Commissioner Kuchlerthatthe meeting of
the Liquor Commission be adjourned. The motion carried on a voice vote and the meeting was

adjoumed at 6:56 p.m.

Submitted by:
Andrianna Peterson

Assistant Village Manager

Date Approved:
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Class A-l ($500)

Class A-2 ($2,000)

Class A-3 ($1,250)

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
LIOUOR LICENSE HOLDERS - 2015-16

Restaurant License serving beer and wine onl)¡ for consumption on premise'

providing that more than 60% of thg revenue is from the sale of food: allows

consumptio{r of bring-Your-own.
Antonino's 701 West Hillgrove Avenue

Armand's PizzeÅa 26 S.La Grange Road

Back Alley Burger 1 S. La Grange Road

Fireside Wood Fired Pizza l8 West Harris Avenue

Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue

Noodles & Company 1 East Burlington Avenue

Q Barbeque 70 South La Grange Road

Smashburger I North La Grange Road, #A
Sushi House 120 B West Calendar

Wild Monk 88 South La Grange Road

Yau's Place 110 West Burlington

Restaurant License selling a full-line of alcoholic beverages for consumption

o,n premise. and includes a lounge or ba¡ area. providing that more than 60% of
the revenue is from the sale of food: allows consumption of bring-]¡our-ovm.

Adele's Front Room 13 South La Grange Road

Al's Char House 32 South La Grange Road

Aurelio's Pizza l1 West Calendar Avenue

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Casa Margarita 32 South La Grange Road

Francesca's 75 South La Grange Road

Kama Indian Bistro 9 South La Grange Road

Lucca's Pizzena 106 - 108 West Burlington Avenue

Magic Wok 23 West Harris Avenue

La Buona Vita 15 West Calendar Avenue

Nicksons 30 South La Grange Road

Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Santiago's Mexican Cocina 22 West Calendar Avenue

Steak & Vine 37 South La Grange Road (Pending)

Thipi Thai 25 West Calendar Avenue

Woòw Sushi 33 South La Grange Road

Restaurant License sellins a full-line of alcoholic beverages for consumÞtion

onfrremises.butincludesonl]'aservicebar.providingthatmorethan60%of
the revenue is from the sale of food: allows consumption of bring-l¡our-own.

Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc. 40 North La Grange Road

PraJino 93 South La Grange Road
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Class B ($500)

Çlass C-l ($1,000)

Class C-2 ($1,000)

Class C-3 ($500)

Class C-4 (5500)

Class D-l ($150)

Class D-2 ($150)

Liquor License Holders - 2015-16
Page2

Retail sale for consumption off premises gf beer and wine incidental to other

sales. Retail sale of alcoholic liquor allowed in glgcery stores and pharmacies

under specific conditions.
DeVries Super Market 806 Arlinglon
Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue

7-Eleven 6 East 47th Street

Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road

Walgreens 2 North La Grange Road

Food boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original package & salgs pf
wine b]' thè glass and limited tastings: providing that more than 50% of the

revenue is from the sale of goods other than liquor.
None

Wine boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original packaee. limited

tastings & sales of wine by the glass. and off-premises events.

Vino e Birra, Inc. l8 West Burlington Avenue

Retail cabaret for a retail store that also has a caba¡et: providing that more than

500/o of the revenue is from the sale of goods other than liquor.

None

goods other than liquor.
None

Tasting license grocerlr store or pharmacy (must hold a Class B general retail

sales license).
Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road

Wine Club Event license (.must hold a Class A-1. A-2. or A-3 Restaurant)

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Fratemal club allows sales and service of alcoholic beverages and brin9-vour-

own beer and wine for consumption on premises.

American Legion 900 South La Grange Road

Class F-l ($500)
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Class G-l ($s00)

Class H (g) ($2SO¡ Bring vour own beer and wine restaurants (without Class A License).

None

Class H (b) ($100) Bring your ovrn beer and wine other in meal preparation services stores

None

Class F-2 ($100)

Liquor License Holders - 2015-16
Page 3

Private membership organization authorizes onl)¡ service of alcoholic

beverages and bring-your-ovm beer and wine at private membership events:

La Grange Field Club l314 West 4 Street

General caterer license authorizes the service of alcohol as a part of a caterins

business off premises of the licensee that maintains a business within the

Village
Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Class H (c) ($lOO¡ Bring your own beer and wine in craft making stores during the time customers

are engaged in crafts. durins a private event or class or for a special event. no

more than 12 times per year

Ceramic Art Café 26 South La Grange Road

Bottle & Bottega I West Harris Avenue

Licenses issued as needed by the Liquor Commissioner - no charse

Class E Business Sinsle Event License - one day event to non-liquor license holders for
service of liquor at special events up to four times per year.

Temporar.v Caterer - issued to restaurant, grocery store or similar business

within the Village once per 12 month period.
Class G-2
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TO

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

BOARD REPORT

Village President, Village Clerk,
Village Board of Trustees and Village Attorney

FROM: Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager
Andrianna Peterson, Assistant Village Manager

DATE: October 12,2015

ORDINANCE . CREATING AN DDITIONAI, CLASS H LIOUORRE
I,ICENSE. THE DINNER CLUB I,I,C.26 S. I,A GRANGE ROAD

The Village recently received an application for a Class H liquor license from The Dinner Club, located

at26 S. La Grange Road. There are four sub-categories within this classification: 1) restaurants; 2)

craft-making stores; 3) meal preparation services; and 4) other retail.

The Dinner Club is the first applicant within the Class H sub-category for the meal preparation services

store category since the Class H liquor license classification was created. A Class H license ofthis type

authorizes the licensee to allow bring-your-own beer and wine to be consumed within the licensed

premises: (a) during the time customers actually are engaged in making their own meal activities for
consumption away from the store; and (b) during a Private Event or a group class or other function
attended only by invited guests and not open to individual customers or to the public.

Bring-Your-Own service and consumption is limited to beer and wine only and does not authorize the

sale of alcoholic liquor by the Licensee. An establishment that allows Bring-Your-Own for its
customers must secure, maintain, and provide evidence to the Village that it has insurance coverage.

Successful completion of sellers and servers training is strongly encouraged.

On Monday, September28,2}l5, the Liquor Commission met to reviewthe application submitted by
The Dinner Club. It was the recommendation of the Liquor Commission that (a) the Village Board of
Trustees create a new Class H license and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to The

Dinner Club locatedat26 S. La Grange Road. (A copy ofthe minutes from that meeting is attached for
your reference.)

Attached for your consideration is a proposed ordinance creating an additional Class H liquor license

Also attached for your information is the list of current liquor license holders by classification.

If the ordinance is approved, the Liquor Commissioner will issue the new Class H Bring-Your-Own
liquor license to The Dinner Club.

We recommend that the ordinance be approved.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

ORDINANCE NO. O-I5.

AN ORDINANCE CREATING AN ADDITIONAL
CLASS H "BRING-YOUR-OWN" LIQUOR LICENSE

WHEREAS, Chapter 1 I I of the La Grange Code of Ordinances provides for a category of liquor
license known as A Class H Bring-Your-Own License; and

V/HEREAS, A Class H Bring-Your-Own License authorizes the licensee to allowcustomers to

carry their own beer and wine into a "BYO-Authorized Establishment" to be consumed within the

licensed premises, during the time customers actually are engaged in making their own meal activities
for consumption away from the store and during a private event or group class or other function
attended only by invited guests and not open to individual customers or to the public. Bring-Your-Own
service and consumption is limited to beer and wine only and does not authorize the sale of alcoholic
liquor by the licensee; and

WHEREAS, the Village received an application for a Class H license from The Dinner Club at

26 S.La Grange Road; and

WHEREAS, the La Grange Liquor Commission has recommended creation of a new Class H
license, and the La Grange Liquor Commissioner has indicated his intention to grant a Class H license

to the Dinner Club if the Board of Trustees creates that license; and

WHEREAS, the President and the Board of Trustees have determined that it is in the best

interests of the Village that a new Class H license be created for the Dinner Club;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of La
Grange, Cook County and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section l. - Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as findings of the

President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. - Creation of aNew Class H Liquor License. The President and Board ofTrustees, pursuant

to their authority under State law and Section 1 I I .16 of the La Grange Code of Ordinances, hereby

increases the number of Class H Liquor Licenses by one additional license. That new license will be

added to the record of issued and/or current licenses which is kept in the office of the Village Clerk.

Section 3. - Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full and force and effect from and after its
passage and approval. This Ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form in the manner provided by
law.

PASSED this day of 2015.

AYES:

NAYS:
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ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of

ATTEST:
John Burns, Village Clerk

2015.

Thomas E. Livingston, Village President
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LA GRANGE LIQUOR COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING

53 South La Grange Road
First Floor Conference Room

La Grange,lL 60525

Monday, September 28,2015 - 6:30 P.m.

MINUTES

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

A special meeting of the La Grange Liquor Commission was called to order at 6:31 p.m.by

Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston.

present and constituting a quorum were Liquor Commissioner Thomas Livingston,

commissioner Mark Langan and commissioner Mark Kuchler.

Absent: None

Also present: Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson, and Village Attomey Mark

Burkland

2. Approval of the Minutes

It was moved by Commissioner Kuchler and seconded by Commissioner Langan to approve the

minutes of July 13,2015, as submitted. The motion carried on a voice vote.

3. Liquor License Request Class H / The Dinner Club. LLC'

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicants, and to provide an overview of the liquor license application. The applicants have

piåvided the Villags with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The Dinner Club has operated at their current location for ten years. Joyce and Fred Clarkson, two of
The Dinner Club business owners, are applying for a Class H Liquor License to allow customers to

bring in beer and wine while preparing meals. The Dinner Club will be relocating by February, 2016

to añ out-of-town location ur And"tron Book Store will be expanding their operations.

Commissioners complimented The Dinner Club on their unique and successful business model, and

expressed regret that they will be relocating.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class H Liquor
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License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to The Dinner Club, LLC as the

owner of The Dinner Club at 26 S.La Grange Road. Motion carried.

4. Liquor License Request Cl4ss F-2 / La Grange Art League

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to ptould" an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

th" Vittug. with information required for liquor licensing consideration.

The La Grange Art League has operated at their current location since 1984. Karen Magin,

Chairman of the Corporatè Directors of the La Grange Art League, explained that their not-for-profit

volunteer organizatiðn hosts approximately six bring-your-own beer and wine events per year for

special 
"u.nis 

or art openings. While the La Grange Art League has applied for and received the

ilutt E single event liquor license in the past, that license is restricted to four events per year.

Commissioner Langan inquired how alcohol is typically served. Ms. Magin responded that at their

artist receptions, u*iu.trury party and holiday show, light refreshments which may include punch,

beer or wine are made available to guests. Alcohol is provided by a server and is not self-serve.

Commissioner Kuchler inquired about the membership. Ms. Magin responded they have over 200

members and five employees that operate the gallery. Art classes are also provided as well as

scholarships.

Commissioner Livingston noted his appreciation for all they do for the community.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class F-2 Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to the La Grange Art League atl22

Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

5. Liquor License Request Class A-l / Sushi Ukai. Inc. d/b/a Sushi House

Commissioner Livingston asked Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson to introduce the

applicant, and to prouid. an overview of the liquor license application. The applicant has provided

ttré Vittage with information required for liquor licensing consideration

The Sushi House has operated in the Vitlage since 2002 and Sushi Ukai, Inc. d/b/a Sushi House

plans to acquire the buJiness from the current owner. Sushi Ukai, Inc. President Hong Wu Dong

attended the meeting with the assistance of an interpreter'

Commissioner Langan confirmed that Hong Wu Dong, the President of Sushi Ukai, lnc., is cunently

the Manager of Sushi House and handles the day-to-day operations.

LI ^0, I
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Commissioner Kuchler inquired asked about the number of Sushi House locations in the area. The

interpreter responded that there were six.

Commissioner Kuchler asked about Hong Wu Dong's investment in La Grange. The interpreter

responded that Hong Wu Dong likes La Grange as it reminds him of his hometown - small, peaceful

and with kind people.

Commissioner Langan reiterated that no one under 21 years of age can be served alcohol, which was

communicated to the applicant by the interpreter.

Village Attorney Burkland asked the interpreter to ask Hong Wu Dong if he had anything additional

that he would like to present to the Commission.

Hearing none, Commissioner Livingston thanked the applicant for his investment in La Grange.

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchler that the Liquor

Commission recommend: (a) that the Village Board of Trustees create one new Class A-l Liquor

License and (b) that the Liquor Commissioner issue that license to Sushi Ukai, lnc. as the new owner

of Sushi House at 120 B West Calendar Avenue. Motion carried.

Commissioner Livingston stated that the recommendation for approval for all applicants would be

made to the Village Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting on October 12,2015.

6. Adjournment

It was moved by Commissioner Langan and seconded by Commissioner Kuchlerthatthe meeting of
the Liquor Commission be adjourned. The motion carried on a voice vote and the meeting was

adjourned at 6:56 p.m.

Submitted by:
Andrianna Peterson
Assistant Village Manager

Date Approved

¿r - o,,l



Class A-1 (S500)

Class A-2 ($2,000)

Class A-3 ($1,250)

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
LIOUOR LICENSE HOLDERS - 2015-16

Restaurant License serving beer and wine only for consumption on premise.

providing that more than 60% of the revgnue is from the sale of food: allows

consumptio{r of brine-your-own.
Antonino's 701 West Hillgrove Avenue

Armand's Pizzena 26S.LaGrange Road

Back Alley Burger 1 S. La Grange Road

Fireside Wood Fired Pizza 18 West Harris Avenue

Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue

Noodles & Company I East Burlington Avenue

Q Barbeque 70 South La Grange Road

Smashburger I North La Grange Road, #A
Sushi House 120 B West Calendar

Wild Monk 88 South La Grange Road

Yau's Place 110 V/est Burlington

Restaurant License selling a full-line of alcoholic beverages for consumPtion

o,n premise. and includes a lounge or bar area. providine that more than 60% of
the revenue is from the sale of food: allows consumption of brins-your-own.

Adele's Front Room 13 South La Grange Road

Al's Char House 32 South La Grange Road

Aurelio's Pizza l l West Calendar Avenue

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Casa Margarita 32 South La Grange Road

Francesca's 75 South La Grange Road

Kama Indian Bistro 9 South La Grange Road

Lucca's Plzzefia 106 - 108 West Burlington Avenue

Magic Wok 23 West Harris Avenue

La Buona Vita 15 West Calendar Avenue

Nicksons 30 South La Grange Road

Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Santiago's Mexican Cocina 22 West Calendar Avenue

Steak & Vine 37 South La Grange Road (Pending)

Thipi Thai 25 West Calendar Avenue

Woow Sushi 33 South La Grange Road

Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc. 40 North La Grange Road
93 South La Grange RoadPrasino

Lf - Ð.b



Class B ($500)

Class C-1 ($1,000)

Class C-2 ($1,000)

Class C-3 ($500)

Class C-4 (S500)

Liquor License Holders -2015-16
Page2

Retail sale for consumption off premises gf beer and wine incidental to other

sales. Retail sale of alcgholic liquor allowed in grocery stores and pharma,cies

under specific conditions.
DeVries Super Market 806 Arlington
Grapevine 9 West Hillgrove Avenue

7-Eleven 6 East 47th Street

Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road

Walgreens 2 North La Grange Road

Food boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original packaee & salqs .of

ñã btv thfglass and limited tastings: providing that more than 50% of the

revenue is from the sale of goods other than liquor.

None

Wine boutique allows sales of wine and beer in its original package. limited

tastings & sales of wine by the glass. and off-premises events.

Vino e Birra, Inc. 18 West Burlington Avenue

Retail cabaret for a retail store that also has a cabaret providing that more than

500/0 of the revenue is from the sale of goods other than liquor.

None

goods other than liquor.
None

f

Class D-l ($150)

Class D-2 ($1SO¡

sales licensel.
Trader Joe's 25 North La Grange Road

Wine Club Event license (must hold a Class A-1. A-2. or A-3 Restaurantl

Bacino's 36 South La Grange Road

Fratemal club allows sales and service of alcoholic beverages and bring-your-

own beer and wine for consumption on premises.

American Legion 900 South La Grange Road

Class F-l ($500)

v- 0,7



Class G-l ($5OO¡

Class H (aì ($250) Bring )¡our own beer and wine restaurants (without Class A License).

None

Class H (b) ($100) Bring your ovyn beer and wine other in meal preparation services stores

None

Liquor License Holders - 20 I 5- 16

Page 3

Class F-2 ($100)

La Grange Field Club 1314 West 4 Street

General caterer license authorizes the service of alcohol as a part of a cateri{rs

Villaee
Palmer Place 56 South La Grange Road

Class H (c) ($100) Bring your ovrm beer and wine in craft making stores dwine the time customers

arerengãged in crafts. during a private event or class or for a special event. no

more than 12 times Per Year
Ceramic Art Café 26 South La Grange Road

Bottle & Bottega 1 West Hanis Avenue

Licenses issued as needed bv the Liquor Commissioner - no charee

Class E Business Single Event License - one day event to non-liquor license holders for

service of liquor at special events up to four times per year.

Temporary Caterer - issued to restaurant, grocery store or similar business

within the Village once per 12 month period.
Class G-2

v -.0,s
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MINUTES

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING

Village Hall Auditorium
53 South La Grange Road

La Grange, IL 60525

Monday, September 28,2015 - 7:30 P.m.

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange regular meeting was called to order at7:30
p.m. by President Livingston. On roll call, as read by Village Clerk John Bums, the following
were:

PRESENT: Trustees Arnett, Holder, Kotynek, Kuchler, Langan, and McCarty, with President

Livingston presiding.

ABSENT: None

OTHERS: Village Manager Robert Pilipiszyn
Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson

Village Attorney Mark Burkland
Community Development Director Patrick Benjamin
Finance Director Lou CiPPanone
Public Works Director Ryan Gillingham
Police Chief Renee Strasser

Fire Chief Don GaY

President Livingston requested the Village Clerk lead the audience in reciting the pledge of
allegiance.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

President Livingston expressed thanks to all involved in the recent West End Art Festival.

Appreciation was also extended to all who participated in the recent shredding event and Habitat

for Humanity initiated by local legislatures and the Environmental Quality Control Commission.

President Livingston requested Community Development Director Patrick Benjamin to provide

an update on the OPUS development project and Mr. Benjamin responded noting a projected

opening date of April20l7.

Advising of the recent installation of stop signs for traffic management and pedestrian safety in

the vicinity of Lyons Township High School, President Livingston noted that a new study would

be conducted to determine effectiveness.

2
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Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 28,2015 -Page2

President Livingston requested Public Works Director Ryan Gillingham to provide an update on

street resurfacing projects and progress on the renovation of the Village's East Avenue pump

station. Mr. Gillingham responded with detailed information.

Noting the upcoming Open House at the La Grange Fire Department, President Livingston

trqu"rt d pire Ctrief Oon Gay to supply additional information and Fire Chief Gay responded.

President Livingston added information on the fall leaf collection program and advised residents

to visit the Village website for complete details.

Recognizing retired Police Sergeant Marge Kielczynski, President Livingston expressed thanks

for her many years of public service and offered congratulations on her retirement.

President Livingston advised of a prior liquor commission meeting whereby the liquor

commission considered several applications which will be recommended for approval to the

Village Board at its next regular meeting.

Lastly, President Livingston noted upcoming topics of emergency management; budget

development; and strategic planning.

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS

None

4, OMNIBUS AGENDA AND VOTE

A. Ordinance (#0-15-35) - Design Review Permit (DRP) #90,41 South La Grange Road,

Owl and Lark (Birute CePaitvte)

B. Ordinance (#O-15-36) - Amendment to the Village's Simplified Telecommunications Tax

C. Ordinance (#0-15-37) - Disposal of Surplus Property / Miscellaneous Personal Property

D. Minutes of the Village of La Grange Board of Trustees Regular Meeting, Monday,

September 14,2015

E. Consolidated Voucher 150928 (5899'462.52)

Trustee Holder provided compliments to Owl and Lark for desired renovations on their

location. Trustee Amett concurred with the improvements.

It was moved by Trustee Langan to approve items A, B, D, and E of the Omnibus Agenda,

seconded by Trustee Holder.

Motion approved by roll call vote.

Ayes: Trustees McCarty, Kuchler, Kotynek, Amett, Holder and Langan

q*E/



Nays:
Absent:

None
None

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 28,2015 - Page 3

8.

9.

5. CURRENT BUSINESS

6. MANAGER'S REPORT

None

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING MATTERS NOT ON AGENDA

Mr. Chris Burns and his son expressed interest and guidelines in establishing a dog park.
President Livingston referred them to work with the Park District and advised Community
Development Director Patrick Benjamin to provide contact information.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

TRUSTEE COMMENTS

Trustee Holder expressed compliments to the organizers of the West End Art Festival.

ADJOURNMENT

At 7:45 p.m. Trustee Langan moved to adjoum, seconded by Trustee McCarty. Motion
approved by voice vote.

Thomas E. Livingston, Village President

ATTEST:

John Burns, Village Clerk Approved Date:

H:\eeldeAellie\MinutesWB0928 I 5.doc
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Fund

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Disbursement Approval by Fund

October 12,2015
Consolidated Voucher 1 51012

10t12t15
VoucherNo. Fund Name

t0/09n5
Payroll Total

374,088.12
0.00
0.00

4,756.63
0.00

496,179.09
299,910.45

26,496.51
0.00

4,800.00
5,100.00

12,672.84
0.00

01
2',|

22
24
27
40
50
51
60
70
75
80
90

General
Motor FuelTax
Foreign Fire lnsurance Tax
ETSB
Drug Enforcement
CapitalProjects
Water
Parking
Equipment Replacement
Police Pension
Firefighters' Pension
Sewer
Debt Service

65,643.77

146.07

496,179.09
257,493.25

1,634.86

4,800.00
5,100.00
2,465.94

308,444.35

4,610.56

42,417.20
24,861.65

10,206.90

_933,46299_ 390,540.66 _1,224,003.64-

We the undersigned Manager and Clerk of the Village of La Grange hereby certify
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the foregoing items are true and
proper charges against the Village and hereby approve their payment.

Village Manager Village Clerk

President Trustee

Trustee Trustee

Trustee Trustee

Trustee

l-r



DATE:10/08/15
TIME: 10:09:27
ID: 4P222000.f{O$t

CHECK *

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
MANUAL PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE: 1

VENDOR *
INVOICE S

INVOICE
DATE

CHECK
DA?E ACCOUNT Í

ITBM
fi DESCRIPTION IÎEM AMT

13403T DEA3678 DEARBORN NATt LIFE INSURANCE 09/29/ L5

15/10 09/18/L5

MANGIA MANGIA

to/0r/15

01
02
03
04
05

07
08
09
10
11

ocT
ocr
ocT
ocr
ocr
ocr
ocr
ocr
ocr
ocT
ocT

LI FE
LI FE
LI FE
I,I FE
LI FE
LI FE
LI FE
LT FS
tI FE
LI PE
LI FE

EMPLOYEE
EMPIOYEB
EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE
EMPTOYEE
EMPLOYEE
EMPIOYEE
EMPLOYEE

PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMI UM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM
PREMIUM

01 -02-60-6010
01 -03- 60- 6010
01 -06- 60-601 0
01 -0? -60-601 0
5 1 -00-60-601 0
01 -0 9-60-601 0
01-11-60-6010
24 -00-60- 6010
s0-00- 60-6010
80-00-60-501 0
0r -00-31 -3 10s
INVOICE ÎOTAL:

INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS
INS

22
2?
28

L82
1?

108
68

5
62
11

260
790

80
80
50
40
10
30
40
70
70
40
40
50*

06

r 34 032 MANGIA

15 r 001

10/05/15

01 FOOD FOR OPEN HOUSE VOLUNTEERS

CHECK IOTAL:

0 I -09-62 -6250
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

TOTAL AMOUNT PAID:

790.50

282.OO

| ,07 2 .50

282.00
282.00 *

v- l:,/



DATE:
TIME:
ID:

t0/08/L5
10:09:54
AP223000 . rfor¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL --- MANUAL CHECKS AP-l00815

JOURNAL DATE: lO/08/ï5 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

PAGE
F-YR 16

ITEM ACCOUNT fl DEBIÎ AM? CREDIÎ AII,IT

GENERAL FUND
01 01-00-31-3105
02 01-02-60-6010
03 01-03-60-6010
04 01-06-60-6010
05 01-0?-60-6010
06 01-09-50-6010
07 01 -0t- 62-6?50
08 01-11-60-6010
09 01 -00-00-1010

rsl10
T5/LO
1sl10
t5/LO
T5/IO
75/tO
151001
15/10

P/ R-HOSPITALI ZAlION-EMPLOYEE
I NSURANCE -HOS PI lALI ZAT I ON

INSURANCE.HOS PI TALI ZATION
I NSURANCE-HOS PITALI ZAlION
INSURANCE-HOSPITALI ZATION
INSURANCE-HOSPIlÀLI ZATION
FIRE PREVEIITIOII
INSURANCB.HOS PITALI ZATION
CASI{- FNBLG-CHECKING

DEA3 67 8
DEA3 67 8
DEA3678
DEA3678
DEA3678
DEA3 67 8
ìt \l¡Gr^
DEA3 67 8

OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE ¡NS PREMIUM
OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
OCl EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
FOOD FOR OFE!¡ TIOUSE I.¡OLUNTEERC

OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OFFSET

2 60
22
22
28
82
08

40
80
80
50
40
30

382.00
68.40

ETSB FUND
1 0 24 -00-60-601 0
11 24-OO-20-?OO7

TiEALTH INS.-CONSOLIDATED DISP DEA3678 15/10
DUE 1/P GENERAL FUND

I NSURANCE-HOS PI TALI ZAl ION
DUE T/8 GENERAL FUND

DEA3678 15/LO

DEA3678 15/r0

OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PRBMIUM
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OFFSET

5.70

62.70

1?.10

11.40

9?5.60

5.70

62.70

1?.10

11.40

96.90

WATER FUND
L2 s0-00-60-6010
13 s0-00-20-2001

PARKING FUND
14 51-00-60-6010
1s s1-00-20-2001

SEÍ¡ER FUND
16 80-00-60-6010
L7 80-00-20-2001

INTERFUND SUMMARY
18 0r.-00-20-2024
19 01-00-20-2050
20 01-00-20-2051
21 01-00-20-2080
22 01-00-00-1010

OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OFFSEÎ

I NSURANCE - HOS P I TAII ZATI ON
DUE T/F GENERAL FUND

OCT EMPLOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
ACCOUNTS PAYABI,E OFFSET

OCT EMPTOYEE LIFE INS PREMIUM
ACCOUNTS PAYABTE OFFSET

I NSURANCE-HOS PITALI ZATION
DUE T/F GENERAL FUND

DUB T/F ETSB
DUE Î/F Í{ÀTER
DUE T/E PARKING METER
DUE T/F SEWER
CASH- FNBLG-CHECKING

DEA36?8 15/10

ACCTS
ACCTS
ACCTS
ACCTS
ACCTS

PAYABTE
PAYABf,E
PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE

I NTER FUND
I NlERFUND
I NTERFUND
INlERFUND
INTERFUND

OFFSET
OFFSET
OFFSEl
OFFSET
OFFSET

5. ?0
62.70
1?.10
11.40

101ALS 1,169.40 1,r69.40

Y ^ lî,2



DATE: l0/08/15
TlME:10:10:55
ID: 4P211001.!109¡

CHECK fl

VILLÀGE OF LÀ GRANGÊ
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE r I

VENDOR f
INVOICE {

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
*

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IOI12/20L5

DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT T PRO.'ECT CODE IÎEM AMT

134033 AÀAl38

0395

AÀÀ ACCURAÎE APPLIANCE SVC

10/06/T5 01 REPLACS LTR HINGES ON OVSN 0!-09-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

210. 00
210 . 00

CHECK TOTAL: 210.00

134034

134 035

134036

r3403?

CHECK Í

ÀrR8025

9043444635

Àrs1815

52955

ACC628

120004

ACCURATE VALET

to/05/ L5 1

I
01 VALET PARKING 9/25-26,L0/2-3

AIRGÀS NORTH CENTRAL

O9/L5/I5 01 CUT OFF I{HÉEL FOR Í21

ALL INFORMÀTION SÊRVICES INC

09/04/L5 AUG
AUG
AUG
ÀUG
AUG
ÀUG

ALLY TNC

09/11/15 0l OCT CUSIoDIAL SERVICETDECK

0L-06-62-6239
ÍNVOICE TOTAL:

,4?6.00
,4?6.00

ot-rt-62-6220
INVOICE TOTÀL:

17.6{
L1.64

CHECK TOTÀL:

CHECK TOTAL¡

CHECK TOTAL:

1,476.00

t1.64

5 ,22t ,25

PAGS: 2

01
02
03
04
05
06

IT
IT
IT
IT
IT
IT

CHARGES
CHÀRGES
CHARGES
CHARGSS
CRARGÊS
CHARGES

oL-t9-62-6230
0t-03-62-6220
oL-o6-62-6220
0L-09-62-6220
0r-0't -62-6220
0t-rt-62-6220

INVOICE TOTÂL:

1.923.?5
285.00
t66.25

|, 662 .50
993. ?5
1 90. 00

5,22r .25

ALL89?

1334 3

DATE: 10/08/15
TIME:10:10;55
IDi ÀP2l100l,wor{

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

51-00-62-6280
INVOTCE TOÎAL:

325.00
325 .00

VENDOR *
INVOICE *

INVOICE
DATE gROJECT CODE ITEM AMT

ITEM
fl

INVOICES DUE ON/BESORE IO/12/20L5

DESCRIPÎION ACCOUNT fl

134037

134038

ALL897

r3344

13348

1334 9

ALLY INC

ÀEMPARTSINC

09/o8/15

09/ ro/15

09/rr/L5

09/t4 /15

09 / t6/Ls

09/L7 /L5

09/L1 /rS

09/r7 /t5

09/L1 /15

09/L7 /t5

OCT CUSTODIAL SERVICE:PD

OCT CUSTODIAL SERVICE:DPH

OcT cUsToDfAL SÊRvrCE:vH

01

0t

01

0L-L0-62-622r
INVOICE TOTAL:

, 475,26
, 415 .26

0r-L0-62-622r
INVOICE TOTÀL¡

395. 00
395.00

0r-r0-62-622L
INVOICE TOTÀL:

L,644.69
L , 644 .69

CHECK TOTÀL: 3,839.95

A¡..t8 62 3

52951 1

530109

5 3018 7

530610

5 310 91

531233

5312 4 I

OI AIR LINE/*l?

O1 SIDE TIINDOW DEFLECTORS/fl19

O1 UNDERCOAI, FUSE HOLDER/I2O

OT GLUE/SHOP

O1 ÀNTIFREEZE/TRUCKS

01 BATTSRY/I66 POIIER INVERTOR

01 otL/í71

80-oo-62-6220
INVOICE TOTÀL:

ot-Lt-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

46 .49
46 .49

0r-LL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

43.18
43.78

oL-LL-62-6220
INVOICE ÎOTÀL:

I .3{
8.3{

0L-!r-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL¡

98.34
98.34

50-oo-62-6220
INVOICE TOÎAL:

L92.t4
L92 . L4

0t-tL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

t2
L2

3
3

94
9{

90
90

r VOID---LEADER CHECK

L/*tr,3134039 ÀM8 62 3

5314 0 4

AEMPARTSINC

09/18/L5 01 OIL FILIER/LEAF KING oL-LL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTALT

10 .86
10.86



DATEr 10/08/15
TIME¡ l0¡10¡55
ID: AP21I001.n0r¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGEr 3

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE LOI12/20T5

CHECK I VÊNDOR S

INVOICE í
INVOICE

DATE
ITEM

I DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT Í PROJECT CODÊ ITEM AMT

134039 AM8623 A&MPARTS tNC

531?55 09/2L/L5 01 ArR,OrL,HyD FTLTERS/íI? 50-00-62-6220 184.43
INVOICE IOTAL: 184.43

531921 09/22115 01 EUEL FTLTERS/1|12 50-00-62-6220NVCÌCE 
TOî'!L. 

13.?8 
r

531978 09/22/L5 01 BÀrrERy/ÀrR COMPRESSOR Ot-Lt-62-6220 L02.51
INVOICE TOTAL¡ L02.51

53220L 09/23/rs 01 GRAB HÀNDLE/íI9 0r-1L-62-6220 5.53
INVOICE TOTAL: 5.53 t

532371 09/24/15 01 WrpSR BLADES/LG TRUCKS 0r-lL-62-622O 68.82
INVOICE TOTAL¡ 68.82 '

CHECK TOTÀL: 19L.92

134040 AMEs? 4 9

u1158?34PJ

A}IERICAN MESSAGING

t0/0L/ L5 OT OCT PAGE/COPY SERVICE 0t-09-62-62L0
INVOICE TOTALT

85.63
85.63

00
00

oL-o6-62-6230
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK ÎOTÀL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNT í

6
6

85.63

66. 00

9AGg! 4

13404t

134042

AND6OO6

3s284 94

ANDERSON PEST CONTROL

O9/L8/I5 01 SEPT PEST CONTROL

ARA2525

2080234 101

ARÀ},I,ARK UNIFORM SERVICES

09125/15 01 MAT MOP SERVTCE 01-09-61-6100
INVOICE TOTALT

30.39
30. 39

DÀTE ¡ 10/08/15
TIME¡ 10r10r55
ID! 4P21100Lr¡0r¡

CHECK I VENDOR I
INVOTCE f

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIÎ

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
r

INVOICES DUE ON/BEEORE IOIT2/2OI5

DESCRI PTION PROJECÎ CODE ITEM AMT

134042

134043

134044

ARA2 52 5

2080234235

ARÀMÀRK UNIFORM SERVICES

09/25/L5 0l
02
03
04
05

9 /25/ L5 UNISORM SERVICES
9 /251L5 UNIFORM SERVICES
9 /25/ T5 UNIFORM SERVICES
FLOOR MÀTS/TRAIN SlN
FLOOR MÀTS/PARKING DECK

01-11-60-6021
50- 00- 60- 502 1
8 0-00- 60- 602 I
5L-OO-62-6225
51-00-62-6280

INVOICE TOTÀL:

r.0 .06
13.?6
6.89

L32.42

61.48
40.24

2080244364 t0/02/t5 O1 LOI2/15 UNIFORM SERVICES
02 LolzlL5 UNIFORM SERVICES
O3 LO/2/15 UNIFORM SERVICES

0r-11-60-6021
50-00- 60- 602 1
80- 00- 60- 602 1

INVOICE TOTALI

61 ,48
40.24
10.06

111.78

ATO37 33

MÀ3104?

ATl AT & T

15/708352193309

ÀTOMÀTIC MECHÀNICÀL SVCS INC

01loLlL1 01 HVAC MTC ÀGREEMENI/2ND QrR

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTALI

27 4 .59

1,032.50

85.99

0L-to-62-6220
INVOICE IOTAL:

1, 032 . 50
r, 032 . 50

09/t6tt5 01 sEp MoDEM LrNE 3s2-1933/pD

'TI THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NAME OR ADDRESS INFO.''T

r*' THIS CHECK IS EITHER MTSSING VENDOR NAME OR ADDRESS INFO.**T

ÀTT AT&T

15/7083522r2L09 09/16/L5 01 sEp EMERGENCY LrNÈ, 352-2L2r/îD

0L-o7 -62-6210
INVOICE TOTÀLr

0r-09-62-62L0
INVOICE TOTAL:

99
99

5

134045

7^tr.y

CHECK TOTAL:

205.29
205.29

205.29



DATE:10/08/15
ÎIME: 10 r 10 r 55
ID: 4P211001.f{0f,¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT
PÀGE: 5

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE LO/L2/20L5

CHECK ff VENDOR {
INVOICE S

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
il DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT H PRO.'ECT CODE ITEM AMT

13404 6 ATl ATTT

15/?083522 13r.09 09/t6/15 01 sEg EMERGENCT LrNE 352-2131/PD OL-O1-62-6210
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

322.83
322.83

322,83

134047

1340¡8

1340{9

I 34 050

CHECK I

ATT AIû1

15/?08354156609 09/22/L5 01 SEP OFFTCE LrNE 354-1566

'TT THIS CHECK fS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NAME OR ÀDDRESS INEO!T*}

ATT ÀT6T

15/7082L40I2409 09/16/15 01 SEP TSLEMETRY LrNE 2140124/llrR

0L-09-62-62LO
INVOICE TOTÀL:

109. 98
109. 98

CHECK ÎOÎÀL:

CHECK TOÎAL:

CHECK 1O?AL:

0L-02-62-62LO

109. 98

96.60

265.49

50-00- 62- 62 1 0
INVOICE IOTÀL:

96. 60
96.60

**T THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NÀME OR ÀDDRESS INFO.TA*

ATT AT&T

r5/708245003709 09/t6/L5 0r SEP ALÀRM LrNE ?08-245-003?
02 SEP ALARM LINE ?08-245-OO3?

*I' THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NAME OR ÀDDRESS INEIO.'**

ATT ÀT&T

15/708245008709 09/!6/L5 01 SEp ALARM LINE 245008?/ADM

01-t1-62-6210
80-00-62-6210

INVOICE îOÎÀLl

132.95
L32.94
265.89

132.95

DATEr 10/08/15
TIME: 10: 10: 55
lD: A'P211001.?1091

VILLAGE OF LÀ GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PA,GE: 6

VENDOR I
INVOICE #

INVOICE
DAlE

ITEM
fl

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/L2/20I5

DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT I PROJECT CODE ITEM A¡.I1

1 34 050

134051

134052

ATT ATET

1 5/ ? 0824 5008 ? 09 09116/15 02 SEP ALARM LINE Z45OO87/FIN

*iT THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NÀME OR ADDRESS JNFO!'T*

ATT A1ÉT

L51708z45021009 09lL6lr5 01 SEP ALARM LINE ?,450270/CLK ADM
02 SEP ÀLARM LINE 24502?O/COM DEV

ÚT THTS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NÀME OR ADDRESS INFO.}}T

ATT ÀTûT

L5/108z45520209 09/L6/t5 0l SEp ALARM LINE 2455202lwTR

r*T THIS CHECK IS EIÎHER MISSING VENDOR NA¡.'E OR ADDRESS INSO,TTT

01-03-62-6210
I¡WOICE ÎOTAL ¡

r32.94
26s.89

oL-02-62-62LO
01-06-62-6210

INVOICE TOTÀL:

265. 90
265.89
531.79

50-00-62-62r0
INVOICE TOTAL:

531 .79
531.79

CHECK ÎOTAL3

CHECK ÎOÎÀL:

CHÊCK TOTAL:

0I-02-62-62t 0
0 r.- 03- 62- 62 10
0t-06-62-62L0
ot-o1 -62-62L0
01-09-62-6210
01-1r-62-6210
50-00- 62- 62 10
80-00- 62 - 62 1 0

INVOICE TOTÀL:

CHECK TOTALT

26s.89

531.?9

531.79

DISTÀNCE
DISTÀNCE
DTSTÀNCE
DISTANCE
DISTANCE
DISTÀNCE
DISTÀNCE
DISTANCE

CHARGES
CHÀRGES
CHÀRGES
CHARGES
CHARGES
CHÀRGES
CHARGES
CI{ARGES

LONG
LONG
LONG
LONG
LONG
LONG
LONG
LONG

1 34 053 A1T5O17 AÎET LONG DISTANCE

15/09 09/L9tt5 01 SEPT
OZ SEPT
03 sE91
04 SEPT
05 SEPT
06 SEPT
07 SEgT
08 SEPT

Y -tr.5-

83.25
106. 85
r0.99

310 .39
75.14
24.83
49.66
24.82

685.93

68s.93



DATE:10/08/15
TIMEr 10:10:55
ID¡ 4P21100¡.Ír0l{

CHECK S

VILLÀGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

gAGE: 7

INVOICES DU8 ON/BEFORE IO/L2/2OI5

VENDOR fi
INVOICE fl

INVOICE
DÀTE

ITEM
I DESCRIPTION ÀCCOUNT fl PROJECT CODE ITÊM AMT

13{05{ ÀTT911 ÀT&T

t5/713RO6231209 09/L6l]-5 01 SEP 8911 vIIRELESST??3-R06-2372 24-00-62-62L0 102.36
INVOICE IOTAL: f02.36 t

CHECK ToTÀL: 102,36
*T' THIS C¡IECK IS ETTHER MISSING VENDOR NAME OR ADDRESS INPO.**T

134055 BAX?83 BAXTER E WOODMAN

0182163 O9/24/r5 01 EAST AVE pUMp STATTON CONSTR 50-00-66-6691 11,395,?8
INVOICE TOTAL: 1r,395,?8

o!82224

ot82225

0182306

018 2 314

or82442

09/24/L5

09/ 24 / L5

09/24 / 15

09/24 / L5

09/29/L5

8.761.93
8,761.93

11,159.48
11, 159.48

O1 REVIEW 2014 SSWER TELEVISING
02 REVIE9¡ 2014 SEÍ¡ER TELEVISING

40-00-66-6686
I 0-00- 6 6- 668 1

INVOICE TOTALI

21 6 ,20
216 .2O
552 .40

1?8.8?
1?8.87
357 .'t 4

21
21

01
o2

2014 SEÍIER TELEVISING
2014 SÊÍ{ER TELEVISING

4 0-00- 6 6- 668 6
I 0-00- 6 6- 668 1

INVOICE TOÎÀLl

01 BRAINARD AVE FLOODWÀLL

01 sOTH ST RELIEF STORM SEÍIER

40-00-66-6611
INVOICE TOTÀL:

40-00-66-661r
INVOICE TCTÀL:

68
68

5
5

Ot KENSINGTON-COSSITT TO BURLINGT 4O-OO-66-669?
INVOICE TOÎÀL¡

134056

CHECK ff

BES1020

4836-1?51

BEST ÎRANSPORTATION SERVICES

09/21/L5 OI. OPUS SIDEI{AIK MAIL TO ATTY

CHECK TOTÀL:

CHECK TOTÀL:

ACCOUNT I PRO.JECT CODE

100.502.91

41.19

PAGE r I

ITEM AMT

01-02-61-6101
INVOICE TOTAL:

19
79

DATE r 10/08/15
lIME: 10;10r55
IDr 4P21I001.f,¡otl

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN ÊDIT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/L2/2OI5

VENDOR ff
INVOICE Í

INVOICE
OATE

ITEM
T DESCRIPTION

13{05?

134058

134059

134060

cAsT 911

8321

8355

8356

114 . l8

4, 500. 00

r , 924 ,55

21 3 .93

BRE139O

2521 89

BRETT EQUIPMENT

09/t5/t5

cAR2 1 1

3s83?

CARY CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC

o9/L4/L5 0l 20 PCS gRECAST SIGN POSTS

O1 LÊD RED,GROMMEÎ RUBBER/121

01 MrSC PAPER TOÍ{ELSTTPTSOAPTCUPS

01 2 DOZ URINAL SCREENS

01 4 DOZ URINÀL SCREENS

O1 RÊTAINER/OCÎ-DEC 2015

0t-tL-62-6220
INVOICE ÎOTAL¡

114 . l8
1r4 .18

0L-rL-62-6264
INVOICE TOTAL:

4

4

01-10-61-6100
INVOICE TOTALT

59.70
59.70

00
00

0l-10-61-6100
INVOICE ÎOTAL:

1,745.45
1,745.45

01- 10- 61- 610 0
INVOICE ÎOTÀL:

119.4
119,4

CHECK TOTÀL:

CHECK lOlAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTALI

75-00-68-6899
INVOICE TOTAL:

00
50

CASE LOÎS INC

09/2L/L5

09/22/t5

09 / 22/ L5
0

cAT62 98

603140?

CATCHING FLUIDPOWER, INC

O9lL1/L5 01 FLÀTHOSETÊEMÀLE É MALE CPLER 50-oo-62-6220
INVOICE TOTALT

21 3.93
21 3.93

r.34061 coLl? 10

667 L

COLLINS E RADJA

09/2t/L5

/-F, (o
CHECK TOTAL:

300. 00
300.00

300 . 00



DATSr l0/08/15
TIME:10r10:55
ID: 4P211001.r{0r¡

VITLAGE OF LÀ GRANGE
PRE.CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE: 9

INVOICÉS DUE ON/BEFORE LO/T2/20I5

CHECK fl VENDOR fi
INVOICE I

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
S DESCRIP?ION ACCOUNT fi PROJECT CODE ITEM AMT

L34062 coL226

142401

COLLEY ELEVÀTOR CO

08 / 3L/ ts 01 INSÎALL PIT LADDERS 0t-r0-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHÊCK TOTAL:

t,424.00
r, 424 .00

L, 424 .00

134063

134064

r34066

CHECK II

coM3001 coMcAsr CÀBLE

014?099-!5/10 09/24/t5

coul 1

5809

COURTNEY'S LANE

09/ t6 /L5

01 OCT MODEM/GÃRAGE

SAFETY INSPECTION/il20 É fl?4
SÀFETY INSgECTION/f2O ú fi?4

51-00-62-6280
INVOTCE TOTAL:

102 .85
102.85

1510 0 6

CRÀINS CHICAGO BUSINESS

LO/06/15 O1 SUBSCRI9ÎION RENE?¡AL

DMJ6O3

3054

D M J AUTOMOTIVE

09/29/t5

09/L6/L5 O1 SAFETY INSPECTION/fl21

O1 PREVENTÀTIVE MIC/CO 1115

50-00-62-6220
80-o0-62-6220

INVOICE TOTAL:

35 .00
3s .00
70.00

00
00

oL-rt-62-6220
INVOICE TOTALI

35.00
35 .00

01
02

CHSCK TOTAL;

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNT I

102.85

105. 00

?4.00

PAGE: IO

5 814

01-06-60-6020
INVOICE TOTAL:

0L-09-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL¡

48s.96
485.96

DATE:10,/08,/15
TIME: l0: l0: 55
ID: A'P211001.1109¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRS-CHECK RUN SDIT

VENDOR il
INVOICE ff

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
I

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE TO/L2/20L5

DESCRI PTION PROJECT CODE ITBM AMT

134066

134067

DMJ6O3

305 6

3058

D M J AUTOMOTIVE

09/29/ t5

09/29/L5

01 PRÊVENTATIVE MTC/ CO T182

01 OIL CHANGETETC/CO1183

01 SEPT PUMPING

OT SEgT PUMPING

0L-09-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

49 .42
49 .42

0t-09-62-6220
INVOICE TOTÀL;

54 .3?
54 .37

50-00-62-62r1
INVOICE TOTAL:

r68.01
r68,01

CHECK TOTÀL:

01-11-62-6211
51-00-62-6211

INVOICE TOTAL:

0L-tt-62-62tt

589. ?5

DYN276? DYNEGY ENERGY SERVICES

14?021615091 09/22/15

147021.?15091 O9/30/L5

r{9410115091 09/2L/L5

t49410215091 09 t22 / L5

149410315091

1{9410415091

01
o2

01
02

SEPT STREET LIGHTS
SEPT PARKING LOT LIGHTS

AUG-SEP STREET LIGHTS

SEPT SÎREET LTGHTS
SEPT PARKING LOT LIGHÎS

5 0-00- 62- 62 1 1

INVOICE ÎOTÀL:

01-r1-62-621Ì
51-00-62-6211.

INVOICE TOTÀL!

990.69
990. 69

616. 68
228.O9
844.71

87.82
32.48

120.30

2
2

09/22/15 01
o2

SEPT STREET LIGHÎS
SEPT PARKING LOT LIGHTS

0L-tL-62-62tL
51-00-62-6211

INVOICE IOTALr

248.03
97 .14

339. ??

09/21/r5 01

VOID---LEADER CHECK

36.16

02 AUG-SEP PÀRKING LOT LIGHTS
13{068 DYN2767 DYNEGY SNERGY SERVICES

/-F,7

5t-oo-62-62tr
INVOICE TOTAL:

13.37
49.53



DATEr 10/08/15
lIME: l0: 10: 55
ID: ÀP211001,r{0t{

VILLÀGE OF LA GRANGE
PRÊ-CHECK RUN EDIÎ

PAGE: 11

CHECK S VENDOR fl
INVOICE í

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
*

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/L2/20L5

DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT fl PROJECT CODE ITEM AMl

134068

13{069

134070

134071

CHECK fi

DYN276? DYNEGY ENERGY SERVICES

149410515091 09/21/L5 01
02

SEPT STREET LIGHTS
SSPT PARKING LOT LIGHTS

01-1r-62-621r.
51-00-62-6211

INVOICE TOTÀL:

294.88
109.0?
403.95

FED9451 FEDEX

5-t69-28946

CHECK lOlAL:

CHECK ÎOTÀL:

CHECK ?OTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNT I

4, 9t1 .02

44 .31

l?0. 34

09123 / L5 01 SENT EXIT DOCSIPÀCANA
02 SEND GO SEÍ¡ER BOND DOCS

0 1-02- 6 1- 610 1
0 1-03- 6 1- 610 I

INVOICE TOTAL:

23
20
44

FIR/CD

150922-01

150922-02

150925-01

150925-02

FIRST NATIONAL BÀNK/LÀ GRANGE

09/22lLS 01 cA¡.lE CÀMERA,CARD/RoDENT coNTR

09/22/L5 O1 WOMEN IN BUSINESS MTG/MESÀRO

09/25/15 OI MEMORY CARD/Í{ILDLIFE MONITOR

09125/15 01 CLAMPSTBOLTS/TIILDLIFE MoNITOR

HÀÑSON MATERIAL SERVICE

O9/L6/L5 01 3 LOÀDS BÀCKFILL

oL-06-62-6230
INVOICE IOTALl

116.97
rL6.91

01-06-60-6020
INVOICE TOTAL:

3? .00
37 .00

01-06-61-6100
INI./OICE ÎOTÀL:

8.49
s.49

01-06-61-6100
INVOICE TOTALT

88
88

7
1

HANI562

5520388

DÀTE:1.0/08/15
TIME: 10:10¡55
I D: ÀP211001 .910r{

50-00-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

L, O22.83
t,o22.83

L, 022 .83

PÀGE: f2VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIÎ

INVOICES DUE ON/BÊFORE LO/T2/2OI5

VENDOR f
INVOICE I

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
f DESCRIPÎION ?RO.'ECT CODE ITEM ÀMT

t34012

134073

HBKT 5 9

498

HBK Í{ATER METER SERVICE INC

09lr1lt5 01 2' prELD ÎEST METER/124 S LG R 50-oo-62-6220
INVOICE TOTALI

L42.25
t42.25

HEUER E ASSOCIATES

09t23tL5 0r

09/23/L5 01

09/23/L5 01

09/23/L5 01

09t23tLs 01

09/23/L5 01

09/25/L3 01

*T* VOID--.LEÀDER CHECK

HEUER ú ASSOCIÀTES

09/30/t5 01

REVGl1O1 S SPRING

REVO4O6 S PECK

REve609 S 8TH

REVC234 S ?TH

REVO?12-?16 W BURLINGTON

REVC32 N ADGEI.¡OOD

REVe?2o S 9TH

CHECK IOTALr

01-00-35-3511
INVOICE TOTÀL:

0 r -00- 35-35 1 1
INVOICE IOTAL:

5?9.09
5?9.09

0r-00-35-3511
INVOICE TOTALT

01-00-35-3511
INVOICE TOTAI;

0 1 -00- 35-3s I I
INVOICE ÎOTAL:

260.83
260.83

20
20

01-00-35-3511
INVOTCE TOTAL:

38? .50
38? .50

01-00-3s-3511
INVOICE TOTÀL!

918 .80
918.80

L42.2s

HEU2315

15-106

15 - 107

ls-108

I 5- 109

15- 110

15- 1l 1

15- I l2

PLAN

PLAN

PALN

PLAN

PLAN

PLAN

PLAN

I,122,1 5
t,122.7 5

t,268.1
| ,268 .L

9
9

PLAN REVC6OS-624 E COSSIÎT 01-00-35-3511
INVOICE TOîAL:

1

1

134074 HEU2315

15- 115

?-f,g

.246 .13
,246 .13



DATE; 10/08/15
TIME: 10: 10 : 55
ID¡ 4P211001.r{0ll

VILLAGE OF I,A GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE r 13

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE TO/L2I2OI5

CHECK * VENDOR I
INVOICE II

INVOICÊ
DATÊ

IlEM
I DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT fl PRO.JECT CODE ITEM A¡.IT

1340?4

1340?5

1340?6

1340??

CHECK fl

HEU2315

15-116

HEUER & ÀSSOCIAÎES

09/ 30 / 13

HIN66O5 HINCKLEY SPRINGS

24?8819-091815 10/01/15

HOM1831

95? 0 ¡107

0r-06-62-6230
INVOICE TOTÀL:

372.38
312.38

OI LA GRANGE MISC

01 4 STLS. DRINKING 9IÀTER

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

09/22/15 0l MINI RADAR SQUARESTBLADES/PD 0L-t0-62-6220
INVOICE TOTALI

r50.30
150 .30

10.38
10. 38

HORTONIS OF LA GRANGE

09/02/t5 01

09/t1 /t5 01

09/r8/t5 0l

09/29/t5 0r.

CHECK TOTAL:

CHSCK ÎOTAL:

CHECK TOTA¡J:

0t-tt-62-6223
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ÀccouNT i

WIRE CONNECTORS/SL

CÀBLE TIES/ART FAIR

6V BATTERIES/BÀRRICADES

FTASHLIGHT

01-03-61-6100
INVOICE ÎOTAL:

55.69
55. 69

1 ,962.20

55. 69

150. 30

111.91

PÃGE: 14

HOR6O

t12393

t72564

L72592

L727 L0

DATEr 10/08/15
TIME:10:10:55
ID: AP21l00l,Îf0W

VILLAGE OF LA GRÀNGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

ot-L0-62-6222
INVOICE TOTALT

0r-rt-62-6264
INVOICE TOTAL:

41 .56
41,56

0l-06-61-6100
INVOICE TOTÀL¡

35.99
35.99

2
2

VENDOR f
INVOICS X

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
s

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORS t0/12/2015

DESCRIPTION PRO.JECI CODE ITEM ÀMT

1340?8

1340?9

134080

I LP6

rN183790

rN185961

ILLINOIS PAPER 6 COPIER CO

O9IL4/\5 01 REPÀIR COPIER PAPER TRAY ot-o6-62- 6220
IÌWOICE lOTÀLl

15?.50
15? .50

01 COPY PAPER
02 COPY PAPER
03 COPY PAPER

01-02-61-6100
01-03-61-6100
01-06-6r.-6100

INVOICE IOTALr

32.93
16. 4?
L6 .47
65 ,87

01 NEÍI EMPL EXAM/FONTO
02 NEÍI EMPL ÊXÀM/I{D
03 FF CÀNDIDÀTE SELIGA
04 FF CÀNDIDATE KLEMAMP

rT* THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NA¡IIE OR ADDRESS INFO.TT*

INF535O INFINITY SIGNS û GRAPHICS

7509 09/2L/L5 01 No PKG SIGNSTCOROPLAST SIGNS

7542 09/26/L5 01 2 SIGNS

ILSP

150831

¡LLINOIS STÀTE POLICE

08 / 31/ r.5

09t28 / L5

CHECK TOTAIJI

01-07-61-6100
0l-07-61-6100
ol-t2-62-6212
0t-r2-62-6272

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOÎÀL:

29 .15
29.75
29.75
29,15

119.00 r

283.53
283.53

223.31

rr9.00

07-tt-62-6264
INVOICE TOÎÀL:

ot-Lt-62-6264
INVOICE IOTALr

100.00
100.00

CHECK TOTAL:

50-oo-52-6220
INVOICE îOTAL:

51
51

I
I

134081 JÀC664 2

63892

JACKI S

09I2L/L5 O1 SHANK BITS/METERS

y'-F,7

383. s3



DATE:10/08/15
TfME;10¡10;55
ID: 4P21.1001,!{0Íl

VILIÀGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE.CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE: 15

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE LOITZ/20L5

CHECK I VENDOR f
INVOICE I

INVOICE
DÀTE

ITEM
I DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT S PROJECT CODE ITEM ÀMT

134081 JÀC664 2

6391{

JACK'S

09/23/15 01 2 SAFETY VESÎS 01-11-60-6021
INVOICE ÎOTAL:

98
98

9
9

CHECK TOTÀL: 201.16

I 3{ 082

134083

13408{

13{085

CHECK fi

JOH1025

6 1830

J A JOHNSON PAVING CO

09/I'I/15 O1 PÀVINGJCONCRETE REPÀIRS 9, 995.00
9, 995.00

4 0- 00- 66- 669?
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOÎAL:

KRAMÊR

1 5092 9

VENDOR I
INVOICE f

STEVE KRAMER

09t29/L5 OI REIMBURSE CDL RENEIIAL FEE 01-11-60-6020
INVOICE TOTAL:

65, 00
65.00

9, 995. 00

65. 00
rTT THJS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NAME OR ADDRESS INFO.TTT

LAM19OO A LA¡.IP CONCRETE CONTRACTORS

15154 O9/I1/I5 01 REPAIR DÀMAGE FROM NICOR

15168 O9/23/L5 01 FY15-16 NEIGHBORHD STR RESURFC

40-00-66-6698
INIUIIg IU¡AU:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNî fr PRO.'ECT CODE

LAV21

11615

LAUÎERBACH û N.IEN, LLP

07/01/I5 01 GASB 45 OPEB REPORT

{ 0-00- 66- 6698
INVOICE TOTÀL:

400.00
400.00

10
10

6,
6,3

6.566.00
6,566.00

3

382, 51 6.31

PAGÊ: 16

IÎÊM ÀMT

0
0

0L-03-62-6232
INVOICE TOTÀL:

DATE ¡ 10/08/15
TIME: 10 r 10;55
¡D: 4P21100¡.nor,l

VILLAGE OF LA GRÀNGE
PRE-CHECK RUN ÊDIT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORS LO/12I2OL5

INVOICE
DÀTE

ITEM
I DESCRIPTION

134085

l3{086

13{087

LAU21

1182 3

Lr824

LGPC

15 100 7

LAUTERBACH ú AI.IEN, LLP

O1IO1/L5 01 ACTUARY VAL/GÀSB 6? & 68

01107/15 01 ACTUARY VÀL/GÀSB 6? & 68

PETTY CASH

LO tO1 / L5

? 5- 00- 68- 689 9
INVOICE TOTAL:

? 0-00- 68 - 68 99
INVOICE TOTÀL:

800.00
800.00

800. 00
800. 00

0l
02
03
04
05
06
07

PSlTY
PETTY
PETTY
PEllY
PETTY
PETTY
PETTY

REIMB
REIMB
RETMB
REIMB
REIMB
REIMB
REIMA

CASH
CASH
cÀsH
CASH
CASH
CASH
CASH

CHECK TOIÀL:

01-02-61-6100
01-0?-60-6020
01-07-61-6100
01-0?-61-6101
01-0?-61-6102
oL-01 -62-624L
51-00-61-6100

INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

6. 99
38.99
56 -21
1? .07

188 . 00
43.18
17 ,40

367.90

13,000.00

367.90

24.79

¡IT THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VENDOR NÃME OR ADDRESS INEO.*T*

LIC2818 J C LICHT

14L9419t 09t25/L5 01 BRN TrNl 01-7t-62-6264
INVOICE TOTAL:

9
9

MARTIN IMPLEMENT SALES, INC

09/2Llf5 01 CAB FILTERTGAS STRUT/112

CHECK TOTAL¡

CHECK TOTAL:

50-oo-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

134088 MÀR1840

9534 I

/-F, to

194.18
19{ . l8

194 . 18



DATE;10/08/15
lIME: 10r 10:55
ID: 4P211001.r{0rl

CHECK *

VILLAGE OE'LÀ GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE¡ L7

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/L2I2OI5

VENDOR fi
INVOICE fl

INVOICE
DATE

IlEM
fl DESCRIPTION ÀccouNT I PRO.'ECT CODE ITÊM ÀMT

134089 MCC

38-15/09

VILLAGE OE MC COOK

10/0r/15 01 SEPT Í{AT8R PURCHÀSE 50-00-62-6290
INVOICÊ TOTAL:

230
230

,796.54
,796.54

CHSCK TOÎAL: 230, ?96.5{

134090

13 { 091

134C92

MCM? 690

39312289

3961243L

EARRICADE TÀPE'SAFETY FLAGS,ET

2 STEEL ENTRANCE SIGNS

MGP7O1

21 tL

MC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO

09/t1/L5 01

09122/L5 01

MGP, INC

09/30/ Ls

MOHR OIL CO

0L-LL-62-6264
IIWOTCE ÎOTAL:

0r-tL-62-6264
INVOICE TOTALI

r68
168

5
5

62
62

MOH? 34 0

208224

28?25

09/25tt5

09/25/L5

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTÀL¡

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNÎ I

2,965.4r
2 , 965 .4L

ITEM AMT

01 SEP 2015 GIS SERVICES
02 SÊP 2015 GIS SERVICES

50-00- 62- 62 3 0
80-00- 62- 62 3 0

INVOICS ÎOTAL:

2,266 .25
91t .25

3,23?.50

220.0L

3,237 .50

01 1451 GALS NO-LSAD

01 556 GALS ULS ON-ROAD DIESEL

01-00-l?-1701
INVOICE TOTAL:

01-00-17-1?01
INVOICE TOTAL:

1,09{.?1
1,094.?1

134093 MOR6I.6 DONALD E MORRIS ÀRCHITECT. PC

4,060.t2

PAGE: 18DATE! 10/08/15
lIME r 10 r 1.0: 55
IDr AP21l001,rl0r{

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

CHECK fl VENDOR #
INVOICE í

INVOICE
DÀTE

ITEM
H

¡NVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IOIIZ/2OL5

DESCRI 9lION PROJECT CODE

L34093

r34094

134095

13{096

Nrc54 07

150 919

CHECK TOÎÀL:

CHSCK TOTAL:

CHECK TOÎAL:

CHECK lOTÀLl

MOR616

r5l09

DONALD E MORRIS ARCHITECT, PC

O9/3O/15 01 SEP 2015 PLAN REVIEflS

NÀTs82

556226sr

01-00-35-3511
INVOICE TOTAL!

5,330
5,330

NÀTIONAL SEED

09/25/ t5

00
00

50
50

01 GRASS SEEDTACCELERAÎOR

O9/I9/L5 01 SEPî GAS CHÀRGES/TRAIN STN

01-tl-62-6259
INVOICE TOÎAL:

5
5

3r9
319

31
3?

5, 330. 00

319.50

3? .56

5{.00

NICOR GAS

OFF88O4 OFFICE DEPOT

795432?01001 09t25/L5

19543211t00L 09t25tr5

3r-00-62-6225
INVOICE lOlAL:

NOTl 101

r50922

NOTARY PUBLIC ASSOCIATION/IL.

O9/22/L5 01 NOTARY COMM./KERRI A SIRGEDAS 0 I -0 9- 60- 6020
INVOICE ÎOÎÀL:

54 .00
54 .00

01

01

MISC OFFICE SUPPLTES

MISC OFFICE SUgPLIES

0 r-0 9- 6 1-6¡.00
INVOICE TOTAL:

101.18
101.18

0 1- 09- 6 1- 6100
INVOICÊ TOTÀL:

134097

y'-n//
CHECK loTÀ.L!

11.98
11.98

113.16



DATE:10/08/15
TIME:10:10:55
ID: 4P211001.¡¡0r¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PÀGE: 19

CHECK F VENDOR Í
INVOICE $

INVOICE
DAlE

IlEM
s

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/I2/20I5

DESCRI PlION ACCOUNT S PRO.'BCÎ CODE ITEM AI,ÍT

134098

134099

134 100

134 r01

134r02

CHÉCK *

PÀS6749

2252

PÀSSgORÎ PARKING INC

o7 /3L/15 01 JUL PASSPORT TRÀNSACTION CHARG 51-00.52-5228
INVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTALT

209 .7 5
209 .15

PAYIOSO PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USÀ, INC

L2r468-'tr4t26 09/L2/t5 01 SEp 2015 sLeX SPENDTNG FEES

209 ,15

118.80

114 .00

49.98

01-19-68-6890
INVOICE TOTAL:

118.80
118.80

PE4 016

35034

35035

P 6 E POWER'¡ASH

09/2t/15

09/27/t5

O1 f{INDOI{ CLEANING/TRAIN DÊPOT

O1 ÍIINDOW CLEANING/BUS DEPOTS

PEPSsOO PEP BOYS - REMITTANCE DEPT

0831103135? 09/lLl15 01 PILOT LEDTDRIVING LIGHTS/fls

PI P3I

2593

STEVE PIPER ú SONS INC

O9/18/T5 OT TUB GRINDING

5L-O0-62-6225
INVOICE TOTÀL¡

?4,00
74 ,00

98
98

0t-ro-62-6222
INVOTCE ÎOTÀL:

40.00
40.00

ot-tt-62-6220
INVOICÊ TOTAL:

CHECK TOTÀL:

CHECK TOTÀL:

CHECK IOTÀL:

CHECK TOTAL¡

ACCOUNT fl

01-11-62-6258
INVOICE TOTÀL:

2, 0?5 .00
2, 01 5 .00

ITEM AMT

2,075.00

PAGEI 20DAT9: l0/08/15
TIME: 10: 10: 55
ID: AP21l.001.rfoll

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

VENDOR f
INVOICE I

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
s

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/LZ|ZOI'

DESCRIPTION PROJECT CODE

134103

134 104

134 105

QUA2080

55504

55539

s557 3

PRAs185

886359441

INC

4YDS 4000PSI

PRAIRIE MÀTERIÀL SÀLES,

09 /22/ t5 0¡. 50-00-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

?55.38
?55.38

QUARRY MATERIALS INC

09/L6/ts

09/ L1 / LS

09 /r8 / t3

3,5TONS SURFÀ,CE,4.14 ToNs BIND

3.12 T BINDERT2 I SURFACE

8.25 TONS SURFACE

CHECK TOÎAL¡

CHECK TOTÀL!

50-00-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL¡

CHECK TOIAL:

01

01

01

50-o0-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL!

3 96.00
396.00

0t-rt-62-6262
INVOICE TOIÀL:

264.00
264.00

ot-Lr-62-6262
INVOICE TOTÀL:

445.50
445.50

755.38

1,105.50

1, 020 . 00

RÊL2252

L81 632

18809r

188358

RELIÀBLE MATERTALS

09/08/ 15

09/L4/t5

09/ L6tL5

01 4 LOADS ÍIASTE

01 20 LOADS CLÀY/DTRT

01. 3 LOADS ÍIASTE

O1 CAPS-RAD OVSRFLOO TANK/f2t.

50-00-62-6220
INVOICE TOTÀL:

50-00-62-6220
INVOICE IOTÀL:

510.00
510.00

204 .00
204 .00

306.00
306.00

RUS2208

300002824 ?

RUSH TRUCK CENTERS

09/14/L5 0t-LL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

134 106

?-ä tz

51.30
51.30



DATE: 1.0/08/15
TIME:10r10¡55
ID: 4P211001.Íf0rl

CHECK Í

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

PAGE: 2l

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE LOI12IZOLS

VENDOR Í
INVOICE ff

INVOICE
D¡,TE

ITEM
H DESCRTPTION ÀccouNî * PRO.'ECÎ CODE ITEM ÀMÎ

134r06

134 107

134108

RUS2208

3000036484

30000 5? 82 4

30000 6522 4

RUSH ÎRUCK CENTERS

09/15/t5

09/ L6t 75

091 L1 / L5

REPAIR SOLENOID/fl1?

RÀDIATOR CAPS/il8

DRÀG LINK STEERING/12T.

01

01

01

80-00-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

?71.40
7?1.40

0t-tL-62-6220
INI/ôTCÊ TOTÀL:

51.30
51.30

0L-LL-62-6220
INVOICE TOÎÀLl

t41 .66
14?.66

sÀN96?8

rr813

SANIA'S IIHOLESALE SUPPLY

09t2L/L5 01

CHECK TOTALT

CHSCK TOîÀL|

CHECK TOIAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

ACCOUNT f

r,02r.66

r0.00

{, 800.00

PÀGE: 22

12" RED BOfiS

SECREÎARY OF S"ATE. ILLINOIS

09/22/L5 01 NOTÀRY RENEÍ¡AL/K SIRGEDÀS

SHÀf{ MEDIA

ot-to-62-6222
INVOICE TOTÀLr

?03
703

1,
L,

67
61

sEc

L50922

1,?03,6?

00
00

01-09-60-6020
INVOICE TOÎÀL:

10.00
10. 00

134 r09

134r.10 sHÀ250

DÀTE: 10/08/15
TIME: 10: 10: 55
ID: ÀP211001.W0f{

CHECK I

riT THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VBNDOR NÀME OR ÀDDRESS INFO.'i*

SEY38O? SEYFORTH SHAI{ LLP

2485623-013586 08t28/t5 0t LGL SVCS THROUGH 8tL1tts 01-04-62-6238
INVOICE TOTÀLi

80
80

0
0

4

4

VILLAGE OF LA GRÀNGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIÎ

VENDOR I
INVOICE f

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
Í

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORS LO/12/2015

DESCRI PTION PRO.'ECT CODE ITEM AMT

134 I 10

13 4 111

L34Lt2

134rr3

sHÀ2 50

1115481

sIG94 0 3

15190

SHA9I MEDIA

SIGN UP

COPY PAPER;MISC SUPPLIES
COPY PAPER;MISC SUPPLISS
COPY PAPERTMISC SUPPLIES

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK ÎOTAL:

0 1-02- 6 1- 61 00
0 1-03- 6 1- 61 00
01-06-61-6100

TNVOICE TOTAL:

CHECK TOTÀL;

s1A8 3 68

8035992228

STÀPLES ADVANTAGE

09/L2/t5

suPt980

6029L5

09/281L5 01 LcL NrC zBA t611

09/25/L5 01 LETTERING/TRUCK f2O

oL- t2- 62- 627 L
IIWOICE TOTÀL:

I 10.04
1r0.04

110.04

250. 00

oL-tL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTÀL:

250.00
250.00

01
02
03

L82.28
91.14
91. 14

36{ .56

SUPERIOR ROÀD STRIPTNG

09I2L/L5 O1 2OI5 ÎHERMOPLASTIC MARKING

LO/06IL5 OT 16 PLU}IBING INSPECÎIONS

{ 0-00- 68- 68 64
INVOICE TOTÀL:

14, 955. 66
14, 955, 66

364.56

r4, 955. 66CHECK TOTÀLl

CHECK IOTAL:

oL-o6-62-6229
INVOICE TOIÀL:

13 4 114 THI4 I7O

151006

DAN THTESSE

k-F, t3

568 .00
568.00

568 .00



DATE: I0l08/15
TIME¡ 10:10:55
ID: ÀP211001.nolr

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
PRE.CHECK RUN EDIT

PÀGE| 23

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE IO/I2I2OI5

CHECK S VENDOR g

INVOICE I
INVOICE

DATE
ITEM

Í DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT å PROJECT CODÉ ITEM AMl

134115

134 116

13411?

13{118

134119

CHECK fi

r5-3530

84541

THI42OO

18624

THO1302

15-3460

THOMPSON ELÊVATOR

09/18/15

09/25/15

ÎHIRD MILLENNIUM ASOC., INC

O9/3OIL5 01 SEPT PRINT/MÀIL Í{ÀTER BILLS 29
29

0
0

50-00- 62- 62 3 0
INVOICE TOTAL:

01 ELEVÀTOR PLÀN REVIEWS

01 PLAN REVIEWS

01 TEST ALARM SYSTEM/VH

01-00-35-351r
INVOICE TOTAL:

600. 00
600 , 00

01-00-35-351r
INVOICE TOTALI

200 .00
200.00

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTAL¡

ACCOUNT S

910.29

800. 00

260.00

1,0?5.60

rHo699

924t5L1

THOMAS ALÀRM , INC

09t24 I t5

TRA31

t7174

0L-L0-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

260.00
260.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL PROTECTION INC

09/22/15 OT TYPO I BARRICÀDES

09/25/L5 01 MARKING MATERIÀL/STREÊTS

USP

¡ 51001

U.S. POSTMÀSîÊR

L0/0t/15

0L-Lt-62-6262
INVOICE TOTÀL:

295 .00
295.00

oL-LL-62-6262
INVOICE TOTALT

780.60
780.60

01 PERMII *1678/NOV-JAN f,rlR BILLS 50-00-61-6101
INVOICE îOTAL:

2,880.00
2, 880. 00

ITEM ÀMT

2,880.00

gAGE: 24

*T THIS CHECK IS EITHER MISSING VSNDOR NAME OR ADDRESS INFO,'T'

DATE: l0/08/1.5
TIME:10:10:55
ID¡ 4P211001.n0rl

VILLÀGS OF LÀ GRÀNGE
PRE-CHECK RUN EDIT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE LO/L2I2OL5

VENDOR I
INVOICE f

INVOICE
DATE

ITEM
fi DESCRIgTION PRO.JECT CODE

r34120

l3 4 121

L34t22

USPS

151007

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE

t0t01 /t5 O1 REIMBURSB
02 REIMBURSE
O3 REIMBURSE
O4 REIMBURSE
O5 REIMBURSE
O6 REIMBURSE
O? REIMBURSE
O8 REIMBURSE

POSTAGE
POSTAGE
POSTAGE
POSTAGE
POSTÀGE
POSTAGE
POSlÀGE
POSTAGE

01-02-61-6r0r.
01-06-61-6101
01-03-61-6101
01-0?-61-6101
01-09-61-6101
50-00- 6 r- 61 0 I
s1-00-61-6101
01- 11- 61- 6101

INVOICE TOTALI

359. ?4
281 .25

1, r12.s4
713.59

34.43
8s8, 36
35s .81
218.28

4 , 000. 00

METgR
METER
METER
METER
MSTER
METER
METSR
MElER

rTT THIS CHECK IS EIÎHER MISSING VENDOR NÀME OR ADDRESS INEO!T}*

VER255O VERIZON WIRELESS

9152524176 09/r8lt5 0t sEp cHrEFs cAR

f,¡ED14 r.

153600s4

24-00-62-62L0
INVOICE TOTAL:

38.01
38 .01

CHECK TOTAL:

CHECK TOTA,L:

CHECK TOTAL!

CHSCK TOTAL:

4, 000. 00

38.01

342.OO

ÍIEDNESDAY .'OURNAL, INC

O9/O9/L5 01 AD FOR SIDEWALK SALE

MARTIN Í{HALEN Of'FICE SOLU?IONS

0r-06-62-6239
INVOICE TOTÀL:

00
00

01-11-61-6100
50-00-61-6100
80-00-61-6100
01-11-61-6100

INVOICE TOTAL¡

117.35
25 ,00
40.00
81 .09

263 .44

t34L23 r{HA351

55692L 09/28 / L5 01
02
03
04

OCT COPIER LEASE
OCl COPIER LEÀSC
OCT COPIER LEÀSE
BûÍ1, COLOR COPIES

?^,p, lF

263.44



DATE: 10/08/15
TIME ¡ 10: 10:55
ID¡ 4P211001.r1ovl

VILLAGE OF LA GRÀNGE
PRE-CHECK RUN SDIT

PAGE: 23

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE TO/L2/2015

CHECK il VSNDOR Í
INVOICE f

INVOICS
DATE

ITEM
Í DSSCRIPTION ACCOUNT } PROJECT CODE ITEM À},T1

t34124 '/tHO5620

2t61 39

Í.IHOLESALE DIRECT INC

09/22/t5 01

09/24/15 01

RETRÀCTABLE TRUCK STEP/f19 ol-LL-62-6220
INVOICE TOTAL:

L26.96
t26.96

LINEAR REFL ASSY;AMBER LENS;ET ÙL-IL-62-6220
TNVOICn Tô14f.!

387.80
1Ê? Ên

CHECK TOTAL:

TOTAL AMOUNT PÀID:

2L61 92

514.?6

832,390.48

? ^F, tS



DATE
TIME
ID:

L0/08/15
10:11:29
AP213000.9JOr.¡

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL f AP-10081501

1O/08/L5 ACCOUNTING PERIOO: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

16

DEBIT AMT CREDIT AMl

PAGE
F-YR

ITEM ACCOUNT f

JOURNAT DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

GENERAL FUND
01 01-00-r7-1701
02 01-00-1?-i?01
03 01-00-35-3511
04 01-00-35-3511
05 01-00-35-3511
06 01-00-35-3511
07 01-00-35-35r1
08 01-00-35-3511
09 01-00-35-3511
10 01-00-35-3511
11 01-00-35-3511
12 01-00-35-3s11
13 01-00-35-3511
14 01-02-61-6100
15 01-02-61-6100
16 01-02-61-6L00
17 01-02-61-6r.01
18 01-02-61-6101
19 01-02-61-6101
20 0L-02-62-6270
2! 0r-02-62-6210
22 0L-02-62-6210
23 01-03-61-6100
2¿ ô1-ô'ì-Ár -Â1nn
25 01-03-61-6100
26 01-03-61-6101
27 01-03-61-6101.
28 01-03-62-6210
29 01-03-62-6210
30 0I-03-62-6220
37 0L-03-62-6?32
32 0r-04-62-6238
33 01-06-60-6020
34 01-06-60-6020
35 01-06-61-6100
36 01-06-61-6100
37 01-06-61-6100
38 0r.-06-61-6100

PREPAID DIESEL FUEL
PREPAID DIESEL FUEL
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIOI.IAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAT SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
PROFESSIONAL SVCS -
TOOTS E SUPPLIES
TOOLS & SUPPLIES
TOOLS & SUPPLIES
PRINTING, POSTAGE, &

PRINTING, POSTAGE, &

PRINTING, POSTAGE, C

TELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
TOOLS E SUPPLIES
Tô^TC r CttOÞttF<

TOOLS E SUPPLIES
PRINTING. POSTAGE, E S
PRINTING, POSÎAGE, E S
TELEPHONE FEES
?ELEPHONE FEES
MTCE-EQU I PMENT
AUDIîING
LEGAL- PERSONNEL
TRAINING C MÊMBERSHIP
TRAINING E MEMBERSHIP
TOOL Á SUPPLIES
TOOI, E SUPPLIES
TOOL E SUPPLIES
TOOL 6 SUPPLIÊS

TATIONE USPS
ATT
ATT5O1?
Ars1815
LAU27
sEY 3807
cRA4 332
FI R/CD
FI R/CD
FI R/CD
HOR6O
I LP6

208224
28225
15-106
r.5-10?
15-108
15-109
15-r.10
15-111
15- 112
t 5-1i.5
15/09
1 5-34 60
15-3530
rN185961
151007
8035992228
4836-1?51
5- 7 69 -2894 6
151007
15/708245008709
75/108245021009
t 5/09
2478819-091815

8035992228
5-L69-2894 6
151007
15/?08245008?09
L5/09
52 9sB
11615
2485623-013586
151006
t50922-02
150925-01
150925-02
t1 21 t0
rN185961

1451 GALS NO-LEAD
556 GALS ULS ON-ROAD DiESEL
PLAN REVO11O1 S SPRING
PLAN REVO4O6 S PECK
PALN REVG6O9 S 8TH
PLAN REVC234 S 7TH
PLAI'I REvo712-716 l¡ BURLII,TGTO
PLAN REVO32 N EDGEWOOD
PLAN REVO?zo S 91H
PLAN REVG60S-624 E COSSITT
SEP 2015 PLAN REVIEWS
ELEVATOR PLAN REVIEWS
PLAN REVIE9¡S
COPY PAPER
REIMB. PETTY CASH
COPY PAPER,MISC SUPPLIES
OPUS SIDEWALK MAII TO ATTY
SENT EXIT DOCS:PACANA
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
SEP ALARM LINE Z45OO87/ADM
SEP ALARM LINE 245O27O/CLK A
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
4 BTLS. DRINKING IIATER
CCPY PAPER
COPY PAPERTMISC SUPPL¡ES
SEND GO SEWER BOND DOCS
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
SEP ALARM LINE Z450O87/FIN
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
AUG IT CHARGES
GASB 45 OPEB REPORT
LGL SVCS THROUGH 8/1.1/L5
SUBSCRIPTION RÊNEWAL
I.¡OMEN IN BUSINESS MTG/MESARO
MEMORY CARD/TdILDLIFE MONITOR
CLAMPS; BOLTS/TTIILDLI FE MONITO
FLASHLIGHT
COPY PAPER

REIMB.
REIMB.
REIMB,
REIMB.
REII'IB.
REIMB.
REIMB.
REIMB.
REIMB.
REIMB.
REIMB.

STAT IONE
STAT I ONE
STATIONE

TATIONE

MOH? 34 0
MOH?340
HEU2315
HEU2315
HEU2315
HEU2315
HEU2315
HEU2 31 5
HEU2 3r.5
HEU2315
MOR6t6
Tt{o1 30 2
THOl 302
I LP6
LGPC
STAS 368
BESl 02 0
FED9451
US PS

AlT
ATT50t 7
HIN6605

srAS 368
FED94 5 1

2, 965 . 4t
1,094.11

579. 09
L,122.'15

260.83
387.50
918.80

1, 205. 93
r,268.L9
t,246."t3
5. 330 . 00

600.00
200.00

32 .93
6.99

L82.28
4-l .'7 9
23.81

359 .'t 4

L32 .95
265 .90

83.25
55. 69
t6.47
91.14
20.50

7 , tL2 .54
t32 .94
r.06.85
285.00

3, 4 00. 00
4.800.00

74.00
3?.00
8.49
?. B8

35.99
16.41

DATE
1I ME
ID:

t0/08/15
10:11:29
4P213000 . r/ùOf,¡

JOURNAL DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL f AP-10081501

f0/08/15 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTIONDESCRIPTION

z
16

DEBIT ÀMT CREDIT AMT

PAGE
F-YR

ITEM ACCOUNT #

40
41,
42
43
44
45

51
52
53
54
55
56

46
47
48
49
50

57
58
59
60

GENERAL FUND
39 01-06-61-6100 TOOL E SUPPLIES

PRINTING, POSTAGE, & STATIONE
TELEPHONA FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
CONTRACTUAL PLUMBING INSP
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
TRAINING 6 MEMBERSHIP
TOOLS û SUPPLIES
TOOLS ¿ SUPPLIES
TOOLS C SUPPLIES
PRINTING, POSTAGE, ¿ STATIONE
PRINTING, POSTAGE, E STATIONE
GAS ¿ OIL
TELgPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
PRISONER MEALS
TRAINING E MEMBERSHIP
TRAINING E MEMBERSHIP
TOOLS & SUPPLIES
TOOLS € SUPPLIES
TOOLS E SUPPLIBS
PRINTING, POSTAGE, E SÎATIONE
TELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
lELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE F'EES
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE -EQU I PMENT

COPY PAPER;MISC SUPPLIES
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
SEP ALARM LINE E45O21OICOM D
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
AUG IT CHARGES
REPAIR COPIER PAPER TRAY
].6 PLUMBING INSPECTIONS
SEPT PEST CONTROL
GAME CAMERATCARD/RODÛNT CoNT
LA GRANGE MISC
VALET PARKINc 9 /25-26 ; l0 /2-3
AD FOR SIDEÍ{ALK SAIE
REIMB, PETTY CASH
NEW EMPL EXAM/PONTO
NEW EMPL EXAM/WD
REIMB. PETTY CASH
REIMB. PETTY CASH
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
REIMB. PETTY CASH
SEP MODEM LINE 352-T933/PD
SEP EMERGENCY LINE 352-2131/
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
AUG IT CHARGES
REIMB. PETTY CASH
NOTARY COMM./KERRI A SIRGEDA
NOTARY RENEWAL/K SIRGEDAS
MÀT MOP SERVICE
MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES
MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
OCT PAGE/COPY SERVICE
SEP EMERGENCY LINî, 352-2L2T/
seP oFFrcE LINE 354-1566
SEPT IONG DISTANCE CHARGES
REPLACE LúR HINGES ON OVEN
AUG IT CHARGES
PREVENTATIVE MTC/CO 1115
PREVENTATIVE MTC/ CO 1182

01-06-61-6101
o7 -06-62-62t0
0L-06-62-6210
0L-06-62-6220
o1,-06-62-6220
0L-o6-62-62?9
o7-06-62-6230
0t-06-62-6230
0L-06-62-6230
or-06-62-6239
oL-06-62-6239
01-07-60-6020
01-07-6L-6100
01-07-61-6100
0t-07-61-61 00
0r-07-61-610r
01-0?-6L-6101
01-07-61-6102
or-0't -62-62IO
0L-01 -62-62LO
0L-07 -62-62t0
0L-0't -62-6220
0L-07 -62-624 I
0 1 -09- 60 -602 0
0l-09-60-6020
01-09-6r-6100
0r.-09-61-6100
01-09-61-6100
01-09-61-6101
oL-09-62-6210
0L-09-62-62L0
oL-09-62-62L0
0t-09-62-62tO
07-09-62-6220
0L-09-62-6220
0L-09-62-6220
ot-09-62-6220

8035992229
151007
15/1O8245027009
15/09
52 9s8
r Nr.837 90
151006
3528494
150922-01
15-116
120004
15360054
15r.00?
r.50831
1 5083 L

1 51 007
151007
'!.51007
151007
L5/?08352193309
75 / 7 083522r3L09
15/09
52958
1 510 0?
L5092?
r50922
2080234 10i.
?95432701001
7 954327"t L00L
151007
u1158734P,t
t5 / 7 083522L2L09
15/708354156609
L5/09
0 395
5295A
3054
3056

srAS 368
US PS
ATT
ATT5O 1 7
Ars1815
I LP6
THI4'I.?O
AND6OO 6
FI R/CD
HEUz315
ACC628
!{EDl 4 1

LGPC
ILSP
ILSP
LGPC
LG PC
US PS
LG PC
ATT
ATT
ATT5O1?
Arsl 815
LGPC
NOT1101
sEc
ARA2525
oFFS 80 4

oFFS 804
US PS
AME57 4 9
ATT
ATT
ATT5O1?
AAA1 38
Ars1815
DMJ6O 3
0M,J603

91.14
28'7 .25
265.89

10. 99
766.25
157.50
568.00
66.00

r16.9?
3't2.38

t, 4 76.00
342.00
38.99
29.75
29 .15
56.2'l
11 .07

713.59
188.00
85.99

322.83
310. 39
993.75

43.18
54.00
10.00
30. 39

r.0r..18
11. . 98
34 .43
85.63

205.29
r.09.98-t5.L4

210.00
r , 662 .50

4 85. 96
49.42

6l
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
?0
1l
12
13
74
75
76

/ -/:, /ø



DATE: 10/08/15
TIME:10:ll:29
ID: AP2l.3000.t.¡OW

ITEM ACCOUNT S

JOURNAL DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

VITLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION .'OURNAI f AP-10081501

10/08/15 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTIONDESCRIPTION

16

DEBIT AMT CREDIT AMT

PAGE:
F-YR:

GENERAL FUND
71 0I-09-62-6220 MTCE-EQUIPMENT DM.¡603 3058 oIL CHANGETETC/Co1183 54.31
78 01-10-61-6100 ÎOOLS e SUPPLIES CAS7911 832"1 MISC PAPER TO9¡ELSTTP;SOAP;CU 1.,'?45.45
79 01.-10-61-6100 TOOLS € SUPPLIES CAS7911 8355 2 DOZ URINAL SCREENS 59.70
80 01-10-61-6100 TOOLS É SUPPLIES CAS?911 8356 4 DOZ URINAL SCREENS 119.40
81 0I-10-62-6220 MTCE-EQUIPMENT ATO3733 MA31047 HVAC MTC AGREEMENT/2ND QTR 1,032.50
E2 OL-10-62-6220 MICE-EQUIPMENI COL226 I424OT INSTALL PIT LADDERS L,424.00

--_æ+ -- 
MINI RAÞAR Seg\R-srBLAÞES/FÞ tS€:30

84 0l-).0-62-6220 MTCE-EQUIPMENT THO699 924t5t? TÉST ALARM SYSTEM/VH 260.00
85 OL-\O-62-622I MTCE-BUILDING ALL897 13344 OCT CUSTODIAL SERVICE:PD 7,415.26
86 0L-L0-62-622L MTCE-BUILDING ALL897 13348 OCT CUSTODIAL SERVICE:DPW 395.00
87 0L-f0-62-622I MTCE-BUIIDING ALt897 L3349 OCT CUSToDIAL SERVICE:VH 7,644.69
88 0T-T0-62-6222 MTCE-CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRI HOR6O 112564 CABTE TIES/ART FAIR 23.98
89 OL-10-62-6222 MTCE-CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRI PE4O16 35035 9IINDOW CTEANING/BUS DEPOTS 4O.OO
90 0l-10-62-6222 MTCE-CENTRAL BUSTNESS DISTRI SAN9678 11813 12" RED BOWS 1,703.61
91 01-11-60-6020 TRAINING E MEMBERSHIP KRAMER 150929 REIMBURSE CDt RENEWAL FEE 65.00
92 01.-11-60-6021 UNiFORMS ARA2525 2080234235 9/25/!5 UNIFORM SERVICES 61.48
93 0l-11-60-602L UNIFORMS ARA2525 2080?44364 LO/2/15 UNIFORM SERVICES 61.48
94 01-11-60-6021 UNTFoRMS JAC6642 63914 2 SAFETY VESTS 49.98
95
96
97
98
99

100
10t
192
103
104
105
106
107
1C8
109
110
111
tt2
113
174

01-11-61-6100
01-11-61-6100
01-11-61-6101
oI -7L- 62 - 6210
0L -r7-62- 6270
oL -LL -62- 6217
o1 -Lr-62-62).7
o1 -II-62-6211
01-11-62-6211
c1-11-62-6211
oL-t7-62-6220
01-7t-62-6220
01 -7t-62-622C
07 -tr-62-6220
0r -t7 -62-6220
0L-1),-62-6220
0r -71 - 62- 6220
01,-17 -62-6220
0). -17 - 62-6220
oL-17-62-6220

55692L
556927
15100?
15 / 7 08245003709
t5/09
149410115091
149410215091
1 4 94 1031 5091
149410415091
149410515091
9043444635
52958
530r.09
530187
530610
5 310 91
53124 1

531404
5 3197I
532207

11?
81

2't8

24
616

87
248

36
294

!'1
190

46
43
I

98
12
10

r02
5

TOOLS & SUPPLIES
TOOLS & SUPPLIES
PRINIiNG, POSTAGE,
TELEPHONE FEES
TELEPHONE FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FÊES
ELECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENl
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMÉNT
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE -EQUI PMENl
MTCE-EOUI PMENT
MTCE-EOUI PMENT

É STATIONE

fJHA3 51
I.lHA3 5 1

US PS
ATT
ATT5 O1 7
DYN2 7 6?
DYN2 767
DYN2767
DYN2 ? 67
DYN2767
AIR8025
Arsl 81 5
AM8623
AM8623
AM8 6 23
AM8 6 23
AM8 623
AM8 623
AM8 623
AM8 623

OCT COPIER LEASE
B6t.l; col,oR coPIEs
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
SEP ALARM LINE 708-245-OO3?
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
ùt,Fl Þlñ¿¿l LI{rnl5

SEPT STREET LIGHTS
SEPT STREET TIGHTS
AUG-SEP STREET LIGHTS
SEPT STREET LIGHTS
CUT OFF 9¡HEEL FOR $21
AUG IT CHARGES
SIDE }JINDOW DEFLECTORS/$19
UNDERCOAT; 0USE HOLDER/*20
GLUE/SHOP
ANTI FREEZE/TRUCKS
orL/ il1'l
OIL FILÎER/LEAF KING
BATTERY/AIR COMPRESSOR
GRAB HANDLE/#19

35
09
?8
95
83
68
82
03
16
88
64
00
49
18
34
34
90
86
57
53

DATE:
TIME:
ID:

r0/08/15
10:11:29
AP2L3000.vrow

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL S AP-].0081501

70/08/L5 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTIONDESCRIPTION

16

DEBIT AMT CREDIT AM?

PAGE:
F-YR:

ITEM ACCOUNT *

JOURNAL DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

GENERAL FUND
r15 0I-LL-62-6220
Lr6 01-Lt-62-6220
tr? 0I-\L-62-6220
Lrg 01-LL-62-6220
L19 01-77-62-6220
L20 01-tt-62-6220
r2l 01-11-62-6220
122 07-lL-62-6220
723 0t-LL-62-6220
t24 0t-1L-62-6?20
r25 0t-1L-62-6223
L26 01-7I-62-6258
L21 01-LL-62-6259
L28 0r-LL-62-6262
L29 0L-7t-62-6262
L30 0r-Lr-62-6262
t3! 07-rr-62-6262
132 0t-r),-62-6264
733 0I-LL-62-6264
134 0t-LL-62-6264
I35 0L-Lr-62-6264
736 07-7L-62-6264
t3't 01-rr-62-6264
t38 0t-tL-62-6264
139 0t-12-6?-627r
140 0L-L2-62-6?72
l4L 0L-"1?-62-6272
t42 0t-19-62-6230
143 01--19-68-6890
144 01-00-00-1010

68.82
1 14 .1.8
35.00
49.98
51.30
51.30

L47. 66
250. 00
L26 .96
387.80

10. 38
2, 075.00

319.50
264.00
445.50
295.00
?80.60

4,500.00
41.56

283.53
100.00
24.79

MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMÊNT
MTCE-BQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE_EQUI PMENT
MTCÊ-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUT PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-EQUI PMENT
MTCE-STREET LIGHTS
BRUSH CHIPPING
lREE REMOVAL/MISC
STREET REPAIRS
STREEÎ REPAIRS
STREET REPAIRS
SÎREET REPAIRS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
SlREEl SIGNS/MARKERS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
STREET SIGNS/MARKERS
ZBAIPLAN COMMISSION
POLICE E FIRE COMMISSION
POLICE 6 FIRE COMMISSION
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FLEXIBLE SPSNDING ACCT.
CASH - FNBTG -CHECK I NG

532317
2527 89
5814
0831103135?
3000028247
3000057824
3000065224
15190
2167 39
2t 67 92
L1 2393
2593
556226sr
55539
555?3
L7174
8454L
35837
L't2582
?509
1 542
L4L947 9t
393'12289
396'1243I
111 54 81.
150831
I 5083 1

52958
12L468-7 14L26

AM8 623
BRE 1 390
coul I
PE P8 5OO
RUS2 208
RUS2 20 8
RUS2208
src9403
çf Ho5 62 0
f{Hos 62 0
HOR6O
PI P31
NAT582
QUA2080
QUA2080
TRA31.
TRA3 1

cAR2 I 1

HOR6O
INF535O
INF535O
Lrc2818
MCM? 690
MCMT 690
sHA2 50
ILSP
ILSP
AIS1 81 5
PAYl 08O

168
51

110
29
29

t,923
118

I¡IPER BLADES/LG TRUCKS
LED RED,GROMMET RUBBER/í21
SAFETY INSPECTION/fl21
PILOT LED; DRIVING LIGHTS/fi5
CAPS-RAD OVERFIOI.¡ TANK/T21
RADIATOR CAPS/fl8
DRAG LINK STEERING/f21
LETTERING/TRUCK S2O
RETRACÎABLE ÎRUCK STEP/fl 19
LINEAR REFL ASSY,AMBER LENS;
WIRE CONNECTORS/SL
TUB GRINDING
GRASS SEED;ACCELERATOR
3.12 T BINDERT2 T SURFACE
8.25 TONS SURFACE
TYPE I BARRICADES
MÀRKING MATERIAL/STREETS
20 PCS PRECAST SIGN POSTS
6V BATTERIES/BARRICADES
NO PKG SIGNS,.COROPTAST SIGNS
2 SIGNS
BRN TINT
BARRICADE TAPE;SAFETY FLAGS;
2 STEEL ENTRANCE SIGNS
LGL NTC ZBA #611
FF CANDIDATE SBLIGA
FF CANDIDATE KLEMÃMP
AUG IT CHARGES
SEP 2015 FLEX SPENDING FEES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OFFSET

ô¿
39
04
15
't5
15
80

64,668.t7

ETSB FUND
r45 24-00-62-6270
t46 24-00-62-6270
147 24-00-20-2001

TE LE PHONE
TELE PHONE
DUE T/F GENERAL FUND

ATT9 1 1

VER2 550
L5/'173RO623'1209 SEP 8911 wIREIESS: 773-RO6-23
91525?4"t76 SEP CHTEFS CAR

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OFFSET

?Â

01
02
38

140.3?

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ,/- F, ,,



DATE:10/08/15
TIME: l0:11:29
ID: AP213000.l.¡O!J

ITEM ACCOUNT f

!'OURNAL DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL ü AP-10081501

f0/08/L5 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTIONDESCRIPTION DEBIT AMT CREDIT AMT

PAGE:
F-YR:

q

16

CAPITAL PRO.]ECIS ÉUND
148 40-00-66-6611 SOUTH 4?TH DRAINAGE AREA STU
149 40-00-66-66].1 SOUTH 47TH DRAINAGE AREA STU
150 4O-OO-66-6686 SE¡{ER TELEVISING
151 40-00-66-6686 sEl{ER TELEVTSING
152 40-00-66-6697 NEIGHBORHOOD "H" STREET PROJ
153 40-00-66-669? NEIGHBORHOOD "H" STREET PROJ

BAX? 8 3
BAX783
BAX? 83
BAXT 8 3
BAXT I 3
JOH1025

0182306
0182314
0L82224
0L82225
01824 42
61830

BRAINARD AVE FLOODÍ{ALL
5OTH ST RELIEF STORM SEWER
REVIElI 2014 SEWER TELEVISING
2014 SE!.¡ER TELEVISING
KENSINGTON-COSSITT TO BURLIN
PAVING; CONCRETE REPAIRS

9/ 25 / 75 UNIFORM SERVICES
10 / 2/ T5 UNITORM SERVICES
OCT COPIER LEASE
PERMIT fl16?8/NOV-JAN WTR BIL
REIMBURSE POSTAGE METER
SEP TELEMETRY LINE 2140124lW
SEP ALARM LINE 2455202IWTR
SEPT LONG DISTANCE CHARGES
SEPT PUMPING
SEPT PUMPING
BATTERY/$66 POVJER INVERTOR
AIR, OIL. HYD FILTERS/S12
FUEL F'ILTERS/S12
FLATHOSE;FEMALC & MALE CPLER
SAFETY INSPECTION/fi20 E S?4
3 LOADS BACKFILL
2' FIÊLD TEST METER/124 S LG
SHANK BITS/METERS
CAB FILTÊRTGAS STRUT/#i.2
4YDS 4000PSr
3.5TONS SURFACET 4 .14 ToNS BI
4 LOADS WASTE
20 LOADS CLAY/DIRT
3 LOADS WAS?E
SEP 2015 GIS SERVICES

I
68

93
58
20
8?
48
00

61

't6
18
59
95

142
151
r94
755
396
510

24
24
00
00
36
60
't9
66
69
01
14
9J
,ö
93
00

25
18
18
38
00
00
00
00

40
40
25

2,880
858

96
531

49
2, 990

168
192-
184

L3
2'13

1
2
¿

1

1

9
1

_ 15,I 40_00-66-6699 NGHBRHÞ STREET PROJEGT LÀ¡,Í19OO 15151 ROP¡IR 6,
155 40-00-66-6698 NGHBRHD STREET PROJECT LAM19OO 15168 FY15-16 NEIGHBORHD STR RESUR 3?6,010.3?
156 40-00-68-6864 THERMOPLASTTC ST MARKTNG SUp1980 6029t5 2015 THERMOPLASTIC MARKING 14,955.66
157 4O-OO-20-2001 DUE T/F GENERAL FUND ACCOUNÎS PAYABLE OFFSET 496,179.09

r.63
L64
165
166
L61
168
169
170
1?1
11?
173
!1 4

175
t16
111
1?8
L79
i80
181
L82

0-00-
0-00-
0-00-
0-00-
0-00-
0-00-
0-00-
0-00 -
0-00-
0 -00-
0 -00-
0 -00-

62 - 62r0
62- 62I0
62-62t1
62- 6211
62-6220
62 - 6220
62- 6220
62-6220
62-6220
62-6220
62-6220
62-6220
62-6220

2080234235
208024 4364
556921
1 5 1001
151007
75 /'t0827 40r2409
t5 /'t 08245520209
75/09
147021615091
147021?15091
531233
531755
531921
603140?
5809
5520388
498
63892
95341
88635944 1

55504
I81 632
188091
188358
2't17

9¡ATER FUND
158 50-00-60-6021
i59 50-00-60-6021
160 50-00-61-6100
r.61.50-00-61-6101
162 50-00-61-6101

50-00-62-6210
50-00-

0-00-62-6220
0-00-62-6220
0-00-62-6220
0-00-62-6220
0-00-62-6220
0-00-62-6230

DATE:10/08/15
TIME: 10:11:29
ID: AP213000.vrol{

ITEM ACCOUNT S

UN I FORMS
UN I FORMS
TOOLS ¿ SUPPLIES
PRINTING, POSTAGE. ú STATIONE
PRINTING, POSTAGE, E STATIONE
TELE PHONE
TELE PHONE
TELE PHONE
ELECTRIC FEES
ELEC?RIC FEES
MAINTENANCE - WAÎER
MAINTENANCE - !{ATER
MAINTENANCE - WATER
MAINTENANCE - I¡ATER
MAINTENANCE - IIATER
MÂINTENANCE - }¡ATER
MAINTENANCE - WATER
MÀINTENANCE - WATER
MAINTENANCE - ÍJATER
MAINTENANCE - WATER
MAINTENANCE - S¡ATER
MAINTENANCE - I{ATER
MAINTENANCE - I{ATER
MAINTENANCE - I{ATER
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

5
5
5
5
5

5
5
5

5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

ARA2 525
ARA2 52 5
f.¡HA3 5 1

USP
US PS
ATT
ATT
ATT5O1?
DYN2767
DYN2?67
AM8 62 3
AM8 62 3
AM8623
cAr6298
cou1L
HANl 5 62
HBK? 5 9
JAC6642
MAR184O
PRAs185
ouA2 08 0
REL2252
ReL2252
REL2252
MGP?01

35
221,0

204
306

2,266.?5

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL fi AP-10081501

1.0/08/75 ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 06

VENDOR INVOICE TRANSACTIONDESCRIPTION

16

DEBIT AMT CREDIT AMT

PAGE
F-YR

6

JOURNAL DATE:

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

WATER FUND
183 50-00-62-6230
184 50-00-62-6290
185 50-00-66-6691
186 50-00-20-200¡.

POLICE PENSION FUND
202 ?0-00-68-6899
203 70-00-20-200t

SEWER FUND
20? B0-00-60-6021
208 80-00-60-6021

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Í{ATER PURCHASES-MC COOK
MAINS
DUE T/F GENERAL FUND

METER RECEIPTS
TOOLS E SUPPLIES
PRINTING, POSTAGE, E STATIONE
ELECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
ETECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
ELECTRIC FEES
MTCE. LA GRANGE RD DEPOT
MTCE. LA GRANGE RD OEPOT
MTCE. LA GRANGE RD DEPOT
MTCE. PARKING GARAGE
MTCE. PARKING GARAGE
MTCE. PARKING GARAGE
DUE T/F GENERAL FUND

PAS6?49
LGPC
US PS
DYN2 7 67
DYN2 7 6?
DYN2?67
DYN2?6?
DYN2767
ARAz525
Nrc540?
PE4 01 6
ALLS 97
ARA2525
coM300 1

LAV27 11824

SEPT PRINT/MAIL WATER BILLS
SEPT TJAÎER PURCHASE
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TO

Village of La Grange
Finance Department

BOARD REPORT

Village President, Village Clerk, Board of Trustees, Village Attomey

Bob Pilipis zyn, Y illage Manager and
Lou Cipparrone, Finance Director

October 8,2015

FROM

DATE:

RE: FY 2014.15 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Please find attached the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Village of La
Grange for the Fiscal Year May 1,2014 to April 30,2015, as prepared by the Finance Department
and reviewed by our auditors, Sikich LLP. Sikich has rendered an unmodifred or'oclean" opinion
for the Village of La Grange, stating that the financial statements present fairly, in a[ mäterial
respects, the financial position of the Village and results of its operations as of April 30, 2015.
Also attached is the Auditor's Communication to the Village Board, which includes the following
documents:

l) Required Communication - A letter from the auditors dated September 3,2015, which is
the last day of their fieldwork reflecting the end of the audit engagement, regarding certain
professional auditing standards requiring specific matters be communicatedto thJVillage
Board including: the limited audit scope related to the Required Supplementaiy
Information (RSI) section within the CAFR, no new accounting policies wereããopted and
the application of existing polices was not changed, all material accounting estimaies were
reasonable, misstatements (year-end adjusting journal entries) were corrected and there
were no diffrculties or disagreements with management during the course of the audit.

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were material, either
individually or in the aggregate to the financial statements as a whole. Misstatements
typically reflect year-end adjusting journal entries prepared by the Village but not posted
until after the auditors have started the audit process.

2) Management Letter - Auditing standards also requires communication to the Village
Board regarding certain matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls
and operational efficiencies. The FY 2014-15 Management letter reports there were no
findings of material weaknesses involving the Village's internal iontrol. A single
defi ciency/operational effi ciency comment was noted :
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FY 2014-15 CAFR
October 8,2015

Page2

a) The Village's ratio of water billed as compared to water pumped decreased from
78.0% last year to 75.09% this fiscal year. The recommended threshold by the
Village's auditors for a billed versus pumped ratio is 80 percent. As this issue had
previously been identified as aî area of concern, over the past several years the
Village implemented a number of initiatives in an attempt to improve water
accountability. As these initiatives were not successful, the Village initiated a
water meter replacement program, which was completed in summer, 2014.

After completion of the water meter replacement program, the billed vs. pumped
ratio increased and averaged above 80% for several months. However, as
previously reported during the capital projects workshop in February,2015 staff
believes a significant undiscovered leak exists within in the system which has not
surfaced, resulting in the overall decrease in accountability for FY 2014-15. The
Village continues to seek ways to improve water accountability including main
replacement, leak studies utilizing new technologies, audits of water billing
accounts and system repairs.

b) Referenced in last year's Management Letter to the Village Board was the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting þr Defined
Benefit Pension Plans ond Note Disclosures þr Defined Contribution Plans,
which is intended to build upon the existing framework of financial reporting for
defined benefit pension plans. Pursuant to GASB 67, which is effective for the
fiscal year ending April 30,2015, the CAFR includes enhanced note disclosures
and required supplementary information which is intended to provide the basis for
subsequent reporting requirements under GASB 68 (See below). New information
in the CAFR includes; long-term expected rate of return, money weighted rate of
return, net pension liability, discount rate, discount rate sensitivity, and additional
l0-year Required Supplementary Information (RSI) schedules for the pension
funds.

Also referenced in last year's Management Letter was the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for pensions, as
they relate to plans administered as trust funds, which includes the La Grange
Police and Fire Pension Funds and the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.
Pursuant to GASB 68, which is effective for the fìscal year ending April 30, 2016,
municipalities providing defined benefìt pensions are required to recognize their
long-term obligation for pension benefîts as a liability on the financial statements
for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the
annual cost ofpension benefits.
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FY 2014-15 CAFR
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Please note, GASB 67 & 68 information is for reporting purposes only.
Information presented represents an effort to bring greater accountability,
transparency and consistency to the analysis of pension liabilities. This
information is not intended to be a representation of the fund liability for other
purposes; including, but not limited to determination of cash funding requirements
and recommendations. Pursuant to State statutes, Police and Fire Pension funding
requirements will continue to be determined as part of the annual actuarial
valuations performed by an independent actuary.

Additional information relating to the implementation of GASB 67 8. 68 will be
discussed in greater detail when the Police and Fire Pension Funds actuary, Todd
Schroeder from Lauterbach & Amen presents the actuarial valuation reports at the
November 23,2015 Village Board meeting.

c) The Management Letter also identifies several upcoming accounting
pronouncements which will need to be implemented in subsequent CAFR's.

3) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) - The unmodified opinion from Sikich
LLP also reflects that the Village's financial statements are prepared and presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The financial statements
present two kinds of statements, govemment-wide and individual funds, each with a
different view of the Village's finances. Both perspectives allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or govemment to
govemment) and enhance the Village's accountability. Government wide financial
statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all Village activities are consolidated
into a Total Primary Government entity utilizing the full accrual method of accounting.
Individual fund statements which use the modified accrual method of accounting are
presented to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements
and budgetary compliance.

Included in the comprehensive annual financial report is the Management's Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A) which is designed to focus on the current year's activities and
resulting changes. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter as

these reports provide excellent summarized information.

4) Single Audit Report - The Village received more than $500,000 of federal funds during
the year ended April 30, 2015, primarily for the Stone Avenue Train Station project; and is
therefore required to undergo a Single Audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Revised Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, "Audits of State, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations." The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on

5*fr,L



FY 2014.15 CAFR
October 8,2015

Page 4

the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also the audited governments internal
controls, and legal requirement, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards.

In the separately issued Single Audit Report, it is the opinion of the auditors that the
Village of La Grange complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended April 30, 2015; and that the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic frnancial statements as a whole.

The final FY 2014-15 General Fund surplus of approximately $686,000 reflects revenues coming
in over budget ($285,000); with expenditures being significantly less than expected ($400,000).
The growth in revenue is primarily due to increases in food & beverage tax receipts, ambulance
fees, state shared revenues (income tax &.local use), and miscellaneous revenue which included a
sizeable reimbursement from Opus Development Company for legal and engineering fees.

Expenditures were impacted by reduced Public Safety & Public V/orks salary expenditures
resulting from temporary vacancies created by retirements (Police Chief and Fire Chief) and
resignations of police officers, firefighter/paramedics and general utility workers. In addition,
salary expenditures were also under budget due to restructuring within the Community
Development Department and a decrease in liability insurance premiums and deductibles payable
to the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA).

Please note final expenditures also included. a budget amendment of $225,000 to perform a

hydraulic modeling study of the proposed 50th Street storm sewer/flood wall ($50,000), and for
televising the Village main line sewers ($175,000). The hydraulic study was necessary to
determine the cost-benefit of constructing sewer improvements south of 47t" Street. The purpose
of the sewer televising was to l) confirm mains are operating properly, 2) remove any debris
within the sewers, 3) identify required repairs, and 4) estimate remaining useful life.

Factoring in the FY 2014-15 surplus of $686,000, the General Fund's reserve balance at fiscal
year-end is $7.4 million or 55.6Yo of annual operating expenditures, which is slightly above the
minimum targeted reserve range. With continued slow economic growth and uncertainties with
the state budget, it is advisable that we remain frscally conservative with general operating
expenditures, continue to work within the current financial plan, and endeavor to build the
Village's reserves.

Village staff will submit the CAFR to the Government Finance Officers' Association for
consideration of the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental
accounting and frnancial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by
the Village. Receipt of the Certificate of Achievement recognizes the Village has met the high
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national standards of the program including demonstrating a constructive spirit of full disclosure
to clearly communicate its financial story and motivate potential users to read the frnancial
statements. The Village has received this prestigious award for nineteen consecutive years.

At the conclusion of the discussion, it would be appropriate for the Village President to accept the
report on behalf of the Village Board. No further action is required.

Mr. Dan Berg, a partner with Sikich LLP will be in attendance at the Village Board meeting on
October 12,20t5 to present a brief overview of the audit report and to answer any questions you
may have regarding the FY 2014-15 fïnancial statements.

Hard copies of the audit report are on file at the La Grange Public Library, in the Village Clerk's
offïce and in the Finance Department for public inspection. In addition, an electronic copy of the
audited financial statements has been posted to the Village's website.

Filename:users\finance\audit report- I 5 CAFR.brd.mmo
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Vsikich^ 630.566.8400 // www'sikich'com

Certified Public Accoutrtants & Advisors

It4etnbers of A¡nertcan rnsfilute of Certified Public Accountatlts
l¡i l5 W. l)¡ehl tìoacl. Suile nCC

Nat)orvìllc. lllinois 60563

September 3,2015

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of La Grange

53 S. La Grange Road

La Grange, Illinois 60525

Ladies and Gentlemen:

As part of our audit process we are required to have certain communications with those charged

with governance at tlhe beginning of our audit process and at the conclusion of the audit. Those

comriunications include iriformaiion related to ihe planned scope and timing of our audit, as well

as other information required by auditing søndardi. our communication at the beginning of our

audit process along with our-questionnaire regarding consideration of fraud in a financial

shtemãnt audit was sent to you and dated April 30, 2015'

ln addition, auditing standa¡ds require the communication of internal control related matters to

tü*, ,rr,,ied witñ governance. our management letter, as well as a listing of future

pronoun..rãents that niay affect the Village, are enclosed within this document.

This information is intended solely for the use of the President, Village Board and management

oiit . Village of La Grange a¡rd ís not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

than these specifìed Parties.

SincerelY,

S

By: Daniel A. Berg, CPA
Partner
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Certifiecl Public Accountants & Advisors

Ày'enL¡ers ol Att¡etic¿t¡t /rìstif(rle of Cerlified Publ¡c /\ccountatlts
'l.i 15 W. Dreiìl l:ìoad. Suitc .10í)

i.laf)e^'illc. lllrrlois 60ír63

September 3,2015

The Honorable President

Members of the Village Board
Village of La Grange, Illinois

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have audited the basic financial statoments of the governmenøl activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining frrnd information of the Village of La

Grange, illinois (the Village) for the year ended April 30,2015. Professional standa¡ds require

that ie provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing

standards, Governmental Auditing Standard.s, and OMB Circular A-133, as u'ell as certain

infonnation related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such

information in our letter to you dated March 10, 2015. Professional standards also require that we

communicate to you the following ilrformation related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The

,ig"ifi.*, accounting policies used by the Village are described in Note I to the financial

statements. No new aã"åunting policies u,ere adopted and the application of existing policies was

not changed during the year enáed April 30, 2015. We noted no transactions entered into by the

lou"rn*ãntal unii duríng the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or

consensus.

Accounting estimates are all integral part of the financial statements prepared by management

.and are based on management's Lrowledge and experience about past and current events and

assumptions about fuurã events. Certain aicounting estimates are particularly sensitive because

of their signifrcance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. we noted no particularly sensitive

estimates during the course of our audit'

Certain financial statemerrt clisclosures are particularly sensitive because of their signifrcance to

frnancial statement users. we notecl no particularly sensitive disclosures during the course of our

audit.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and

completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

professional standards require us to accumutate all known and likely misstatements identifìed

during the audit, other ihan those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the

appro'priate level of management. The attached schedule summarizes uncoffected misstatements

oïtn. financial statementi. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both

individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. In addition, none

of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were

materialo either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken

as a whote. No uncorrected misstatements were noted.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,

o, uuaiiing matter, whether ot nót resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the

financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements

arose during the course of our audit.

Management RePresentations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the

management representation letter dated September 30, 2015,2015.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, 
-similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a

consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's fìnancial

statements or a determiÅation of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those

statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to- check with us to

determine that the consultant has all the rãlevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such

consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

,We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and

audiiing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's

auditors. However, these disõussions occurred in the normal course of our professional

relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention'

-3-



Other Matters

The comprehensive annual frnancial report (CAFR) for the year ending April 30, 2015' contains

an introductory section and statistical section which is unaudited and not covered by our report.

In addition, we applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information

(RSI) (penéion and other postemployment benefit trend information, managements' discussion

àna ânäysis and budg"t u"rru, uòtuát for major funds) included in the CAFR. Our procedures

consisteã of inquiries=of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistenóy with management's responses to our inquiries, the

basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic

financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on the RSI.

\ile were engaged to report on supplementary information, which accompany the financial

statements but are not Rbl. With réspect to the supplementary information accompanying the

financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content,

and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with the_

accounting prinóiptfs gJnerally accepted in the United States of America, the method of

preparing it has not cñanged from tire prior period, and the information is appropriate and

.ornpt"tã in relation to oui audit of the frnancial statements. We compared and reconciled the

,upplr*.ntary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the frnancial

státèments or to the financial statements themselves'

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Village Board of Trustees and management

of the Village and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

We appreciate the courtesies extended to us by the Village. If you have any questions regarding

the purpose of this letter or the requirement mentioned, please give me a call'

Sincerely,

LLP
By: Daniel A. Berg, CPA
Partner
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Village of La Grange

Year End: Aprll 30,2015

Ad¡$t¡ng Journal Entrles

Date: 5tll20l¡f To 413012015

Name Account No Deblt GredltNumber Date

AJE#o1

AJE#OI

AJE#o1

AJE#01

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

AJE#o1

4t3012015

4t30n015

4t30t2015

41301201s

413012015

4t30t2015

4t301201s

4t3012015

4t3012015

4t30t20't5

413012015

4t30t2015

710.00

3,107.00

474.O0

999.00

237.00

1,188.00

-3,107.00

-710.00

-999.00

-474.O0

-1,188.00

-237.00

NET PENSION OBLIGATION

FUND BAI.ANCE.UNRESERVED

FUND BAI.ANCE.UNRESERVED

IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS

NET PENSION OBLIGATION

FUND BALANCE.UNRESERVEO

FUND BALANCE-UNRESERVED

IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS

NET PENSION OBLIGATION

FUND BAI-ANCE.UNRESERVED

FUND BALANCE.UNRESERVED

IMRF CONTRIBUTION

To record FY14 IMRF NPO and NOPEBO changes that were

properly r€ported in the CAFR, but not booked on ths accounting

system, by th6 Village.

50-00-32-3203 LG50

50-00-40-4000 LG50

50-00-40-4000 LG50

50-00-60-6004 LG50

51-00-32-3203 LGs1

s1-00-40-4000 LG51

51-00-40-4000 LG's1

51-00-60-6004 LG-51

80-00-32-3203 LG-80

80-00-404000 LG80

80-00.40-4000 LG80

80-00-60-6004 LG80

INTEREST PAYABLE

INTEREST EXPENSE

To âdjusl accrued ¡nterest payable ât 4/30/15.

50-00-32-3204 LG50

50-00-67-6701 LG50

1,416.67
AJE#02

AJE#02

4t3012015

4t30t20't5
-1,416.67

RESERVE FOR DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

50-00-36-3600 LG50

s0-00-64-6400 LG50

1,922.24
AJE#03

AJE#03

4t30t2015

4t3012015
-'1,922.24

To adjust depreciation for over depreciâted asset in FY14'

-5-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

April30,2015

s¡kich,
6-v



V S¡kich.
l4iti W. [)iolìl [ìoiìrl. Íìt¡itc,l0l)
Na¡;i:r..,riie. lllirrois ô0561ì

030.566.8400 // rvww.sikich.corn

Ccrtified Public Accountatìts & Advisors
lvlctt¡itcrs <>l At¡tenc¿¡n /nslrfu¡e ol Cert¡lieLl PLtbl¡c Accoutrt¿ults

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of La Grange, Illinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate fund i¡rformation of the Village of
LaGrange, Illinois (the Village) as of and for the year ended April 30,2015, in acco¡da¡rce with
auditing standa¡ds generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered its internal
control over financial reporting as a basis fbr designing our auditing procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's
internal control. Accordingly, rve do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identi$ all deficiencies in internal control that might be

signifrcant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limiøtions during our audit, we did
not identif, any deficiencies in internal control that rve consider to be material u'ealinesses.

However, on the follor¡'ing pages, rve identifìed certain matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficierrcy, of rvhich management should be awa¡e.

This letter does not affect our report dated September 3, 2015, on the basic financial statements

of the Village.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged witlt governance.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the President, the Village Board and

management and is not intended and should not be used by aÍìyone other tharr these specifìed
partles.

Napen ille, Illinois
September 3,2015
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OTHER COMMENTS

During our audit of the frnancial statements, we have the following comments

1. Water Billing Ratio

During our review of the water billing of the Village we noted that the Village's ratio of
water billed out versus water pumped was approximately 75.09yo,78.030Á,76.95%o and

75.29o/o in 2015,2014,2013 and 2012, respectively. This is a slight decrease over prior
years. The Village was aware of issues during the year and does monitor this on a regular

basis and is currently undergoing a large water meter replacement project; however, this is
a low level that is costing the Village funds on a regular basis. The targeted ratio should be

80% or better. We recommend the Village continue to monitor this closely and implement
programs to improve the ratio and utilization of water purchased and sold.

2. FutureAccountingPronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued a number of
pronouncements that may impact the Village in the future.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensio,ns, replaces the

requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting þr Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, and Statement No. 50, Pension Dísclosures, as they relate to
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar
arrangements that meet certain criteria. Statement No. 68 requires governments providing

defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a

liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the

annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and

transparency through revised and new note disclosures and RSI. Statement No. 68 is
applicable for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transitíon for Contributions Made Subsequent to the

Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, requires a state or local

government employer (or non-employer contributing entity in a special funding situation)

to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier

than the end of its prior fiscal year. If a state or local government employer or non-

employer contributing entity makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan

between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the

government's reporting period, this requires that the government recognize its contribution

as a deferred outflow of resources. Statement No. 7l is to be implemented simultaneously

with GASB Statement No. 68.

-8-



OTHER COMMENTS (Continued)

2. Future Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Volue Measurement and Application, addresses accounting

and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair

value is the pricè that lould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly traniaction between market participants at the measurement date. This Statement

provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting

þurpor.t. 
-thir 

Stut"ment also prôvides guidance for applying fa¡r value to certain

invèstments and disclosures relatéd to all fair value measurements. Statement No. 72 is

applicable for the eight months ending December 31,2016.

GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related

Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain

Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and ó8, establishes requirements for those pensions and

pension plans that are not administered through a_ trust meeting specified criteria. The

þrovisions in Statement No. 73 are effective for the fiscal year ending December 3l'2016'
äxcept those provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer

condibuting entities for pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, which

are effective for the frscal year ending December 3l'2017.

GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other

Than Pensíon Plans,addresses reporting by OPEB plans that administer benefits on behalf

of governments and replaces 
- 
GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for

Postãmployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. Statement No. 74 addresses the

financiäl róports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that

meet specifred criteria. The statement builds upon the existing framework for financial

reports of defined benefit OPEB plans, which includes a statement of fiduciary net position

(the amount held in a trust for paying retirement benefrts) and a statement of changes in

àduciary net position. Statemenl No.74 enhances note disclosures and RSI for both

defined benefii and defined contribution OPEB plans. Statement No. 74 also requires the

presentation of new information about annual money-weighted rates of return in the notes

to the financial statements and in lO-year RSI schedules. The provisions in Statement

No. 74 are effective for OPEB plan or sponsoring employer financial statements for the

frscal year ending December 31,2017.

GASB Statement No. T|,Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment

Benefits Other Than Pensio¡rs, addresses reporting by govgrylents that provide OPEB to

their" employees and for governments that finance OPEB for employees of other

governménts and replaces th1 requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and

Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions' as

they relate togoveñrments that provide benefits through OPEB plans administered as trusts

or iimilar arrãngements that meet certain criteria. Statement No. 75 requires governments

providing definéd benefit OPEB to recognize their long-term obligation for OPEB as a

iiuUitity lor the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the

annuai costs of OPEB benefïts. The Statement also enhances accountability and

transparency through revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary

information (RSI). The provisions in Statement No. 75 are effective for the fiscal year

ending December 31, 2018.
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OTHER COMMENTS (Continued)

2. FutureAccountingPronouncements(Continued)

GASB Statement No. 76, The Híerarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles þr
State and Local Governments, reduces the generally accepted accounting principles

(GAAP) hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP: officially established

accounting principles - CASB Statements (Category A) and GASB Technical Bulletins;

GASB Imþlementation Guides; and literature of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants cleared by the GASB (Category B). Statement No. 76 also addresses the use

of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment

for a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP.

Statement No. 76 is applicable for fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. Earlier

application is permitted.

We will advise the Village of any progress made by GASB in developing these and other

future pronouncements that may have an impact on the financial position and changes in

financial position of the Village.

- l0-



Organization
Sikich is a dynamic professional services firm specializing in accounting, technology'

investment banking and advisory services. Founded in 1982, we are now one ol the

country's Top 35 largest CPA firms and among the top 1 percent of all enterprise

resource planning solution partners in the world.

lnd ustries
Sil<ich provides services and solutions

to a wide range of indt¡stries. We have

devoted substant¡al resources to develop a

significant l¡ase of expert¡se anc.l

experierrce itr:

) Agriculture

r Constrr.rction & Real Estate

¡ Goverrrmerrt

¡ Manufacturing & Distribution

r Not-for-Profit

r Oilfield Services

Statistics
2014 Revenues $106.5M

Total Partners 87

Total Ernployees 650

Total Personnel 735

Í>ersot'ìnel count as of February 17, 2015

Sikich Total Revenues

Awards
> Accounting TodayTop 100 Value Added

Reseller: ranked 7th, 2015

' Bob Scott's Top 100 Value Added

Reseller: ranked 9th, 2015
> Accounting TodayTop 100 Firtns: ranked

34th nat¡onally, 2014

r Accounting loday Regional Leaders - Top

Firnrs: Great Lakes: ranked 4111,2014

r /NS/DE Public Accounftttg Top 50 Largest

Accounting Firms: ranked

32nd nationally,2014

r Microsoft Dynanrics lnner Circle and

Presiclent's Club, 2014

t Milwaukee Busiless Journa! Largest

Marìagement Corrsulting Firrns: ranked

12tn,2014

r Best Places to Work in lndiana, 2014

r Best Places to Work in lllinois, 2014

, Bob Scott's /ns/ghts Valu¡e Added Reseller

Stars, 2014

r /nc. Magazine's lnc. 50015000: ranl<ed

4,627th fastest-growitrg private company

nationally, 2013
t Crain's Chicago Busû¡ess Fast Fifty:

ranl<ed 49th, 2013

' Alfred P. Sloan Award for Excelletrce in

Workplace Effectiveness & Flexilrility, 2013

r Daily Herald Busrness Ledger Book of

Lists: ranked Sth, "Accounting Firms;"

Chicago Western Suburbs, 2013

, Spr¡ngf¡eld Eusiless Jottntal Book of

Lists: rar'ìked 1st, "Accounting Firtns;"

Springfield, lllinois, 2013

, Ch¡cago Tribune's Chicago's

Top Workplaces, 2013

t Crain's Chicago Busrhess Top 25 Firms:

rankecl 11th in Chicagoland, 2013

SERVtCES

r Accounting & Assurance

r 8us¡ness Valuation

' D¡spute Advisory

' ERP & CRM Software

r Human Resources
Consulting

, lnsurance Services

r lnvestment Banking &
Corporate Finance

r lT Services

r Marketing & Public
Relations

r Retirement Planning

r SuPPlY Chain

r Tax Planning

r Wealth Management

VS¡k¡ch"
877 .279J900 | info@sikich.com

www.sikich.com



FI¡EEFilfr¡iSm

Certif ications
All professiorral accountirrg staff wilh more than one year of experience have earned or are

working towarcl earning the Cerlifiecl Public Accourrtant designatiorr. Sikich is a nrember of

the American lnstitute of Certified Pul>lic Accountants' Governmental Audit Quality Center

and the Employee Benefit Plan Audit Quality Center. We adhere to the strict requirements

of membership which assr-rre we meet the lriç¡hest starrdards of audìt quality. ln 2014, Sikich

LLP received its gth consecutive unrnoclified ("pclss") ¡:eer review repoft, the lrighest level of

recogrrition conferrecl upon a public acCotrntirrg firm for its quality control systems.

LOCATIONS:, .

Corporate office
1415 W, Diehl Rd., Suite 400

Naperville, lL 60563

(630) s66-8400

Boston, MA
(s08) 48s-ss88

Chicago - Monroe Street
(312) 54r-9300

Chicago - Wacker Drive
(3 i2) 648-6666

Decatur, lL
(217) 423-6000

Denver, C0
(720)200.0142

Houston, TX

(832) 831-3s40

lndianapolis, lN
(3L7l8Q-4466

Milwaukee, Wl
(262\7s4-9400

Rockford, lL
(8rs) 282-6s6s

5pringfield,lL
(2 17) ie3-3363

St. Louis, MO

(3t4)27s-7277

877.279.1900 | info@sikich'com

www.sikich.com

ffi*¡Ílöm

VSikich.

élr
MictæøÍt'Partner

r:ol{i Enterpr¡se Resource Planning

Microsoft Partner
Sikich lras earned a Microsoft ERP Gold conrpetency; ranked arnong the top 1 percent of

all Microsoft Dyrramics partners worldwide; and carries the followirrg certifications:

, Microsoft Snlall Business Specialist r MRMS (Microsoll Retail Managelnent Systenìs)

¡ MCp (Microsoft Certified Professiorral) ' CISA (Certified lnforr¡ation Systems Auditot)

I MCSE (Microsoft Certifìecl System Errgineer') I CNE (Certified Novell Engineer)

r CCNA (Cisco Certified Network Associate) ' MS CSM (Microsoft CustornerService Manager)

r CCDA (Certilied Cisco Design Associate) r MS CAE (Microsoft Certified Accourrt Executive)

, CCEA (Citrix Cer'tified Enterprise Administrator) r MCDBA (Microsoft Certified Database Adrnin.)

leading edge alliance

l-=À
global

'î!rd,{thn . quÂlty . oiæilc'\ìù

Sikich is proud to be part of the Leading Edge Alliance
Tlre Leading Edge Alliance (LEA) is the secorrd largest international association of

ìndependent accounting firms.- The LEA is an irrternational professional association of

independently-ownecl accoulrting and consulting firms' Memlrers are top quality finns

who share an entrepreneurial spirit and a dr¡ve to lre the prenrier provider of professlonal

services in their chosen markets. The Alliance provides Sikictr with an utrbeatalrle

cornbination: the compreherrsive size ancl scope of a large multinatiorral company while

offering their clients tlre continuity, cons¡stency, arrd quality service of a local firm'
'hÍemational Accounlitlg Bulletin, 2011

@ vrimeGlobal
Sikich is proud to be part of PrimeGlobal
primeGlobal is one of the top five largest associatiorìs of inclependerrt account¡lrg firlrs

ir.r the world, providing a wicle range of tools and resources to help me¡nber firrns furrrislr

superior accounting, auditing, and nranagement services to clients arotrnd the globe'

Secut¡ties arc of lerc(j througtl Sikíct1 Cot'ponta Finance LLC, a registerecl broker dealer with l/le Secutilies

Exchange Conmission ard a nlember of FTNRA/S|PC. Advisory services olfered through Sikich Financial,

a Regisiered hveslnrenl Advlso,: Generat secLtr¡t¡es ollerccl thtough Triact Aclvisors. Menlber FINRA/SIPC'
'liirtrl 

A<lvis<trs tutt.! Sikich l:ittrttx],ial are not [¡l¡hatad.
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Village of La Grange

September 14, 201 5

'['he l{onorable Thomas E, t,ivingston, President

Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of La Grange, Illinois

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the

close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. 'fhis report is published

to lulfill that requilement for fiscal year ended April 30, 2015.

Management asslunes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, basecl upon a comprehensive fi'amework of internal control that it has

established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated

benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurallce that the financial

statsments are free of any material misstatements.

Sikich, LLP has issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the Village of La Grange financial
statements for the year ended April 30,2015. The independent auditor's report is located at the

fì'ont of the financial section of this report.

'l'he Village received more than $500,000 of federal funds during the year ended April 30, 2015,
and therefore is required to undergo a single audit in conformity with the provisions of the

Revised Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,

"Audits of State, l,ocal Governments and Norrprofit Organizations." 'l'he standards governing

Single Audit engagements require the independeut auditor to report not only <ln the fail'
presentation of the fìnancial statements, but also the audited governments internal controls, and

legal requirement, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the

administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Village of La Grange's

separately issued Single Audit Report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&,4) imrnediately follows the indeperrdent auditor's
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis ol' the basic financial
statements. MD&A complcments this letter of transmittal ancl should be read in conjunction
with it.

53 South [,a Crange Roacl Ilo. tlox (r6fì La G'a.ge, Illinois (10525 (708) 579-2300 lax (708) 579-0980



Profïle of the Government

'l'he Village of l.a Grange, incorporated in 1879, is located approximately 14 miles west of
Clricago, in the County of Cook; the Village occupies a land area of approximately 2.5 squal'e

miles and has a population of approxirnately 15,600 residents. 'l'he Village of'La Grange is

authorizcrl to levy a property tax on both real ancl personal property located within its

boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation.

'l'he Village of'l,a (irange operates uncler a Boarcl-Mauager lorm of government. La Glange is a

non-home rule municipal corporatiorr governecl by the Village Presiclent and six trustees, who are

elccted on ar¡ at-large basis to serve f'our-year overlapping terms. 'fhe Village Managcr sel'ves ¿ìs

the Chief Ac[ninistlative Ofïìcer', 'fhe Village Board is rcsponsible fbr establishing Village
policy which, in tun'r, is irnplenrented on a day-to-day basis by the Village Manager arrcl staff.

'fhe Village of t,a Grange providcs a full rauge of governmelltal serviccs. Spccifìcally, thc

Village provides police and fìrc protection, w¿tter ancl sewer utilities, constrttction and

rnaintenancc of' roadways aud infì'astructurc, code enfbrceurelrt, planning, zoniug, irtspectiorr

servioes, economic developmeut, fìnance ancl gencral adrninistrative services.

'I'he Village evaluated other governmental services to determine whether they should be inclucled

in the Village's reporling entity. L,xcluded from the reporting entity are thc variotts scl,ool

clistricts, park districts and township which làll within the Village's boundaries, bttt which do not

meet thc criteria br inclusion as set forth by generally accepted accounting principles.

Previously the La Grange Public t,ibrary was included in the Village of La Grange's fìnancial

reporting errtity, as by definition, the library qualifìed as a "discreetly presented componetrt uttit"
ol'the Village. Based orr the criteria of Governmental Accounting Startdarcls lloard (GASB)

Statenrent No. 61, 'l'he Iìinunciul lLeporling ltntit¡t" Omnibus -' un umenclmenl oJ GASB

Statentent.ç No. t4 qncl No. 34, there are no con-rponent units f'or which the Villagc is considered

to be finar,cially accountablc. 'l'herelìlre, as of'April 30,2014 the l,a (ìrange Public l,ibrary
issncs separate hrrancial statelnents.

Local Bconomy

NationaI and state economic instability represerrtecl a significar"rt ohallenge to Villagc fìtrauces.

In response to these recessionary conditions and the corresponcling hscal stress placed r.rpon the

Village's Genel'al lìund, the Village took steps to reclt¡ce operating expenses below budget-

authorizcd levcls bcginning May 1,2010. At the same time, thc Village clcvclopcd a
cornprehensive ancl multi-year cost containnÌent strategy, largely involving a reductiou ol'
personncl ancl opcrating expenses by $1,000,000 per ycar, to stabilizc Village fitranccs.

[:vcn with these austerity measures, the Villagc corrtinues to be challenged by: major operatiorral

ancl capital costs, health care expenditules, required pension contributions, ancl a State

govcrnmelÌt which continues to i¡rtroduce legislation threatirrg local urunicipal revenues.

Despite these many fìscal pressures, Village finances are stabilizing as we cot'ttiut¡e to realize the

savings fron, the cost containment plan aud as Village revenues return to levels li'om prior to the

recession. ln keepir"rg with the Villagc's practioc of'conservative fìsoal maltagement, it is too

early to rely on savings and growth at this time, as being able to lcad the Village to st¡stainablc

linancial hcalth. We belicve that we have flouncl the right balance between the need to recognize



continued downward pressul'e on our financial means, yet still provide high quality services to
residents including responsive: (l ) operations; (2) planning efforts; and (3) capital
improvements.

'l'he Village will continue with its conservative frrnancial management by optimizing the value of'
operating expenditurcs and capital outlay; controlled spending; rnaking investments and re-
investnrents as appropriate; and facilitating growth.

Bconomic Devclopment

A well-diversified tax base creates new growth, generating additional property tax revenues rrot
only for the Village, but also to the benefit of other local taxing bodies such as school districts,
tlre park district and the library, In November20l4, the Village Board approved a planned unit
development fbr the northeast corner of La Crange Roa<J and Ogden Avenuc, which is the former'
site of the Rich Port YMCA. 'l'he developer plans to construct a mixed use developlnent
corrsisting of 254 high-end rental units and 9,000 sqlrare feet of retail, Construction is cxpectecl
to corì'ìmence in 2015 fr¡llowecl by occupanoy in trY 2017. With the exoeption of'a general
budget assull'rption for permit revenue in I.'Y 2016, we conservatively have not budgeted for any
revenue growth related to this signifìcant redevelopment ploject. Although the contract to
purchase the property has not been executed at the time of this writing, it is scheduled to occur
this fàll. -l'he Village Iloard also approved a high-end condominium development consisting ol'
twcnty-threc units at 40 S. Ashland Avenue (northwcst corncr of Ashland Avcnuc and l{arris
Avenue).

Over the past year, the Village's monthly sales tax receipts have consistently corne in higher than
from onc year ago, and have sct a high water mark on a 2014 calendar year basis. Of particular
note is the recruitment of an Arrderson's Book Stole located on La Grange Road at Calcndar
Aveuue. This important addition to the Village's retail tax base recently opened in August.

It is critically important that we continue to protect and presewe our investments in the Central
and West End Business Districts. 'fhe Village Board recognizes the asset value such investnrents
create which is why eoonomic development remains a higher-order priority for the Village.

'l'he renovation ol'a local landmark, Stone Avenue 'l'rain Station, which is locatecl in the West
[:ìnd Business Distlict was substantially completed in IìY 2015. Master planning, explolation of'
grant opportunities, and coordination with regional trausportation agencies ooutinues for luture
phases to enhance the station grounds as a public space and to cnhance pedestrian mobility and
salèty within the station area. Investment in the Storre Averruc train station building and grounds
is important as business owrìers have aclvised the Village that the iconic station is thc f'ooal point
f'or creating a sense of iclentity and way-fìnding which separates them from other commercial
areas within the Village.

Finally, the continuecl demancl fbr a business plesence in La Grange has resultcd in an incrcasc in
second floor occt"rpancies, namely personal and professional services. 'l'o accommodate this
increased detnand, the Village Board adopted a comprehensive update to the Village's sigrr code
to lacilitatc suoh oocupancies by permitting second fìoor signage but on a limited scale. Permits
have since been issued to I N. La Grange Road and I S. La Glangc Roacl, not surprisingly, to
leveragc their presence along the IINSIT/ME'|RA commuter rail line,



'l'he unique combination ol'fàctors which have contributed to La Grange's econotnio success

o¿urnot be overstatecl or taken f'or granted. 'l'hey are as follows: (i) our residents unclerstand the

rreed to support oul local businesses (record November 2014 sales tax receipts which included

the La Grarrge Business Associatiorr (I.GBA) "Small Business Saturday" promotion); (ii) our

local retailel's have an entrepreneulial spirit which has sustainecl them; ancl (iii) new

elllrepretlerrrs who have placecl their confìdence in their t'uture suocess by locating to La Grange.

Long-Torm Financial Planning

At year encl, fund balance in the Ceneral Fund (55,6 peroent ol' General lruncl operatittg

cxpenclitules) is slightly abovc the minirnum targeted reserve range. As the State's cconomic

f'orecast anticipates slow economic growth, it is advisable to retain an adequate find balance for
contingerrcies and emergencies. An adequate fund balauce I'eserve also allows the Village to
buclget lnore flexitrly in the short-term, maintain liquidity for cash flow rcc¡uit'etncllts, reduce

rcliancc on short-tcrtu fìnancing and maintain a strong credit rating.

'l'he Village tloard is lìscally consel'vative arrcl has been c¿rrefitl stewarcls ol'taxpayer resourccs,

cviclenccd by the implernentatiou ol'tlie cost containmcut plan. Ilowevet', in order to advancc

spcoifirc arcas ol' importance including: maintaining dclivery of core services, pension f'unding
public safety (School Resource Officcr), parking mânagement and building reserves; a l'evcnuc

euhanoement was necessary, Altcr examining valious options, a Food and Ileverage'['ax was

inrplernented May 1,2014, 't'his ncw revenLre source was <Jetermined to be in keeping with prior
Village lloarcl discussions because, as a matter ol'tax policy, the revenue wot¡ld prirnalily be

generated by non-residents. In addition, this sor.u'ce of reveuue was thought to be growth-

oriented becausc it builcls on the Village's strength as a regioual dining destination.

In response to the ir,cleasirrg frequency and intensity of rain eveuts; ancl the recommendation
from thc citizen-led advisory group (La Grarrge 2020 Task lìorce), thc Villge performed a

hydraulic modeling study to deterrnine the cost- benefit ol various sewer improvemeuts. 'fhe

study deterrnined that the most effbctive solutions to reduce the fìoocling incidences was the

contstntction o1'a main stonn sewer on 50'l' Street, with lateral sewers to other depressional

areas, and a flood wall on Brainard Avenue. 'l'he estimated cost to constuct the sewer

irnprovemcnts is S I 4,500,000.

As hrncling lor adclitional inlrastructure projects w¿rs not availablc within thc IrY 2016 capital
budget, the Village Board reached a cousensus agreement on a set of revellue enhaucetncnts

which in tlie aggregate enable the Villagc to address its critical sewer inft'astructure, as wcll as

firnd operational priorities to enhancc public saf'ety and ecot'tomic development. 'l'he

ider-rtiflrcation of'new revenues was irnportant, as the Village did not want to adverscly af'f'ect

or¡rrent budget priorities which wcre beiug funded by cxisting revenLles.

-l'he firndirrg plan, ef'fective in lìY 2016, includes an increasc irr the Village's cun'cnt Non-Flotne
Iìule sales tax lronr 0.25yo to lo/o (which was approvecl by a votcr relèrcnclum at the April 7,

2015 c<rnsolidated clection, by tt2-l rnargin); an incrcase in thc utility and tclecomrnuuication
taxes to 5 arrd 60lo; respectively, and a sewer ratc incrcasc to $1.50 pcl 100 curbic feet. 'l'he

revenLle errhancements included in the funding plan will generate sufficient t'eveltues to support a

$14,5 million bond issue to fund the necessary sewel'improvements.

As thc Village Board rernains sensitive to concerns about thc finarrcial but'den of government on

rcsidcnts, thc funding plan also includes rcpealir-rg the lo/o lìoocl & Beverage tax. Itt addition, the



Village Iloard did not want to increase rates and f'ees to a point which might adversely af lect the

Village's overall position within the market, fbr both residents and businesses. lt is estimated
that the combined increase in rates and fees will cost an average La Grange homeowner
ap¡rroximately $200 arrrrually,

'l'he Village also seeks to supplement plopertv tax and salcs tax revenues through the acquisition
of'grant funding, Over the past five years, the Village has secured approximately $8.0 million in
grants to fund over $11.5 million of capital projects, operational activities and equiprnent that
either would not have been possiblc or would have been implemented at the sole expense ofl La
Grange taxpayers. We must continue to aggressively pursue grant opportunities whcncver thcy
become available. Dcpartment Ileads continue to explore funding opportunities and eligibility
requirements within their respective areas of responsibility for ¡rrojects, personnel and capital
expenditures, corrsistent with the substance and spirit of ol¡r proposecl frnancial plan ancl the
Village lJoard's strategio priolitics.

Separate and apart fì'om the cost containment plan, the Village is in the process of restructuring
the Police and Iìirc l)epartrncnts. 'fhe signifìcance of this opcrational matter was to determinc iI'
public safety departments carl operate more ef'lìciently by eliminating a rank, or thc number of'
positions within supervisory ranks. 'l'hc analysis indicates that both public safuty departments
can flattcn thcir respective organizations by replacing command level positions with patrol
ofïcers and firelighters as vacancies occur; and theref'ore placing more manpower on the streets.
I-lowever, there is not enough cost savings between second-line supervisory positions and line
employees to increase heaclcount, As vacancies occur at the comrnand level, they are rcplaced
by Patrol Officers and Firehghter/Paramedics. 'I'he cost savings irr salary differential flows i¡rto
the Village's General Fund reselves,

In addition to this irrternal arralysis of optirnizing operations and service delivery, thc Villagc is
looking to do the same by regionalizing dispatch services with La Grange Park and Western
Springs. A technical study was completed in late 2013 whioh provicled a strategy as to how the
three cornmunities could establish a combined public safety clispatch center. Whilc opcrational
savings ¿ìre not signifircant, the lorrg term savings to bc realized and shared between the three
communities, is avoiding the cost of rcplacing capital ec¡uipment; while at the same time
pr'ovicling enhancecl clispatch scrviccs (l3MD-timergency Medical Dispatch) in advance of
pending statutory requirements, 'l'he three murricipalitics recently hired an executive clirector fbr
tlie consoliclatecl clispatch center, with an expectatior) that the new 9ll center will bc opolational
in carly 2016.

As the fìnancial condition of our statc governmcnt has yet to stabiliz.c, we need to rernain vigilant
and advocate agairrst any legislation which seeks to undermine municipal revenucs or shifls thc
hnancial rcsponsibility of paying fbr state programs onto municipalities as an "unfunded
manclatc".

'l'hese are still ditllcult times fbr cveryonc, and the Vittage is sensitive to the firnancial challcngcs
our residenl.s au'c cxpcriencing. 'l'hc Village is attempting to contain its operating costs while at
the same time preset'ving the value <ll' our signifìcant investments iu hurnan, economic and
capital asscts - preserving the cluality o1'life and comrnunity vitality that we plcsently enjoy.

As a result of its thoughtf'ul planning and policy discussions, the curlent Village Board is
strategically thinking about the Village's f'rnancial hcalth beyond the scope ol'thc current I'rve-



year plan. It is this type ol'visioning which will pleserve and euhanoe the cluality of lif'e f'or [,a

Grarrge lesiclerrts now ancl into the fìtture.

Major Initiativcs

Arr annual transfel is rnade from the Gcneral lìund to the Capital Projects Fund to support maior

infrastructure improvemerrts. This transfer tnay vary based upon availablc funding in thc

Genelal Fund after providing funding Íor annual operating expenditures. Due to the economic

conditiorrs which ncgatively impactcd State shared revenues, the transfbr flol capital

irnprovements was reduced beginrrirrg in IìY 2010. In ordor to cotnplete proposed capital
projects as previously budgeted, annual maintenance programs have been temporarily rcduced

and/or elimirratcd. It is anticipated that these short-term reductious in funding will nol have a

material impact on clelivcry olsel'vi<;es to resiclents.

A¡rnual translèrs from Motor Fuel 'fax (MfiT) are scheduled to fund the Village's thirty percent

local rnatch o[ fìrture f'edelal Surlace 'fransportation Program (S'fP) grant projccts, fìtture

segments ol' the Maple Avenue Iìelisf Sewcr and eligible neighborhood street projects. 'fhe

Village was also the recipient of'over $2.5 million in grants flor thc BlulÏ Avenue / M.A.lì.S.
project, Ncighborhood "ll" street rcsurfacing, Stone Avenue Station rehabilitation, IIVAC
improvements at all Village fàcilities and pedestrian signal r"rpgradcs.

'l'he proposed five-year Capital Improvement Prograrn includes $ì10.1 million in infi'astrt¡oture

irnprovement projects and rnajor maintenance progranÌs in FY 2016. Stafïwill contirrtle to seek

ont glarrts lbr these projects to leduce the cost o{'the projects to Village residetlts, through
MWIìD, Iì[ìMA, the State of Illinois ancl Cook County.

't'he lalgest, multi-year projcct is the aforcrncntioned sewer improvements which will be furrdecl

by a $14.5 million general obligation, alternate revenue source borrd. In order to directly acldrcss

overland flooding in tl-re identified depressional areas, a stornl sewer will be constructed ou 50t"

Street to deprcssion al'c¿ì #2 (5011' Strcet & SpLing Aveuuc) alorrg with a latcral scwcr to
depression ãrea #5 (48"' Strcct & 9th Avenr-re). Sewer improvements also inclucle the

construction ol'a llood wall on Brainard Avenue which will increase the overtopping elevation of'

storrn watcr frour the acljacent La Grange County Club.

While thc sewer improvernents idcntificd are largely south o1'47t1' Slreet, it is impoltalll to note

fol residelrts that the implications of the "referendum" budget are Village-wide as it woulcl likely
preserve existing fiurding f'or the Maple Avenue Relief Sewer and other capital projects as

budgcted, which may otherwise be delaycd or re-appropliatcd in order to acldress the unique
conclitions south of 47tl'strect which contributc to ovcrland lìoocling in that drainage basin.

Another murlti-year ploject is thc reconstruction o{'Blufi Ave¡rue which irrcluded the installation
of new courtrined sewer, water nrain, drainage structttres, curb/gutter and reconstruction of the

strcet. As part of thc larger Maple Avenuc lìclicl'Sewer' (MAIìS) initiative, the construction of'
an outlct sewer was also complctecl in conjunction with the reconstruction of Bluff Avcrruc. l"hc
outlct scwer connccts the Illuff'Avenuc corridor to thc decp tunnel connection at Cossitt and ljast
Averrues. 'fhe outlet sewct' and reconstructiou ol Bluff Avenue were contpleted in FY 2012.
'l'he seconcl stage of MAIìS, lrom roughly IllullAvcnue to 6tl'Avcnue was completed trY 2014,

firncled by a combination of'MIII' ancl capital improvcmcnt program Íùnds. Construction l'or thc
rlext stage of MAIìS is scheduled in FY 2020.



l)uring the past fifteen years, the Village has been able to substantially complete the initial phase

of thc Street Renovation Program which has repaved nearly every street within the Village, 'fhe

purpose of the Stteet Resurfacirrg Program is to plan for the routine resurf'acing and repair ol'
neighborhood streets on a defined schedule. A detailed street condition survey was cornpleted
which proviclcs for the "next gcneration" street resurfacing program with the aclded dimensiori of
having our undergrouncl utilities (water & sewer) considered for repairs or leplacement at the

same time,

As part of the devcloprncnt of this progl'am, a change in policy in the resulfacing prograrr was

recommended, Under the recently cornpleted plan, street resurfacing was prioritiz.ed on a

rreighborhood-wide basis. As the street conclition survey provides for a reliable set of'baseline
inforrnation, staff recommencled taking a more data-driven approach to street resurfàcing by
allocatirrg resources on ¿r block segrncnt basis through the resurfacing of streets scgments with
the greatcst need within the annual budget allotment. The intent is to maximize available
resources by perf'orming work to extend the unclerlying integrity ol'the roaclway and thus avoid
plematurely iucurrirrg the cost of street lecor¡struction.

Ilased on this reviscd approach staff rccommended the f'ollowing rcsurthcing projects in FY
2016: Kensirrgton Avenue from 47t" Strcct to Cossitt Avenue and Palk Avenue h'onr 4lttstreet
to Ogden Avenue. The next segment of the street resullacing prograrn is planned inlìY 2022.

StafT fìrrther rccommended the street condition survey be updated every flrve years to note
changes in condition and to update the rclative ranking of street segrnents. Additionally, staff
plans to make an assessment of or¡r capital rnaintenance needs such as crack-f.rlling and street
patching to sce if additional resources will be rec¡uired to keep streets in good stable condition
until such time that lesurfacing occurs.

Staff also plans to incorporate the resurfàcirrg of Lot l2 (corner of Uluff and Brainard) in lìY
20t6 into the street resurfacirrg program in older to gain economies t¡l'scale. Funding f'or the
palking lot resurfàcing is fì'om the Parking l"r.urd and will be kept separate fiorn the roadway
resurfacing prograrn wich uses MIì'l' fìrnds.

As a separate strcet project, Cossitt Avenue from Cilbert Avenue to lJrainard Averrue is
scheduled f'or reconstruction irr IrY 2016 due to deterioration of the roadway. Thc Villagc
applied f'orand rcceived S'l'P lìrnding forthisprojectthrough the Central Council of Mayors. As
part ol' the Cossitt Avenue lìesurfacing Prograrn staff also recommendecl replacement of the
water main on Cossitt Avenue fì'om Gilbert Avenue to Leitch Avenue. 'l'his water main
replacemcnt ploject was conlpleted in the summer of 2014 in advance ol'the rr>adway
resurfaoing.

Also schccluled as a separate street project is the reconstruction of Kensington Avenue lì'om
Cossitt Avenue to llurlirrgton Avenue in lìY 2017. 'l'his sectiorr of'r'oaclway was considered to bc
in poor to lair condtion in the 2010 Street Corrditiorr Survey and a recerrt visual irrspeotiorr of this
roadway indicatecl a need for rcsurfacing irr the rrear luture, 'fhe Village reccived additional S1'P
hrnding from thc Central Council of Mayors I'or this project.

'l'he Village has progranrmed l'esources in the Capital Projects Furrd irr antioipation of the de-
l-orestation ef fects of the Emerald Ash Borer (lrAIl). We arrticipate that all of the ash trecs will
ueed to bc replaccd and thercfore have planned in the budget l'or tlie removal and repla<;ement ol'
ashtreesoverasevenyearperiodbegirrningin[ìY20ll. T'heVillagehasalsodcvelopedapilot



progranl l'or treating approximately l00 healthy white Ash trees to gauge the etfectiveness of the

chemical treatments and save some of the rnost desirable ash tree specimens. We do not advocatc
any pre-erÌtptive rernoval ol'existing Asli tree species in oul inventory and will continue to
monitor the spread of'the [ìAI] and act as a resource to residents.

Several years ago, the Village initiated a sewer rehabilitation program to t'epair, rcplacc arrd/or

rehabilitate cxisting mains by lining the sewcr with a cured-in-place liner that provides a new
structr.rrally suflìcient pipe within the existing pipe. 'l'his process is less disruptive to residents

since it cloes not require traditional open trerrch nrethods lbr installatiori,

Dt¡e to limited funding, this prograrn was put orì hold until sr,rffìcierrt reserves were accultlulated
to sustain tl,e program on an annual basis. As leplacing the Village's aging sewel' inlrastructure
rernains an important long term goal, this mainterlance activity is planned to resume in Iì'Y 2017
in the alnoullt of'$100,000 annually. 'l'he Village will continue to revieu,the inf'olmation
obtained from the scwer telcvising program in order to determine i1 ariy immediatc actiotl is

necessary to maintain the Íùnotionality of the existing system.

As nientioned previously, the Village issued a $14,500,000 general obligation, altcrnatc revcnlle
bond in lìY 2016 to fund sewer improvements. Irr preparation f'or the sale of the sewer bonds,

thc Village lequested a mecting with Moody's Investors Services irr order to obtain a current
bond rating. 'l'he Village President, staff arrd the Village's fitnan<;ial consultants met with
Moocly's to discuss fina¡rcial operatiorrs, econornic development initiatives, managetnent and

current/fìrturc dcbt.

As a result of this rneeting and lilther analysis by Moody's, a Aa2 bond lating was re-assigtred

to the Village of La Grange. -l'he Aa2 rating is a relatively high borrd lating for a non-hou'¡e rule
community. 'l'his bond rating recognizes a healthy frnancial profile sr"rpported by healthy rescrve

levels, moderate debt burden with linrited future borrowing plans and a moderately sized ancl

affluent tax base. Moody's also notes an above average pension liability - which rerrtains a

Village priority, rroting fìrll funding ol annual rcquircd contributions; and a lack ol'Llome-Rule
status - which is somewhat offset by prudent nlanagement and revenue laising flexibility.

Awards and Acknorvledgcmcnts

'l'hc Govcrnmcnt lìinance OfTccrs Association of the lJnited Statcs and Carrada (G[ìOA)
awarded a Certilìcate of'Achievel'Ìlent for lixcellence irr Iìiuaucial Iìeporting to the Village of La
Grange f'or its Comprehensive Annual lìinancial lìeport (CAIìIì) fbr the fìscal yeal encled April
30,2014, 'l'his was the nineteenth consecutive year that the governmcnt has achieved this
prestigior.rs award. In order to be awarcled a Certificate ol'Aohicvcmcnt, a governlnent must
publish an easily readable and cffirciently organized comprehcnsive annual fìnancial roport. '['his

report must satisfy troth generally accepted aocounting principlcs and applicable legal
requirements. A Certilicate ol Achievement is valid for a period ol one year only. We believe
that our current cornprehensive anlrual fìnancial report continues to nrect thc Certihoatc of
Achievcmerrt Program's requiremcnts and wc arc subn'ritting it to thc GIIOA to detclminc its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, thc Village of' La (ìrange also receivcd the GIrOA's Distinguished lludget
Presentatiorr Award fbr its annual Oporating and Capital hnprovcmcnts Budgct fbr the year

ending April 30,2015. In order to qr.ralify fur the Distinguished lludget Prcscntation Awald, the
Village's buclget docun'¡errt was juclged to be profìcicnt as a policy docunrent, a financial plan, as



operations guide and a communication device. The Village has received this notable national

award for twenty consecutive years.

'fhe preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was made

possible by the efficient and dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department,

especially Assistant Finance Director Joe Munizza, who prepared the Financial Statements.

Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the

preparation of this report.

Finally, we would like to acknowledge Village President Livingston and the Board of Trustees

for their leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the Village in

a responsible and progressive manner,

Respectfully submitted,

Village

l:ilclra¡nc:usc¡s/conunon/audit I 5/cali transnt¡ttal ltr. I 5.rloc

Lou Cipparrone
F inance Dilector/Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of La Grange. Illinois

We have audited the acoompanying fìnancial statements of the governmental activities, the

business-t1'pe activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of La Grange, Illinois, (the Village) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2015 a¡rd the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents,.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

A udito r's Respo ns i bi I i4,

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goventntenl
Auditing Standards, issued b.v the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards

require that rve plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assura¡lce about whether the

frnancial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, q,hether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers

internal control relevant to the Village's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opirrion. An audit also includes et,aluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each

major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of La Grange, Illinois, as

of April 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash

flows thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Village adopted GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reportingfor Pension Plans, during the

year ended April 30, 2015, which modified certain disclosures in the notes to financial statements

and the required supplementary information. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters

Re quire d Supp le me ntary I nþr mat ion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management's discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information as listed

in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the

information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the

basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express

an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Informatíon

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules and supplemental data, as listed in the table of contents,

are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the Village. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules

and supplemental data are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
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such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves and other additional
procedwes in accordance with auditing sta¡rdards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the

basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical information listed in the

table of contents was not audited by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

Other Reporting Required by Governntent Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Governmenr Audilíng Standards, we have also issued our report dated

September 3,2015 on our consideration of the Village's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant

agteements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is

an integral part of an audit performed in accorda¡rce with Government Auditing Standards in

considering the Village's internal conhol over financial reporting and compliance.

Naperville, tllinois
September 3,2015
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GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

April30,2015

The Village of La Grange's (the "Village") discussion and analysis is designed to (l) assist the

reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Village's
financial activity, (3) identif, changes in the Village's financial position (its ability to address

the next and subsequent year challenges), (4) identify any material deviations from the financial
plan (the approved budget), and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current
year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with
the Transmittal Letter and the Village's financial statements.

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTION OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
REPORT

In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Village's financial
statements present two kinds of statements, each with a different view of the Village's finances.
The financial statement's focus is on both the Village as a whole (government-wide) and on the
major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to
government) and enhance the Village's accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total
for the Primary Government.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Village's assets and liabilities
and deferred inflows, with the difference between them reported as net position. The focus of
the Statement of Net Position (the "Unrestricted Net Position") is designed to be similar to
bottom line results for the Village and its governmental and business-type activities. This
statement combines and consolidates governmental funds' using the current financial resources

measurement focus (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long term
obligations using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.
Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activíties presents information showing how the Village's net position
changed during the fiscal year. The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and

net cost of various activities (including governmental and business-type) which are supported
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

by the government's general taxes and other resources. This is intended to summarize and

simpliff the user's analysis of the cost of various government services and/or subsidy to

variuus business-type act¡vities.

Both statements distinguish functions of the Village that are primarily supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to

recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type

activities). Governmental Activities reflect the Village's basic services, including police, fìre,
public works, community development, fìnance and administration. Property taxes, local sales

tax, local utility tax and shared state income, replacement and local use taxes finance the

majority of these services. The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type operations
(Water, Sewer, and Parking funds), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the

cost of operation, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village of La Grange, like other

state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into three

categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

The governmentalfunds focus is on sources and uses of spendable resources, as well as on the

balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This is the manner in

which the financial plan (the budget) is typically developed. The flow and availability of liquid
resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are

established for various purposes and the fund financial statement allows the demonstration of
sources and uses and/or budgeting compliance associated therewith.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information (private sector operations) as the

government-wide business-type financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund

statements provide separate information for the Water, Sewer and Parking operations, all of
which are considered to be major funds of the Village. Individual fund data for the Village's
internal service fund, which accounts for the replacement of vehicles and equipment on a pay-

as-you-go basis, can be found elsewhere in the report.

The fund financial statements also allow the Village to address itsfiduciaryfunds (Police and

Fire Pensions). While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the government, these

assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government.

Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the government-wide financial statements.

Other Information

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. In
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents

certain required supplementary information concerning the Village's progress in funding its

obligation to provide pension benefits to employees.

While the total column on the proprietary fund financial statements is the same as the business-

type activities column in the government-wide financial statement, the governmental funds

total column requires reconciliation with the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements because of the different measurement focus (current

financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following
each statement.

The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers as

other financial sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as

expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital

assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into the Governmental Activities column (in
the Government-Wide Statements).

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

As mentioned earlier, the Statement of Net Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of
the Village's f,rnancial position. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village is able to
report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the government as a
whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The following table

reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

Table 1

Statement of Net Position
As of 2015

Current and Other assets $25,843,662 $24,566,609 54,253,954 $4,152,589 $30,097,6 l6 $28'719,198
Assets 902 29 19 96t 992 49

Long term liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred Inflows

Net Position:
Net Investment in

Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

7,483,666
1,45 1,93 I

6

8,185,497
834,014

2,144,628
620,228

29,236,672 19,961,090
874,91I

2,213,961
592,226

9,628,294
2,072,159

0

20,408,584 49,091,992
- 1,472,692

10,399,358
1,426,240

0

29,130,902
1,472,692

48,645,256
874,91I

Total
20t420t5

Governmental Activities
2015 2014

Business-Type Activities
2015 20t4

Total Assets l9 53 l t5 6l t73 80 878

Total Liabilities
and Deferred Inflows l5 56 5806 7l7l

60r ll tl
943 $21Total Net Position l3 917 188 $21 $61 105

9 t67
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued;

The Village's total net position increased from $60,034,029 in20l4 to $61,584,105 in 2015

which is an increase in net position of $1,550,076. The increase in Total Net Position for
Govenuneutal Activities of $1,854,974 is in part duc to rcvcnucs cxcccding expenses in the

General and Motor Fuel Tax Funds being partially offset by expenses exceeding revenues in

the Capital Projects Funds.

In addition, Net Investment in Capital Assets increased due to the completion of the $ l.l
million Stone Avenue Train Station Renovation Project which was funded, in total, by state and

federal grants. Total Net Position for Business Type Activities decreased by S304,898
primarily due to depreciation expense exceeding capitalized assets.

By far, the largest portion of the Village's total net position (79.7%) reflects its net investment

in capital assets (such as land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure) less any

related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Village uses these capital assets to
provide services to residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the Village's net investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other

sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Investment in capital assets, net of debt also provides useful information that can be used for
trend analysis to determine if the Village is properly replacing aging infrastructure, including:
streets and water and sewer mains.

The Village's unrestricted net position for governmental activities reflects the portion of net

position that can be used to finance day{o-day operations. Restricted net position represents

funds which are subject to limitations on how they may be used. These funds primarily reflect

State Motor Fuel Tax funds restricted for maintenance of roadways. As noted above,

Restricted Net Position increased as no Motor Fuel Tax funds were utilized for street

renovation projects during the fiscal year.

The following table reflects the change in net position resulting from revenues and expenses of
the Village's governmental and business-type activities.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Table 2
Change in Net Position

For fhc Fiscal Year Ended A 2015

REVENUES
Program Revenues

Charges for Services
Operating Grants/Contr

Capital Grants/Contr.

General Revenues
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Other

$ 1,621,488 s5,773,286
651,442
73,05 r

6,347,857
4,915,950

277,392

ss,688,309 $7,665,053
- 718,809

383,743 1,t65,678

$t,89t,767
718,809

1,165,678

6,478,298
5,370,264

330,409

$7,309,797
65t,442
456,794

3,926 2,926

6,478,298
5,370,264

334,335

6,347,857
4,915,950

280,3 r 8

201 5 20t4
TotalGovernmental Activities

2015 2014
Business-Type Activities

2015 2014

T Revenues l5 $l 7 r80 $s 777 t2 $21 7 $l 158

EXPENSES
General Government
Public Safety
Highways & Streets
lnterest
Water & Sewer
Parking

2,232,737
8,588,667
2,975,715

16l,132

2,198,577
9,218,014
3,013,072

189,745

2,232,737
9,588,667
2,975,715

t6l,t32
s,181,863
I,042,247

2,199,577
8,2 I 8,014
3,013,072

t89,745
4,942.845
1,012,947

5, r81,863
1,042,247

4,942,845
1,012,947

Total l3 ll l9 6 il0 s,955 792 l 6l l9 57

Increase / (Decrease)
Before Transfers

Transfers

1,996,974

( 142,000)

267,772

(t t9,000)

(446,898)

142,000

I 19,186

I 19,000

r,550,076 386,9s8

in Net Position $ I 974 $l 772 3 $238 r86 $l I

Govern mental Activities

Charges for Services, which include revenues from Village fìnes, licenses and permits,

increased significantly due to an increase in the number of building permits issued for single

family homes (23) and several notable commercial building permits issued to La Grange

Memorial Hospital, Meadowbrook Manor and Life Storage. In addition, ambulance fees

increased due to the impact of a previously negotiated agreement with neighboring

municipalities to bill for mutual aid ambulance calls.

Operating Grants and Contributions reflect annual Motor Fuel Tax receipts, traffic
safety/tobacco enforcement grants, and a Staffìng for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response

(SAFER) grant. Capital Grants and Contributions increased due to receipt of federal and state

funding for the renovation of Stone Avenue Train Station. Capital Grant receipts also include
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

funding for the signal project on Willow Springs Road and reconstruction of Cossitt Avenue

Grant funding varies annually due to availability and timing of projects.

Property taxes continue to be the Village's largest revenue source generating 96,478,298 which
represents 40.9% of total governmental activity revenue. Property tax revenue reflects the

allowable increase under the Property Tax Limitation Act which is restricted to five percentn or
the percent of increase in the national Consumer Price Index (CPI), whichever is less. The
Village's 2013 property tax levy, which was collected in fiscal year 2015, included a CPI
increase of 1.7 percent.

Other Taxes include sales tax revenues combined with State shared revenues (income tax, local

use tax and replacement tax), local utility taxes and franchise fee revenues total 55,370,264
which represents 33.9% of the total governmental activity revenue. Other Taxes reflect a

significant increase due to the implementation of a lo/o Food & Beverage Tax, effective May l,
2014. The additional revenue generated by the Food and Beverage tax provided necessary

funding for the Village to maintain delivery of core services and fund increased police and fire
pension contributions.

Other Revenues reflect investment income, reimbursements for; damaged property, training,
prosecution services, and other miscellaneous revenues. Other Revenue increased in 2015

primarily due to a reimbursement from Opus Development Company L.L.C. for legal fees,

engineering fees and a fiscal impact study related to the redevelopment project at Ogden and

La Crange Roads (former YMCA property).

The Village realizes the importance of offering competitive compensation and beneflrt packages

for the recruitment and retention of employees. General Government expenses in 2015 include

an annual general wage adjustment of salaries which is tied directly to the allowable increase

under the Property Tax Limitation Act. Salary expenses also include an average merit increase

of 2.75Yo merit based upon annual performance evaluation.

Public Safety expenses increased in 2015 primarily due to a recommended change in mortality
table utilized in the annual actuarial valuation report. The change in mortality tables resulted
in a significant increase in employer contributions as pension participants are expected to live
longer on a go forward basis. Public Safety expenses also reflect annual wage increases

pursuant to collective bargaining agreements for Police and Fire employees.

Highway and Streets includes maintenance projects which vary annually and are fully expensed

in the year of completion rather than capitalized as an asset and depreciated over the estimated
useful life.

It is important to note that in response to recent recessionary conditions, beginning in 2010, the

Village implemented a comprehensive and multi-year cost containment strategy, largely
involving a reduction of personnel expenses. Cost containment efforts include maintaining one

full+ime vacancy within the Village's three largest operating departments - Police, Fire and

Public Works, elimination/reduction of part-time positions, negotiated wage concessions with
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

collective bargaining units and non-union employees, and increased employee contributions
towards health insurance. In addition, the Village has reduced annual funding for annual

maintcnoncc progroms and future infrastructure projects.

Interest expenses decreased in 2015 due to reduced outstanding debt resulting from annual

principal payments. No newdebtwas issued in fiscal year2015. Transfers from governmental

activities to business-like activities reflect the annual transfer from the General Fund to the

Parking Fund to fund additional costs associated with the general maintenance and operations

of the parking structure. Beginning in 2015 the transfer from the General Fund also reflects a
portion of the proceeds of the Food and Beverage Tax to offset the reduced cost of CBD
employee parking decals in the Parking Fund.

Business-Tvne Activities

Charges for Services increased in 2015 primarily due to a 7.5 percent increase in the Village's
water rate and a l0 percent increase in the Village's se\¡/er rate, both effective May 1,2014.
The water rate increase was necessary to "pass on" the City of Chicago l5olo water rate

increase. Please note the Village rate increases are significantly less than the City of Chicago

rate increases as they are primarily applied to the cost of the water purchased in the Water

Fund, which is just one component of the total expenses for providing water to residents.

Although water sales in 2015 increased over the previous year due to the 7.5 percent rate

increase, total sales were less than anticipated due to above normal rainfall during the

spring/early summer months resulting in below average water consumption during the fiscal
year.

The sewer rate increase was necessary to provide funding for projected operations and capital

expenses, and to rebuild sewer reserves. Sewer fees are based on cubic feet of water used

multiplied by a separate sewer rate. Therefore, an increase in the water rate does not affect
sewer fees.

Capital Grants and Contributions reflect receipt of the IEPA Green Inlrastructure grants lor
reconstruction of parking lot #13, which were primarily received in in FY 2014.

Water and Sewer expenses increased due to a water rate increase from the City of Chicago of
l5o/o, effective January 1,2015. The City of Chicago also plans to increase water rates by an

additional 15o/oin next year, starting January 1,2016. As it is the Village's policy to "pass on"
water rate increases from the City of Chicago, subsequent increases in Village water rates are

anticipated. Water expenses also reflect annual wage increases pursuant to the collective
bargaining agreements for union employees.

The following charts reflect revenues by source and expenses by function for governmental and

business-type activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015:
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Governmental and Business-Type Activities
Revenues by Source

FiscalYear Euded April 30,2015

Governmental and Business-Type Activities
Expenses by Function

FiscalYear Ended April 30,2015

I l.5o/o

@ 35.5o/o

| 2.8o/o
E 30.00/o

E 5.40/o

foCharges for Services

trProperty Taxes

lOperating Grants & Contrb

tOther Taxes

[lCapital Grants

llvliscellaneous

| 5.2o/o @ ll.lo/o

.25 3 0.2o/o

E 42.8o/o

tr 14.

GtGeneral Govanmeut llnterest trPublic Safety trHighways & Streets lWater & Sewer lParting
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSß

As noted earlier, the Village of La Grange uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate

compliance with finance related legal requirements. A fund is separate accounting entity with a

selÊbalancing set of accounts that comprise its assets, liability, fund equityn revenues and

expenditures.

The focus of the Village of La Grange's governmental fund types, which includes the General

Fund, is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable

resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Village's financing requirements. In

particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of net resources available for

spending at the end of a fiscal year. The Village's proprietary fund types, which are those

funds which operate similar to a business, provide the same type of information found in the

government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Village of La Grange. The Village
experienced fiscal stress within the General Fund created by a decrease and flattening of major

revenue streams (e.g. income tax, sales tax, building permits, etc.) due to macro-economic

conditions and major operating expenditures (such as salaries, health insurance, and police and

fire pension contributions) in excess of those reduced revenues. Reserve funds have been

utilized to offset prior operating defrcits; sustaining Village operations over the past several

years.

So as not to further deplete reserve funds below target levels, the Village implemented a multi-
year cost containment plan beginning in 2010, focused on reduction of personnel expenses. As
part of the ongoing cost containment plan, the Village proposes to continue to examine other

strategies to reduce and control future operating expenditures as a means to protect reserves.

Despite these many fiscal pressures, Village finances are stabilizing. Although the General

Fund incurred a surplus in FY 2015 of approximately $686,000, the surplus included a budget

amendment of $225,000 approved by the Village Board during the fiscal year relating to sewer

improvement projects.

Throughout the course of the fiscal year additional budget amendments were necessary to

reflect estimated actual expenditures exceeding budget estimates including: l) Police Pension

Payments resulting from one regular and one disability pension; 2) Fire Pension Payments due

to the retirement of the Fire Chief early in the fiscal year; and 3) drug case

investigations/equipment from the Asset Forfeiture Fund. Each year the Police Department

evaluates the use of asset forfeiture funds for supplemental purchases for Police Department

equipment and vehicles to enhance law enforcement, drug enforcement investigations, and

public education.
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Table 3
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Fiscal Year Ended April30,2015

Original Amended
B B Actual

Revenues and Transfers In
Taxes
I ntergovernmental
Licenses & Permits
Other
'lransfers In

$ 10,430,230
1,634,280
1,222,457

383,600

$ 10,430,230
1,634,280
t,222,457

383,600

$ 10,299,158
1,662,895
I ,361,614

625,289
50

(2, I 4l ,988)
(8,637,382)
( 1,829,651)

(2, l4 t ,988)
(8,637,382)
( I,829,651)

(2,146,709)
(8,330,042)
( 1,768,843)

5

Expenditures and Transfers Out
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Transfers Out

Total $l l3 67 Sl 9s6

Total $ l 701 I l I

867

Tax revenues were under budget primarily due to prior year tax credits from property

assessment appeals and home foreclosures. In addition, the Village experienced lower than

estimated new growth, which resulted in Cook County automatically lowering the Village's tax

levy. Simplified Telecommunication taxes were also under budget primarily due to continued

bundling of phone services and elimination of residential/business phone lines. In addition to

the decline in annual receipts, the Village was notified by the lllinois Department of Revenue

that due to the settlement of a federal class action lawsuit, the State is required to issue refunds

from prior Simplified Telecommunication tax distributions to local governments, which further
reduced FY 2015 tax receipts.

Substantially offsetting the decrease in tax revenues was a significant increase in local Sales

and Non-Home Rule Sales taxes. Monthly sales tax receipts were consistently equal to or
slightly higher than one year ago, which includes the closing of two prominent sales tax
producing businesses within the Village. The loss of these two retailers was offset by the

continued strength within the Village's existing restaurant and retail base.

In addition, after considerable discussion and soliciting feedback from local businesses, the

Village Board adopted a l% Food & Beverage Tax, effective May I ,2014. The additional
revenue generated by the Food and Beverage tax provided necessary funding for the Village to
maintain delivery of core services and fund increased police and fire pension contributions.
Final year end Food & Beverage Tax receipts were significantly over budget due to increased

activity within the Central Business District from sidewalk cafes and outdoor patios during the

summer months.

in Fund Balance $ I $6 62
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MANACEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Intergovernmental revenues were over budget due to an increase in Income Tax receipts as a

result of declining unemployment. Intergovernmental revenues also include partial receipt of a
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) grant from the Federal

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The SAFER grant provides funding for 2-years in

order to help maintain the number of trained "front-line" firefìghters.

Licenses and Permits were over budget due to an increase in the number of permits issued for
new residential construction projects and the issuance of several large commercial permits.

The increased revenues were slightly offset by a decrease in fines for compliance violations
and Circuit Court fines due to retirements within the Police Department, resulting in the

department being at minimum staffing, leaving less time for self-initiated traffic enforcement.
Veteran police offìcers were also involved with field training for newly hired officers, which
also takes away from their self-initiated traffic enforcement opportunities.

Other Revenue was over budget primarily due to unanticipated reimbursements for damaged
property, prosecution services and training costs. Other Revenue also included several

signifìcant miscellaneous reimbursements from Opus Development Company L.L.C. for legal

fees, engineering fees, and a fiscal impact study related to the redevelopment project at Ogden

and La Grange Roads (former YMCA property); and Lyons Township High School District
204 for professional services related to the renovations and improvements at the North
Campus. Ambulance fees were also over budget due to a previously negotiated agreement

with neighboring municipalities to bill for mutual aid ambulance calls. Partially offsetting the

increase in other revenue was a decrease in investment earnings resulting from short-term
interest rates remaining at less than one half of one percent.

Public Safety expenditures are under budget primarily due to a decrease in salary and benefit
expenditures resulting from temporary vacancies created by the retirements of both the Police

Chief and Fire Chiet two police officers, and three resignations. In order to maintain
enforcement efforts, vacancies were filled as quickly as possible. Partially offsetting the

decrease in full-time salaries was an increase in overtime expenditures due to police officers
and firefighter/paramedics covering shifts as the newly hired replacement personnel were being
trained. The increase in overtime also reflects extended leaves of absence due to illness and

work related injuries.

Highway & Streets expenditures decreased due to temporary vacancies resulting from two
resignations, and negotiated labor rates from the most recent collective bargaining agreement.

Overtime expenditures were also under budget, inclusive of the major winter storm event on

February 1,2015 with 19+ inches of snow, as the Department of Public Works continues to
assess overtime operations to increase efficiencies and reduce costs associated with overtime
events.

Transfers Out includes a transfer to the Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $700,000 to
support infrastructure replacement, debt service and maintenance programs. Due to the
economic recession which negatively impacted revenues in the General Fund, this transfer was

previously reduced by $300,000. In order to complete capital projects as planned, annual
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maintenance programs were reduced and/or eliminated. Transfers out also includes an annual

transfer to the Parking fund of $142,000 to partially fund operations and maintenance of
Village lots and the parking struoture.

Transfers Out also reflects the aforementioned budget amendment utilizing reserve funds in the

amount of $225,000 to perform a hydraulic modeling study of the proposed 50th Street storrn

sewer/flood wall and for televising the Village main line sewers. The hydraulic study was

necessary to determine the cost-binefit of constructing sewer improvements south of 47th

Street. The purpose of the sewer televising was to I ) confirm they are operating properly, 2)

remove any debris within the sewers, 3) identify required repairs, and 4) estimate remaining

useful life.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

The Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Fund provides for the construction or resurfacing of public rights-

of-way within the Village and for maintenance of streets and sidewalks, including sweeping,

cleaning, and snow and ice control. MFT funds are distributed by the State on a per capita

basis and are derived from a tax on the privilege of operating motor vehicles upon highways,

based on the consumption of motor fuel.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund reserves of approximately $ I .l million reflect the accumulation of funds

to finance the Village's 30 percent share of the reconstruction of "feeder" streets in conjunction

with the State's 70 percent funding from Surface Transportation Project grants and the Maple

Avenue Relief Sewer (M.A.R.S.) Project. Future years' reserves will be used to fund

additional capital projects.

Motor Fuel Tax reserves increased in 2015 by approximately $517,000 as no Motor Fuel Tax

funds were utilized for street renovation projects during the fiscal year.

Capital Proiects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund was established to ensure that the Village infrastructure is

maintained and/or replaced to an acceptable level and to account for the acquisition,

construction, or replacement of fìxed assets of government funds with fund revenues derived

primarily from transfers from the General and Motor Fuel Tax Funds, as well as from bond

proceeds.

The Capital Projects Fund typically includes reserve fund to replace aging infrastructure

throughout the Village and for unforeseen contingency costs associated with the aggressive

neighborhood street renovations projects and complex street reconstruction projects to be

undertaken in the near future. Due to the nature of the Capital Projects Fund which is to build

reserves for future infrastructure projects, in years with significant construction, this fund may

incur large deficits with small reserve balances.
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The Capital Project Fund was in a small deficit positon at fiscal year-end due to the timing of
grant receipts for the Stone Avenue Train Station Renovation Project and preliminary costs

related to 50th Street Storm Sewer Project which will be reimbursed from bond proceeds.

Significant capital projects also included the final cost of Bluff Avenue Reconstruction project,

tree removal and planting resulting from the Emerald Ash Borer spreading rapidly throughout
the Village; and debt service payment for the 2005 Streetlight Refunding bonds.

Proprietarv Funds

Net position of the Water, Sewer and Parking Funds at year end totaled $21,450,188. Net
Position decreased during the year by $304,898 due to operating expenses, which includes
depreciation expense of$774,198, exceeding operating revenues. The Parking Fund includes
an annual transfer from the General Fund to provide funding for additional costs associated

with the general maintenance and operations of the parking structure.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Village of La Grange's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of April 30,2015 is 549,937,057. This investment in capital assets includes land,

buildings, improvements, equipment and street infrastructure as reflected in Table 4.

The Village depreciates assets over their useful life. If a road project is considered maintenance

- a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or expand its capacity - the
cost of the project will be expensed. An 'ooverlay" or resurfacing of a road will be considered
maintenance whereas a "rebuild" or reconstruction of a road will be capitalized.

Construction in Progress, a non-depreciable asset, represents the cost of initial stages of a

multi-year construction project which has been started but not yet competed. When the project
is finished, the cost of the project is reclassified and recorded as a depreciable capital asset.

MD&A 13



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued;

Table 4
Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Govemmental
Activities

20t5 2014

Business-type
Activities

20t5 2014 20t5

Total

20t4

Non-Depreciable Assets
Land & Right of way
Construction in Progress

0ther Capital Assets
Buildings
Improvements
Street Infrastructure
Storm Scwers
Equipment
Water System
Sewer System
Parking Improvements

$8,1 15,24ó
3,8 r 6,ó69

$8,1 r5,246
2,844,502

$ r,370,735
402,303

n,637
7,884,3 r 3

2,25t,575
I 78,8ó r

$ r,370,735
n2,951

t7,532
8,345,838
2,274,262

t92,435

$9,485,981
4,2t8,972

$9,485,981
2,9s7,453

t,764,848
850,308

l 2,843,068
483,505

2,t02,323

I,890,689
9ll,l88

I 2,8 15, I 96
s07,954

2,256,897

9,626,st4
850,308

I 2,843,0ó8
483,505

2,n3,960
7,884,3 r 3

2,25t,575
r78,8ó I

9,985,520
9r r,188

r 2,8 r 5,1 9ó
507,954

2,274,429
8,345,838
2,274,262

t92,435

7 ,861,666 8,094,83l

Total s29,975,967 I 72 $r9,961,090 $20,408,584 93'7 $49 750,2s6

Total Capital Assets for Governmental Activities reflect a significant increase in Construction
in Progress due to the substantial completion of the Stone Avenue Train Station Renovation

Project. Finat close out costs for this phase of the renovation project will occur during the

subsequent fiscal year with the asset being placed into service at that time. Other capital assets

decreased as depreciation expenses exceeded infrastructure improvements and equipment

purchases during the fiscal year.

Total Capital Assets for Business-Type Activities reflect an increase in Construction in

Progress related to preliminary costs of improvements at the East Avenue Water Pumping

Station and replacement of water mains on Cossitt Avenue. Other Water, Sewer and Parking

Improvement assets decreased as depreciation expenses exceeded infrastructure improvements

and equipment purchases during the fiscal year.

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial

Statements, note # 4.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of La Grange has total bonded debt and notes

outstanding of $8,360,000 allof which is backed by the full faith and credit of the Village.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation bond debt a governmentalentity may issue

to 8.625 percent of its total equalized assessed valuation. The current estimated debt limit for
the Village is $49,619,374;as such, the Village is currently significantly underthe outstanding

general obligation debt limit.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Table 5
Outstan Ilonds

General Obligation Bonds
(ARS Refunding Bonds
Series 2005)

Altemate Revenue Bonds
Series 20124 Water Meter

$ 845,000 $1,105,000 $ 845,000 $1,105,000

1,910,000 1,995,000 1,910,000 I,995,000

Govemmental
Activities

2015 20t4

Business-type
Activities

20ts 20t4

'l'otal

201420t5

II 755I I I I'fotalsvil

Gcneral Obligation Bonds
Series 20128 Retunding 5,605,000 6,105,000 5,ó05,000 6,r05,000

IT IOn

I&. Totals $r 9l

The Village issued $3.9 million of general obligation (alternate revenue source) bonds in 1998

for the replacement of streetlights throughout the Village. The accelerated replacement of street

lights was completed over a three-year period and replaced the pay-as-you-go program, which
was scheduled to be completed over a Z}-year period. The 1998 Streetlight bonds were

refunded in December, 2005 due to favorable interest rates. The bond refunding resulted in
interest savings in excess of $100,000 overthe remaining life of the issue. The final maturity
date of the outstanding debt was not extended as a result of the refunding.

In order to address ongoing water accountability issues, the Village issued $2.08 million of
alternate revenue bonds in2012 to fund a water meter replacement program and improvements

at the water pumping station. The Village elected to issue bonds rather than complete the

projects on a pay-as-you-go basis in order to address the ongoing water accountability issue in

a timely fashion, utilize new meter and pumping station technologies, bill residents for actual

water usage in an equitable manner and financial conditions were such that the Village
benefited by financing these projects with municipal bonds while interest rates were at

historical lows.

Pursuant to GASB 61, the La Grange Public Library is a legally separate entity from the

Village and is excluded in the Village's fìnancial statements. However, the La Grange Public

Library may not issue bonded debt without the Village's approval and property taxes are levied

by the Village on behalf of the Library. Therefore, while a general obligation of the Village,
principal and interest pertaining to the 56.2 million General Obligation Refunding Library
Bonds, Series 20128 is to be repaid with Library's tax levies. The outstanding Library Bonds

are offset by an intergovernmental receivable in the Statement of Net Position.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

The General Obligation Library Bonds, Series 2004 which were approved via voter referendum

were issued to fund construction of a new municipal library building. The 2004 Library bonds

were refunded in August,2012 due to favorable interest rates. Thc bond rcfunding rcsultcd in

interest savings in excess of $750,000 over the remaining life of the issue. The final maturity

date of the outstanding debt was not extended as a result of the refunding.

In preparation for the issuance of the Library Refunding bonds and the sale of $2.08 million
Altemate Revenue Water Bonds, the Village requested a meeting with Moody's Investors

Services in order to obtain a current bond rating for these issues. The Village President, staff
and the Village's fìnancial consultants met with Moody's to discuss financial operations,

econom ic development initiatives, management and current/future debt.

As a result of this meeting and further analysis by Moody's, a AaZ rating was assigned to the

Village of La Grange general obligation bonds and a stable credit outlook was issued. This

bond rating recognizes strong fïnancial conditions despite modest operating deficits in recent

years characterized by healthy reserve levels, manageable debt burden with limited future

borrowing plans. Moody's also notes that despite a substantial decline in assessed valuation in

2012, reflected by the triennial reassessment, the Village's tax base is expected to remain

stable over the long-term due to its affluent tax base and proximately to Chicago.

Additional information on the Village's long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the

Financial Statements, note # 6.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Village's composition is primarily residential with small commercial and industrial

components. The property tax revenue derived from the current housing stock is extremely

stable. The Village has also experienced an increase in residential housing due to construction

of new single family residences and additions. This has provided economic growth to the

property tax base. The commercial sector is stable as well as it is based on the purchase of food

and other necessary household items. Due to the utilization of a Tax Increment Financing (TIF)

District, the commercial sector base has increased in the last several years with the

revitalization of the downtown central business district.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with

a general overview of the Village's finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for
thè money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for additional frnancial

information should be directed to Lou Cipparrone, Finance Director, Village of La Grange, 53

S. La Grange Rd, La Grange, Illinois 60525.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April30,2015

Government

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where

applicable, of allowances
for uncollectibles)
Property taxes
Accounts
Accrued interest

Due from other governments
Due from fiduciary funds
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated (net of
accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Accrued ¡nterest payable

Deposits
Uneamed revenues

Other
Due to fiduciary funds
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLO\ilS OF RESOURCES
Deferred propely tax

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for maintenance of roadways
Restricted for public safety
Restricted for drug forfeiture
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

1,773,038

18.043.987 r 8, 188-052 36-232.039

55,819,564 24,2 r 5.044 80.034.608

$ 1,833,129 $
13,568,1 82

1,024,788 $
2,218,716

2,857,917
15,786,898

3,357,1l5
474,817

17,795

6,568,860
23,764

I 1 ,93 1,915

1,008,701
1,749

3,357 ,l 15

1,483,518
19,544

6,568,860
23,764

13,704,953

859,637
109,293

13,396
367,756

99,346
2,503

918,303
6,s6s,363

279,889
27,539
17,721
5,749

289,330

155,578
r,989,050

1,139,526
136,832
3l,l l7

373,505

388,676
2,503

r,073,881
8,554,413

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

8,935,597 2,764,856 I1,700,453

6.750.050 6.7s0.050

15,685,647 18.450.503

29,130,902
1,116,379

177,847
178,466

9.530.323

19,961,090 49,091,992
1,116,379

177,847
178,466

r r.0r9-421

$ 40,133,9t7 S 21,450,188 $ 61,584,105

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Expenses
Charges

for Services

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions ContributionsFUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities
General govemment
Public safety
Highways and streets

Interest

Total govemmental activities

Business-Type Activities
Water
Sewer
Parking

s 2,232,737 s
8,588,667
2,975,715

l6t,t32

910,087 s
631,923
349,757

84,3t6
1,081,362

s
78,31 I

517,648
t22.850

13.958.251 1,891,767 718.809 1.165.678

4,703,539
478,324

1,042,247

4,474,998
497,540
800.748

Total business-type activities 6.224,110 5.773.286

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT s 20,182,361 $ 7,665,051 $ 718,809 S I,165,678
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Net (Exnense) Revenue and Change in Net Position
Primarv Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

s (1,322,650) S

(7,794,117)
(1,026,948)

(38,282)

s (1,322,650)
(7,794,117)
(1,026,948)

(38,282\

(10,tgl,gg7) ( 10,l8l,997)

(228,541)
19,216

(241,499\

(228,541)
19,216

(241,499)

(450,824) (450,824\

(10,181,997) (450,824) (t0,632,821)

General Revenues

Taxes
Property
Replacement
Sales, local use

Utility
Telecommunications

Shared income
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, MAY I

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

12,036,971

1,854,974

38,278,943

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-6-

145,926 12,182,897

6,478,298
266,627

2,566,339
514,968
499,447

1,522,883
29,241

301,168
(142,000)

3,926

142,000

6,478,298
266,627

2,566,339
514,968
499,447

1,522,993
33,167

30t,t68

(304,898)

21,755,086

1,550,076

60,034,029

s 40,133,917 $ 21,450,188 S 61,584,105



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FI.JNDS

BALANCE SHEET

April30,2015

Motor
Fuel Tax

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where

applicable, of allowances

for uncollectibles)
Property tÐ(es

Accounts
Accrued interest

Due from other govemments

Due from other funds

Due from fiduciary funds

TOTAL ASSETS

General

$ 883,210 $

9,476,287

s

327,894 $

751,300

1,019

36,166

97,333 $

187,206
3,357,115

287,611
13,075

925,094
15,380

23

4e8l s36 S l-ll 671e s 284-539 S

ro,5ro s 36e,oer r,å;Í1i,3äg

5,605,000 2,600

3,357,115
474,817

14,094
6,568,860

15,380

23 764

rs-sr0 s 371-693 522.369.657
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LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

General

250,001 $

109,293
367,756

99,346

2 503

Motor
Fuel Tax

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

$ 609,636 $

609.636

5,60s,000

5,605.000

609.636 5.60s.000

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

$ 859,637
109,293
367,756

99,346
15,380

2.503
15,380

15.380 1.453.915

5,605,000
6.7s0.0s0

12.355.050

r s.380 13.808.965

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Deposits
Other
Due to other funds
Due to fiduciary funds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues - Library
Unavailable property tax revenues

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for maintenance of roadways

Restricted for public safetY

Restricted for drug forfeiture
Assigned for economic development

Assigned for debt service
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUND BALANCES

$

$l

828 .899

0s0

050

949

747,885

98r 5

$

Total deferred inflows of resources 6.

Total liabilities and defened inflows of resources 7

6.

7

4^

1,116,379
177,847
178,466

1,116,379
177,847

178,466
747,885

10,510

6.329,60s702

87

36 $ I

10,510

ß25.097\

1.n6.379 ß25.097) 10,510 356.3 r 3 8.s60.692

ll 6.179 284.539 $ 5.615.510 $ 371,693 $22,369,657$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2015

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are

not financial resources and, therefore, are not
repor-ted in the governmental funds
Less intemal service fund

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds
General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences

Interest payable is not reported in the governmental funds

Net pension obligation (Police Pension) is shown as an liability on the

statement of net position

Net pension obligation (Fire Pension) is shown as a liability on the

statement of net position

Net pension obligation (IMRF) is shown as a liability on the

statement of net position

Net other postemployment benefits obligation is shown
as a liability on the statement of net position

Intergovernmental receivable from the Library is not unearned

revenue on the statement of net position

The total net position of the intemal service fund are

included in the governmental activities in the

statement of net position

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements
-9-

$ 8,560,692

29,975,902
( I,450,916)

(6,450,000)
(608,848)

( 13,396)

(5,636)

(87,205)

(l15,471)

(216,506)

5,605,000

4,940,301

$ 40.133.9t7



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FLTNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Motor
Fuel Tax

. '

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Fines, licenses and permits

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Capiøl outlay
Debt service

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

General

$ 10,299,158 S

1,662,895

1,361,614
28,470

s96.819

$

516,648 1,081,362 622,850

2l
16.946

r ^098.329 622-851 267.775 16,455,225

137,308

2,146,709
8,467,350
1,769,843
2,186,350

s$ 26,521
92,984

148,1 87

83

$ lù,325,679
3,976,739

148,187

7,361,614
29,158

6r 3,848
666

t3 .948. 956 517 l4

2,146,709
8,330,042
1,768,843

2.245.594

2,186,350

2. r 86.3s0

760,000
r65.r45

760,000
t65.145

5t7_t

925-145 137.308 15,494,397

703-t 62

- l0-

l4 fi.088.021) ß02-294\ 130.467 960,828



General
Motor

Fuel Tax
Capital
Proiects

$ 925,000 $
(302.295).

Other Total
Government¿l Governmental

Funds Funds

- $ 1,277,295
(50.000) (r.419.295\

Debt
Service

10.509

80,467

275.846

818,828

7-741.864

orHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other frnancing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FIJND BALANCES

FLIND BALANCES, MAY I

FUND BALANCES, APRIL3O

s 50,000 $
0.067.000)

fi.0t7 0001

686,362 517,314 (465,316)

6.7l 6Ð5 s99 065 40-219

s7

302,295 $

622.705 302.295 (s0.000) fl42.000)

sR7 q 671e s l32s-097)$ 10.5t0 s 356.313 $ 8.560.692ll

See accompanying notes to financial statements
-il-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO

THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures;

however, they are capitalized in the statement of activities

Less internal services funds

Capital assets are depreciated on the statement of activities

Less internal services funds disposed capital assets

The repayment of long-term debt is reported as an

expenditure when due in governmental funds but as

a reduction of principaloutstanding in the statement

of activities
Less Library contribution

The change in compensated absences is shown as an expense

on the statement of activities

Accrual of interest is reported as interest expense on the

statement of activities

The change in the net pension asset (obligation) is shown as

an expense on the statement of activities

The change in the net pension obligation (IMRF) is shown as

an expense on the statement of activities

The change in the net other postemployment benehts payable (OPEB)

is shown as an expense on the statement of activities

Internal service funds are reported separately in the fund

financial statements

$ 818,828

1,628,759
(298,924)

(994,529)
372,281

760,000
(500,000)

32,081

4,013

(49,848)

(2,4t8)

(55,927\

140.658

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-12-
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FI.JNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2015

Internal
Service

Equipment
Water Parking Sewer Total Repla

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Accounts
Accrued interest

Due lrom sewer fund

Total cunent assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets

Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, at cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Due to water lund
Deposits
Uneamed decals
Interest payable

Bonds payable

Compensated absences payable

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Other postemployment benefits payable

Net pension obligation
Bonds payable

Compensated absences payable

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Iiabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

$ 140,079 $
t,467,6t7

883,966 $
751,099

743 $ 1,024,788 $ t45,089
- 2,218,716 3,340,595

884,290
I,t5l

r 3.000

3,701

l3-000

2.506.137 t,635,663 t25,154 4,266,954 3,489,385

598

t24,4n 1,008,70 r

t,749

423,200
t 6,83 r,9 r 8

ß.927.2281

l,349,838
t2,050,92t
(4.019,048)

4,3 t8,733
(2,067,244\

1,773,038
33,201,572

( r 5,013,520)
5,465,177

(4,0t4,261)

8.327.890 9.38r.71r r -489 r 9.96 r ^090 1.450.916

t0,834,027 n,0t7,374 2,376,643 24,228,044 4,940,301

278,412
r4,689

5,749

9,271

289,330

1,477

3,579
r3,000

279,889
27,539
I 3,000
5,749

289,330
t7,721
90,000

t7,721
90,000
5ó.03ó 9.542 65 -578

462,607 308,143 18,056 788,806

t2,193
34,641

I,826, I 58
32,620

3,924
23,096

4,663
11,547

20,780
69,284

I,826, I 58
72,82820,427 t9,781

1.905.612 47.447 35.99r r.989.050

2.368.2t9 355.590 2-777-856

8,327,890
137.918

9,381,71I
1.280.073

2,251,489
7 t -107

19,961,090
r.489.098

1,450,916
3.489.385

$ 8.465.808 $ 10.66r.784 $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-t3-
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VII,LAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILI,INOIS

PROPRIË,TARY I.-UNDS
STATEMENl' OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CI.IANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended April 30, 20 I 5

Water Parking Sewer Total

lnternal
Service

Equipment
Ref¡lacement

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales

Sewer fees

Water meter installation
Sewer connection fees

Delinquent penalties

Fire lines
Parking mctcr collections
Parking decal sales

Parking fines
Charges lor services
Miscellaneous income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Other
Depreciation

1'otal operating expenses

oPERA]'ING TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Interest expense

Gain on sale of investments

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

rNcoME (r.oss) BEFoRE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total translers

CFIANGE IN NF,T POSI'TION

NET POSITION, MAY I

4,882 4,882

4,474,998 800,748 497,540 5,773,286 488,052

s 4,347,202 $

61,994

49,044
I 1,876

$ $ 4,347,202 S

490,340
6t,994
7,200

49,044
r 1,87ó

82,450
502,787
215,5 I t

490,340

7,200

82,450
502,787
2t5,51I

445,96
42,09

I,38 t,709
32,673

2,699,970
8 r,280

464,748

308,59ó
8,595

48,732

49,690
62,7n

2,395,31t
56,337

2,807,t34
t47,971
774,198

705,006
r 5,069
58,432
r 7,001

246,739 372,281

4,660,380 t,042,247 478,324 6, r 80,95 r 372,28t

(185,382) (24t,499) t9,2t6 (407,66s) ns,77t

2,254 1,672 - 3,926 t0,387
(43,159) (43,r5e)

____14,500
(40.90s) 1,672 ß9,233) 24,887

(226,287\ (239.827\ 19,2t6 (44ó,898) 140,658

t42,000 142,000

r42,000 142,000

(226,287',)

8,692,09s

(97,827)

10,7s9,6t I

t9,2t6

2,303,380

(304,8e8)

2l,755,086

140,658

4,799,643

$ 8.465.808 $ r0.ó6r.784 S 2.322.596 $ 21.450.188 $ 4.940.301

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

S]'ATEMENT OF CASTI FLOWS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Weter Parkins Tofel

Internal
Service

Equipment
Reolacement

CASH FLO}VS FROÙI OPERATING AC'I'IVITIES
Receipts lrom customers and users

Payments to suppliers
Payments to enrployees

Receipts (payments) to internal service funds

Net cash lrom opcrating activities

CASH FLOWS FROù¡ CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on bonds

Interest paid on bonds

Crants
Acquisition ol capital assets

Net cash lrom capital and related
fìnancing activities

CASH ¡ìI,O}VS FROM NONCAPITAL ANI)
RELATED FINÂNCING ACTIVITIES
Payment to other funds

Transfers in (out)

Net cash from noncapital and related

financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROÑT INVESTING ACTIVTTIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds flrom sale olinvestments
lnterest received

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY I

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

2t2.482 39.062 s0.036 301.580 4

$ 4,413,r44 $

(2,765,039)
( r,389, r 58)

/46.46s\

800,748
(55,420)

(695,e7 r )
( r 0,29s)

$ 450,309
(65,t47)

(294,702\
40.424\

$ s,664,201 $
(2,885,60ó)
(2,379,83 r )

(97. r 84) 476,t40

76.140

(8s,000)
(44,230)

(85,000)
(44,230)

(289.352\ ß7.352\ (326.704\ 084.424\

(4 I 8.582) (37.3s2\ 1455. (284.424\

142,000

( r 2,000) ( r2,000)
r42,000

142.000 fl2.000) I

(1,247,s34)
248,000

t,t02

(1,247,299)
I,241, t 00

2.646

(2,494,833)
r,489, t 00

3,748

(2,745,750)
2,16t,4n

9.772

098.432\ (3,553) fl.001.985) 674,567\

(t,204,532)

t.344.61I

t77,509

706.457

(1,026,339)

2.05t.t27

(382,85 r )

s27,940

ó84

59

$ 140.079 $ ßß3.S66 $ '143 s 1.024. ß s t45,0ßg

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS)TO NETCASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Miscellaneous non-operating receipts
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Defened revenue

Due to/from other funds

Other postemployment benefits
Net pension obligation - IMRF
Compensated absences

Water Parkins Sewer Totnl

Internal
Se¡ryice

Equipment
Renl¡cement

$ (185,382) $ (241,499) $ 19,216 $ (407,665) $ ll5,77l

464,747 246,739 62,711 774,197 312,281

(6r,854)
12,525

(10,602)
(55)

1,594

27,n5

(47,231)
1,446

(4,01l)

r3,000
1,206

242
3.457

( r0e,085)
r3,9r6

(13,029)
27,115

( I I,912)

( r3,000)
3,154

725
2.169

I,0t5
484

3.679

5,37s
1,451

9.305

NET CASH FROùT OPERATING ACTIVITIES s 2t2.482 $ 39.062 $ 50.036 $ 301.580 $ 476.140

NONCASH ITEMS
Amortization $ 362$ $ $ 362$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

April30,2015

Pension
Trust Funds

Agency
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value

U.S. Government and agency securities
Insurance contracts
Stocks
Corporate bonds

Municipalbonds
Receivables

Assessments
Accrued interest
Due from general fund

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to the general fund
Due to bondholders
Due to property owners

Total liabilities

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

$ 573,561 $

2,652,047
10,839,548
10,501,835

2,445,731
265,760

38,538
2,503

27,317,020 $ 43,568

$ 23,764
19,803

l

$ 43,568

2

41,063

$ 27,317,020

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other

Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments

Interest

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Adm inistrative expenses
Miscellaneous

Totaldeductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May I

s 2,021,325
366,444

962

2,388,731

1,470,819
337,476

1,808,295

(146,269)

1,662,026

4,050,757

3,198,664
4,000

35 943

3,238,607

812,150

26,504,870

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- l8 -
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2015

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of La Grange, Illinois (the Village) have been

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and

financial reporting principles. The more signifìcant of the Village's accounting policies are

described below.

a. Reporting Entity

The Village was incorporated June ll, 1879. The Village is a municipal corporation
governed by an elected seven-member board. The Village operates under a

Board-Manager form of government and provides the following services as

authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, water
and sanitation, public improvements, planning and zoning and general administrative
services. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these fìnancial
statements present the Village (the primary government) and its component units.
The component units discussed below are included in the Village's reporting entity
because of the signifìcance of their operational or financial relationship with the
Village.

Based on the criteria of GASB Statement No.6l, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, there are no

component units for which the Village is considered to be frnancially accountable.

The Village's financial statements include pension trust funds

Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village's police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees
Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these

employees and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members

appointed by the Village's President, one pension beneficiary elected by the
membership and two police employees elected by the membership constitute
the pension board. The Village and PPERS participants are obligated to fund
all PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of lllinois is

authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized to approve
the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels.
Although it possesses many characteristics of a legally separate government,

PPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole

-19-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Police Pension Employees Retirement System (Continued)

b.

purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the Village's police
èmployees and because of the fiduciary nature of such activities. PPERS is
reported as a pension trust fund. No separate stand-alone financial statements

are issued by PPERS.

Firefìghters' Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village's fìrefighters participate in the Firefighters' Pension Employees
Retirement System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these

employees and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members

appointed by the Village's President, one pension beneficiary elected UV lle
membership and two firefîghter employees elected by the membership

constitute the pension board. The Village and FPERS participants are obligated
to fund all FPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is
authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized to approve
the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels.

Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally separate

government, FPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary government

because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the

Village's firefighters because of the fiduciary nature of such activities. FPERS

is reþorted as a pension trust fund. No separate stand-alone financial
statements are issued by FPERS.

Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to report on its frnancial position and the changes in its
financial position and cash flows. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal

compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to
certain governmental functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary and

fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general

activities, including the collection and disbursement of restricted and committed
monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition and construction of capital assets

(capital piojects funds) and the accumulation of restricted, committed or assigned

resources for the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt (debt

service funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general

government not accounted for in some other fund.

-20 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b. Fund Accounting (Continued)

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the

private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or usefulto sound

financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided

either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or the other departments or agencies

primarily within the Village (intcrnal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,

including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. When

these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, a pension trust fund

is used. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the Village holds

on behalf of others as their agent.

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the

statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfìduciary activities of the

Village. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these

statements. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated for this purpose.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities

which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expense of a
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specifìc function or segment. Program

revenues include (l ) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment

and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or

capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds

and frduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide

financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

-21 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The Village reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
another fund.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for the operation of certain street

maintenance programs and to fund specific capital projects as authorized by

the Illinois Depaftment of Transportation. The Village has elected to report the

Motor Fuel Tax Fund as a major fund.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the costs of various infrastructure

improvements to village property. These costs are financed by transfers from
the General and Motor Fuel Tax Funds, grants and bond proceeds.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources that are used to repay general

long-term debt obligations. The Village has elected to report this as a major
fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds

The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the water operations.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the sewer operations.

The Parking Fund accounts for the activities of the parking lots and mctcrs.

Additionally, the Village reports the following funds:

The Internal Service Equipment Replacement Fund is used to accumulate

monies for the future replacement of equipment. Financing is provided by
payments from the General, ETSB, Water, Parking and Sewer Funds.

Pension Funds are used to account for the Police Pension and Firefighters'
Pension activities.

Agency Funds are used to account for noncommitment debt of the special

service areas and special assessments.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources

reasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund

and fiduciary fund financial statements, with the exception of the agency funds

which do noi have a measurement focus. Revenues and additions are recorded when

earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred.

Property taxes àre recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,

intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as

all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual basis of
accounting is used by all governmental funds. Under the modifìed accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they

become bãth measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the

transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current

period. The Village recognizes property taxes when they become both. measurable

ànd available in the period intended to finance. A 60-day availability period (90 days

for sales tax) is uÀed for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund

revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when

due oi when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments

to be made early in the following year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses,

interest revenue and charges for services. Sales and income taxes owed to and ftnes

collected by the State of lllinois at year end on behalf of the Village also are

recognized as revenue. Permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because

generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and exp-enses from -non-operating
items. Opãrating revenuès and expenses generally result from providing services in

connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.

The Village reports unavailable and unearned revenue on its fìnancial statements.

Unavailable/deferred revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the

measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period for
governmental funds or earned at the government-wide level. Unearned revenues

ãrise when resources are received by the government before it has legal claim to

them as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when revenue recognition criteria-are met, or

when the government has a legal claim to the resources by meeting all eligibility
requiremeñts, the liability for unavailable/deferred/unearned revenue is removed

from the financial statements and revenue is recognized.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e. Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village's proprietary funds consider
all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are

classified as "due from other fi.¡nds" or "due to other funds" on the financial
statements. Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as "interfund
receivables/payables."

g. Prepaid ltems/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

h. Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges and storm sewers) are reported in the

applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defìned by the Village as assets with an

initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 for furniture, equipment and vehicles
and $100,000 for building, building improvements and infrastructure plus an

estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost

or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are

recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, (i.e., those
reported by governmental activities) the Village chose to include all such items
regardless of their acquisition date. The Village was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtrending (i.e., estimating the
current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an

appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated

f
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h. CapitalAssets(Continued)

acquisition year). As the Village constructs or acquires additional capital assets each
period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical
cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are
essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity
or effrciency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the
case of donations, the Village values these capital assets at the estimated fair value of
the item at the date of its donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Building and building improvements
Improvements
Water distribution system
Sewer distribution system
Vehicles, equipment and furniture
Intangible assets
Infrastructure

l 0-s0
r 0-35
l0-40

40
2-2s
5-l 0
50

i. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds and
governmental activities is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees.

j. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as

liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or
proprietary fund financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

j Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and

discounts, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as

other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt

proceeds received, are reported as expenditures and expenses.

k. Fund Balance/Ìrlet Position

In the fund financial statementso governmental funds report nonspendable fund

balance for amounts that are either not spendable in form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for
amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specifrc
purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities. None of the restricted fund

balance result from enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Committed fund

balance is constrained by formal actions of the Village's Board of Trustees, which is
considered the Village's highest level of decision-making authority. Formal actions

include ordinances approved by the Board of Trustees. Assigned fund balance

represents amounts constrained by the Village's intent to use them for a specific
purpose. The authority to assign fund balance when deemed necessary or desirable

has been delegated to the Village Manager by the Village Board of Trustees. Any
residual fund balance is reported as unassigned.

The Village's flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest

level of constraint are expended frrst. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available

for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds

to be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds.

The Village has established fund balance reserve policies for its general fund. The

General Fund targets six months of operating expenditures as unassigned fund

balance. The Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds do not have

established fund balance limits due to the nature of the transactions accounted for in
these funds.

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position is legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net position has not been

restricted by enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Net investment in capital

assets, represents the book value of capital assets less any long-term debt principal

outstanding issued to construct capital assets.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

l. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

In addition to assetso the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate

section for defened outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,

deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/

expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for defened inflows of resources. This separate

financial statement elemento defened inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.

m Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except the pension trust funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the

financial statements as "cash and investments." In addition, investments are separately held
by several of the Village's funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds
are held separately from those of other funds. The investments are govemed by three
separate investment policies; one policy for the Village adopted by the Village Board of
Trustees and one policy each for the Police Pension Fund and the Firefighters' Pension

Fund approved by their respective boards.

The Village's investment policy authorizes the Village to make deposits/invest in insured
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.

agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of
securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or agreements to
repurchase these same obligations, short-term commercial paper rated within the three

highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, Illinois Funds and lllinois
Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET).

-27 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Illinois Funds is an investment pool which was created by the lllinois State Legislature

under the control of the State Comptroller that maintains a $1 per share value which is
equal to the participants fair value and the IMET, a not-for-profit investment trust formed

pursuant to the lllinois Municipal Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from

the participating members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment

company. Investments in IMET are valued at IMET's share price, the price for which the

investment could be sold.

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest

investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands

of the Village and conforming to all state and local statues governing the investment of
public funds, using the "prudent person" standard for managing the overall portfolio. The

primary objective of the policy is safety (preservation of capital and protection of
investment principal), liquidity and yield.

a. Village Deposits with Financial lnstitutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the

event of a bank's failure, the Village's deposits may not be returned to it. The

Village's investment policy requires pledging of collateral held by the Village's
agent with a fair value of I l0% of all bank balances in excess of federal depository

insurance.

Village Investments

In accordance with its investment policy, the Village limits its exposure to interest

rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and

maximizing yields for funds not needed within a lS-month pcriod. The investment

policy limits the maximum maturity length of investments in the General Fund and

the Special Revenue Funds to l5 months from date of purchase. Investments in other

funds may be purchased with maturities to match future projects or liability
requirements. In addition, the policy requires the Village to structure the investment

portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations,

thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity.

The Village limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security

will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in short-term

commercial paper rated A+ to AAA by Standard and Poor's. Illinois Funds and the

IMET are rated AAA by Standard and Poor's.

b.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

b. Villagelnvestments(Continued)

Custodial credit risk for investments is the riskthat, in the event of the failure of the

counterparty to the investment, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the
Village's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by a third party acting as the Village's agent

separate from where the investment was purchased or by the trust department of the

bank where purchased, in the Village's name. Illinois Funds and the money market
mutual fund are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk - The Village's investment policy limits investments to
the amount of the portfolio that can be invested in any one investment vehicle as

follows:

Diversification Instrument
Percent of
Portfolio

U.S. Treasury obligations (bills, notes and bonds)
U.S. Government agency securities and instrumentalities
of government sponsored corporations

Bankers acceptances (BAs)
Repurchase agreements (REPOs) (monies in the public funds or
other money market funds are not to be included in this limitation)

Certificates of deposit (CDs) commercial banks/savings and loans
Certificates of deposit (CDs) credit unions
Illinois Public Funds (or similar types of investments/money
market pools)

Commercial paper (CP)

l00o/o

50o/o

2s%

25o/o

100%
100%

50%
t0%

Diversification by Financial Institution

Bankers Acceptances (BAs) - no more than 25o/o of the total portfolio with any one
institution.

Repurchase Agreements (REPOs) - no more than25o/o of the total portfolio with any
one institution.

Certificates of Deposit (CDs) - commercial banks, savings and loan association,
credit unions - no more than 50% of the total portfolio with any one institution.

Local Government Investment Pool - The lllinois Public Funds or similar type of
investment/money market pools - no more than 50%.
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3. RECEIVABLES

Property taxes for 2014 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1,2014 on property values
assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year
(by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on
or about February 1,2015 and August 1,2015 and are payable in two installments, on or
about March 1,2015 and September 1,2015. The County collects such taxes and remits
them periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 3Yo of the tax
levy and 5%o of the debt service levy to reflect actual collection experience.

The 2015 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January l,
2015, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30,2015, as the tax has not yet
been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December20l5 and, therefore, the
levy is not measurable at April 30, 201 5.

The following receivables are included in due from other governments on the statement of
net position:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITI ES

Library
Income taxes
Sales taxes
Utility taxes
MFT allotment
9-l-l fees

TOTAL

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2015 was as follows

$ 5,605,000
250,933
510,574
163,587
36,166

2 600

$ 6,568,860

4.

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

GOVERNMENTAL ACTI VITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress
Land
Land right of way

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Improvements
Street infrastructure
Storm sewers
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

s 2,844,502 $ 972,167 $
539,948

7,575,298

$ 3,8 16,669
539,948

7,575,298
10,959,748 972,167 I1,931,915

66,992

5,898,888
2,637,698

l7 ,97 1,738
1,822,410
6.921.494

34.662,6t8 656,592

5,898,888
2,637,688

17,614,070
l,g22,4lo
6,689,562

357,668

298,924
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

COVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Improvements
Street infrastructure
Storm sewers
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL
ASSETS, NET

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Building and building improvements
Water distribution system
Sewer distribution system
Parking improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Building and building itnprovemerrts
Water distribution system
Sewer distribution system
Parking improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL
ASSETS, NET

16.280.694 994.529

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

$ 4,008,199
1,726,500
4,798,874
|,314,456
4.432.665

$ 125,841 $
60,880

329,861
24,449

453.498

$ 4,134,040
1,787,380
5,128,735
1,338,905
4.819.17166.992

66.992 t7.208.231

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 18,381,924 ß37,937) r 8.043.987

$ 29.341.672 s 634.230 $ $ 29.975.902

$ 1,370,735 $
l12,95l 289,3s2

$ 1,370,735
402,303

$

1,493,686 289,352 1.773.038

37,352

33,t64,220 37,352

1 96,1 84
461,525
60,039
50,555

5.89s
t4,239,322 774,198

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 18.924.898 t736.846)

9,396,936
16,275,984
4,246,653
2,692,210

562,437

9,396,936
16,275,984
4,294,005
2,692,210

562.437

33,201,572

1,972,979
7,930,146
1,972,391
I ,g I 8,901

544,905

2,169,163
8,39 t ,67 I

2,032,430
1,869,456

550.800
15,013,520

l 8. I 88.052

$ 20,408,584 S (447,494) S $ 19,961,090
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4.

5.

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

s 77,661
374,015
542,853

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES

RISK MANAGEMENT

s 994,529

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to and

destructioñ of assets and omissions; injuries to employees; illnesses of employees; and

natural disasters.

The Village purchases medical insurance from a private insurance company and

participatei in a municipal risk management pool for general liability coverage. Premiums

itaue 6e"n displayed as expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. The amount of
settlements did not exceed the insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA).
IRMA is àn organization of municipalities and special districts in northeastern lllinois,
which have formed an association under the lllinois Intergovernmental Cooperations

Statute to pool their risk management needs. IRMA administers a mix of self-insurance

and commèrcial insurance coverages; property/casualty and workers' compensation claim

administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration
services; extensivè risk managemenlloss control consulting and training programs; and a

risk information system and fìnancial reporting service for its members.

The Village's payments to IRMA are displayed on the frnancial statements as

expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of each

ocòurrenc" and IRMA has a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance at various

amounts above that level.

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the

member on the Board of Directors. The Village does not exercise any control over the

activities of IRMA beyond its representation on the Board of Directors.

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member's eligible
revenue as defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modifrcation factors based on

past member loss experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of
inVA attributable to a membership year during which they were members. Supplemental

contributions may be required to fund these deficits.
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6. LONG.TERM DEBT

a. General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and

construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued

for general government activities. These bonds, therefore, are reported in the

proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary revenues.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of
the Village. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

F'und Debt
Retired bv

Balances Balances

lssuances Reductions 30

$6,205,000 20128 General

Obligation Re tunding t.ibrary
Bonds, due in annual
installments of $50,000 to

5ó00,000 lrorn September 25,

2012 to December 1,2024,
interest lrom 2.000% to
2.125o/o. Service $ 6,105,000 $ $ 500,000 $ 5,605,000 $ s15,000

Current
Portion

Debt

$2,785,000 Altemate
Revenue Refunding Bonds
dated December 22, 2005 due
in annual installments from
$135,000 to $295,000 plus
interest lrom 3.20o/o Io 3.90Vo

through December l, 201'1.+

,TOTAL 
GENERAL

OBLIGATION BONDS

Service 1. r 05,000
Debt

260.000 845,000 270.000

s 7.210.000 s 760.000 s $ 785 .000$

* While a general obligation of the Village, the principal and interest is to be repaid

with the La Grange Public Library's (the Library) tax levy paid to the Village.

Utility taxes are pledged for the retirement of the General Obligation Bonds

(Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2005. Property tax levies have been abated to

date. During the current fiscal year, the pledge of utility and telecommunication

taxes of 5302,295 was approximately 29.8o/o of total utility and telecommunication
tax revenues.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Fund Debt
Retired by

Balances
May I

Balances
April 30

Current
PortionIssuances Reductions

$2,080,000 Alternate
Revenue Bonds Series 20 l2A
dated September 25, 20 12,

due in annual installments
from $85,000 to $135,000
plus interest from 2.00% to
2.7 0%o thr ough December l,
2032.

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

Fiscal Year
Ending

April 30,

Water $ 1,995,000 $ $ 8s,000 $ 1,910,000 $ 90.000

$ 1.995.000 $ s 85-000 $ 1.9t0.000 s 90.000

Water fee revenues are pledged for the retirement of the General Obligation Bonds
(Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2012A. Property tax levies have been abated to

date. During the current fiscal year, the pledge of water fees of $129,230 was

approximately 2.97o/o of water fee revenue.

b. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

20t6
20t7
20t8
20t9

Govemmental Tvpe
Altemate Revenue Bonds

ffi
$ 270,000 $

280,000
295,000

32,545
22,285
l r,505

TOTAL $ 845,000 $ óó.335

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Govemmental Type Business-Type

Ending Library G.O. Bonds Water G.O. Bonds

April 30, Principal Interest Principal lnterest

20t6
20t7
20t8
20t9
2020
2021

$ 5r5,000 $
525,000
s30,000
545,000
555,000
570,000

l 12,850 $
102,550
92,050
8 t,450
70,550
59,450

90,000 $

90,000
90,000
90,000
95,000
95,000

42,530
40,730
38,930
37, r 30
35,330
33,430
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

b. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued)

Fiscal Year Governmental Type
Ending Library G.O. Bonds

April30. Principal Interest

Business-Type
Water G.O. Bonds

Principal Interest

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
203t
2032
2033
2034

$ 575,000 $
590,000
ó00,000
600,000

48,050 $
36,550
24,750
12,750

95,000 $
100,000
100,000
105,000
r 10,000
I10,000
I t5,000
I 15,000
r20,000
r25,000
130,000
135,000

3 1,530
29,630
27,630
2s,630
23,s30
2t,220
18,?45
r6,r00
¡3,340
10,340
7,090
3,645

TOTAL s 5,605,000 $ ó4r,000 $ r,9r0,000 $ 456,510

c. Other Changes in Long-Term Debt

Changes in other governmental activities long-term liabilities during the fiscal year
were as follows:

Governmental Activities

Balances
May I Additions Retirements Anril 30

Balances Current
Portion

General obligation bonds

Net pension obligation - IMRF

Net pension obligation -
police pension

Net pension obligation -
fire pension

Other postemployment benefìt*

Compensated absences payable*

TOTAL

s 7,210,000 $

I 13,053

$ 760,000 $ 6,450,000 $

- ll5,47l

785,000

2,418

(t7,943) 23,579 5,636

87,20s

216,506

608,848 r33,303

$ 8,167,554 $ 134,206 $ 8r8.094$7.483,666$ 9r8,303

* The Village's General Fund has historically been used to retire the compensated
absences and other postemployment benefit liabilities.

60,936

160,579

640,929

26,269

55,92',t

26,013 58,094
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

c. Other Changes in Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Balances
May I Additions Retirements

Balances
April 30

Current
Portion

General obligation bonds

Unamortized bond premium

Net pension obligation - IMRF

Other postemployment benefit

Compensated absences
payable

TOTAL

$ I,995,000 $

6,521

67,833

15,405

$ 85,000 $

362

s.2s

1,910,000 $

6,r59

69,284

20,780

38-406

8s,000

(t9.216

t,45 t

5,375

t4.556

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Transfers between funds during the year were as follows:

Fund

t29.t02 2

$ 2,213,86t $ 21,382 $ 90,614 $ 2,144,ó29 $ 154,216

7

Transfers
In

Transfers
Out

General
Emergency Telephone Systems Board
Capital Projects
Parking
Debt Service

$ 50,000

925,000
142,000
302,295

$ 1,067,000
50,000

302,295

o

TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 1,419,295 $ 1,419,295

$925,000 transferred to the Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund. This
transfer represents the General Fund's portion of infrastructure maintenance and
improvements.

$142,000 transferred to the Parking Fund from the General Fund. This transfer funds
the additional costs associated with the general maintenance and operations of the
parking structure.

$50,000 transferred to the General Fund from the Emergency Telephone Systems
Board Fund. This transfer is to ofßet the costs of personnel attributable directly to
the operation of the emergency telephone system.

a

a
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7. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSUR-ES (Continued)

9302,295 transferred to the Debt Service Fund from the Capital Projects Fund. This
transfer is for funding the Alternate Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued to fund
the completion of the residential street light program.

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General
General

Foreign Fire Insurance
Asset Forfeiture

$ 750
14,630

8.

TOTAL $ 15,380

General Fiduciary s 21,261

. All relate to operating activity for the funds. These amounts will be repaid within one
year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a. Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Village's attorney, the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the Village.

b. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Village expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

9. EMPLOYEE RETIR-EMENT SYSTEMS

The Village contributes to four defined benefit pension plans, IMRF and SLEP, agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement systems; the Police Pension Plan which is a
single-employer pension plan and the Firefighters' Pension Plan which is also a

single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and
employer contributions for all three plans are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes
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9 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

(ILCS) and can only be amended by the lllinois General Assembly. None of the pension

plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly
àvailable report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for
IMRF as a whole, but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained from
IMRF online at www.imrf.org.

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan or Firefrghters'
Pension Pian or the Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel Plan) hired in positions that

meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as

participating members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired

þrior to January l,2}ll, are eligible for Tier I benefits. For Tier I employees, pension

benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55

(reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are

entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to I

2l3o/o of their final rate of eamings, for each year of credited service up to I 5 years, and 2Vo

for each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January l,20ll, are eligible for Tier2 benefits. For Tier 2

"rploye.r, 
pension benefìts vest after l0 years of service. Participating members who

retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with l0 years of credited

service arè entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount

equal to l2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to l5
years, and2Yo for each year thereafter.

a. Plan Descriptions

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) also provides death and disability
benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state

statute. Participating members are required to contribute 4.5o/o of their annual salary

to IMRF. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to

fund the IMRF as specified by statute. The employer contribution for the year ended

December 3l,2Ol4 and 2015 was 13.040 , and 12.41%o. respectfully, of covered
payroll.

Sheriff s Law Enforcement Personnel

Sheriffls Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) provides two tiers of pension benefits.

Employees hired priorto January l,20ll, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. ForTier I

employees, having accumulated at least 20 years of SLEP service and terminating

IMRF participation on or after January l, 1988, may elect to retire at or after age 50

with no early retirement discount penalty. SLEP members meeting these two
qualifications are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an

amount equal to 2.5o/o of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up

to 32 yeari or 80% of their final rate of eamings. For those SLEP members retiring with
less than 20 years of SLEP service, the regular IMRF pension formula applies.
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Sheriffl s Law Enforcement Personnel (Continued)

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not

yet receiving them
Current employees

Vested
Nonvested

Employees hired on or after January l,20ll, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For

Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating
members who retire at age 50 (reduced benefits) or after age 55 (full benefits) with
ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable

monthly for life, in an amount equal to2.5o/o of their final rate of earnings, for each

year of credited service up to 30 years of service to a maximum of 75%o.

SLEP also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all

other requirements are established by state statute. Participating members are

required to contribute 6.50/o of their annual salary to SLEP. The Village is required to

contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specified by statute.

The employer contribution rate for the calendar year 2014 and 2015 was 17.l3o/o and

17.20yo, respectfully, of covered payroll.

Police Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer

contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-l) and

may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Police

Pension Plan as a pension trust fund. The Police Pension Plan does not issue separate

f,rnancial statements.

Plan Membership

At April 30,2015, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

38

t7
9

64TOTAL

-39 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

BeneJìts Provided

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as

well as death and disability benefits. Tier I employees (those hired prior to
January 1,201l) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable
service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the
salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the
lastday, whichever is greater. The annual benefìt shall be increased by2.5% of such
salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
oî75o/o of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less than 20 years of
credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The
monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January l, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of
retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the
ori ginal pens ion and 3o/o compounded annual ly thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January l, 201l) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers' salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of % of the annual change in the Consumer Price
Index or 3%o compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such
salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75Yo of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50
and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., %Yo for each month under 55). The monthly
benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on January I't
after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension stafting date,
whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January
thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3o/o or % of the change in the Consumer Price
Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Conlributions

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.9lYo of their base salary to the
Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to finance the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined
by an enrolled actuary. Effective January 1,201l, the Village has until theyear2040
to fund 90o/oof the past service cost forthe Police Pension Plan. Forthe yearended
April 30, 2015, the Village's contribution was 47.32Yo of covered payroll.
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9. RMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Policy

ILCS limit the Police Pension Fund's (the Fund) investments to those allowable by

ILCS and require the Fund's Board of Trustees to adopt an investment policy which

can be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Trustees. The Fund's investment

policy authorizes the Fund to make deposits/invest in insured commercial banks,

iavings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies,

insurãd credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities

issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or agreements to repurchase

these samé obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper rated

within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services,

investment grade corporate bonds and lllinois Funds. The Fund may also invest in

certain non-U.S. obligations, Illinois municipal corporations tax anticipation

warrants, veteran's loans, obligations of the State of Illinois and its political

subdivisions, Illinois insurance company general and separate accounts, mutual

funds and corporate equity securities and real estate investment trusts.

The Fund's investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following

target allocation across asset classes:

Asset Class Target

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Fixed Income

Domestic Equities

International Equities

Emerging Markets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

40%

37%

l5o/o

l.t0%

5.70Yo

s.70%

5.70%3o/o

5% 0.50o/o

ILCS limit the Fund's investments in equities, mutual funds and variable annuities to

65%o. Securities in any one company should not exceed 5o/o of the total fund. The

blended asset class is comprised of all other asset classes to allow for rebalancing the

portfolio.
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment P olicy (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on the Fund's investments was determined
using an asset allocation study conducted by the Fund's investment management
consultant in January 2015 in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates

of return (net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) were developed for
each major assets class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates or
arithmetic real rates of return excluding inflation for each major asset class included
in the Fund's target asset allocation as of April 30,2015 are listed in the table above.

Investment Valuations

All investments in the plan are stated at fair value and are recorded as of the trade
date. Fair value is based on quoted market prices at April 30 for debt securities,
equity securities and mutual funds and contract values for insurance contracts.
Illinois Funds, an investment pool created by the state legislature under the control of
the State Treasurer, is a money market mutual fund that maintains a $l per share
value.

Inve stme nt C oncenlrations

There are no significant investments (other than lJnited States Government
guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represent 5%o or more of the

Fund's investments.

Investmenl Rate of Return

For the year ended April 30, 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 3.81%. The
money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits w íth Financ ial Institutíons

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the
event of a bank's failure, the Fund's deposits may not be returned to them. The
Fund's investment policy requires all bank balances to be covered by federal
depository insurance.
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund's debt

securities as of April 30,2015:

Investment Maturities lin Years)

Investment TYDe Fair Value
Less

than I l-5 6-10
Greater
than l0

FIXED INCOME
SECURITIES $ 3.s70,469 $ 227.273 $ 2,218,190 S 979,213 $ 145,793

In accordance with its investment policy, the Fund limits its exposure to interest rate

risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and

maximizing yields for funds not needed for expected current cash flows. The

investment policy does not limit the maximum maturity length of investments in the

Fund.

Credit Risk

The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security

will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in obligations
guaranteed by the United States Government, securities issued by agencies of the

United States Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the United

States Government and investment grade corporate bonds rated at or above BBB- by

Standard and Poor's, Baa3 by Moody's and BBB- by Fitch by at least two of the

three rating agencies. However, certain fixed income securities are not rated.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the Fund

requires all security transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be

processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments

held by a third party acting as the Fund's agent separate from where the investment

was purchased in the Fund's name. The money market mutual funds and equity

mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability

The components of the net pension liability of the Police Pension Plan as of April 30,

2015, caiculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 67, were as follows:

$ 33,289,154
17,006,042
16,283,I I I

See the schedule of changes in the employer's net pension liability and related ratios

in the required supplementary information for additional information related to the

funded status of the Fund.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed

as of April 30,2015 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions.

Actuarialvaluation date April30,20l5

Actuarial cost method Entry-age
Normal

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Village's net pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability

Assumptions
Inflation

Salary increases

Interest rate

Cost of living adjustments

Asset valuation method

51.09o/o

3.00%

4.00o/o-10.10%o

7.00%

3.00%

Market Value

Mortality rates were based on the L&,A 2012 lllinois Police 100% Sex Distinct

Table.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7o/o. Cash flow
projections were used to determine the extent which the plan's future net position

will be able to cover future benefit payments. To the extent future benefrt payments

are covered by the plan's projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan

investments is used to determine the portion of the net pension liability associated

with those payments. To the extent future benefìt payments are not covered by the

plan's projected net position, the municipal bond rate is used to determine the

portion of the net pension liability associated with those payments. The plan's

projected net position is expected to cover future benefìt payments in full for the

current employees.

Discount Rate Sensilivity

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the

discount rate. The table below presents the pension liability of the Village calculated

using the discount rate of 7Vo as well as what the Village's net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower

(6Yo) or I percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:

l%o Decrease

6%\

Current
Discount Rate

(7o/o\
l7o Increase

(8%\

Net pension liability

Firefighters' Pension Plan

Plan Administration

$ 20,351,816 $ 16,283,111 $ 12,884,156

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters' Pension Plan. Although this is

a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer

contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/4-l) and

may be amended only by the lllinois legislature. The Village accounts for the

Firefighters' Pension Plan as a pension trust fund. The Firefighters' Pension Plan

does not issue separate financial statements.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Membership

At April 30,2015, the Firefighters' Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them

Current employees
Vested
Nonvested

28

l0
l0

TOTAL

Benefits Provided

The Firefìghters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier I employees (those hired prior

to January l,20ll) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to

one-half of the salary attached to the rank held at the date of retirement. The annual

benefit shall be increased by 2.5o/o of such salary for each additional year of service

over20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75Yoof such salary. Employees with

at least ten years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age

60 and rec"ìue a reduced benefìt. The monthly benefit of a covered employee who

retired with 20 or more years of service after January l, 1977 shall be increased

annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon

reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3o/o

compounded annual ly thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January l, 201I ) attaining the age of 55 or

older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual

retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total

salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last

120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Firefighters' salary for pension purposes is capped

at $106,800, plus the lesser of Yzof the annual change in the Consumer Price Index

or 3o/o compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2% of such salary for

each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75o/o of

48
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefiehters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Be nefits P rov ide d (Continued)

such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50 and

receive a reduced benefìt (i.e., %Yo for each month under 55). The monthly benefit of
a Tier 2 firefighter shall be increased annually at age 60 on January lst after the

firefighter retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is

later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The

increase is the lesser of 3o/o or Vz of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the

proceeding calendar year.

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455Yo of their base salary to the

Firefighters' Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than

20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without

accumulated interest. The Village is required to finance the plan and the

administrative costs as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective

January l,20ll, the Village has until the year2040 to fund 90% of the past services

costs for the Firefighters'Pension Plan. For the year ended April 30,2015, the

Village's contribution was 6l .54Vo of covered payroll.

Investment Policy

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes and the Firefighter's Pension Fund's
(the Fund) investment policy authorize the Fund to make deposits/invest in insured

commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and

U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with
portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term

commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two

standard rating services, investment grade corporate bonds and lllinois Funds. The

Fund may also invest in certain non-U.S. obligations, Illinois municipal corporations

tax anticipation warrants, veteran's loans, obligations of the State of Illinois and its

political subdivisions, Illinois insurance company general and separate accounts,

mutual funds and corporate equity securities.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Inve stment P ol icy (Continued)

The Fund's investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Asset Class Target

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Fixed Income

Domestic Equities

Intemational Equities

Emerging Markets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

40%

37o/o

lsYo

3o/o

5%

t.t0%

5.70Yo

5.70%

5.70Yo

0.s0%

ILCS limits the Fund's investments in equities, mutual funds and variable annuities
to 650/o. Securities in any one company should not exceed 5%oof the total fund. The
blended asset class is comprised of all other asset classes to allow for rebalancing the
portfolio.

The long-term expected rate of return on the Fund's investments was determined
using an asset allocation study conducted by the Fund's investment management
consultant in January 2015 in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates

of return (net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) were developed for
each major assets class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates or
arithmetic real rates of return excluding inflation for each major asset class included
in the Fund's target asset allocation as of April 30, 2015 are listed in the table above.

Concentrations

There are no significant investments (other than United States Govemment
guaranteed obligations) in any one organization that represent 5Yo or more of the
Fund's investments.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Rate of Return

For the year ended April 30, 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.30/o. The
money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits w ith Financ ial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the
event of a bank's failure, the Fund's deposits may not be returned to them. The
Fund's investment policy requires all bank balances to be covered by federal
depository insurance.

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund's debt
securities as of April 30,2015:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Tvpe Fair Value
Less

than I l-5 6-10
Greater
than l0

FIXED INCOME
SECURITIES s 1,793,069 S 72,649 $ 1,214,923 $ 441,021 S 64,476

In accordance with its investment policy, the Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and
maximizing yields for funds not needed for expected current cash flows. The
investment policy does not limit the maximum maturity length of investments in the
Fund.

Credit Risk

The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security
will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in obligations
guaranteed by the United States Government, securities issued by agencies of the
United States Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the United
States Government and investment grade corporate bonds rated at or above BBB- by
Standard and Poor's, Baa3 by Moody's and BBB- by Fitch by at least two of the
three rating agencies. However certain fixed income securities are not rated.
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a. Plan Desuiptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the Fund
requires all security transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be
processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments
held by a third party acting as the Fund's agent separate from where the investment
was purchased in the Fund's name. Money market mutual funds and mutual funds
are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Net Pension Liability

The components of the net pension liability of the Village as of April 30,2015 were
as follows:

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Village's net pension liability
Plan fïduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability

$ 25,020,939
10,310,978
14,709,961

41.20%

See the schedule of changes in the employer's net pension liability and related ratios
in the required supplementary information for additional information related to the
funded status ofthe Fund.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ehters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Acluarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed

as of April 30,2015 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions.

Actuarial valuation date April 30, 2015

Actuarial cost method EntrY-Age
Normal

Assumptions
Inflation

Salary increases

Interest rate

Cost of living adjustments

Asset valuation method

3.00%

4.00o/o-9.50o/o

7.00%

3.00%

Market Value

Mortality rates were based on the L&A 2012 Illinois Firefighters' l00o/o Sex Distinct
Table.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7Yo. Cash flow
projections were used to determine the extent which the plan's future net position
will be able to cover future benefit payments. To the extent future benefrt payments

are covered by the plan's projected net position, the expected rate of return on plan

investments is used to determine the portion of the net pension liability associated

with those payments. To the extent future benefit payments are not covered by the
plan's projected net position, the municipal bond rate is used to determine the
portion of the net pension liability associated with those payments. The plan's
projected net position is expected to cover future benefit payments in full for the
current employees.
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a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

I o/o Decrease
(6%)

Discounl Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the

discount rate. The table below presents the pension liability of the Village calculated

using the discount rate of 7Yo as well as what the Village's net pension liability
wouid be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower
(60/o) or I percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:

Current
Discount Rate

0%\
l7o Increase

(8%\

b.

Net pension liability s 17,734,004 $ 14,709,961 s 12,186,391

Significant Investments

There are significant investments (other than United States Government guaranteed

obligations) in any one organization that represent 5o/o or more of plan net position

for èither the Police Pension Plan or Firefighters' Pension Plan. Information for the

IMRF is not available.

Plan Orsanization Amount

Police Pension

Firefighters' Pension

Transamerica
Met Life
ING Golden Select
Pacific Life Insurance
Manulife Financial
Kemper Scudder

ING Golden Select
Pacific Life Insurance
Nationwide
Transamerica
Met Life Bullet

s 1,747,790
1,052,083

9l 1,033
1,988,433
1,106,104

10,639

$ 6,816,082

$ 853,577
1,342,209

513,287
1,094,351

220,042

$
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c. Summary of Signifìcant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Employee and employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in

which the employee services are performed. Benefits and refunds of the plans arc

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Investment income is recognized as eamed.

Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed income securities are recognized on

the transaction date.

d.

Administrative Costs

Administrative costs for both the Police Pension Plan and Firefighters' Pension Plan

are financed primarily through investment earnings.

Annual Pension Costs

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriff s Law
Enforcement

Personnel
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

December 31,
20t2

Entry-Age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll

29 Years,
Open

December 31,
20t2

Entry-Age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll

29 Years,
Open

April30,
20t3

Entry-Age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll

27 Years,
Closed

April30,
20t3

Entry-Age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll

27 Years,
Closed

Amortization period
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d. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriffls Law
Enforcement

Personnel
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

S ignifi cant actuarial assumptions
a) Rate of retum on

present and future assets

b) Projected salary increase -
attributable to inflation

c) Additionalprojected
Salary increases -
seniority/merit

d) Postretirementbenefit
increases

Annual pension cost
(APC)

Employer contributions

Percentage of APC contributed

3.00%

Trend Information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due.

7.50%
Compounded

Annually

4.00%
Compounded

Annually

0.40o/o to
r0.00%

3.00%

7s0%
Compounded

Annually

4.00%
Compounded

Annually

0.40o/o to
10.00%

3.00%

For
Fiscal
Year

7.00%
Compounded

Annually

3.00%
Compounded

Annually

4.00o/o to
r0.10%

3.00%

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

7.00%
Compounded

Annually

3.00o/o

Compounded
Annually

4.00%to
9.s0%

Sheriffs Law
Enforcement

Personnel

2013
20t4
2015

20t3
20t4
20t5

$ 568,993 S

601,969
581,377

20,634
22,920
16,465

20,634
22,920
16,465

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

$ 552,046 $
597,234
576,541

20t3
2014
2015

97.02%
99.21%
99.t7%

$ 22t,370 $
226,105
230,941

NPO (asset)
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

d. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Trend Information (Continued)

For
Fiscal
Year

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension

Annual pension cost
(APc)

Employer contributions

Percentage of APC contributed

Annual required contributions
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation (asset)

Net pension obligation (asset), beginning
ofyear

$ 793,008 $ 770,870
833,182 809,470

1,039,820 1,031,352

s 780,213 S 761,155
813,703 792,782

1,016,241 1,005,084

20t3
2014
20t5

20t3
20t4
20t5

20t3
2014
20ts

20t3
20t4
2015

9839%
97.66%
97.73o/o

8 (37,422) $
(t7,943)

5,636

98.74%
97.94%
97.45%

44,248
60,936
87,205

NPO (asset)

Net Pension Obligation

The Village's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to IMRF, the Police
Pension Fund and Firefighters' Pension Fund for the year ended April 30, 2015 were
as follows:

Illinois
Municipal

Retirement*
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

$ 576,541
l6,g5g

581,377
576,541

s 1,040,099 s
(l,256)

977

1,030,404
4,266

1,039,920
1,016,241

1,03 I ,353
1,005,084

4,836

226,t05

23,579

(17,943)

26,269

60,936

NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET),
END OF YEAR s 230,941 $ 5,636 $ 87,205

* A portion of the IMRF net pension obligation is allocated to the Library.
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d. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Net Pension Obligation (Continued)

In an effort to contain retirement costs, beginning in 2010, IMRF offered members

an opportunity to phase-in contribution rate increases. The phase-in plan provides

municipalities the flexibility to moderate the significant increases in the employer

contribution rate while maintaining the commitment to fully fund the pension plan

over a reasonable time period. The Village is participating in the phase-in funding

option, resulting in a temporary NPO.

The funded status and funding progress of the plans as of December 31, 2014 fot
IMRF and SLEP and April 30,2015 forthe Police Pension Fund and Firefighters'

Pension Fund were as follows:

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriffls Law
Enforcement

Personnel
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuariat value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liabil ity
(UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value ofplan
assets/AAL)

Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll

$

$ 14,661,215 $
10,712,993

3,948,232

73.07o/o

4,596,285 s

85.90o/o

$ 33,289,154 $
l7,123,356

16,165,798

51.44o/o

$ 2,196,121 $

736.llo/o

25,020,939
10,337,561

14,683,378

41.32o/o

1,669,998

879.25o/o

460,026
361,441

98,585

78.57o/o
137,165

7l .87o/o

See the schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information

immediately following the notes to financial statements for additional information

related to the funded status of the plans.
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e. Summary Financial Statements

Schedule of Net Position as of April 30, 2015

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension Total

$ 363,670 $ 209,891 $ 573,561
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

U.S. Government and
agency securities

Insurance contracts
Equities
Corporate bonds
Municipalbonds

Receivables
Accrued interest

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to general fund

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

17,006,042 r 0.310.978 27.3t7.020

g 17,006,042 $ 10,3 10,978 $ 27,317,020

1,764,900
6,816,082
6,230,370
1,607,344

198,225

887,147
4,023,466
4,271,465

838,387
67,535

2,652,047
10,839,548
10,501,835
2,445,731

265,760

38,53825,451 13,087
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e. Summary Financial Statements (Continued)

Schedule of Changes in Net Position for the year ended April 30, 2015

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer
Employee
Miscellaneous

Total contributions

Investment Income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments

Interest income
Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Adm inistrative expenses
Miscellaneous

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION HELD TN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May I

April30

1.227.633 l,161.098 2.388.731

$ l,ol6,24l
210,624

768

$ 1,005,084 $
155,820

194

2,021,325
366,444

962

860,266
216,930

610,553
120,546
(59,306)

1,470,819
337,476

(L46,269\(86,e63)

990,233 671,793 1,662,026

2,217,866 I I 4,050,757

1,867,821
2,000

27,394

1,330,843
2,000
8.549

3,198,664
4,000

35.943

1.897,2t5 1,34 1.392 3.238.607

320,651 491,499 812,150

16.685.391 9,8 19.479 26.504.870
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

a. Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides other
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a
single-employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels,
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village and

can be amended by the Village through its personnel manual and union contracts.
The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been

established to account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The

activity of the Plan is reported in the Village's governmental and business-type
activities.

b. Benefits Provided

The Village provides pre and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee's retirement). To
be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the

Village's three retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a

retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Village's
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those

expenses that are covered under both.

c. Membership

At April 30,2015, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits

Terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them

Active employees - vested
Active employees - nonvested

22

t6
76

TOTAL n4

Participating employers

d. Funding Policy

The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of
benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the Plan until retirement.

I
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. OTHERPOSTEMPLOYMENTBENEFITS(Continued)

e. AnnualOPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

Because the Village has fewer than 200 participants, a valuation is performed every
three years in accordance with GAAP. The Village's annual OPEB cost, the

percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan and the net OPEB obligation
for 2015 and the two preceding years was as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Ended

Annual
OPEB
Cost

Employer
Contributions

Percentage of
AnnualOPEB

Cost
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation

2013
2014
20t5

$ 46,809 $
47,309
97,242

16,863
16,863
35,842

36.03% S

35.65%
36.86%

145,438
175,983
237,284

96,070
7,035

(5,863)

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30,2015 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

AnnualOPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

$

97,242
(35,842)

61,400
175,884

NET OPEB OBLIGATION, END OF YEAR s 237,284

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30,

2015 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 1,199,962

$

1,199,962
0.00o/o

8,1 I 1,097
14.79o/o
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. OTHERPOSTEMPLOYMENTBENEFITS(Continued)

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

See the schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to financial statements for additional information
related to the funded status of the Plan.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occuffence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are

made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents

multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each

valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the April 30,2015 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 4o/o,

projected salary increases of 4Yo and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8% with
an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 5.5o/o. Both rates include a 3o/o inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village has not
advance funded its obligation. The Plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is

being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2015 was 30 years.

-6t -
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original
Budget

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

Properly
Sales

Food and beverage tax
Other

Intergovernmental
Fines, licenses and permits

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

ETSB Fund
Transfers (out)

Capital Projects Fund
Parking Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANCE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

13,670,567 13,670,567 13,948,956

$ 6,609,827
2,055,403

350,000
1,415,000
1,634,280
1,222,457

40,000
343,600

$ 6,609,827 S

2,055,403
350,000

l,4l 5,000
1,634,280
1,222,457

40,000
343.600

6,451,777
2,126,968

439,371
1,281,042
1,662,895
1,361,614

28,470
596.819

2,141,988
8,637,382
|,829,651

2,141,988
8,637,382
I

12,609,021 12,609,021 12,245,594

1 ,061,546 1,061 ,546 1,703,362

50,000 50,000 50,000

(925,000)

2,146,709
8,330,042
1.768.843

(700,000)

fl67,000) 167.000)
(925,000)
fl42.000)(

(817,000) (1,042,000) (1,017,000)

$ 244,546 686,362

6,716,225

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

MOTOR FUEL TAX FIjND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 20 t 5

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

State motor fuel tax
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
None

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

447,000 447,000 517,314

$ 447,000 $ 447,000 5t7,314

599,065

$ 1,116,379

$ 445,000 $
2,000

445,000
2,000

$ s t6,648
666

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,2015

Schedule of Funding Progress

Calendar
Year

(l)
Actuarial
Value of

Assets

(2\
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entrv-Ase

(3)
Funded
Ratio

û) / (2)

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(2) - (l)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
asâ

Percentage
ofCovered

Payroll
(4) / (s)

2009

20t0

20n

2012

Fiscal
Year

$ 8,190,145

8,552,699

9,262,764

9,401,695

10,399,730

10,712,983

$ 12,034,081

12,248,866

13,061,674

13,090,552

13,685,055

14,661,215

68.060/o $ 3,843,936 $

69.82% 3,696,167

70.92o/o 3,798,910

71.82o/o 3,688,857

75.99% 3,285,325

73.07o/o 3,948,232

4,220,084

4,186,745

4,259,317

4,257,448

4,460,937

4,596,285

9t.09%

88.28o/o

89.19%

86.64%

73.65%

85.90o/o

Percentage
Contributed

2013

20t4

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

2010s422,810s422,810

20ll* 452,152 554,883

2012* 503,448 561,337

2013* 552,046 564,620

2014 597,234 597,234

2015 576,541 576,541

* The Village has elected to participate in IMRF's optional phase-in plan.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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100.00%

8t.49%

89.69%

97.77o/o

t00.00%

100.00%



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGB,ILLINOIS

SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2015

Schedule of Funding Progress

Calendar
Year

(1)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Ase

(3)
Funded
Ratio

il\t Ql

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
asa

Percentage
ofCovered

Payroll
(4) / (s)(2) - tl)

2009 s 163,2875 219,347

2010 194,523 261,895

2011 228,323 295,413

20t2 266,698 335,996

2013 309,949 384,479

2014 361,441 460,026

Schedule of Employer Contributions

74.44% g

74.28o/o

77.29o/o

79.38%

80.62%

78.57%

56,060 $

67,372

67,090

69,298

74,530

98,585

t21,334

125,974

t2l,46l

l24,l5l

1 33,1 08

137,165

46.20%

53.48%

55.24%

s5.82%

55.99%

7t.87%

Percentage
Contributed

Fiscal
Year

20r0

20n

20t2

2013

2014

$$

Employer
Contributions

17,026

18,797

19,005

20,634

22,920

16,465

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARc)

17,026

18,797

19,005

20,634

22,920

16,465

100.00%

r00.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FTJND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30, 2015

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
Anril 30.

(l)
Actuarial
Value of

Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entrv-Ase

(3)
Funded
Ratio

lll

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
t2) - fl)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
a9a

Percentage
ofCovered

Payroll
t4) / tsl

2010 $ 14,405,306 $ 23,911,339 60.240/o $ 9,506,032 $

20ll 15,543,656 26,610,209 58.41o/o I1,066,553

2OI2 N/A N/A N/A N/A

2013 16,345,109 30,364,396 53.83o/o 14,019,287

2014 16,7 57 ,652 3 t,785,507 52.72o/o I 5,027,855

2015 17,123,356 33,289,154 51.44o/o 16,165,798

N/A - Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

2,112,137

2,171,946

N/A

2,169,964

2,164,573

2,196,121

450.07o/o

509.52o/o

N/A

646.060/o

694.260/o

736.n%

Percentage
Contributed

99.81o/o

98.610/o

97.93o/o

98.23o/o

97.560/o

97.70o/o

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

20r0

201 I

20t2

2013

2014

2015

$$ 563,847

812,318

774,579

780,213

813,703

l,0l6,l ó3

564,934

823,760

790,945

794,310

834,026

1,040,099

(See independent auditoCs report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2015

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
April30,

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entrv-Ase

(3)
Funded
Ratio

0Y Ql

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(2) - (1)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
asa

Percentage
ofCovered

Payroll
t4) / t5)

20n

2012

20t3 9,517,744 23,354,689 40.75% 13,836,945

2014 9,857,788 24,308,082 40.55yo 14,450,294

20t5 t0,337,561 25,020,939 41.32% 14,683,378

N/A - Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

2010

Fiscal
Year

$ 8,452,039

9,050,478

N/A

$ 17,622,336

19,504,709

N/A

Employer
Contributions

$ 587,972

760,590

773,t96

761,155

792,782

1,005,084

47.960/o S 9,170,297

46.40% 10,454,23t

N/A N/A

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

$ 593,567

773,525

794,355

769,974

808,473

I,030,404

$ 1,428,538

1,412,819

N/A

1,523,231

1,641,704

l,669,9gg

641.94o/o

739.96%

N/A

908.39%

880.20%

879.2s%

Percentage
Contributed

99.06%

98.33%

97.34%

98.8s%

98.060/o

20t0

20tr

2012

20t3

20r4

(See independent auditoCs report.)
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2015 97.54%



V|LLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,20l5

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
Aoril30.

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entrv-Ase

(3)
Funded
Ratio

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(2) - û)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
asa

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
(4) / (s)flrI (21

2OIO N/A N/A

2OI I N/A N/A

2012$-$835,685

2OI3 N/A N/A

2OI4 N/A N/A

2015 - t,lgg,g62

Schedule of Employer Contributions

N/A

N/A

0.00% $

N/A

N/A

0.00o/o

N/A

N/A

835,685 $

N/A

N/A

1,199,962

N/A

N/A

7,712,414

N/A

N/A

8,r r 1,097

N/A

N/A

10.84%

N/A

N/A

14.79%

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

Percentage
Contributed

2010$16,863$44,994

2011 16,863 44,884

2012 16,963 44,994

2OI3 N/A N/A

2OI4 N/A N/A

2015 35,842 96,070

N/A - Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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37.570/o

37.57o/o

N/A

N/A

37.31o/o



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actuarially determined contribution

contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution

CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess)

Year Ended Employer
Contributions

2015

$ 1,040,099

1,0 t6.241

s 23.858

Annual
Required

Contribution Percent
Contributed

Covered-employee payroll $ 2,147,796

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 47 '3o/o

The information directly above is formatted to comply with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 67

April 30. (ARC)

2010

20tr

2012

20r3

2014

20l s

$ 563,847

812,318

774,579

780,213

813,703

1,016,241

s 564,934

823,760

790,945

794,310

834,026

1,040,099

99.81%

98.6t%

97.93o/o

98.23Yo

97.56%

97.7lo/o

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

This information directly above is presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25. The information

presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of April30 of the prior fiscal year. Additional

information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial cost method was entry-

age normal; the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed and the amortization period was 27

yãars; the asset valuation method was at market value; and the significant actuarial assumptions were an

investment rate of retum at 7.OO% annually, projected salary increases assumption of 4'0% compounded

annually, and postretirement benefit increases of 3olo compounded annually.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,030,404

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution 1,005,084

CONTRIBUTION DEFICI ENCY (Excess) s 25,320

Covered-employee payroll s 1,633,250

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 61.50/o

The information directly above is formatted to comply with the requirements of CASB Statement No. 67.

Year Ended
April30,

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
IARC)

Percent
Contributed

2010 $ 587,972

20tl 760,590

2012 773,196

2013 761,155

2014 792,782

2015 1,005,084

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

s 593,567

773,525

794,355

769,974

808,473

1,030,404

99.06%

98.33%

97.34%

98.8s%

98.06%

97.54o/o

This information directly above is presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25. The information

presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of April 30 of the prior fiscal year.

Additionalinformation as of the latestactuarial valuation presented is as follows: theactuarial costmethod

was entry-age normal; the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed and the amortization period

was27 years; the asset valuation method was at market value; and the significant actuarial assumptions were

an investment rate of retum at/.00%o annually, projected salary increases assumption of 4.0o/o compounded

annually, and postretirement benefit increases of 3% compounded annually.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

April30,2015

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer
Contributions - member
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Adm inistrative expense

Net change in plan fìduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION. ENDING

EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability

Covered-employee payroll

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

$ 490,898
2,206,777

( I,867,820)

829,855

32,459,299

$ 33,289,154

s I ,016,241
210,624
991 ,001

(l,867 ,821)
(29,394\

320,651

r 6,685,391

s 17,006,042

_$__!q¿Ë,r 12_

5t.t%

s 2,147,796

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS

April30,20l5

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY. ENDING

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - emPloYer

Contributions - member

Net investment income
Benefìt payments, including refunds of member contributions

Administrative expense

Net change in plan frduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION. ENDING

EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability

Covered-employee payroll

Employer's net pension liabilitY
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

(See independent auditoCs report.)
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$ 450,278
1,650,959

( 1,3 30.843)

770,394

24,250.545

$2s 39

$ 1,005,084
155,820

671,985
(l,330,842)

( 10,s49)

491,498

9,819,480

-$i-qJ 
to,ery-

_ïl4J0e96l

4t.2%

$ 1,633,250

900.7%



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FIjND
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

April 30,2015

2015

Annual money-weighted rate of retum,
net of investment expense

3.8t%

(See independent auditoCs report.)
-73 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FI.JND

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

April30,20l5

2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return,

net of investment expense

6.30%

(See independent auditoCs report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2015

1. BUDGETS

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Annual appropriated budgets are

adopted for the General, Special Revenueo Debt Service, Capital Projects, Enterprise,

Internal Service and Pension Trust Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year

end.

All departments of the Village submit requests for appropriation to the Village Manager so

that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity and

includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations

for the next fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body

holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from or change appropriations, but may not
change the form ofthe budget.

The budget may be amended by the governing body. The Village Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any

adjustments that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the goveming

body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the
year, one supplementary appropriation was necessary.

2. EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

Fund Excess

Capital Projects
Sewer

s 139,296
8,982

-75 -



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The chief operating fund of the Village, which accounts for all activities of the
general government except for those accounted for in another fund.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the municipal portion
of motor fuel tax revenues collected and distributed by the State of lllinois, which are restricted
to pay for street improvements, maintenance and repairs.

The Capital Projects Fund - Established to account for the costs of various infrastructure
improvements to village property. These costs are financed by transfers from the General and
Motor FuelTax Funds, grants and bond proceeds.

The Debt Service Fund - Established to account for resources that are used to repay general
long-term debt obligations.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original
Budset

Final
Budget Actual

TAXES
Property
Property - road and bridge
Replacement

Sales and local use - NHR
Food and beverage tax
Municipal utility
Simplifi ed telecommunication

Total taxes

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Shared income tax
Grants - State of lllinois
Grants - IDOT - highway maintenance

Grants

Total intergovemmental

FINES, LICENSES AND PERMITS
Vehicle
Animal
Business

Liquor
Elevator inspection fees

Building permits
Filing/zoning fees

Contractor licensing fees

Fire - plan review fees

Franchise fee - Comcast cable

Sprint antenna lease

Village violation fines
Compliance violation fines
Circuit court fines
Pound fees
False alarm fines
DUI fines
Alarm user fees

Accident reports

Total fines, licenses and permits

INVESTMENT INCOME

s 6,475,927 $

133,900

265,000
2,055,403

350,000
525,000
62s,000

6,318,027
133,750

266,627
2,126,968

439,371

514,968
499,447

6,475,927 $

133,900

265,000
2,0ss,403

350,000
525,000

625,000

10,430,230 10,430,230 10,299,158

1,472,585
1,100

69,500
9 t,095

1,472,s8s
I,100

69,500

91,095

1,522,883
1,100

69,369
69,543

1,634,280 1,634,280 1,662,895

230,000
10,000

30,000
50,000

6,000
360,000

7,500
55,000

1,000
230,000

40,457
75,000
45,000
50,000

500

5,000
5,000

20,000
2,000

230,000
10,000

30,000
50,000

6,000
360,000

7,500
55,000

I,000
230,000

40,457

75,000
45,000
50,000

s00
5,000
5,000

20,000
2,000

233,442
9,970

32,044
52,350
9,950

498,206
3,850

63,625
1,500

250,042
42,457
87,007
23,104
23,608

2s0
1,800
5,040

20,374

2,995

1,222,457 1,222,457 1,361,614

40,000

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GENERAL FLJND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30. 2015

Original
Budget

Final
Budeet Actual

MISCELLANEOUS
Auction proceeds

Pistol range fees

Administration refuse credit
Commercial refuse license

Ambulance transport fees

La Grange Road depot - sublet

Miscellaneous

Total miscellaneous

oTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Emergency Telephone Systems Board Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

$ 1,000 $
2,000

25,000
25,000

235,000
3,600

52,000

1,000 $

2,000
25,000
25,000

235,000
3,600

s2.000

652
1,650

1 9,1 85

30,000
308, I 08

3,600
233.624

343.600 s96-819

50,000 s0,000 50.000

50,000 50.000 s0.000

$ 13,720,567 s t3.720,567 $ 13.998.956

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original
Budeet

Final
Budset Actual

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capital outlay

Total general government

PUBLIC SAFETY
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capital outlay

Total public safety

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capital outlay

Total highways and streets

Total expenditures

TRANSFERS
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund
Transfer to Parking Fund

s 1,251,963 $
41,300

820,829
27,896

1,251,963 $
41,300

820,829
27,896

1,205,690
40,044

869,047
31,928

2,141,988 2,141,988 2,146,709

7,826,878
I 19,100

360,276
331,128

7,826,878
I 19,100

360,276
331,128

7,678,975
100,824
334,904
215,339

8,637,382 8,637,382 8,330,042

1,085,556
82,400

516,978
144,717

1,085,556
82,400

516,978
144,717

975,395
70,153

581,340
l4l,955

1.829,651 I 1.768.843

12,609,021 12,609,021 12,245,594

700,000
167,000

925,000
167.000

925,000
142.000

Total transfers 867,000 1,092,000 1,067,000

TOTALEXPENDITURESANDTRANSFERS S 13,476,02I $ I3,7OI,O2I $ I3,312,594

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE . BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original
Budset

Final
Budeet Actual

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Grant proceeds

Contribution from property owners

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capitaloutlay

Resurfacing
Other

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
General Fund
Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Transfers (out)
Debt Service Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

$ l,o84,7oo
10,000

s00
5,000

$ 1,084,700

10,000
500

5,000

$ 1,081,362

2l
16.946

1,100,200 1,100,200 1.098.329

813,45 I

1,233,603
813,45 I

1,233,603
457,593

t.728.757

2,047,054 2,047,054 2.r 86,350

(946,854) (946,854) 1.088.02 r )

700,000
402,451

925,000
402,451

925,000

ß02.29s) ß02,295)

800, I 56 1.02s.156 622.70s

$ (146,698) $ 78,302 (46s,316)

140,219

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original
Budset

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Library contribution
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal - Village
Principal - Library
Interest and fiscal charges - Village
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Capital Projects Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

s 622,850 $ 622,850 $ 622,850

551

622,855 622,855 622.8s1

260,000
500,000
42,295

122,850

260,000
500,000
42,295

122,850

260,000
500,000
42,295

t22.8s0

925,145 925.14s 925.t45

(302,290\ ß02.294',1

302,295 302.295 302,295

302,295 302,295 302.295

$ 5$

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Foreign Fire Insurance Tax Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the

collection of the restricted State Foreign Fire Insurance Tax revenues and related expenditures to

provide equipment, materials and services necessary to support the core functions and essential

activities of the Fire Department.

Emereency Telephone Systems Board (ETSB) Fund - A special revenue fund established to

account for all operations of the restricted E-91I emergency telephone service revenues and

services provided by the Village.

Asset Forfeiture Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the restricted revenues

received through asset forfeiture programs and the related expenditures.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

NONM AJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30,2015

Foreign
Fire

Insurance
Tax

Emergency
Telephone

Systems
Board

Asset
Forfeiture

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Due from other govemments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for public safety
Restricted for drug forfeiture

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

$ 69.962 $ 108.635 S 193.096 $ 371.693

$ $ $ $
750 t4.630 1s.380

750 14,630 15,380

69,212 108,635 177,847

t78,466178,466

69,212 108,635 178,466 356,3t3

$ 69.962 $ 108,635 $ 193,096 $ 371,693

$ 69,962 $ 106,035 $

2^600

193,096 $ 369,093

2.600

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VTLLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDCET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 201 5

Emergency Telephone
Systems Board

Actual Budset Actual

$ t9,000 s 26,521 $

75,000 83,890

REVENUES
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Grant proceeds

Asset forfeiture
Charges for services

Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ruSES)
Transfers in (out)

General Fund
Total other fÏnancing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FI.JND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, MAY I

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30

Foreign Fire
Insurance Tax

Asset
F'orfeiture

Budset Actual

$

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ 26,s2r

93,890
9,094

148,r87
83

80,467

275-846

$ $

8

145,000
r00

148,t87
l2

76,482

32-153

100

9,094

63

(t4,3s7)

192.823

50

s o50

46 ß00

46 ß00

t)1 1SO\

s Q7.7501 18,342

50,870

$ 15.500

s 69.212

(See independent auditor's report.)
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2('.s29 220.100 232.089 100 9.t57 267.775

I 187 r54.600 105.607 3 r.300 23-514 137.308

8- 187 rs4.600 105.607 3 r,300 23.5t4 137.308

*,742 65-500 126.482 13 r.200) 04.357\ 130,467

150 000) 150-000) r50-000ì

lso 000ì 150-0001 r50-000ì

$ r 08.635

$ t3 r.200)

$ r78.466 $ 356,313



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Water Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of the water utility
services provided by the Village.

Parkine Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of village parking lots

and meters.

Sewer Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of the sewer utility
services provided by the Village.

Equipment Replacement Fund - An internal service fund established to account for all vehicle

and equipment replacement activities of the Village.



OPERATING REVEI\IUES
Water sales

Sewer fees

Water meter installation
Sewer connection fees

Delinquent penalties

Fire lines
Parking meter collections
Parking decal sales

Parking tìnes
Charges for services

Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services

Supplies and materials
Contractual services

Capital outlay
Other

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FIjNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

BUDGET AND ACTUAL. BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended April 30,2015

Enternrise Funds
P¡rkinq

Internal Service
Eouinment Renlacement

Actual Budøet Actu¡l

$ $
490.340

7.200

- 445,961 445,961
42,09t

497.540 445"96t 488.052

308,596
8.595

48,732

87,041 695,000 298,924

UV¡fer
B¡r¡laef Actual

$ 4,700,000 $ 4,347,202 $

35,000 61,994

Budøet

90,000
460,000
167,500

717,347
l 5,000
75,937
67,795

Actual

82,450
502,787

2t5,5lt

705,006
r5,069
58,432
t7,00t

Budset

500.000

6.000

304,671
9.500

45,387

84.424

Sewer

$$$

45,000
12,000

1,407,976
36,700

2,834,295
l.5l 1,465

142.430

49,044
I 1,876

1,381,709

32,673

2,639,095
370,632
t45,875

4,88200

4.792.t00 4.474.998 'il7.500 800.748 506.000

Total operating expenses

oPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

795 443 964

62.0r 8 44-576 (249.039\ 189.t28( r. r40.766) 194-986) fi58.579) 5.240

-83-



lVater
Enterorise Funds

Budeet

(153,579)

167.000

Actual

5,000 $ t,672 $ 100 $

5.000 1.672

Internal Se¡vice
Equipment Replacement
Budset Actual

$ 10,000 $

Budcet Actu¡l

2,254 $
(43, I 59)

Budeet Actual

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income

Interest expense

Gain on sale of capital assets

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS

$ 7,500 $

7.500 f40-905)

(t,133,266) (135,891)

r0,387

r4.500

r00 10.m0 24.887

62,118 44,576 (239,039) 214,0156,912

142.000

CHANGE IN NET POSITION.
BUDGETARY BASIS

ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS

Depreciation
Capital assets capitalized

Bonds payable

Total adjustments to GAAP basis

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, MAY I

NET POSITION, APRIL3O

(464,748)
289,352

85"000

190.396)

(226,287)

8.692.095

912

(246,739',)

046-739\

(97,827)

r0,759,61I

(62,711)
37.351

125.360)

19,216

2.303.380

$ 2,322,596

2l l5

(372,28t)
298,924

03.357\

140,658

4,799,643

$ 4,940,301$ 8.46s,808 $ r0.661.784

(See independent auditor's report.)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Police Pension Fund - A pension trust fund established to account for pensions paid for police
offìcers.

Firefighters' Pension Fund - A pension trust fund established to account for pensions paid for
firefighters.

Special Assessment #269 Fund - An agency fund established to account for bonds issued and the
collection of special assessments to service these bonds, which are used to pay for the benefited
owner's portion of costs associated with the construction of street improvements.

Special Assessment #270 Fund - An agency fund established to account for bonds issued and the
collection of special assessments to service these bonds, which are used to pay for the benefited
owner's portion of costs associated with the construction of street improvements.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FIDUCIARY FLJNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April30,2015

Pension Trust
Apencv

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension

Total
Pension Trust

Special
Assessment

#269

Special
Assessment

#270
Total

Asencv

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value

U.S. Government and agency

securities
Insurance contracts

Stocks
Corporate bonds

Municipalbonds
Receivables

Assessments

Accrued interest

Due from General Fund

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund

Due to bondholders
Due to propertY owners

s 363,670 $ 209,891 $ 573,561 $ rs l$ 2

2,503

41,063

2.503

2"504 43,568

23,764
19,803

1

1,764,900
6,916,082
6,230,370
1,607,344

198,225

887,147
4,023,466
4,271,465

838,387
67,535

2,652,047
10,839,548
10,501,835
2,445,731

265,760

25,451 13,087 38,538

17.006.042 10.3 t 0.978 27.317.020

17.006.042 $ 10.310.978 S 27.317,020 $

41,063

41.064

23,764
17,300 2,503

I

Total liabilities

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS $

(See independent auditor's report-)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Police
Pension

Firefightersr
Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer
Employee
Other

Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value

of investments
Interest

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Administrative expenses

Miscellaneous

Totaldeductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May I

April30

1,227,633 1,161,098 2,399,731

s I ,016,241
210,624

768

$ 1,005,084
155,820

t94

$ 2,021,325
366,444

962

860,266
216,930

610,553
120,546

1,470,819
337,476

1,077,196 731,099 1 ,808,295

(86,963) (59,306) (146,269)

990,233 671,793 1,662,026

2,217,866 1,832,891 4,050,757

l,g67,g2l
2,000

27,394

1,330,943

2,000
8,549

3,198,664
4,000

35,943

1,897,215 1,341,392 3,238,607

320,651 491,499 812,150

16,685,391 9,819,479 26,504,870

$ 17,006,042 $ 10,310,978 $ 27,317,020

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

AGENCY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Year Ended APril 30, 2015

Special Assessment #269

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Assessments receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Special Assessment #270

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Assessments receivable
Due from General fund

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to bondholders
Due to property owners

TOTAL LIABILITIES

All Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Assessments receivable
Due from General Fund

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Ceneral Fund
Due to bondholders
Due to property owners

Additions Deductions
Balances
Aoril30

$ $
4l .063

$ 4t.064$ - $ - $ 41.0ø

s s $ 23,764
17.300

Balances
Mav I

$ l$
41.063

23,764 s
r 7,300

$ 41.064 S $ s 41.064

$ l$ $ $

2.503 2-503

s 2.504 S S $ 2.s04

$ 2,503 $ $ $ 2,503

$$

$

2S
41,063

2,503

$
.,

41,063
2.503

s 43.s68$ - $ - $ 43.sff

$ s23,764 $
19,803

I

23,764
19,803

I

$ 43,s68$ - $ - $ 43.s68

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF TNSURANCE TN FORCE

April 30,2015

Insured
Description
ofCoveraee

Limits
of Coverage

Expiration Date
of Policv

Village of
La Grange General Liability

-Professional Liability
-Police Professional
-Employee Benefits
-Abuse/Molestation

Auto Liability
-Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist

Public Officials Liability
-rü/rongful Acts
-Employment Practices

Workers' Compensation
-Employer's Liability

First Party Property - All Risk
Crime

-Employee Theft
-Forgery, Alteration and Counterfeit Cunency
-Credit Card Forgery
-Computer Fraud
-Non-Faithfu I Performance

Public Officials Bonds

$10,000,000

$ 10,000,000
$500,000
$10,000,000

Statutory
$2,5oo,ooo
$250,000,000

s5,000,000
$5,000,000
$5,000,000
$5,000,000
$2,500,000
Statutory

t2/3Uts

t2/3vt5

t2/31/ts

t2/31/ts

t2l3t/ts
t2l3l/15

t2/31/15

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

LONG.TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
2OO5 ALTERNATE REVENUE REFLJNDING BONDS

April30, 2015

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates
Interest Dates
Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

December 22,2005
December 1,2017
$ 2,785,000
$ 5,000

3.2%oto3.9%
June I and December I
December I
First National Bank of La Grange

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Levv Interest Due onTax
Levy
Year Princinal Interest Total June I Amount December I Amount

20t4
2015
2016

$ 270,000 s
280,000
295,000

32,545 $
22,285
I1,505

302,545
302,285
306,505

$ 16,273

I I,143
5,753

$ 33,169

$ 16,272
ll,l42
5,752

2015
20t6
20t7

20t5
2016
20t7

$ 845,000 $ 66,335 $ 911,335 $ 33,166

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
2OI2A ALTERNATE REVENUE BONDS

April 30,2015

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

September 25,2012
December 1,2032
$ 2,o8o,oo0

$ 5,000
2,0o/o to 2.7o/o

June I and December I

December I
Amalgamated Bank of Chicago

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Interest Due onTax Lew (Abated)
Fiscal
Year Princioal Interest Total June I Amount I Amount

20t5
20t6
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
202s
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

42,530 $
40,730
38,930
37,t30
35,330
33,430
3l,530
29,630
27,630
25,630
23,530
21,220
18,745
1 6,1 00
13,340

10,340

7,090
3.645

132,530
130,730

128,930
127,130
t 30,330
128,430
126,530
129,630
127,630
130,630

133,530

131,220
133,745

l3l, t 00
133,340

135,340

137,090
t 38-645

20t5
2016
2017
20r I
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

21,265
20,365
19,465
18,565

17,665
16,7l5
15,765
14,815

13,815

12,815

11,765
10,610

9,373
8,050
6,670
5,170
3,545
1,823

2015
2016
2017
2018
20t9
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

21,265
20,365
19,465
18,565

17,665
16,715
15,765
14,815

13,81 5

12,815

11,765
10,610

9,372
8,050
6,670
5,170
3,545
1,822

$

$ 1,910,000 $ 4s6.510 S 2.366.510

90,000 $
90,000
90,000
90,000
95,000
95,000
95,000

t00,000
100,000

105,000

I10,000
I10,000
I15,000
I 15,000

120,000

125,000

130,000

135.000

$ $

s 228.256 $ 228,254

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
2OI2B ALTERNATE REVENUE BONDS

April 30, 2015

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

September 25,2012
December 1,2024
$ 6,205,000
$ 5,000

2-00%o to 2.125o/o

June I and December I

December I
U.S. Bank

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Interest Due onTax Lew
Fiscal
Year Interest Total June I Amount December I Amount

20t6
2017
2018
2019
2020
202t
2022
2023
2024
2025

627,850
627,550
622,050
626,450
625,550
629,450
623,050
626,550
624,750
612,750

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

56,425
51,275
46,025
40,725

35,275
29,725
24,025
18,275
12,375

6,375

20t5
20t6
20t7
201 8

20t9
2020
202t
2022
2023
2024

56,425
51,275

46,025
40,725

35,275
29,725
24,025
18,275

t2,375
6,375

$ 515,000 $
525,000
530,000
545,000
555,000
570,000
575,000
590,000
600,000
600,000

I12,850 S

102,550

92,050
81,450
70,550
59,450
48,050
36,550
24,750
12.750

$ $

$ 5,605,000 $ 641,000 $ 6.246.000 $ 320.500 $ 320,500
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Village of La Grange, Illinois' comprehensive annual financial report presents

detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the frnancial

statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information displays about the Village's

overall financial health.

Contents Paee(s)

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the Village's financial performance and well-being have been changed

over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the

affordability of the Village's current levels of outstanding debt and the

Village's ability to issue additional debt in the future'

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the

reader understand the environment within which the Village's financial

activities take place.

92-t0l

t02-107

108-l l2

I l3-l l4

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the Village's financial report relates to

the services the Village provides and the activities it performs. I l5-l l7

Data Sources: (Jnless otherwise noted, the inþrmation ín these schedules is derived from the

compre hens íve annual financ ial reports þr the relevant ye ar.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

s 20,269,210 S 20,4t7,117

3,216,791 3,730,552

s 19,942,728 $ 20,093,344

3,691,422 3,204,708

$ 18,930,507
2,135,944
4,532,594

$ 19,045,027
2,570,315
7,r58,890

$ 19,493,061

2,141,650
10,147,997

s 19,623,954
2,799,614

t4,406,277

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTMTIES $ 25,599,045 $28,774,232 531,782,708 $ 36,829,845

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTMTIES 523,486,001 $24,t47,669 $23,634,t50 523,298,052

$ 39,199,717
2,135,944
7,749,395

s 39,462,t44 $ 39,435,789
2,570,315 2,141,650

t0,889,442 13,839,419

I39,7t7,298
2,799,6t4

17,610,985

$ 49,085,046 $ 52,9
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2010 201 I 2012 2013 20t4 2015

$21,471,377
2,031,415

11,202,081

$ 23,308,688
2,436,669
g,5ll,45g

$26,159,844
1,971,413
9,570,437

s25,774,269
2,215,428

10,140,473

s28,236,672
874,911

9,167,360

s29,130,902
1,472,692
9,530,323

s34.704.873 $ 35.256.81s 537.70t.694 $ 38,130,t70 s38,278,943 $ 40,133,9t7

$ 19,588,533

2,977,756

s 19,561,148 $ l9,l30,glg s 19,432,640 $ 20,409,594 $ l9,96l,0g0

2,352,649 2,352,829 2,084,260 1,346,502 1,489,099

s22.566.289 $2t.913.797 $ 21.483.748 $ 21,516,900 $ 21,755,086 $ 21,450,188

$ 41,059,910
2,031,415

14,179,837

s 42,869,836
2,436,669

I 1,864,108

s 45,290,763
I,971,413

11,923,266

$ 45,206,909
2,2t5,428

12,224,733

s 48,645,256
874,911

10,513,862

I49,091,992
1,472,692

11,019,421

8 57.271.t62 S 57.t70.612 $ 59.185.442 s 59,647,070 $ 60,034,029 $ 61,584,105

-93 -



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CHANCE IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

EXPENSES
Covemmental activities

General government

Public safety
Flighways and streets

Economic development
Interest

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Parking

Total business-type activities expenses

TOTAL PRIMARY
GOVERNMENT EXPENSES

PROGRAM REVENUES
Govemmental activities

Charges for services
General government

Public safety
Highways and streets

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities
program revenues

Business-type activities
Charges for services

Water
Sewer
Parking

Total business-type activities
program revenues

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVENUES

10,948,176 I1,129,013 13,022,524 13,782,506

$ I,845,464 $

6,119,447
2,464,050

13,063

506,152

1,937,230 $
6,642,436
2,017,568

99,775
432,004

2,308,329
6,905,170
3,304,975

150,253
353,797

$ 2,304,s78
7,2ll,l2g
2,929,506
1,195,475

24t,8t9

2,963,931
329,252
742,020

2,992,492
379,052
87 t,378

3,157,557
489,657
939,593

3,167,287
492,746
947,992

3,935,103 4,142,912 4,586,807 4,608,025

$ 14,883,279 $ ts,27t,92s $ 17,609,331 $ 18.390,531

969,3 r 8 $
587,665
261,949
462,184
126,962

3,519,304 2,100,682 2,408,078 5,465,772

s 732,123
535,87 I
258,926
509,208

1,483, 176

$ 855,298 $
534,768
246,045
464,571

763,975
664,944
262,899
442,249

3,33 1,705

2,943,231
459,666
638,705

2,687,286
434,711
652,490

2,657,000
447,297
637,17 |

3,034,837
413,261
641,122

4,041,602 3,774,487 3,741,468 4,089,220

$ 7.560.906 $ 5.875.169 $

-94-
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2010 20tt 2012 2013 20t4 2015

$ 2,403,960
7,464,482
3,502,763
5,575,820

92,357

s 2,219,004
8,211,120
3, I 88,32 I

s 2,177,656
I,124,562
2,162,386

$ 2,235,538 $
8,363,505
2,364,485

2,198,577
8,218,014
3,013,072

$ 2,232,737

8,588,667
2,975,715

73,343 65.632 56,512 189.745 r6t-t32

r9.039.382 13.691.788 12.530.236 13.020.040 13.619,408 13.958.2s 1

3,412,349
454,813
987,368

3,612,540
460,477
989.517

3,608,282
457,000
972,235

4,151,600
437,491

r.016.639

4,466,056
476,789

t,012,947

4,703,539
478,324

1.042.247

4,854,530 5.062.534 s.037.5 l7 5.605.730 s.955.792 6.224.110

$ 23.893,912 g 18.754,322 g 17,567,753 s 18.625.770 $ 19,575,200 $ 20.182,361

$ 507,135
694,998
269,777
428,546

r.330.91I

606,493 S

698,1 l8
344,560
453,001

2.316.228

844,036 $

547,589
340,045
439,166
168.601

724,989
566,141
330,358
651,442
73,051

$ 910,087
631,923
349,757
7 I 8,809

1.165.678

$ 569,433 $

664,840
3 13,878
463,735

1.947.291

3.231,367 3.959.r77 4.418.400 2,339.437 2.345.981 3.776.254

2,938,394
408,242

3,216,520
396,770
681.449

3,418,705
379,483
702-431

4,362,179
423,676

4,489,392
440,218

1.t42.442

g 4,474,998
497,540
800.748645 729

3.991.997 4-294^739 4.500.619 s.515.663 6.072.052 5.773.286

8.919.019 $ 7,855,100$ 7,223,364 s 8.253,916 $

-95-
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

NET REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
NET REVENUE (EXPENSES)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities

Taxes
Property
Sales

Utility
Other

Shared income
Investment income
Tif surplus distribution
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous
Contributions
Transfers

Total business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNM ENT

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

s (7,428,872) $ (9,028,33t) $(10,614,446) $ (8,3t6,734)
106.499 ß68.42s), (84s,339) (518.805)

s (7,322,373) $ (9,396,756) $(1t,459,785) $ (8,835,539)

s 7,310,714 $
1,424,059

616,230
2,140,818

7,598,116 $
t,65t,702

555,717
2,144,077

368,376
(865.632\

7,704,022 $
1,733,079

589,944
2,347,610

8,028,635
1,707,932

587,064
2,305,612

541,186 751,162 691,733 467,220

308,435
0-340-s72\

656,535
( r 00.000)

367,408
(l00.000)

5,000,869 12,203,518 t3,622,922 13,363,871

102,850
8,2 l3

164,461

765,632
100,000

168,1 l7
3,675

60,028
100,000

82,556
l5l

7,340,572 100,000

7 -451-635 1.030.093 33 r,820 t82,707

$ 12,452,504 $ 13,233,611 s 13,954,742 $ 13,546,578

$ (2,428,003) S

7,558,134
3,175,187 $

661,669
3,008,476 $
(s 13,5 r9)

5,047,t37
(336,098)

s 5,t30,131 $ 3,83ó,855 g 2,494,957 S 4,71 1,039
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2010 20tt 2012 2013 2014 2015

$(15,808,015) $ (9,732,61t) S (8,111,836) $(10,680,603) $ (11,273,427) $(10,181,997)
(862.533) (767.79s\ ts36.898) (90,067) 116,260 (4s0.824)

$(16,670,548) $(10,500,406) $ (8,648,734) $ (t0,770,670\ $ (r r,ls7,l67) $ 00,632.821)

$ 8,423,435
1,595,276

476,791
2,049,516

$ 5,873,31 I
1,697,792

525,432
2,012,352

68,239

217,437
fl00^000)

s 5,958,771 S

1,809,302
477,806
776,288

1,267,303
32,302

334,943
1100.000)

6,134,683 $
1,927,842

492,357
829,205

1,401,374
31,973

6,347,857 $
2,017,625

535,ggg
847,149

1,5 I 5,288
30,948

6,478,298
2,566,339

514,968
766,074

1,522,883
29,241143,462

747,885
356,678

1100.000)
407,645

fl 16.000)
246,444

019.000)
301,168

fl42.000)

13,683,043 10,284,553 10,556,715 I1,109,079 ll,422,lgg 12,036,971

30,770 rs,303 6,849 7,219 2,926 3,926

100,000 100,000 100,000 I16,000 I19,000 142,000

t30.770 I 15.303 106-849 123,2t9 t21,926 t45.926

$ l3-813.813 S 10.399-8s6 st 0-663-564 g tt.232.298 $ lr.s44.l2s $ 12.r82.897

s (2,t24,972) $
(73t,763)

551,942 $
(652,492\

2,444,879 $
(430,049)

428,476 $
33,152

t48,772 $
238,18ó

1,854,974
(304,898)

s (2.85ó.735) S fl00.5s0) $ 2.014.830 $ 461,628 S 386,958 $ 1,550,076
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

GENERAL FUND
Reserved/restricted
Assigned for economic development

Unreserved/unassigned

TOTALGENERAL FUND

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Reserved/restricted
Unreserved/assigned, reported in

Debt Service Funds
Capital Project Funds

TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERI\¡MENTAL FUNDS

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

I 2,342 $ $ $ 109,441

7.686.9668.370.231 8,263.032 8.295.701

$ 8,372,s73 s 8.263.032 $ 8.295,701 s 7.796.407

$ 4,270,833 $ 5,369,600 $ 5,405,719 S 7,177,304

il48.058) 404,005 948.656 l^210.242

s 4.t22.775 $ 5,773,605 s 6.354.375 $ 8.387,546
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20t0 20tt 2012 2013 2014 2015

g 22l,ll0
747,885

6.387,609

$ 262,520 $
747,885

s.997.tt3
747,885

s.901.808
747,885

6.397.330
747,885

5.968.340
747,885

6-6s4.t02

$ s $

$ 7.3s6.604 $ 7.007.518 s6.649.693 $7 t45.2ts s6.716.225 $ 7 -402-587

$ 1,817,676 g 2,174,148 $ 1,981,913 S 2,215,428 S 874,911 $ 1,472,692

963,773 s33.073 886.015
10,507

696.812
10,509

t40.219
10,510

ß25-097\

s 2.781,449 $ 2,707.22t $2,867,928 82,922,747 $ I $ 1,158,105
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, TLLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 2008 2009

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Economic development
Capital outlay
Debt service

Principal
Interest
Other charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Bonds/notes issued

Payment to escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

t4,461,138 14,928,489 r5,805,267 18,674,907

$ I I,504,355
1,06t,222

790, l 50

4,490
533,690
567,231

$ I I,960,303
1,005,086

622,774
92,342

744,105
503,879

$ 12,379,089
1,0s6,762

868,921

3,867
686,667
809,96 r

$ 12,572,204
932,583

3,918,84r
257,98s
465,282
528,012

t,749,674
6,087,869
1,469,547

7,353,634
2,709,028

1,878, I 39

6,429,965
1,494,714

865,407
365,292

2,221,86t
6,835,548
1,745,562

319,410
I,587,401

1,994,437

387,609

2,209,ts7
7,057,583
2,017,805
1,195,475

573,839

3,682,363
304,808

1,765,991
424,772

25,6t9

1,792,209
459,132

2 I,58ó,134 13,284,858 15,091,828 17,041,030

(7,124,996) 1,643,631 713,439 1,633,877

3,717,221
(3,7 t7,22t)
7,285,000

(2,751,342',)

3,070,016
(3,170,01ó)

4,099,400
(4,188,400)

4,666,171
(4,766,171)

NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCES

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF
NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Note: Income taxes were reclassified from taxes to intergovernmental.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

4,533,658 (r00,000) 000,000) 000,000)

$ (2,59r,338) $ r,543,631 $ 613,439 $ 1,533,877

14.630/o 2l.48o/o 20.500/o 31.680/o
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2010 201 I 2012 2013 20t4 20ls

$ 12,535,018

949,402
818,416
24s,379
167,452

t.2t0.271

$ 10,098,872 $
1,050,567

1,509,579

237,152
68,242

368.247

9,022,167 S

1,062,973
2,490,352

278,233
3l,807

579.530

9,748,519
I,160,668
2,787,441

150,603

30,840
489, r 09

10,325,679
I ,361 ,6 l4
3,976,739

148,187

29, r 58

613,848

9,384,053 $
I,241,513
2,074,969

159,63 I

31,826
647,524

$

r s.925^938 r 3.332.6s8 r3 .455.062 r3,s39.516 r4,367,180 16.455.225

2,321,048
7,575,382
l,g l2,l gg

5,575,920
2,4s3,339

2,010,000
124,051

2,ll3,5lg
7,859,624
1,677,999

220,000
76,5-75

2,078,237
8,003,062
1,688,774

235,000
68,76s

2,135,751
8, r 00,937
1,7t9,244

240,000
60,305

2,105,235
g,l 30,41 5

r,925,600

730,000
193,670

2,146,709
8,467,350
r,768,843

760,000
1 65,1 45

t,708,255 1,478,342 64 t ,938 3,489,358 2,1 86,350

21,871,838 13,655,972 13,552,180 12,898,175 16,574,278 15,494,397

(5,945,900) (323,3t4) (97,t 18) 641,34t (2,207,098) 960,828

4,367,70t
(4,467,70t)

1,053,956
( l, I 53,956)

1,854,387
( r ,954,387)

1,000,305
( I,091,305)

3,505, I 74
(3,624,174)

I,277,295
(1,419,295)

(100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (9r,000) (r 19,000) (142,000)

$ (6,045,900) $ (423,314\ $ 097,n8) $ 550,34r $ (2.326,098) $ 818,828

ll.32o/o 2.55o/o 2.560/o 2.51% 7.600/o 7.47%
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Levy Years

Levy
Year

Residential
ProperW

Commercial
Property

Industrial
Property

Railroad
Property

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

Estimated
Actual

Taxable
Value

Total Taxable
Assessed

Value

2005 $488,848,094 S 35,494,967 $ 47,006,177 $ 350,799 S57l,699,926 $ 1.3315

2006 488,870,503 35,293,791 45,439,649 365,256 569,96g,lgg 1.3032

2007 519,735,586 36,339,481 45,642,972 423,061 602,141,000 1.1240

2008 6t2,239,451 39,233,415 49,040,791 46g,gg2 700,992,539 1.0629

2009 659,634,279 79,941,557 45,670,965 534,963 795,791,663 1.0629

2010 662,256,327 75,596,633 43,014,350 532,201 7gl,3gg,5l I l.0g7g

201I 538,8 I 0,55 I 64,623,012 39,709,39 I 661,609 642,903,563 I .3599

2012 504,019,265 60,361,764 35,599,759 672,943 600,643,631 1.4900

2013 475,130,449 57,594,946 34,393,299 690,396 567,779,090 1.6090

2014 500,487,339 68,914,441 14,939,134 702,967 595,043,791 l.l0g0

Note: Property in the Village is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at33o/o ofactual value.

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk

$ 1,715,099,779

1,709,904,567

1,806,423,000

2,102,947,617

2,357,344,989

2,344,168,533

I,928,410,689

I,801,930,893

1,703,337,270

1,755,131,343

-t02-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Last Ten Levy Years

200s 2006 7,î{t1 2008 2009 2010 20ll 2012 2013 2014Tax I Year

VILLAGE DIRECT RATES*
General
Police Pension

Fire Pension
Total Direct Rates

OVERLAPPING RATES*
Library
La Grange Park District
County of Cook/Health Facilities

Forest Preserve District of Cook County

Consolidated Elections
Township ofLyons
General Assistance Lyons

Road and Bridge Lyons
Lyons Mental Health
Suburban T B Sanitarium
Metro Water Reclamation Dist. of Greater Chicago

Des Plaines Valley Mosquito Abatement District
La Grange Highlands Sanitary District
South Lyons Sanitary District
School District #102

School District #105

School District #106

Lyons Township High School #204

DuPage Community College District #502

La Grange Special Service Area#1

+ Property tax rates are per $100 ofassessed valuation.

Data Source

0.6943
0.0942
0.0835

0.7492
0.0834
0.0860

0.4129
0.4210
0. r 030

0.0570

0.73 t 0

0.081 I

0.0901

0.ó0 r0
0.08 r 0

0.0850

0.0460
0.0020
0.0320
0.0740

0.2520
0.0120
0.1770
0.08 r 0

2.7040
2. r350
2.3420
t.4820
0. I 930

0. r480

0.5345
0.0970
0.0974

0.5345
0.0970
0.0974

0.0480
0.0020
0.0330
0.0780

0.2740

0.01l0
0. r 8ó0

0.0950
2.6290
2.4920
2.3t90
r.5450
0.2 r l0
0. t440

0.7649
0.1377
0. I 334

0.3700

0.0150
0.2700
0.1240
3.6220
3.2830

3.2610
2_1290

0.2760
0. r 990

0;7692
0.1762
0.r746

0.6938
0.t229
0.1l9l

0.7280
0. r 949
0.1861

0.8720 0.9186 0.9022 0.7670 0.7289 0.7289 0.9358 1.03ó0 1.1200 1.1090

0.3970
0.3590

0.1220
0.0600

0.3570
0.3540
0.4 t 50

0.05 r 0

0.3340
0.3450
0.3940
0.0510

0.4540
0.4480
0.53 r 0

0.0630

0.0360

0.0020
0.0370

0.0900
0.0010
0.3470
0.0120

0.2190
0.0980

3.3750
2.3420
3.0640
r.8930
0.2250
0.2 r90

0.0330

0.0030
0.0340

0.0810
0.0050
0.2840

0.0 t 20

0.1950
0.09 r 0

2.9390
2.3780
2.ó t 50
t.6570
0.20ó0
0.2040

0.4010

0.4070
0.4460
0.0530

0.0 r20
0.0330

0.0030
0.0340

0.0810

0.2630
0.0120
0. t950
0.0900
2.8830
2.3220
2.5590
I _6170

0.2080
0. r 550

0.3340

0.3330
0.3940

0.0490

0.0210
0.0470

0.0020
0.0330

0.0760

0.26t0
0.01r0
0.t770
0.0880
2.5590
2.3830

2.2490
r.49r0
0.2040
0. r 320

0.4230
0.4 r 60

0.4620
0.0580

0.0250
0.0590

0.0030
0.04 t 0

0.0950

0.3200
0.0 r 40

0.2420
0. r r40
3.2490
2.9870
2.9990
1.9220
0.2480

0. r700

0.4880
0.4800
0.53 r 0

0.0ó90

0.03 r0
0.0680

0.0030
0.0480

0.1 120

0.4820
0.4710
0.5680
0.0690

0.4300
0.0160
0.3070
0.t4t0
3.8580
3.6680
3.5740
2.3240
0.3200
0.2230

0.0ó30
0.0030
0.0440

0. r030

0.0680
0.0030
0.0480
0.t 120

0.4170
0.0 r 60
0.2940
0.1360
3.8770
3.5810

3.5370
2.3t20
0.3230
0.2090

Cook County Clerk's Ofïice
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015 2006

Taxoaver

Taxable
Assessed

Value

Percentage
of Total
Village
Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

Taxable
Assessed

Value

Percentage
of Total
Village
Taxable
Assessed

ValuationRank Rank

La Grange Rd Investor

Burcor Properties

Columbia/LG Memorial Hospital

Sambell La Grange

Grayhill Manufacturing Co.

cNc

SBC/Ameritech

First National Bank of La Grange

Bank One

Grozich, LLC

D.R. Brooks, B&B Investments

DPA Management

TOTAL

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk

$ 5,742,855

4,670,47 |

4,127,674

3,641,460

3,595,877

3,466,065

2,146,121

2,014,712

1,856,107

1,660,205

4

2

6

3

5

I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

l.0l% $

0.82o/o

0.73o/o

0.640/o

0.63%

0.61%

0.38o/o

0.35o/o

0.33%

0.29o/o

0.00%

0.000/o

7,609,207

4,823,507

6,681,718

3,016,264

6,253,329

3,gll,3l2

2,407,794

2,236,351

2,666,900

1,758,786

1.34o/o

0.85o/o

Ll7o/o

0.s3%

l.t0%

0.690/o

0.42o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.39%

0.47o/o

0.31%

9

7

l0

$ 32.92t ,547 5.79% $ 41,365,068 7.27Vo
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Levy Years

Levy
Year Tax Levied

Collected Within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date

Percentage
of Lew

Percentage in Subsequent
Amount of Lew Years Amount

2005 $ 4,915,684 S 2,206,774 44.89o/o I 2,673,959 S 4,880,733 99.29%

2006 5,180,586 2,320,565 44.79% 2,774,958 5,095,523 98.36%

2007 5,427,546 2,446,303 45.07o/o 2,887,144 5,333,447 98.27%

5,362,830 2,544,434 47.45o/o 2,744,670 5,289,104 98.63%2008

20n

2009 5,784,985 2,949,638 50.99% 2,708,992 5,658,630 97.82%

20r 0 5,942,227 2,840,177 47.80% 2,963,117 5,803,294 97.660/o

6,016,641 3,036,978 50/8% 2,885,675 5,922,653 98.440/o

2012 6,222,668 3,135,806 5039% 2,990,339 6,126,145 98.450/o

2013 6,359,126 3,242,876 51.00% 3,059,472 6,302,348 99.llo/o

2014 6,539,770 3,285,963 50.250/o 3,285,963 50.25%

Data Source

Village records
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

SALES TAX BY CATEGORY

Læt Ten Fiscal Yea¡s

2009E iaaal Year

General merchandise

Food

Drinking and eating placæs

Apparel

Fumiture, H.H. and Radio

Lumber, building hædware

Automobile and filling stations

Drugs and miscellaneous retail

Agiculture and all others

Manufacturers

TOTAL

Village direct sales tax rate

Data Source

Illinois Department of Revenue

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

2005

204,827

244,50t

23,992

I12,483

20,934

64,523

251,632

r83,959

(0 6qgr

tÍtftß

217,012

256,971

27,986

r 09,393

18,076

69,975

277,016

179,305

7.154

2007

235,537

258,766

24,120

92,077

t2,867

75,846

279,326

223,038

12 lt 7

rôon

257,825

268,963

22,801

19,960

r2,5r0

88,979

275,379

218,312

8.782

262,831

260,860

t7,8'15

s6,782

42,98t

80,924

225,938

222,628

2?90

2010

262,087

313,646

14,319

74,627

32,267

I18,40t

224,771

t87,929

13.422

201 I

276,748

333,052

16,392

78,t04

34,566

t2t,2t8

227,733

t96,243

4102

2012

300,635

377,267

15,874

73,059

36,066

12t,233

218,440

210,t23

t4.704

20t3

305,961

393,8 l 3

t0,ló5

t23,445

43,387

r20,054

2t0,677

23t,160

17.251

2014

299,65t

4r 8,566

10,292

104,436

23,249

t33,871

230,560

265,046

l8-453

a r 
"t" 

t"" 
" 

t ta" 
""t

l.0Ùo/o t.25% 1.25% 1.25o/o 1.25% t.25% 1.25o/o 1.25o/o 'l.25o/o
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

20ls 2014 20t3 2012 20tt 2010 2009 200E 2007 2006

0.25% 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25oto 0.00%

Function/Prosram

DIRECT
Village of La Grange

OVERLAPPING
State of Illinois
Cook County
Regional Transportation authority
Village of La Grange

Total overlapping

TOTAL SALES TAX RATE

Data Source

Illinois Department of Revenue

5.00o/ø

0.75o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00%
0.75o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

0.75o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

L00o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

1.25o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

1.7 5o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

1.75o/o

1.25o/o

t.00%

5.00o/o

1.00o/o

1.00o/o

1.00o/o

5.00%
0.7Soto

r.00%
l.00otä

5.00o/o

0.75o/o

1.00o/o

1.00%

8.00% 8.00% 8.00% E.25% 8.50o/o 9.00% 9.00o/o 8.00% 7.75oio 7.75o/o

8.25% 8.25o/o 8.25o/o 8.50o/o 8.75o/o 9.25o/o 9.25o/o 8.25o/o 8.00?0 7.750/ø
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDINC DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities
Business-Type

Activities Percentage
of

Personal
Income*

Fiscal
Year

Ended

General
Obligation

Bonds

Tax
Increment

Installment
Notes

P¡vable

General
Obligation

Bonds

Total
Primary

Government
Per

Revenue Bonds C¡oita*

2006
2007
2008
2009
20r0
201 I
20t2
2013
2014
2015

$ 3,610,000 $
3,225,000
2,765,000
2,260,000
2,0s0,000
1,830,000
1,595,000

1,355,000

I,105,000
845,000

$ 7,919,009 $
6,511,800
4,977,363
1,800,000

$ I1,529,009
9,736,800
7,742,363
4,060,000
2,050,000
1,830,000
1,595,000

3,435,000
3,loo,ooo
2,755,000

0.30% $
0.360/o

0.45o/o

0.860/o

1.70o/o

l.9lo/o
2.19o/o

1.02o/o

l.l3o/o
l.27Yo

2,080,000
1,995,000

1,9r0,000

34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,888

* See the schedule of Demographic and Economic Information on page I l2 for personal income and population data.

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding dcbt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

Personal income is the per capita income times the population
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation

Bonds

Less Amounts
Available
In Debt

Service Fund

Percentage of
Estimated

Actual Taxable
Value of

Property*
Per

Total Capita

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20tl
2012
2013
20t4
2015

$ 3,610,000 $
3,225,000
2,765,000
2,260,000
2,050,000
1,830,000
I "595,000
3,435,000
3,100,000
2,755,000

144,564 S

160,783

t69,393
169,527

1 70,1 89

170,422
10,500

10,507
10,509

10,510

3,465,436
3,064,217
2,595,607
2,090,473
1,879,81 I

1,659,578
1,584,500
3,424,493
3,089,491
2,744,490

0.260/o

0.18%
0.14%
0.t0%
0.08%
0.07%
0.07%
0.180/o

0.17o/o

0.l7Vo

222.86
196.32
166.30

133.94
120.44

r 06.33
l0l .52
219.41
t97.94
t75.84

$

* See the schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page l0l for
property value data.

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

April 30, 2015

Governmental Unit
Gross
Debt

Percentage
Debt

Applicable to
the Villaee (1)

Village's
Share

ofDebt

Village of [,a Grange

Cook County
Cook County Forest Preserve
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District
Township of Lyons
Lyons Township High School#204
DuPage Community College District #502
La Grange Public Library
Park District of La Grange
School District # 102

School District # 105

School District #106

$ 845,000 100.00% $ 845,000

3,578,276,750
170,322,164

2,591,245,000
9,342,742

18,980,000
328,283,434

5,605,000
9,305,942

43,780,626
27,180,000

2,937,559

0.45o/o

0.45%
0.46%
t6.37%
21.02%
t.54%

r00.00%
98.26%
52.35%
27.00%
7.45o/o

16,102,245
766,450

I1,919,727
1,529,407
3,989,596
5,055,565
5,605,000
9,144,019

22,919,159
7,339,600

218,948

6,785,259,217 88,61 5

TOTAL $6. 104,217 $ 8s,433,615

(l) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in the Village to
valuation of properly subject to taxation in overlapping unit.
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Ficool V¡qr

Debt limit
Total net debt applicable to lim¡t

LEGALDEBTMARGTN

TOTAL NET DEBT APPLICABLE
TO THE LIMIT AS A PERCENTAGE
OF DEBT LIMIT

VTLLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

,¡¡(, a¡¡7 2008 rnno totn 20lt 20t2 2î13 ,Ítl^ tnt (

$ 49,309,119 s49,869,744 $49,936,006 s60,4s9,744 $64,987,869 568,420,s43 $68,041,720 $56,088,682 $ 52,452,388 S 49,619,374

s ros 0fì0 9 ??,i oîî ß 600_000 ? q¿s noo sRO 000 200 000 6 805.000 6-585-000 6-105-000 5 605 lì007

c 20 <n¿ lt9 $ 40.64ej44$4t-336.006s52.5t4.74$57.407.869561.220.543$6t,236,720$49,503,682$46,347,388544!14]14

19.88o/o 18.49o/o 7 ))o/^ 13.l4%o Á,Áo/^ tn <)o/^ 10.00% ll.74yo I ß,Lo/^ ll.30o/o

Equatized assessed valuation oftaxable real property

Estimated true value oftaxable real property

Direct general obligation bonded debt
payable from property taxes - Library

Legal debt limit 8.6250/oof Ê,AY

Encumbered legal debt limit

I.INENCI.IMBERED LEGAL DEBT LIMIT

$ 575.297.090

1.72s.891.270

s_60s.000

49,619,374
5-605-000

s M-014-374
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Alternate Revenue Bonds
Special

Debt Service Assessment
P"i""irrl l"t"*st Coverase Collections

Special Assessment Bonds 2691270

Debt Service
Princinal Interest Coverace

Fiscal
Year

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20ll
2012
2013
2014
2015

Water
Charges

and Other

4,364,631
4,491,438
4,477,252

Less

Operating
Ernenses

Net
Available
Revenue

$ $ $ $ $

3,640,948
3,953,824
4,192,479

723,683
537,614
284,773

85,000
85,000

27,195
45,930
44,859

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ 26.61
11.71

6.35

$ 76,1 l3
45,561

47,442
35,097
23,782

82s

$ 61,000 $
59,000
38,000
25,000
68,000

10,478 $
7,109
5,196
3,441
2,516

r.06
0.69
l.l0
1.23

0.34

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements. Water Charges and Other includes investment earnings but

not tap-on fees. Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Ponulation (1)

Personal
Income

Per
Capita

Personal
Income (1)

Unemployment
Rate (2)

2015
2014
20t3
2012
20lt
20t0
2009
2008
2007
2006

15,550 $
15,550

15,550

15,550
15,550
15,608

15,608

15,608
15,608

15,608

34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887

6.40%
7.50%
7.30o/o

7.10o/o

7,400/o

730%
4.40Yo

3.40%
3.t0%
4.20%

542,492,850 S

542,492,850
542,492,850
542,492,850
542,492,850
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296

(l) U.S. Bureau of Census. Data based on 2010 and 2000 Census.

(2) Illinois Department of Employment Security.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANCE,ILLINOIS

PRTNCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015 2006

Emolover
Number of
Emplovees Rank

Percentage
of Total
Village

Population
Number of
Emolovees Rank

Percentage
of Total
Village

Population

Adventislla Grange Hospital

Lyons Township High School

Grayhill

SchoolDistrict 105

Meadowbrook Manor

Lexington Health Care Center

Village of La Grange

Lyons Pinner

JP Morgan Chase

Billet Specialties, Inc.

Musser

First National Bank of La Grange

Data Source

Village records

1,000

650

400

180

125

102

105

100

75

55

6.41%

4.16%

2.560/o

l.t5%

0.80%

0.6s%

0.67%

0.64%

0.48%

0.3s%

1,000

650

400

180

t25

102

il6

.,

J

4

5

6

7

I

9

l0

2

3

4

5

7

6

6.41%

4.16%

2s6%

l.l5o/o

0.80%

0.6s%

0.74%

8 0.48o/o

9 0.38%

t0 0.3s%

75

60

55
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Function/Prosram

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration
Finance
Community development

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Officers
Civilians-parking

Fire
Firefi ghters and offi cers

Civilians

PUBLIC \ilORKS
Public works
Water
Sewer

Total

Data Source

Village budget oflice

VTLLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt 2012 20t3 20t4 2015

35

J J 3

2l 2l 2l

96 96 97 99 99 99 99 99 99

l4
9
2

98

4
5

5

t4
9

2

4
5

5

34
3

20

t4
9

2

4
5

6

3535 35
J

20

35
J

21

35
J

2l

34
3

20

14

9

2

4
5

6

4

9

2

4
5

5

34

3

21

l4
9
2

4
5

6

t4
9

2

4

5

6

35
J

2l

14

9

2

4
5

6

4
9

2

4
5

6

4
5

6

l4
9
2
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VILLAGE OFLA GRANGE, ILLINOTS

OPERATING INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

200ß 2009 2010 20tlErrn¡linn/Pr¡wmn

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Index/non-index crimes cleared

Parking violations
Traffic violations

Fire
Emergency responses

Fire prwention activity

PUBLICWORKS
Sneet sweeping (miles)
Snow/ice control (hours)

IilATER
Water main brcaks
Average daily consumption (gal.)

Service leaks

2006

t39
r0,968
2,310

2,074
703

4,557
r,lt0

42
1,491,719

t3

75

2007 20t2

l3t
8,36r
1,619

1,901

822

4,607

30
I, I 68,813

t4

345

2013 20t4

t34
7,330
t,2i4

1,9:"0

1,089

3,Q2
2,1t6

59
1,197,755

_1o

308

2015

t28
9,278
t,146

2,068
787

3,880
2,928

64
t,t24,6tt

27

398

47
I,3 r 8,699

44

JJ

1,94r

500

4,209
1,5t7

35
t,279,532

l2

9

t3t
9,200
2,488

2,009
703

ll0
9, 168

2,107

2,027
306

4,203
t,147

73

r,296,690
t9

28

ill
9,319
1,643

152

7,38r
2,049

1,832

542

3,988
t,2t3

4l
I, r9ó.2 l8

2

il9

t49
7,654
2,580

2,022
860

3,570
I,t9l

JJ

I,r95,318
9

384

t34
6,386
1,427

r,878
8r8

4,839
331 609

4,916
993

65
1,235,199

n

374
SEIVER

Catch basins repaired/replaced

Data Source

Village budgets and various Village departnents
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2006 2007 20tl 2012 20t3 2014 2015

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2008 2009 2010Function/?rosram

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Stations
Patrol units

Fire
Fire stations
Fire engines

Ambulances
Aerial ladder truck

PUBLICWORKS
Collector streets (miles)

Residential streets (miles)
Streetlights
Traffic signals

WATER
Water mains (miles)
Fire hydrants

lryASTE\ryATER
Sanitary sewers (miles)

Storm sewers (miles)

Data Source

Various Village departments

I
7

I

2
2

I

7

l
2
2

I

7

l
2

2

I

7

l
2

2

I

7

I
)
2

I

I

7

I

2

2

I

I

7

l
2

2

I

I

7

I

2

2

I

I

6

I

2

2

I

I

6

I

2
a

I

70

560

39

8

8

45

796
l7

70

560

39

8

8

45

1,796
l7

8

45

1,796
l7

E

45
1,796

l7

8
45

1,796
l7

8
45

1,796
l7

8

45

t,796
l7

8

45

1,796
t7

5ó0

39
8

8

45
t,796

l7

8

45
1,796

l7

70

560

39

8

70

560

39

8

70

560

39

8

70 70

560

39

8

70

s60

39

8

70

560

39

8

70
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39

8

-ll7-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

For the Year Ended
April30,2015

VSikich.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report on Intemal Control Over

Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

Based on an Audit of Financial Søtements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ............,

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each

Major Federal Program; Report on Intemal Control Over

Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures

of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133..."

Page(s)

3-4

5-7

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards..........

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs..

8

9-10

-2-



VS¡kich.
1415 W. Dlehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, lllinois 60563

630.566.8400 // www.sikich.com

Certified Publlo Accountants & Advisors
Members ol American /nstitutê ol Certilied Publlc Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of La Grange, Illinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of La Grange, Illinois (the Village) as of and
for the year ended April 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated September 3, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control.

A deficiency in ínternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be

material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village's basic financial statements

are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Naperville, Illinois
September 3,2015
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Certified Publlc Accountants & Adv¡sors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;

AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A\ryARDS
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Village President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of La Grange, Illinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Village of La Grange, Illinois (the Village)'s compliance of the with the

types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplemenr that could have

a direct and material effect on each of the Village's major federal programs for the year ended

April30,2015.

M anagement's Resp o ns i bí I ity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts

and grants applicable to its federal programs.

A udítor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Village's major federal

programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We

conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards, is-sued by the Comptroller General of the United St¿tes; and

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements

refered to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program

occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Village's compliance

with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the

Village's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Village of La Grange, Illinois complied, in all material respects, with the

types of compliance requirements refered to above that could have a direct and material effect

on each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliancc

The management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements refered to above. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village's internal control over compliance

with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in

order to determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over

compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of La Grange, Illinois' internal control over

compliance.

A deJìciency ín internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing

their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness ín internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on

a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the fïrst paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal

control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
LaGrange as of and for the year ended April 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements. We issued our
report thereon dated September 3, 2015, which contained unmodified opinions on those fìnancial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
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statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule

of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by

OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic frnancial statements. Such

information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial

statements and certain additional proccdures, including comparing and reconciling such

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Naperville, Illinois
September 3,2015
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant Defìciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identifi ed?

S ign ifi cant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?

unmodified

unmodified

ves x no
yes x none reported

ves x no

ves x no
yes x none reported

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.500 Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and TYPe B Programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

ves x no

ves x no
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

SCHEDLJLE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended APril 30, 2015

Section II - X'inancial Statement Findings

None.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.

Section IV - Prior X'ederal Award Findings

None.
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TO

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Community Development Department

BOARD REPORT

Village President, Village Clerk,
Board of Trustees

FROM: Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager
Patrick D. Benjamin, Community Development Director
Angela M. Mesaros, Assistant Community Development Director
Mark E. Burkland, Village Attorney

DATE: October 12,2015

RE: ORDINANCE - ZONING CODE TEXT AMENDMENTS

Introduction

As part of the Village's comprehensive, phased review of the Zoning Code, Staff has conducted

another review of several sections of the Code. As part of its research, Staff has reviewed the use

lists in the various zoning districts such as additional uses in the I-1 Light Industrial District, recent

requests for uses not specifically regulated by the use lists such a hookah lounges and "vapor" stores,

recent "pop-up" uses such as commercial collection boxes, and basic regulations for several

accessory uses, among other matters.

The Village Attorney presented the draft Zoning Code amendments to the Village Board at its

August 24,20l5,meeting at the Community Center, after the Plan Commission had conducted the

frrst public hearing session. The presentation to the Village Board was informational in nature, so

that the Board would be aware of the draft amendments in advance of a planned workshop for the

Plan Commission at which the draft amendments \¡/ere reviewed in detail.

After the Plan Commission workshop, Staff revised several of the draft amendments based on

Commissioner input, and the Plan Commission conducted a second session ofthe public hearing on

September 8. After deliberating at some length, the Plan Commission voted to recommend all ofthe
draft amendments in the form presented at second public hearing session, with one exception

discussed later in this Board Report.

Included with this Board Report are the Executive Memorandum previously provided to the Village

Board that includes discussion of the draft amendments and the Findings and Recommendations of
the Plan Commission.
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Board Report
ZoningText Amendments

October 12,2015
Page2

Summary of Draft Amendments

Commercial Districts. Article V

o Wine and Beer Boutiques. Adding these uses to the permitted use lists in all four commercial

districts and adding f'*in" and beer boutiques" to the Definitions list. There is one wine

boutique in the Village already-Vino e Birra.

. personal physical Fitness Training. Excusing fitness clubs in the C-3 and C-4 Commercial

Districts from the requirement of maintaining a retail sales space in their storefronts. Staff

and the plan Commission believe the retail sales requirement is still appropriate in the C-1

and C-2 Districts, but not necessary in the C-3 and C-4 Districts.

. Tobacco Stores & Stands (5993). Clariffing in the use lists that a stand-alone hookah lounge

or ..vapor / e-cigarette" store is not allowed. Those products may be sold in a general

merchandise store, but cannot be the primary product of a store.

Office District. Article VI

. Deletin g airplane runways, gun clubs, and shooting clubs from the offrce use list. These

uses are inappropriate sub-uses in an SIC category with other uses that are appropriate.

I-1 Light Industrial District. Article VII

. Craft Breweries and Craft Distilleries. Adding craft breweries and distilleries to the I-1

District special use list. These uses seem appropriate, because the I-1 District has only

modest truck traffic and has potential for attracting commercial uses in addition to the new

self-storage facilitY.

. Deletin g airplane runways, gun clubs, and shooting clubs,for the same reasons noted for the

Office District.

Accessory Uses and Structures Regulations

. Donation Boxes. Adding regulations for donation boxes, which appear to be proliferating in

the Village. One of the concerns with donation boxes is the placement of boxes by for-profit

companiés as a second commercial use that is unrelated to the principal use (such as a gas

statiòn). Other concerns include encroachment on public property or in_a required off-street

parking space, poor maintenance, vandalism, and public safety generally'

. play Houses and Tree Houses. Adding modest regulations for these accessory uses so that

they are not unreasonably large or too close to neighboring property lines. These regulations

are suggested in part because ofrecent stories about excessively large tree houses and play
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Board Report
ZoningText Amendments

October 12,2015
Page 3

houses in Chicago suburbs, including a tree house listed for occupancy on Airbnb, and Staff
awareness of a planned two-story play house here in La Grange.

Greenhous¿s - Adding modest regulations related to the size and locations of greenhouses,

with a graduated scale based on lot size similar to the regulations for gazebos and pergolas.

Fence Regulations

Fence Materials - Adding to the list of materials and building techniques that are not
permitted for fences because they are inconsistent with current fènces and the character of the

Village, including woven mesh, concertina wire, temporary fences, and incomplete fences.

Parking and Loading Regulations

Craft Breweries and Craft Distilleries. Adding an ofÊstreet parking space standard for craft

breweries and distilleries to accommodate both employees of the brewery/distillery and

patrons of a tasting room.

Comprehensive Si gn Plans Regulations

I-l District Sign Plans - Allowing businesses in the I-1 District, particularly along Shawmut

Avenue, to apply for and receive approval of a comprehensive sign plan. Comprehensive

sign plans are beneficial to a business and also protective of Village interests.

Nonconformities

Horizontal and Vertical Extensions - Clarifying the current standard in the Village that an

owner may extend a wall horizontally or vertically even though it is too close to a property

line, so long as thc wall is not moved any closer to the property line.

Definitions

Updating the definitions list, including the following new definitions:

o

a

a

o

O

a

a

a

o

Wine & Beer Boutique
Brewpub
Building Line - The purpose for adding a definition of "building line" is to address

recurring questions regarding nonconformities related to side yards and regarding the

extension of attached garages beyond a front building line.

Craft Brewery
Craft Distillery
Playhouse
Tasting Room
Tree house

5-ß'¿-
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Board Report
ZoningText Amendments

October 12,2015
Page 4

Short-Term Rental Dwelling

Adding a definition of "Short-Term Rental Dwelling." This draft definition is discussed

separately because the Plan Commission did not recommend it for approval, for the reasons

discussed below.

A short-term rental dwelling is, essentially, a house, condominium, or apartment that is

offered for rent for a time period less than 30 days. The primary purpose of this draft

definition is to distinguish between a traditional single family house and a house that is

regularly-or always-offered as a rental. The definition states that a short-term rental

dwelling is not a single family detached dwelling and thus is not permitted in the five single

family residential districts, which allow only single family detached dwellings.

There appears to be a growing trend around the country, including many places within the

Chicago metropolitan area, for house owners to rent their houses in their entirety for long and

short time periods. The concerns with rented houses in traditional neighborhoods include

that the houses may not be maintained at the same level as owner-occupied houses, that the

absentee owner may be difficult to identify and locate, that continuous, rapid turn-over of
occupants detracts from single family neighborhoods.

Note that the definition of "short-term residential dwelling" does not include a house in
which the owners live while they rent an empty room, regardless of the length of that rental.

For example, the hosting of an exchange student or the posting of a single-room rental on

Airbnb would not be regulated. Note also that the short-term residential dwellings are not

regulated in the Village's three multiple family zoning districts.

A majority of Plan Commissioners determined, for various reasons, that the draft definition
is not appropriate or necessary at this time. Some of those reasons are that the

Commissioners do not know of any concerns with housing rentals, that the 30-day break

between prohibited and permissible rentals is random in nature, that house owners should

have a right to rent the property they own without limitations, that a house owner taking a

long vacation should be able to rent her or his house while away, and that the Village can act

in the future if troubling circumstances actually arise.

Included with this Board Report is an ordinance with the complete wording of each draft

amendment. As this is the Village Board's first reading of the proposed amendments, President

Livingston would like to provide the Village Board with an opportunity to fully consider and discuss

them as a whole. Ifthere is a consensus of the Board after discussion to enact all or some ofthe draft

amendments, then the appropriate process would be for a member of the Village Board to make a

motion to approve the ordinance included with this Board Report (with deletions if necessary), final

discussion, and a vote on the motion.

a
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

ORDINANCE NO

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS
OF THE LA GRANGE ZONING CODE

WHEREAS, the La Grange ZoningCode was comprehensively amended in 1991; and

WHEREAS, the Village Staff routinely monitors trends and changes in land development and

land uses and from time to time provide draft amendments to the ZoningCode to address those trends

and changes; and

WHEREAS, the Village Staff has undertaken a review ofvarious ZoningCode provisions, and

the La Grange Plan Commission conducted a July 14, 2015, workshop and two public hearing sessions

on June 9 and September 9, 201 5, to consider draft amendments to the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearing sessions, the Plan Commission heard testimony from the

public and thoroughly considered all of the facts and circumstances related to the draft amendments;

and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange have reviewed

the Findings and Recommendations of the Plan Commission and the facts and circumstances related to

the proposed amendments and the President and Board of Trustees have determined that the

amendments approved by this Ordinance satisfy the standards set fofth in Section 14-605 of the

ZoningCode applicable to amendments to the text of the Zoning Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the

Village of La Grange, Cook County and State of Illinois, as follows:

Section l. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as

fìndings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Amendment ofZoning Code Article V Relatingto CommercialPermitted Use

List. The President and Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and

Article XIV, Part VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends the permitted use list of Article V
of the Zoning Code as set forth in Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance and by this reference

incorporated into this Ordinance.

Section 3. AmendmentofZoningCode Section 6-105 RelatingtoOfficeDistrictSpecial
Use List. The Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV,
Pa¡t VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends Subsection D of the special use list in Article

VI of the ZoningCode to read as follows:

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs (7997) but not including flying fields

(runways), gun clubs, or shooting clubs.
D.
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Section 4. Amendment of Zoning Code Article VII Relating to Office District Use Lists.

The President and Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article

XIV, Part VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends the permitted and special use lists of
Article VII of the Zoning Code as set forth in Exhibit B attached to this Ordinance and by this

rcfcrcncc incorporated into this Ordinance.

Section 5. Amendment of Zoning Code Subsection 9-101C Relating to Accessory

Structures. The Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Afticle XIV,
Part VI of the La Grange Zoning Code, hereby amends the regulations applicable to accessory

structures and uses of the ZoningCode as set forth in Exhibit C attached to this Ordinance and by this

reference incorporated into this Ordinance.

Section6. AmendmentofZoningCodesectiong-l05RelatingtoFences. TheBoardof

Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV, Part VI of the La Grange

ZoningCode, hereby amends Subsection 9-1058, titled "Prohibited Materials," ofthe ZoningCode as

set forth in Exhibit D attached to this Ordinance and by this reference incorporated into this

Ordinance.

Section 7. Amendment of Zoning Code Section l0-101 Relating to Required Parking

Spaces. The Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV,
Par-t VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby adds the following new subsection to the required ofÊ

street parking spaces list of Article X of the ZoningCode:

(F)_ Craft Brewery or Craft Distillery with Tasting Room: One for each two employees

plus one for each 65 square feet of Tasting Room floor area.

Section 8. Amendment of Zoning Code Subsection I I -1 l0A Relating to Comprehensive

Sien Plans. The Board of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV,
Part VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends Subsection I l-l l0A of the ZoningCode to

read as follows:

A Comprehensive Building Sign Plan. A Comprehensive Building Sign Plan ("CB Sign

Plan") is a set of one or more drawings, specificationso atrd design criteria for all signs

on a single commercial or industrial building in a commercial or industrial zoning

district. An approved CB Sign Plan establishes the number, locations, sizes, general

design theme and guidelines, and other criteria for all current and future exterior signs

on the building. fwith consistent changes throughout entire sectionJ

Section 9. Amendment ofZoning Code Subsection l2-1048 RelatingtoNonconforming

Structures. The Board ofTrustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV,
Part VI of the La Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends Subsection 12-104B* of the ZoningCode to

read as follows:

Repair, Maintenance, Alternations, and Enlargement. Any nonconforming structure

may be repaired, maintained, altered, or enlarged; provided, however, that no such

repair, maintenance, alteration, or enlargement shall either create any additional

nonconformity or increase the degree of the existing nonconformity of all or any paú

of such structure. The vertical or horizontal extension of an existing exterior wall of a

B.
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single family detached dwelling that is nonconforming with respect to a minimum

required side or rear yard will not be considered to increase the degree of that

nonconformity so long as the extension does not encroach further into the required

side or rear yard.

Section 10. Amendment of Zoning Code Article XVI Relating to Definitions. The Board

of Trustees, pursuant to the authority vested in it by State law and Article XIV, Part VII of the La

Grange ZoningCode, hereby amends Section l6-l02,titled "Definitions," ofthe ZoningCode as set

forth in Exhibit E attached to this Ordinance and by this reference incorporated into this Ordinance.

Section I l. Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full force and effect from and after

its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law.

Section 12. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after

its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this _ day of 

- 

2015

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of 2015.

Thomas Livingston, Village President

ATTEST:

John Burns, Village Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

TO ORDINANCE NO.

AMENDMENTS TO SUBSECTION 5.IO2C
[paragraph numbering to be added in alphabetical orderl

Addition and Revisions to Commercial District Permitted Use List

3

(zc s5-r_02 )

IrevisionJ Personal Physical Fitness Training and supervised
exercise facilities in conjunction with retail sales (NAICS
1L3940), subject to the followíng conditions: (a) the use
may not exceed 31 500 square feet of gross floor area on the
first floor, (b) the use is permitted only in a storefront
space that does not exceed 30 feet in width at the front lot
Iine, (c) in the C-1 District and the C-2 District the full
width of the use at the storefront must be devoted
exclusively to retail sal-es and the retail sales area must
have an average depth of not less than 25 feet measured from
the storefront

5-LO2C

t6.

30.

IrevísionJ Eating Places (5812), including Brewpubs and
inctuding carry-out, but not including drive-in
establishments,

IrevisionJ Tobacco Stores & Stands (5993) but not including
e-cigarettes, hookahs, hookah bars, or similar uses as a
principal use or substantial stock in trade of the
establíshment

Inew] lrtine and Beer Boutíques, not including spirits (NAICS

44531-0) tin a77 four commercial districtsl

5-6,7



EXHIBIT B

TO ORDINANCE NO

AMENDMENTS TO VARIOUS SECTIONS OF ARTICLE VII
lparagraph numbering to be added in alphabetical orderl

Revision to Office District Special Use List (zc S6-1-05)

3

6-L0s (D)

[revisíonJ Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs (7997) but
not including flying fields maintained by avíation clubs,
gun clubs, or shooting clubs.

Addition to I-l- Use Lists ( zc s7 -1-02\

7-r02D

Irevision] Craft Breweries and Craft DistiIIeries, as
defined and regulated by lllinois law and the Illinois
Liquor Control Commission, including Tasting Rooms

7-L02 (r)

11. Írevisionl Miscellaneous Repair Services (76) but not
including gun parts made to individual order

7-r.0s (E)

10. Irevísions] Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs (7991-)
but not including flying fields maintained by avíation
c1ubs, güh clubs, or shooting clubs

[revisionsJ Amusement and Recreation Services not elsewhere
classified (7999) but not including bookies, bookmakers,
card rooms, gambling establishments, gambling machines,
lotteries, lottery clubs, shootíng galleries, shooting
ranges, skeet shooting facilities of any king, or
trapshooting facilities of any kind

1-1-.
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EXHIBIT C

TO ORDINANCE NO

AMENDMENTS TO VARIOUS PARAGRAPHS OF SI ]BSECTION 9-I OI C

[paragraph numbering to be added in alphabetical orderl

. Donation Collection Bíns. Donation colfection bins must satisfy
all the fol-Iowing conditions:

(a) Locations. A donation collection bin may be placed
only on a Iot that (1) is classifíed in the C-3, C-4,
O-1, I-1 Districts of the La Grange Zoning Code, or
(2) is classified in t.he IB Institutional- Buildings
District and is occupied and used primarily for
religious purposes, or (3) is used by a unit of state
or local- government.

(b) Relationship to principal use. The donation collection
bin must refate directly and specifically to the
current principal use on the l-ot on which the donation
bin is pJ-aced.

(c) Location. No donation coll-ection bin may be placed
such that it faces an abutting zoning lot classified
in a single family residential zoning district.

(d) Non-operational use. No donation colfection bin may be
pJ-aced on any
principal use.

lot on which there is no operational

(e) Off-street Parking Spaces. No donation cofl-ection bin
may be placed in any off-street parking space required
under the La Grange Zoning Code or any ViIlage
ordinance or regulations.

(f) Public Ri hts-of -I¡üa . No donation colfection bin may
be pJ-aced within any public right-of-way

(g) Required Yards. No donation collection bin may be
placed within any required yard except the rear yard
no cfoser than 3 feet from the rear lot line.

(h) Obstruction. No donation collection bin may be placed
in any manner that creates an obstruction or sight
obstruction for pedestrians or motorists

(i) Front Facades.
placed against
buiJ-ding.

No donation colfection bin
or along the front façade

may
of

be
any

Dimension. No donation
dimensions:

coll-ection bin may exceed the
In the IB Institutional

(j )

follow ng

,5--ß,7



Buildings District: L72"x l¡172"x H7 4" .

authorized districts: L48"x W44"x H74".
In other

(k) Tdentification. Every donation collection bin must
frave tfre name and telephone number of the donation
collection bin licertsee affixed permanently to its
front.

(r) Maintenance Service. Every donation collection bin
must be, at all times (1) maintained in good condition
and appearance, (2) kept free of rust and graffiti,
and (3) regularly emptied to prevent the overflow of
donations.

* *

Greenhouses. Greenhouses must satisfy all of the following
conditions:

*

(a) Size. No greenhouse
district may exceed
maximums:

in any singte family residential
the following gross floor area

(i) Lots 6 500 feet or less in total lot
area: 1 0 square feet;

(ii) Lots 6, 501 to 10,000 square feet in total lot

(iii) Lots

L44 square

10,001 to

area: feet;

15,000 in total lot area: 250

(iv)

square feet.

Lots greater than L5,000 square feet in total
lot area: 400 square feet.

No greenhouse may exceed 12 feet in maxímum

* * *

(b) Height.
height.

Playhouses. A playhouse must satisfy all of the following
conditíons:

(a) Height. The maximum height of a playhouse is 10 feet
above grade at anY Point.

(b) Location. A play house may not be located in any
required yard except the rear yard.

Separation from Principal Structure. A playhouse must
be separated from the princípal structure (house) by a
minimum of 10 feet. A playhouse may not be physícally
connected to the principal structure.

(c)

s'El,lo



(d) Habitation. A playhouse may not be constructed or
used as a dwelling unit,.

Playhouses are prohibited as a princípal use everywhere
withín the Village.

* *

Tree houses. A tree house is authorízed as an accessory use
only if all of the follow ing standards are met:

(a) Support. No tree house may be supported in any $tay
directly by the ground.

(b) Location. A tree house may not be Located in any
required yard except the rear yard.

(c) Habitation. A tree house may not be constructed or
used as a dwelling unir.

(d) Tree houses are prohibited as a principal use
everywhere within the village.

*

,1*6,1/



EXHIBIT D

TO ORDINANCE NO.

AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 9-IO5

Revisions to fence resulations (ZC 59-L05)

9-1_0s (B) e (D)

B. I revisions ] Prohibited Materials. No fence shal1 be
constructed of the following materials:

L. Any electrically charged element.

2. Barbed wire, razor wire' or concertina wire.

3. Chain tink if located between the building line and a
corner side lot line, or front lot line.

4 . I,rloven mesh.

Temporary or incomplete structuraL rnembers, such as
non-rigid plastic, stakes, or un-framed chained link.

Irevisions] Prohibited Locations. No fence shall be
constructed or maintained (1) between the front building
line of the principal structure and the front lot line or
(2) in the corner side yard except under the following
circumstances z Iremaindet of Subsection D unchanged]

5

D
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L6-1.02

EXHIBIT E

TO ORDINANCE NO.

AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 16.102

DEFINTTIONS

Insert in proper alphabetical order:

laLL newl

Boutique.' A smalI retail shop that specializes in a
such as women's clothes, food, or wine,partícular product

for example.

Brewpub.' An establishment where beer is brewed or
lnanufactured primarily for distribution and consumption in
an adjoining full-service restaurant.
Building Line: Stated generally, the average distance
between a lot line the exterior wall of the principal
structure facing that lot line. The building line is drawn
parallel to the lot line at the average distance from the
Iot líne of the exterior waII.
Craft Brewery: A small-production beer manufacturing
facility operated in accordance with Illinois law regarding
production Iimits.
Craft Distillery: A small-production facility in which
where alcoholic liquors are made by distitlatíon in
accordance with lllinois law regarding production limits.
Donation Box: Any self-supporting outdoor container into
which the public is solicited to deposit clothing, shoes,
books, electronic devices¡ or other goods or merchandise
regardless of the purpose of the donatíon box and regardless
of whether a person is compensated in any Intay f or the
deposit.
Deletion of Microbrewery
Playhouse: See Subsection 9-10]-C of this Code.

Short-Term Rental Dwe llinq: A dwelling that is rented or
otherwise offered or provided for occupancy by a person or
persons other than the ov¡ner for any period of time less
than 30 days, regardless of the form of rent or other
consideration. A short-term rental dwelling is not a single
family detached dwelting and is not permitted in any single
family residential district.
Tasting Room: A room accessory to a Craft Brewery or a

n which food and the products produced inCraft Distillery i
the brewery or distillery are offered to the public.

5-8"/3



Tree house: See Subsection 9-101C of this Code.

I¡trine and Beer Boutique. A retail establishment specializing
in the sale of wine and, optionally, craft beer as its
primary stock-in-trade. lrline and Beer Boutiques may not
sell spirit.s.

5 *B^/ L/



F'INDINGS OF'F'ACT

President Livingston and
Board of Trustees

PLAN COMMISSION

OF THE VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

June 9, and September 8,2015

RE: PLAN COMMISSION CASE #223 - Text Amendments to various sections of the

Villaee of La Granse Zonine Code: Use Lists. Definitions. Accessorv Uses. Fences and

Various Other Standards.

We transmit for your consideration the recommendations of the Plan Commission of the

Village of La Grange on the proposed zoning text amendments.

L THE APPLICATION

The Applicant, the Village of La Grange, seeks approval of amendments to the Zoning

Code.

il. THE PUBLIC HEARING

After due notice given in accordance with law, the Plan Commission held the first session

of the public hearing on June 9,2015. Present were Commissioners Egan, Paice, Reich,

Schwartz, Stewart, 'Weyrauch with Chairman Kardatzke presiding. Also present were

Village Trustee Liaison Mark Langan, Village Clerk John Burns, Assistant Community

Development Director Angela M. Mesaros, and Village Attomey Mark Burkland.

At the June 9th hearing session, Ms. Mesaros and Mr. Burkland introduced the

amendments and answered questions from the Commissioners

The addition of hookah and e-cigarettes is not a change in the Code but an

amplification of the standard for tobacco uses.

The proposed amendment to the IB district special use list regarding religious uses

would address individual ancillary uses of religious institutions including but not

limited to social services agencies as and would not allow churches to operate uses

such as retail or personal services.

Mr. Burkland stated that this would not be an amofüzation of existing uses - these

uses would become legal non-conforming.

o

a

a
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Findings of Fact
PC #223 -Amendments to ZoningCode - Village of La Grange

June 9 & September 8, 2015
Page2

Commissioner Stewart asked about current/past conflicts between religious uses and

the community, and stated that this would be too restrictive. Mr. Burkland stated that

yes, issues do arise. Staff proposes to put in place standards to clarify which uses are

ancillary to religious uses. The proposed standard is broad.

Commissioner Egan stated that social service agencies already are special uses. She

believes this is an enforcement issue and should apply across uses not just religious

uses. The Village needs to enforce the Code as it exists.

Chairman Kardatzke asked if anything churches are doing now would be

grandfathered. Mr. Burkland stated that independent social service agencies would

have to seek a special use permit to operate in churches. However, religious

institutions could not be prevented from undertaking services related to their core

mission, which is protected under the First Amendment. Overnight sheltering is an

example of an activity that is protected.

Chairperson Kardatzke asked if a use such as a rummage sale would require a special

use under the proposed amendments. Mr. Burkland stated that a rummage sale and

similar traditional activities would not require a special use permit, but a weekly
ooblowout sale" of merchandise meant to raise money might be treated differently.

Commissioner Schwartz asked about the process for determining the core mission. He

does not want the Village to be in that position to decide what is permitted.

Commissioner Schwartz asked who would make that determination as to the core

mission. Mr. Burkland stated that Staff would review a particular activity first as it
does now and that the religious organization would not need to frle an application

unless there was a determination that the particular activity was decidedly outside of
what mission means. Commissioner Schwartz stated that he believes that this would

add uncertainty to the religious institutions.

Commissioner Weyrauch stated that as written she believes that this amendment is

unworkable, that the Village would be in a position to interpret the core religious

mission is troubling. She does not support any limits on religious freedom. Mr.

Burkland stated that there instances where uses conflict with the neighborhood such

as privately operated day care centers or parking lots.

5*ß,,/ø
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Findings of Fact
PC #223 -Amendments to Zoning Code - Village of La Grange

June 9 & September 8, 2015
Page 3

Commissioner Stewart asked how wireless small cell sites are currently regulated.

He would not want any impact on future plans for wireless. Mr. Burkland stated that

small cell sites at this time are intended to increase capacity, not signal coverage.

Some regulations seem appropriate, such as preventing them on utility poles in
residential backyards.

o Commissioner Stewart questioned if it would be possible to carve out invisibility
fences? Answer: No permit is required for such a fence under the current Code.

Commissioner Paice asked if the regulation of airline runways would apply to a

runway for drones. Mr. Burkland stated this would not affect drones, which don't
require runways.

Commissioner Weyrauch stated that donation boxes should not be permitted in front
yards and asked about setbacks and limits on building and lot coverage.

Commissioner Weyrauch stated that we should limit square footage on tasting rooms

and parking standards.

Commissioner Weyrauch stated she knows of people who trade homes for three

weeks at a time with one family. Mr. Burkland stated that this regulation for short

term rentals would be protective of owners' rights. The Plan Commission can

suggest the appropriate period of time or the number of times within a largely time
period, such as a six-month or one-year period.

Chairman Kardatzke opened the public testimony portion of the hearing. The following
persons spoke at the hearing:

. Joe Young

. Carly Stucklen Sather, Pastor of First Congregational Church

. Bill Robinson

. David Hulse

. Ron Melke of Lyons Township Mental Health

. Chris Sass

. Laurie Braun

. Randy Valenta

. Caroline Dillon

. Mike Bolton

a

a

a

a
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Findings of Fact
PC#223 -Amendments to Zoning Code - Village of La Grange

June 9 & September 8, 2015
Page 4

LizYan Tassel

Katie DeVries, Director of Pastoral Studies, St. Francis

Cindy Frymark

Jane Young
Richard Welsch

Isabel Martinez.

The public comments related to the following:

Concerns about: the constitutionality of the amendment to religious uses, the Village

interpreting the core mission of religious uses, that the proposed amendment would

be unduly burdensome to churches and unconstitutional, and limitations on religious

freedoms.

Concems from mental health agencies about the proposed amendments. La Grange is

a vibrant community and this is an attempt to limit civic activity. Several programs

are sponsored located in churches, including Aging Care, Pillars, etc.

a

a

a

a

Request that if not an amendment to the Code, then could something be done to

bridge the gap with respect to religious organizations and residents, getting the two

sides together to frnd common ground in the neighborhoods.

Chairman Kardatzke solicited comments from the Commisstoners:

Commissioner Paice stated that he would like to see the special use for religious uses

in the IB District removed from the amendments list, and that the short term rental

amendment would need additional discussion and revision.

Chairman Kardatzke stated he would also want to further discuss small cell sites to

clarify a number of issues.

a

Chairman Kardatzke suggested that the discussion be tabled to a future workshop.

Commissioner Reich made a motion to table this discussion, seconded by Commissioner

Egan. The Plan Commission ended the session at9,,21p.m.

The Plan Commission convened the public workshop on July 14,2015 at7:30 p.m. in the

Village Hall Auditorium. Present were Commissioners Reich, Weyrauch (aniving at 8
p.m.), Stewart (aniving at 7:50 p.m.), Paice and Egan with Chairman Kardatzke

presiding. Also present were Village Trustee Liaisons Michael Kotynek and Mark

ó-^8, [8



Findings of Fact
PC#223 -Amendments to ZoningCode - Village of La Grange

June 9 & September 8, 2015
Page 5

Langan, Village Clerk John Bums, Assistant Community Development Director Angela

M. Mesaros, and Village Attorney Mark Burkland.

Chairman Kardatzke convened the meeting and Ms. Mesaros introduced the revised

amendments. The religious organizations amendment is no longer part of the proposed

amendments based on the discussion at the Plan Commission hearing in June.

Commissioners discussed craft breweries and distilleries, specific hours for tasting,

food trucks, and tasting room size. Commissioners generally expressed support for
the brewery amendment.

a

a

a

a

a

Commissioner Stewart asked if indoor shooting ranges would be prohibited. Answer:

Yes.

Regarding donation boxes, Commissioners asked if donation boxes would be

distinguished between non-profit, for-profit, gas station versus religious use. They

expressed concems that the Village could not administer who has them and that the

amendment would complicate the matter for religious institutions.

Commissioners stated that concern about small cell sites and did not want to impact

La Grange's cell service. Commissioner Weyrauch asked if there would be a design

review component to this small cell site.

Regarding short term rentals, Commissioners stated that an investor buying a property

and renting out the house is different than owner occupied. Chairman Kardatzke

stated he has no problem with condos being rented. Mr. Burkland stated that the

proposed amendment is intended primarily to prevent institutional use of houses for
short term occupancy-like a hotel-with different people and vehicles taking

occupancy every few days or weeks.

Commissioners stated concerns about objectionable behavior from short-term

occupants and that there are codes in place about upkeep and property maintenance

that would govem this. Commissioners were also concerned about turning a

residential home into a business but did not want to limit private property owner

rights to occasionally rent out their property.

Commissioners did not believe that concepts such as Airbnb would want to be located

in a suburban area and that this may not be an issue for La Grange.

a

a
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Page 6

Chairman Kardatzke solicited input from the audience. The following persons spoke:

. Richard Simms

. Mimi Meagher

. Caroline Dillon

. Tina

. Diana McKay

. Camille Hall

. Anna Bavone

. Sally Miller

There being no further questions or comments from the audience or the Commissioners, a

motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Commissioner Stewart, seconded by Commissioner

Reich. The Plan Commission adjoumed at 9:30 p.m.

The Plan Commission convened the second session of the public hearing on September 8, 2015,

at 7:30 p.m. in the Village Hall Auditorium. Present were Commissioners Egan, Paice, Reich,

Schwartz, Stewart and ChairmanKardatzke presiding. Also present were Village Trustee Liaison

Mark Langan, Village Clerk John Burns, Assistant Community Development Director Angela

M. Mesaros, and Village Attomey Mark Burkland.

. Staff and Attorney Burkland presented the proposed amendments. The amendments were

discussed item by item. It was decided that the Commissioners would vote on most of
the items under a single motion with the exception of three individual items that did not

appear to have unanimous support from the Commissioners.

Chairman Kardatzke solicited comments from the audience:

ZoningBoard of Appeals Commissioner John Pappas asked for clarification of the

amendment to nonconformities.

a

There being no further questions or comments from the audience or the Commissioners, a

motion was made by Commissioner Stewart, seconded by Commissioner Paice that the Plan

Commission recommend to the Village Board of Trustees Denial of zoning text amendment to

the permitted use list in the Industrial District, Subsection 7-1021, to eliminate "gun parts made

to individual order."

Motion to DENY failed by a roll call vote (3l3ll):

Paice, Schwartz, and Stewart.AYE
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PageT

NAY: Egan, Reich, and Kardatzke.

ABSEN'I': Weyrauch.

Those members who voted against this item felt that this business provides a service to gun

owners and would have less of an impact on the community than uses such as an existing

company that manufacturers weapons in La Grange. (This is likely a reference to Grayhill,
although the Commissioner did not state the company name specifically.) Commissioners voting

for this item stated that it is consistent with taking gun uses out of the entire Code.

A second motion was made by Commissioner Egan, seconded by Commissioner Reich that the

Plan Commission recommend to the Village Board of Trustees Approval of an amendment to

the special use list in the Industrial District to eliminate "shooting clubs" from the "Membership

Sports and Recreation Clubs" category with PC Case #223.

Motion to APPROVE Canied by a roll call vote (5llll):

AYE Egan, Paice, Reich, Schwartz, and Chairman Kardatzke.

NAY: Stewart.

ABSENT: Weyrauch.

The member who voted against this item felt that shooting ranges should remain as a special use

are they are appropriate in the industrial area, especially when located indoors.

Another motion was made by Commissioner Paice, seconded by Commissioner Stewart that the

Plan Commission recommend to the Village Board of Trustees Denial of the application for

amendment to add a new definition for "short term rental housing" as proposecl with PC Case

#223.

Motion to DENY failed by a roll call vote (3l3ll):

AYE Paice, Schwartz, and Stewart.

NAY: Egan, Reich, and Chairman Kardatzke.

ABSENT: Weyrauch.

Those members who voted against this item felt it would be too restrictive in setting limitations

on residents' ability to rent out their houses. They would rather regulate "abhorrent behavior."

They felt that renting a house in itself is not a "bad activity." Commissioners voting for this item

stated that this amendment would give the Village additional authority to regulate "transient"

houses in cases where it becomes a problem.

.î-ß,)/



Findings of Fact
PC #223 -Amendments to Zoning Code - Village of La Grange

September 8,2015
Page 8

A motion was made by Commissioner Reich seconded by Commissioner Schwartz that the Plan
Commission recommend to the Village Board of Trustees Approval of all other zoning text
amendment with PC Case#223.

Motion to APPROVE Camied by a roll call vote (610ll):

AYE Egan, Paice, Reich, Stewart, Williams, and Chairman Kardatzke.

NAY: None.

ABSENT: V/eyrauch.

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board

of Trustees granting amendments to the text of the La Grange ZonngCode described in PC Case

#223.

Respectfully Submitted,

PLA}{ COMMISSION

OF THE VILLAGE OF LA GRA}{GE

\Mayne Kardatzke, Chairman

d
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Commercial Districts 5-1"02

c-L c-2 c-3 c-4

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

6

7

I

Department Stores (531)

Variety Stores (533)

Miscellaneous General Merchandise
Stores (539)

Food Stores (5a¡

l-0. Retail Auto and Home Supply Stores
(553), but not incl-udíng service
bays

11. Boat Dealers (555)

12. Apparel and Accessory Stores (56)

13. Home Furni-ture and Home
Furnishings Stores (57L)

L4. Household Appliance Stores (572)

l-5. Radio, Television, Consumer
Electronics, and Music St,ores
(s73)

L6. Eating Places (5812), including
Brewpubs and carry-out, but not
including drive-in establishments

1,7 . Drinking Places (581-3) accessory
to eating places

1_8. Drug Stores and Proprietary Stores
(se1)

L9 Vüine and Beer Boutisues (NAICS
445310 )

201+. Used Merchandise Stores (593) , but
not including pawnshops or used
building material stores

Sporting Good Stores and Bicycle
Shops (5941-), but not including
the retail sale of firearms and
ammunition

P

P

P

P

9

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

PP

P

P

PPPP

PPPP

PPPP

P

P

P

P

P P

P P

P P21,.9.
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CommerciaL Districts 5-]-02

c-1 c-2 c-3 c-4
2r.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Book Stores (5942)

Stationery Stores (5943)

Jewelry St.ores (5944)

Holoby, Toy, and Game Shops (5945)

Camera and Photographic Supply
Stores (5946)

Gift, Novelty, and Souvenir Shops
(5947 )

Consumer Lending (NAICS 52229]-),
but not including loan agents,
personal loans, or payday loans

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

PP

P

P

P

P

P P

P

P

27. Luggage and LeaLher Goods Stores
(5e48)

28. Sewing, Needlework, and Piece
Goods Stores (5949)

29. Florists (5992)

30. Tobacco Stores and Stands (5993),
but not including e-cigarettes,
hookahs, hookah bars, or símilar
uses as a principal use or as
substantial stock-in-trade of the
establishment

31. News Dealers and Newsstands (5994) P

32. Optical Goods Stores (5995)

33. Miscellaneous Retail Stores
(5999), but not including auction
rooms, firework sales, gravestone
sales, monument sa1es, retail ice
dealers, retail sale of swimming
pools, sales barns, or tombstone
sales

D. Finance ïnsurance and Real Estate

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

PP

P

P

P

P

P

P

1_ P*
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CommerciaL Districts 5-]-02

c-L c-2 c-3 c-4
2 Depository and Nondepository

Credit Institutions (60-61-), but
not including drive-in
establishments or automatic teller
machines, except automatic teller
machines attached to the principal
structure on the lot (see spacing
requirements below) t

Security and Commodity Brokers,
Dealers Exchanges, and Services
(62¡ lsee spacing requirements
below) *

Insurance Carriers, Agents,
Brokers, and Services (63-64)

5. Real Estate Offices (65)

P*+ P P** P

3

P4

6. Holding
Offices

Services

P*+

P* P

P* P

P*

P* P

P P**

P**

P**

P P**

P

P

and Other Investment
(67 ¡

E

P1 Veterinary Services for Animal
Specialties with retail sales
(07 42)

2. Grooming Services for Pets (0752)

3. Personal Physical Fitness Training
and supervised exercise facilities
in conjunction with retail sales
(NAICS 713940) ' subject to the
followÍng conditions: (a) the use
may not exceed 3'500 square feet
of gross floor area on the first
floor, (b) the use is Permitted
only in a storefront space that
does not exceed 30 feet in widt'h
at the front lot line, (c) in the
C-1 and C-2 Dis ict the full
widt,h of the use at the storefront
must be devoted exclusívelY to
retail sales, and (d) the retail
sales area of the use must have an
average depth of not less than 25
feet measured from the storefront

P

P

P

P

PP

205
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Office Districts Special Uses 6-105

Research and Development Laboratories not otherwise
permitted (7391)

Passenger Car Rental and Leasing (75L4-751-5)

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs (7997 ), but not
includinq flvinq fields (runwavs) maint,ained bv
aviation clubs r Çfrfn clubs, or shooting clubs

OffÍces of Health Practitioners not otherwise
permitted (80L-804)

Medical and Dental Laboratories (807)

Commercial Testing Laboratories not, otherwise
permitted (873)

7. Business and Professional Offices not, otherwise listed

E. Transportation and Utility Services.

L. LocaL and Interurban Transit Terminals and Statíons
(4 r.1)

2. Public Utility Yards and Facilities (49)

Miscellaneous

Planned Developments
Landbanking of required parking, subject to Subsection
1-0-l-018 of this Code
Multiple Family Dwellings

t_

2

3

4

5

6

F

L
2

3

6-r" 0 6 PARKTNG AND LOADTNG REQUIREMENTS

The parking and loading
District are set forth
this Code.

requirements
in Sections

applicable in the
L0-101 and L0-L02

o-l_
of

6-t07 SIGN REGULATIONS

Sign regulations applicable in the O-L District are set
forth in Article XI of this Code.

257
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Industrial District Permitted Uses 7-t02

3. Landscape and Horticultural Services (078)

C. Construction

General Building Contractors (15), but not including
outdoor storage

Heavy Construction Contractors (16), but not including
outdoor storage

l-

2

Special
outdoor

D. Manufacturing

3 Trade Contractors (]-7), but not including
storage

l- Canned, Frozen, and Preserved Fruits, Vegetables, and
Food Specialties (203)

Bakery Products (205)

Candy and Confectionary Products (2064)

Craft Breweries and Craft Distilleries, as de fi ned and

2

3

4

requlated bv III inois law and the Illinois T,íouor
Control Commission, includinq Tastinq Rooms.

5. Bottled and Canned Soft Drinks and Carbonated Ïlaters
(2086)

Apparel and Other Finished Products Made From Fabrics
and Similar Materials (23)

65.

76.

g+.

9e.

109.

Millwork, Veneer, Plywood, and Structural Vlood Members
(243)

lVood Containers (244)

Furniture and Fixtures (25)

Paper and AIIied Products (26)

Printing, Publishing, and Allied Industries (21¡

Glass Products made of purchased glass (323)

Pottery and Related ProducLs (326)

Lle.

12+.

L32.

302
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Industrial Dístrict Permitted Uses 7-102

3. Insurance Agents, Brokers, and Services (64)

4. ReaI Estate Establishments (65)

5, Holding and Other Investment Offices (61¡

Services

Power Laundries, fanily and commercial-

Linen Supp1y (72L3)

Dry Cleaning Plants (7216)

Carpet and Upholstery Cleaning (72L7)

Industrial Launderers (72LA)

(72!L)

Laundry and Garment Services not elsewhere classified
(-'i2L9)

Business Services (73), but not including heavy
construction equipment rental or leasing (7353)

Utilit,y Trailer and Recreational Vehicle Rental (7519)

General Automotive Repair Shops (7538)

Automotive Services, except repair and car washes (7549)

LL. Miscellaneous Repair Services (76), but, ñ^+ i -¡l "¡l.i nærau L Ir¡uI uu4¡¡9

gun parts made to individual order

1"2. Motion Pict,ure Production and Allied Services (78i-)

Motion Picture Dist,ribution and Allied Services (782)

Dance Studios, Schools and Halls (79LL)

Gymnastics Instruction only (7999+

Medical and Denta1 Laboratories (807)

Home Health Care Services (808)

Legal Services (8f¡

305
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L4.

L5.

L6.

t7.

I
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4

5

6

7

10.

I

9
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Industrial District Special Uses

6. Tj-re Retreading and Repair Shops (7534)

. 7. Automotive Repair Shops not elsewhere classified

8. Car Vüashes (7542)

9. Physical Fitness Facilities (799L)

7-105

(7539)

10.

LL.

t2.

13.

1,4.

Membership Sports and
includinq flvinq fields

Recreation Clubs (7997) but not
(run'f^feV S maintained bv ava cl tion

clubs, or gun c1ubs, or shooting clubs

Amusement and Recreation
classífied (7999), but
bookmakers, card rooms,
gambling machines, lotteries,
qalleries, shootino ranqes,

Services not eLsewhere
not including bookies,
ganbling establishments,
or lottery clubs, shootingt
skeet shooti ncf faci lities

of any kind, or trapshootinq facilitíes of any kind

Health Services (80)

Vocational Schools (824)

Schools and Educational
classífied (829)

Services not elsewhere

15. Social Services (83)

16.

F. Miscellaneous

Planned Developments

Landbanking of required parking, subject to Subsection
1-0-L018 of this Code.

G. Adult Uses. Adult usesr âs that term is defined in this
Subsection G, shall be authorized in the T-1- Light IndustrÍal
District subject to the issuance of a special use permit as
provided in Section L4-401 of this Code and only in compliance
with atl of the following standards and regulations:

A medical cannabis dispensary, but not
lot with a side Lot line that abuts a lot
any residential district.

on any zonlng
classified in

l-

2
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wireless Services

(iv)

(v) Grounding. ant,enna and
be bonded to

9-r.01

support
grounding

Color. The antenna and its support sLruc-
ture shall be a color that blends with the
roof or building side on which it ís
mounted.

The
sha1l

its
astructure

rod.

(vi) Other Standards. The antenna and its
support structure shall satisfy such other
design and construction standards as the
Village Manager determines are necessary to
ensure safe construction and maintenance of
the antenna and its support structure.

(d) Setback from Street. No such antenna or its
support structure shall be erected or maintained
closer to any street than the walI of the
principal building to which it is accessory that
is nearest to such street.

(e) Guv Vüires Restric ted. No guy or other support
wires shatl be used in connection with such
antenna or its support structure except when used
to anchor the antenna or support structure to an
existing building to which such antenna or
support structure is attached.

(f) Screening. See Subsection 9-104F of this Code for
Iandscaping and screening requirements applicable
to ground mounting antennas.

3. Donati-on CoI Iection Bins. Donation collection bins
must satis all the followinq conditions:

(a) Locations. A donation collection bin mav be
claced onlv on a lot that (L) is classified in
the C-3, C-4, O-1, I-l- Districts of the La Grange
Zoning Code, or Q\ is classified in the IB
Institutional Buil-dinqs District and Ís occtllf L ed
and used primarilv for reli qious Þurposes or 3

is used bv a unit of state or local cfove rnment.

tionship to Þr oal use. The donation
bin must relate

(b)
collection

403
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupationsi
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wirel-ess Services

9-10 1

specifically to the current principal use on the
lot on which the donation bin is placed.

(c) Location. No donation collecti on bÍn mav be
placed such that it faces an abuttinq zoninq lot
classified in a single familv residential zoninq
district.

(d) Non-operational use. No donation collection bin
mav be placed on any lot on which there is no
operational- principal use.

(e) Off-street Parkinq Spaces. No donation collection
bin mav be placed in anv o ff-street parkinq sÞace
reguired under the La Grancfe Zoninq Code or anv
ViIIaqe ordinance or reoulations.

(f) Pub1ic Riqhts-of-lrÏav. No donation collection bin
mav be placed withí n anv public riqht-of-urav.

{q) Required Yards. No donation collection bin mav
be placed within any required vard except the
rear vard no closer than 3 feet from the rear lot
line.

(h) Obstruction. No donation collection bin mav be
olaced in anv manner that creates an obstruction
or sight obstruction for pedestrians or motorists

(i) Front Facades. No donation collection bin may be
laced a ainst or alo the front fa of an

building.

(i) Dimensions. No donation collection bin may exceed
the followinq dimensions: In the IB Institutional
Buildinqs District-L72"x 1¡tr72"x H7 4n. In other
authorized districts L48"x W44"x H74'.

(k) Identification. Everv donation collection bin
must have the name and telephone n er of the
donation collection bin licensee affixed
permanently to its front.

(1) Maintenance Serv ice. Everv donation collection
in must be a ct l_ maintaÍned in

and appearance, Q) kept free of rust

404
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscapíng; Fences;
PersonaL VüireLess Services

9-L01

and graffiti, and (3) reqularlv emot I ed to
prevent the overflow of donati-ons.

4. Garages as Dwelling Units. No qarage or other
asaaccessory structure sha1I be used or occupied

dwetling unit in any residential district.

Gazebos. Gazebos must satisfy all of the following
conditions:

54

(a) Size. No gazebo in any single family
district, may exceed the following
area maximums:

residential
gross floor

(i) Lots 6,500 ssuare feet or Less in total
lot area: 1,20 square

to 10,000

feet;

souare feet in tot,al

(d)

(ii) Lots 6,50L
lot area: I44 sguare feet;

(iii) Lots qreater than L0 000 souare feet in
total lot area: 250 square feet.

exceed 12 feet in maximum(b) Heiqht. No gazebo may
height.

(c) Number Limited. No more than one gazebo may be
Iocated on any zoning Iot.

Other Standards. Each vertical surface of the
gazebo must be at least 50 percent open.

65 Greenhouses . 
-Ç¡ssnhouses 

must satisfv all of the

(a) Size. No crreen house in anv sinqle familv
district mav exceed the followinq cfross floor
area max IInUInS:

(i) Lots 6,500 ssuare feet or less in total
Iot area z L20 souare feet;

( ii ) l,ots 6,50L to L0,000 sguare feet in total
Iot area z 144 feet

Lots 10,00L t,o L5, 000 souare feet in
lot area: 2 souare feet

following conditions:

(iii)

405
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wireless Services

9-10L

9.6

(iv) Lots sreater than 1-5, 000 scruare f eet in
tot,al lot area: 4 00 S ouarc fcct.

(b) Heiqht. No sreenhouse mâv exceed 12 feet in
maximum heiqht.

7. Exterior Lighting. Any permitted accessory lightíng
fixtures shall be so designed, amanged, and operated
as to prevent glare and direct rays of light from
being cast onto any adjacent public or private
property or street and so as not to produce excessive
sky-reflected glare. Except for street lightsr oo
exterj-or light in or adjacent to any residential
district shall be so designed, arranged, or operated
to produce an intensity of light exceeding one-half
foot candle at any residential lot line.

Outdoor Kitchens. Outdoor kitchens must satisfy aII
of the following conditions:

(a) Height. No outdoor kitchen or any of its
structures, including without limitation any
awning, canopy, or other coveringr frây exceed
eight feet in height, with the exception of a
chimney or flue for a wood burning stove which in
no event may exceed 15 feet in height.

(b) Setback from l,ot T,ines. Outdoor kitchens may be
Iocated no cLoser than (i) L0 feet from the rear
Iot, line and (Íi) a distance equal to 20 percent
of the lot, width from any side lot Iine.

(c) Other Standards. Outdoor kitchens must comply
with aII standards in Chapter 98 of the La Grange
Code of Ordinances.

Accessorv Parkino in Sinqle Familv Residential9+
Districts. Parking

use in
lots
any

shalL not be permitted as an
single family residentialaccessory

district.

P].av houses. PIavhouses must satis
following conditions:

406
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wireless Services

9-101

(a) Heiqht. No plavhouse may exceed 1"0 f eet in
heiqht.

(b) Location. A plav house mav not be located in any
required yard except the rear yard.

(c) Separation from princioal Structure. A plavhouse
must be separated from the principal structure a
minimum of L0 feet. A plavhouse mav not be
connected to the principal structure.

(d) Habit,ation. A plavhouse mav not be constructed
or as a dwell unít.

LL.9. Amateur Radio Facilities vüith Surface Area Exceedinq
10 Square Feet. Any antenna and antenna suPPort

combined surface area greater thanstructure having a
1-0 square feet or having any single dímension
exceeding 12 feet that ís capable of t,ransmitting as
well as receiving signals and is Iicensed by the
Federal Cornmunications Commission as an amateur radio
facility must satisfy each of the following
conditions:

(a) Number Limited. No more
support structure with a
than 1-0 square f eet or
exceeding 12 feet may be
Iot.

than one such antenna
surface area greater
any single dimension
located on any zoning

(b) Heiqht Limited. No such antenna support structure
shall, Lf ground mounted, exceed 75 feet in
height orr if attached to a building pursuant to
Subparagraph C? (c) of this Section, the height
therein specified.

(c) Attachme nt to Buildinqs Limited. No such antenna
or its support structure shall be attached to a
principal or accessory structure unless all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(i) Height. The antenna and its
structure shall not extend more
feet above the highest Point
building on which it is mounted-

support
than 20
of the

407
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wirel-ess Services

9-r-0r_

awaiting timely repair at an automotive repair
shop, gasoline service station, or new or used
car dealer, shall be stored in any parking Iot or
parking area.

(h) Temporary Storage. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Paragraph C4, any vehicle may
be stored at any location on a lot in a resi-
dential district except any required front yard
for a temporary period not to exceed 48 hours;
provided, however, that, unless authorized by the
VilIage Manager based on special circumstances,
no more than one such temporary period shall
occur in any 30-day period. No Certificate of
Zoning Compliance shall- be required for such
temporary storage.

¡3L5. Tree houses. A tree house must satisfy all the
following conditi-ons :

(a) Support. No tree house may be support,ed in any
wav directlv bv the qround

(b) Location. A tree house ma not be located in anv
required vard except the rear yard.

(c) Habitation. A tree house ma v not be constructed
or used as a dwellinq unit.

(d) Tree houses are prohibited as orincipal uses
evervwhere within the Villaoe.

l-6. Uses Subi ect to Special Restrictions . Vühen the
district regulations of this Code require compliance
with any procedures or standards with respect to a
specific use, such use shall not be established as an
accessory use except in compliance with those
procedures and standards.

D. Use, Bulk, Space, and YarQ Regulations. Except as expressly
provided otherwise in this Section, every accessory use and
structure shall comply with the use, bulk, space, and yard
regulations made applicable to them by the regulations of
the district in which they are located.

E. Use Limitation. No accessory use or structure shall be
constructed, establj-shed, or maintained on any 1ot prior to

413
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Accessory Uses and Structures; Home Occupations;
Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal Wireless Services

L.

9-104

Undeveloped areas shall be mowed and kept free of
accumulations of garbage, trash, refuse, debris, and other
unsightly or nuisance creating materials until developed.

K. Screening and Landscapinq within Si ht, Triansles.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section to the
contraryr rro landscaping, fencing, or other screening shall
be erected or maintained in viol-ation of the standards
established in Chapter 154 of the l,a Grange Municipal Code.

Driveway Clear Siqht Areas. Any other provision of this
Code to the contrary notwithstanding, nothing may be
erected, placed, planted, allowed to grottl, or maintained on
any lot in any residential district above a height, of three
feet above grade within the area of a driveway clear sight
area as defined in Section l6-I02D of this Code.

9-1 05 FENCES

Permit Reguired. No fence shall be erected, enlarged,A
expanded, altered, relocated, maintained, or repaired
unless a Fence Permit shall have first been issued by the
ViIlage Manager.

B. Prohibited Materials. No fence shall be constructed of the
followinq materials:

1_. Anv electricallv charoed element.

2 Barbed wire,
barbed wire
seven feet.

razor ü¡tre
in the I-l-

or concertina wire, except
District above a height of

3. Chain link if located between the buildinq line and a
corner side lot Iine or front lot. line.

4. liloven mesh

5. Tempor arv or incomplete structural members , such as
non-riqid plastic stakes, or un-fr chain link.

c. Vüínd Pressure Desiqn.
constructed to resist
less than 30 pounds Per

Every fence
a horizontal
square foot.

be designed
pressure of

shaII
wind

and
not

427
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Temporary Uses; Buffers and Landscaping; Fences;
Personal- Wireless Services

9-105

!¡ard exeepË r¡nder Èhe fellowing e*reumsÈanees Prohibited
Locations. No fence shalt be constructed or mainta ined (1)
between the front buildin<r line of the princioal structure
and the front lot line or (2) in the t side vard

2

except under the following circumstances :+

1 on a residential tot abutting a school, church,
parking lot, commercial use, or industrial use. Such
fence shall be an open fence, shall be located only
along the coÍtmon lot line, and shall not exceed three
and one haLf feet in height above the grade of the
abutting lot.

along the corner side lot line of any corner lot.
Such fence shall not exceed the followíng height above
the grade of the property abutting such corner side
Iot line:

(a) six feet, in the area along the corner side lot
line between the rear lot line and the point on
the principal building elosest to the point of
intersection of the rear yard Line and the corner
side yard line; and

(b) three and one-half feet, in aLl other areas along
the corner side lot line.

If the lot abuts an alley or a driveway at the
intersection of the rear 10t line and the corner side
lot line, then no fence shatl be permitted within 10

feet of such intersection. A solid fence not
exceeding six feet in height shall be permítted along
the diagonal Iine created by such required 10-foot
open area.

at the intersection of the front lot' Iine and t'he
corner side tot line of any corner Iot. Such fence
may extend not more than l-0 feet from said
intersection along the front lot Line and the corner
side lot line. Such fence shall be an open fence,
shalI be constructed of decorative or ornamental
materials such as wrought iron or . split wooden rail,
and shall not exceed 30 ínches in height' above the
lowest grade of the property abutting either said lot

428
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Parkir¡g and Loading

USE REQUTRED SPACES

(ii) Vüarehouse and Storage

(iii) Office and other
activities

10- 101

1 for each 1,000 square feet
of gross floor area up to
20,000 square feet, PLUS L

for each 2,000 square feet
of gross floor area from
20,001 to 40,000 square feet
PLUS 1 for each 4,000 square
feet of gross floor area j-n
excess of 40,000 square feet

1 for each 350 square
feet of gross floor area

1 for each two emplovees PT,US(iv) Craft Brebrerv or Craft
Distillerv with Tastinq Room 1 for each 65 souare feet

of Tasting Room floor area

(i) Printing, Publishinq, and L for each employee PLUS
1 for each company vehicleAl-lied Industries

2. Unspecified Uses. When the ultimate use of a
structure is not known, the maximum number of
spaces that might be required for any use to
which the structure might reasonabl-y be devoted
shall be provided.

3. Computation of Required Spaces.

(a) Fractional Spaces. When determination
the requirement of a fractional- space'
fraction shal-l require one additional
space.

(b) Capacity CaIculations. When parking spaces
are required on the basis of capacity,
capacity shaLl be determined based on the
occupancy standards established by the
LaGrange Building Code.

(c) Bench Sea tino. In stadia, auditoria, houses
of worship, and other places of assembly in
which patrons or spectators occupy benches,
pews t ox other similar seating facilities,

465
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Signs 1L- 10 9

J. Total Combined Square Foot Area of Sig¡q

Maximum Al-lowed. Except as otherwise provided in this
Subsection J, the total square footage of all awning,
canopy, marquee, wall, and ground signs shall not
exceed (a) one and one-half square feet per foot of
Iot frontage or (b) 200 square feet, whichever is
less.

Special Exception In the C-3 District. ïn the C-3
General Service Commercial District, the square
footage devoted to any ground sign identifying more
than one business on the l-ot shalI not be counted
against the 200 square feet maximum set in
Subparagraph 1 above.

1

2

3 Limitation On Tenant
individual tenant of
cover more than five
is affixed.

Signs. No sign identifying an
a multi-tenant building shall

percent of the wall to which it

11-110: COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLANS

A. Commercial Buildinq Comprehensive Sion Plan. A Commercial
Building Comprehensive Sign PIan ("CBC Sign PJ-an") is a set
of one or more drawings, specifications, and design
criteria for all signs on a single commercial or industrial
building in a commercial or industrial zoning district. An
approved CBC Sign Plan establishes the number, Iocations,
sizes, general design theme and guidelines, and other
criteria for alt current and future exterior signs on the
building.

B. Authority to Approve. The ViIIage Manager may approve a
review and recommendation of the l,aCBC Sign PIan after the

Grange Design Review Commission as provided in Subsection J
of this sect.ion Ll--110. The village Manager may conf er
with the applicant before determining whether to approve a

cBc sign Plan. The Village Manager must act on a cBc sign
PLan application within 15 days after receipt of the
recommendation of the Design Review Commission unless the
applicant agrees in writing to a J-onger time period. The
decision of the ViIIage Manager will be final.

c Purpose and Intent.
create a unified

The purpose of a CBC Sign Plan is to
plan for al-I exterior signs for a

particular building. The authority in Subsection I of this

522 Revised r0l20l3
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r2-t04

Nonconformities t2-]-03

caused by government actions, strikes, material
shortages, or acts of God, and wíthout any
contributing fault by the nonconformíng user and (b) a
period of vacancy of a space resulting from the
departure of a nonconforming use and the inability of
the ohrner of the structure to lease the vacant space
despite the oh¡ner's diligent and continuous efforts to
do so.

NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES

Authority to Continue. Any nonconforming structure
that is devoted to a use that is permitted j-n the
zoning district in whích it is located may be
continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful,
subject to the restrictions in Subsections B through D

of this Sectíon and Subsection D of Section l2-l0l of
this Code.

B. Repair, Maintenance, Alterations, and Enlargement.
Any nonconforming structure may be repaired'
maintained, altered, or enlarged; provided' however,
that no such repai-r, maintenance' alterati-on, or
enlargement shaIl either create any additional
nonconformity or increase the degree of the exi-sting
nonconformity of all or any part of such structure.
The vertical or horizontal- extension of an existing
exterior waIl of a single family detached dwellinq

A

that is nonconforminq with respect to a minimum
reguired yard will not be considered to increase the
deqree of that nonconfo rmitv so lonq as the extension

c

does not encroach further into the required yard.

Moving. No nonconforming structure shall be moved in
whole or in part, for any dístance whatsoever, to any
other location on the same or any other lot unless the
entire structure shall thereafter conform to the
regulations of the zoning district in which it is
Located after being moved.

Damage or Destruction. Any nonconforming structure
that
the

is damaged or destroyed, by any means not within
control of the o\^Iner thereof, to any extent' hâY

562
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Usage and Definitions !6-r02

Vühen used in this Code, the following terms shal1 have the
meanings herein ascribed to them:

BASEMENT. A portion of a structure located partly underground
but. having less than half its clear floor to ceiting height
over more than half of its floor area below grade.

BAY VüTNDOVü. A Iarge windohr or set of windows of one or more
of a housestories in height protruding from the outer wall

and creating a recessed space within the house.

BERM. A hill or contour of land that acts as a visual barrier
between a lot and adjacent properties, aIleys, or streets.

BLOCK. A tract of land bounded by streets or by a combination
of streets, public lands, railroad rights-of-way, waterways,
or boundary lines of the Village.

BOARD OF APPEALS. The Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village.
See Section 13-102 of this Code.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The President and t.he Board of Trustees
of the Village of LaGrange.

BOUTIQUE. A sma1l retail shop that specializes in a particuLar

B

oroduct such as women's clothes, food, or wine, for example.

BREir'fPUB An establishment where beer is brewed or
manufactured primarily for distribution and consumption in an
adjoining full-service restaurant.

BUFFERTNG. Any means of protecting a parcel from the visual
or auditory effects of an adjacent use. Buffering may
include, but is not limited to, bermj-nq, fencing,
landscaping, setbacks, or open spaces.

BUILDÏNG. Any structure designed or intended for the support,
enclosure, shelterr or protection of persons, animals, or
propert,y.

BUILDING, ACCESSORY. See Section 9-1"01 of this Code.

BUILDING CODE. The Building Code of the Village of laGrange.

BUTLDING COVERAGE. The percentage of a lot's area covered,
whether at grade or above or below grade, by any portion
of a building or structure, including without, limitation
porches, except the following: (a) The only portions of
eaves on a single family detached dwelling that are
included in Èhe calculation of building coverage are those
portions that extend within three feet of any lot line;

805
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Usage and Definitions l.6-]-02

(b) a swimming pool built entirely at and below grade is
not included in t,he calculation of buitding coverage; and
(c) a deck is not included in the calculation of building
coverage. See also Subsection 16-102I for the definition
of "Impervious Surfacer" Subsection L6-L02L for the
definition of "Lot Coverager" and Subsection l6-L02D for
the definition of "Deck."

BUTLDING DEPTH. The IOngest straighi
through a structure, from one end
substantially parallel to the side or
of the Lot on which it is located.

l-ine that can be drawn
to the other end,

corner side lot lines

BUÏLDTNG DETACHED. A building surrounded entirely by open
space.

BUILDING HEIGHT. See Subsection 16-102H for "Height. "

a lot line andBUTLDING LINE. The averase distance between
the exterior wall of the princ t)al structure facinq that lot
line. The buildinq line is drawn DE ra1lel to the lot line at
the averaqe distance from the lot I ine of the exterior wall.

BUTLDING OR STRUCTURE FRONT. Except as provided in Subsection
16-L02H of this Section, that exterior waII of a building or
structure facing the front lot line of the lot on which it is
locat.ed.

BUÏLDTNG PRINCIPAL. A building in which is conducted the
on which the buildinqr is situated'principal use of the lot

BUILDING tüIDTH. The longest straight line that can be drawn
paralle1through a structure, from one side to the other side,

to the front lot line.

BULK AND SPACE REGULATIONS. ThC TCgulations of this Code Per-
taining to the permissible or required height, volume, area,
floor area, floor area ratio, minimum lot area and dimensions,
building coverage, Iot coverage, and usable open space
applicable to uses and structures. The term does not include
yard requirements.

BULLETIN BOARD SIGN. See Section l-L-105 of this Code.

BUSINESS DTSTRTCT. ANy district whose designation begins with
the letter "Cr " as set forth in Section 2-1"01 of this Code.

BUSINESS SIGN. See Section 1L-105 of this Code

BUSINESS USE OR PURPOSE Any use permitted in a business
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'Usage and Definitions r6-L02

COMMERCAL FOOD PREPARATTON FACILTTY. Any retail
establishment that rents ¡ or otherwise makes available,
commercial-grade kitchen space within the establishment for
use by persons or entities for food preparation for any
purpose, including without limitation ret,ail sale, catering,
personal use, temporary extra production capacity, menu
planning, training, taste testi-ng, product development, food
packaging, or food sLorage. A couunercial food ¡.rreparaLiorr
facility in the I-1 T,ight Industrial District is not required
to have a retail use on the premises.

COMMERCTAL USE OR PURPOSE. Any use permitted in a commercial
district.

COMPLETELY ENCLOSED BUILDING. A buildin g separateci on ail
sides from the adjacent open area, or from other buildings or
structures, by a permanent roof and by exterior wa1ls or party
walls, pierced only by windor^rs or doors normally provided for
the accommodation of persons, goods or vehicles. However, a
parking structure that has less than 50 percent of its outer
wall space open but that does not allow any parked vehicle
within said structure to be seen from the exterior thereof
shall be considered a completely enclosed building.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. See Subsection 2-1058 of this Code

CONGREGATE HOUS]NG. Any use of a dwelling unit for the
habitation by persons, whether adults or minors, who do not
constitute a family and who are suffering from a handicap as
defined in, or judicially construed to be covered by, the
United States Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. S 3602(h) (1), as
amended from time to t,ime, or from a disability or impairment
that the Board of Trustees determines, in its sole and
absolute discretion, is similar to, but does not faII within
said definition of, a handicap, together with care givers and
staff. The following are specifically excluded from this
definition: Iiving arrangements that serve as an alternative
to incarceration, hospitals and clinics, boarding houses,
convalescent homes, homes for the aged, and similar
facilities.

CONSTRUCTION SIGN. See Section L1-i-05 of this Code.

CORNER LOT. See Subsection I6-L02L of this Section.

CRAFT BREüIERY. A small -production beer manufacturinof ac1 Iitv
operated in accordance with Illinois law regardinq production
limits.

809
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Usage and Definitions r6-t02

CR.AFT DISTILLERY. A smalI-production facilit v in which
alcoholic liquors are made by distillation in accordance with

D

Illinois law regardinq production limits.

CUL-DE-SAC. A minor street having one end open and one end
permanent,ly terminated by a vehicuLar turn-around.

CURB LEVEL. The street curb height at the mid-point of a lot
line. Vühere no curb exisis, the elevation of the croi/\in of
the street at the midpoint of the lot Line shall be deemed to
be the curb level.

lVhen used in this Code, the foiiowing terms shail have the
meanings herein ascribed to them:

DAY CARE. Daytime care or instruction of children ahray from
whether ortheir own homes by a person other than a relative,

not for compensation or reward.

DAY CARE HOME. A place providing day care for children and
being operated as a home occupation.

DECK. A structure attached to any dwelling unit that
designed and intended for the support of persons; that
made of wood; that has no permanent cover or canopy; that.
constructed on piers and hrithout. continuous foundation
footings; and that has no part extending above the floor lev
of the first story of such dwe11ing, excluding any basemen
provided, however, that protective, decorative, or ornamental
appurtenances such as hand railings, benches, and the like
may extend to a height of 42 j-nches above such floor level.

DEDICATTON. The designation of land for a public use by the
ohrner thereof .

DENSITY. The number of persons, families r or dwelling units
or the amount of gross floor area in a building, on a Iot, or
in a development.

DENSTTY, GROSS. ThC dCNSity of a development divided bY the
gross area of the development.

is
is
is
or
el

DENSTTY NET.
net area of the

The density of a development divided by the
development.

DEPTH OF LOT. See Subsection 16-L02L of this Section.

DESTGN REVIEW COMMISSION. The Design Review Commission of the
Village of LaGrange. See Section 13-l-04 of this Code-
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Vühen used in this Code, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein ascribed to them:

MAJOR AUTOMOBILE REPATR. See Subsection L6-L02A of this
Section.

MARQUEE OR CANOPY. A roof-like structure of a permanent
nature that projects from the wall of a building.

MARQUEE SIGN. See Section 1-L-L05 of this Code.

MEDTCAL CANNABIS DTSPENSARY. A medica] cannabis
dispensing organization as defined in the Illinois
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act.

MEMORIAT GARDEN. A parcel of landscaped ground used for the
burial of cremated human remains directly int,o the earth.

MEMORIAL SIGN. See Section 1L-105 of this Code.

¡ng

eensrump+ipa.

MINIMUM LOT AREA. See Subsection l-6-102L of this Section.

MINOR AUTOMOBILE REPAIR. See Subsection 16-L024 of this
Section.

MORE RESTRICTIVE DISTRICT. See Section 2-102 of this Code.

MOTEL. An establishment that provldes services similar to a
hotel but that is designed to attract primarily automobile
transients and that, has individual entrances from the outside
of the building for at least 25 percent of the dwelling or
rooming units located therein.

MOVING SIGN. See Section 1-1--105 of this Code.

MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING. See Subsection L6-L02D of this
Section.

MUNICIPAL CODE. ThC LA GTange Code of Ordinances.

82s
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Vühen used in thls Code, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein ascribed to them:

S

SATELLTTE RECETVTNG ANTENNA. See
Section and Section 9-10i. of this

Subsection 1-6-1024 of Ehis
Code.

SCREENING.
conceal an

A structure erected or vegetation planted to
area from view.

SEAT VIALL. A wa]I on or abutting a deck, patio, or distinct
Iandscape feature, designed for seat,ing and not exceeding 22
j-nches in height. at any point,.

SENIOR CITTZEN HOUSING. A dwCIIing unit in a dwelling:

i/¡\ constructed, maintained, and operated for the
exclusive occupancy by: (i) persons who are at
least 62 years of agie; (íi) persons who are under
a disability or are handicapped as determined by
the regulations of the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development: or (iii) two or
more persons, one of whom meets the occupancy
criteria stated in (i) or (ii): provided, however,
that not more than one dwelling unit. in such
dwelling may be occupied by a resident manager who
does not meet the aforesaid occupancy criteria;
and

(b) that complies with such special construction
standards that may from time to time be imposed on
dwellings constructed and maintained pursuant to
the United States Housing Act of 1-937 by federal
statute or regulation and such additional special
construction standards for Senior Citizen Housing
as the Board of Trustees may, from time to time,
approve by ordinance or resolution; and

(c)

SETBACK. The minimum horizontal distance between a specified
lot line, measured at a right, angle to such lot line, and the
nearest point of a building or structure.

SHORT -TERM RENTAL HOUSING. A dWC Ilinq that is of f ered or

that may provide communal eatinq facilities
the exclusive use of the aforesaid occupants
their occasional guests.

for
and

a

otherwise available for occuþancv bv a person or þersons other
than the owner for anv period of time less than 30 davs,
reqardless of the form of rent or other consideration. Short-

not a single familyterm rental housinq is

5 -ß'v b

detached dwellinçt
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and is not permitted in anv sinqle familv residential
distríct.

SIDE LOT LINE. See Subsection 16-102L of this Section

SIDEVüALK, ENTRY. The sidewalk on private property serving as
the principal means of pedestrian access to the lot, typically
leading from the sidewalk on adjacent public-right-of-way to
the front entry of the building on the lot, and typically
traversing the front yard or corner side yard.

SIDE YARD. See Subsection 16-102y of this Section.

SIDE YARD LINE. See Subsection l-6-102Y of this Sect.ion.

SIGHT TR]ANGLE. SCE

Area, tt

Area. tt
and Subsection

SIGN. Any object, device, display, or structure, or part
thereof, situated outdoors or indoors' which is used to
ad.vertise, identify, display, direct, or attract attention to
an object, person, institution, organization' business,
product, service, event, or location by any means, including
words, Ietters, figures, desi-gns, symbols, fixtures, colors,
ill-umination, or projected images. For definitions of
particular functional and structural Lypes of signs, see
Section 11-105 of this Code.

Subsection l6-I02C for "Clear
I6-L02D for "Driveway Cl-ear

Sight
Sight

SIGN NONCONFORMTNG. Any sign
regulations of Sections 11-108

that fails to conform to the
and 1-1-109 of this Code.

STGN WITH BACK]NG Any sign that is displayed upon' against,
or through any material or color surface or backing that forms
an integral part. of such display and differentiates the total
display'frorn the background against which it is placed.

SIGN WTTHOUT BACKING. Any sign other than a sign with
backing.

STNGLE FAMTLY ATTACHED DVüELLING. SEC SUbSCCIiON 16_102D fOT

"Dwellings, Single Family Attached."

SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED DVüELLING. See Subsection 16-102D for
"Dwellings, Single Family Detached. "

SITE PLAN APPROVAL. See Section L4-402 of this Code.

SMOKE. Small gas*borne particles other than l^tater that form
a visj-ble plume in the air.

838
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T Vühen used in this Code, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein ascribed to them:

TASTING ROOM. A room accessorv t,o a Craft Brewe rV or a Craft
Distitlery in which food and t,he products produced in the
brewerv or distillery are offered to the public.

TEMPORARY SIGN. See Section

storage container delÍvered to a property to store belongings
for a limited period oi time. Temporary storage containers
are sometimes known as 'PODS" (portable on-demand storage
cont,ainers).

TEMPORARY USES. See Section 9-1-03 of this Code.

TRELLIS. See Subsection 16-l-02A for "Arbor."

TüIO FAI,IILY DVIELLING. See Subsection L6-L02D for "Dwellingi'
Two Family. "

842

TEMPORARY STORAGE CONTATNER.

1L-L05 of this Codc.

Any sort of portable self-
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Vühen used in this Code, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein ascrÍbed to them:

tIALL SIGN. See Section L1-105 of this Code

!ûARNING SIGN. See Section L1-105 of this Code.

VüHOLESALE TRADE. A business engaged in the sale of commodities
in quantíty, usually for resale or business use chiefly to
retailers, other businesses, industries, and institutíons
rather than to the ultimate consumer.

WIDTH OF LOT. See Subsection 16-102L for "Lot Vüidth."

VüINDO!Í SIGN. See Section 1-1-1-05 of this Code.

V'TTNE AND BEER BOUTIOUE. A TeIail establishment specializinq

W

in the sale of wine and, lv, craft beer as its pr
stock-in-trade. üline and Beer Boutiques mav not seII spirit,s.
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